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Signed agreements with Henderson Land
Development Company Limited and Nan
Fung Enterprises Limited to provide special
mortgage loan plans to homebuyers of
“Royal Terrace” and “H Cube” respectively.
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Awarded the “5 Years Plus Caring
Company” status by The Hong Kong
Council of Social Service.

Acted as one of the mandated lead arrangers
in an US$1 billion syndicated loan for China
Oil and Gas Fund.
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Launched wealth management services
“Elite Club”, which targeted high net-
worth customers with total liquid assets of
HK$800,000 or above.

Organized Investment Seminar on Investing
in Mainland China.

Signed an agreement with Sun Hung
Kai Properties Group to provide special
mortgage loan plans to homebuyers of
“Manhattan Hill”.

Acted as one of the mandated coordinating
arrangers in the HK$17 billion syndicated
loan for IFC II Development Limited.
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Opened the new Mei Foo Branch with
Securities Service Centre.

Opened the new Wanchai Road Branch with
“Elite Club” Wealth Management Centre
and Securities Service Centre.
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Launched the Golden Week of May
Promotion for ICBC “Elite Club” customers.
Cooperated with the Chow Tai Fook Group
to have a joint promotion for a Beijing deluxe
villa development - “Shadow Creek”, and
offered special interest rate and package
to our Bank’s existing customers for the
purchase and mortgage financing.
Cooperated with Cheung Kong (Holdings)
Limited to arrange special mortgage loan
plan to homebuyers of “Le Point”.
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Acted as one of the mandated coordinating
arrangers in the HK$15 billion syndicated
loan for Sun Hung Kai Properties Limited.
Organized investment seminar on QDII.
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Charity Dance Performance “Qingming
Riverside” was held to raise funds for
Caritas-Hong Kong and Hong Kong Dance
Company.
Organized the Bank’s fourth China Study
Tour to Yunnan. Participants including
secondary school students, social workers,
teachers and bank staff joined the 8-day tour
and it concluded successfully.
Acted as one of the Co-Managers for China
Development Bank 2-year 5 billion RMB
bond issue, which is the first RMB bond
issued outside the Mainland China.
Extended an US$100 million bilateral facility
to finance a private equity fund for a general
mandatory offer of Digital China Holdings
Limited.
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Participated in the distribution of Renminbi
Retail Bonds issued by Export-Import Bank
of China and Bank of China.

Acted as one of the mandated lead arrangers
in an US$1.5 billion Islamic financing - the
first Islamic financing for our Bank.
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Cooperated with Sino Land Company
Limited to arrange special mortgage loan
plan to homebuyers of “One Silver Sea” who
are ICBC “Elite Club” customers.
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Organized the “Investment opportunity with
the capital inflow from Mainland” seminar.
Established the brand new Hung Hom
Branch with “Elite Club” Wealth
Management Centre and Securities Service
Centre.

Acted as one of the mandated lead arrangers
in the US$5 billion syndicated loan for Dubai
World.
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Assisted in “The Development of Banks
in Shanghai and Hong Kong” exhibition,
jointly presented by the Shanghai Bank
Museum of the Industrial and Commercial
Bank of China Limited and the Hong Kong
Museum of History under the Leisure and
Cultural Services Department.

Actively participated in the Caritas Raffle
Ticket Sales and Bazaar by all level of staff,
in order to raise funds for Caritas - Hong
Kong.
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Joined hands with Dragon Centre, the largest
shopping mall in West Kowloon district, to
launch “Dragon Centre MasterCard”.



12

14

24

48

63

73

75

76

77

78

79

81

221

241

244

H &%

HATA
IR
B I
e

B e S T
= AR R

EH G

BRI

LY Gl S

ESREEisEnE s
HeEEAME
HEARR
BOBlaeR
U H BT

W I S5 0

B SO 4K o

GPAT ~ B B g A )

HAHINEE =
HEE b

Contents

3 Company Profile

5 Corporate Information

6 Financial Performance

30 Chairman’s Statement

32 Management’s Discussion and Analysis

44 Biographical Details of Directors & Senior Management
48 Report of the Directors

63 Corporate Governance Report

73 Independent Auditors’ Report

75 Consolidated Income Statement

76 Consolidated Balance Sheet

77 Balance Sheet

78 Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
79 Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

81 Notes to the Accounts

221 Supplementary Financial Information

241 Notice of Annual General Meeting

244 Branches, Subsidiaries and Associates

P AR Bl o 4 5

R B2 AR I L ) (5 ) o B AR AR AR R iR AR (0 > ACARSRZE N T o B T SR AT (51
) SR RN B P TR AT IO R R o IR AR RIS PR TR ERAT (BR
) P T B L SRR BT TR - 270 T R B P R S -

Bridges provide an interlink for activities of two destinations. Using bridges as a symbol, this annual
report highlights the strong connection between ICBC (Asia) and its parent company ICBC in the
Mainland. With the support of the latter, ICBC (Asia) has built an integrated financial platform for
Hong Kong and the Mainland to provide a wide range of services to clients in the two places.
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INDUSTRIAL AND COMMERCIAL BANK OF CHINA (ASIA) LIMITED

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited (“ICBC (Asia)”), being a group member of Industrial and Commercial
Bank of China Limited (“ICBC”), enjoys ample support in various areas such as funding, settlement, information technology and

credit card business.

ICBC (Asia), formerly known as Union Bank of Hong Kong Limited, was established in Hong Kong in 1964 and publicly listed
in 1973 (Stock Code: 349). Over the years, the Bank offered advanced and diversified banking services to its customers. Following
the Bank’s change of name to “Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited” on 21 August 2000, the Bank has

become a member of ICBC.

In July 2001, ICBC injected the corporate banking business of its Hong Kong Branch into ICBC (Asia). By doing so, it expanded
ICBC (Asia)’s customer base, improved its deposits and loans portfolio and also diversified its product mix. Such transfer of
business therefore led to a substantial enhancement of the competitive edge of ICBC (Asia). Since then, the Bank has become the

flagship of ICBC in developing overseas business.

ICBC (Asia) acquired Fortis Bank Asia HK’s retail and commercial banking operations on 30 April 2004. Fortis Bank Asia HK
was renamed Belgian Bank and became a wholly-owned subsidiary of ICBC (Asia). In October 2005, Belgian Bank, Hong Kong
Branch was legally merged into ICBC (Asia). In 2005, ICBC (Asia) acquired Chinese Mercantile Bank which becomes a wholly-

owned subsidiary and focuses on RMB banking business.

On 6 June 2007, ICBC (Asia) was assigned A2/Prime-1 long-term/short-term deposit ratings and C- Bank Financial Strength
Rating (BFSR) by Moody’s Investors Service.

With the nationwide branch network, leadership and expertise provided by ICBC, ICBC (Asia) will continue to offer a range of
banking and financial services, including various types of deposits and loans, trade finance, remittance, settlement, commercial
and industrial finance, syndicated loans, inward and outward bills of exchange, China business advisory and financial services,

securities business and bullion brokerage services as well as insurance agency services.
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Zhang Yi (Director & Deputy General Manager)
Fung Siu Ming

(Deputy General Manager & Chief Risk Officer)
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English version of this Annual Report can be accessed through
the internet at: http://www.icbcasia.com/eng/investor/report/
report_a.shtml
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W
Z4E (B I0) For the Year (in HK$ million) 2007 2006 % Change
FAR A Net Interest Income 2,388 1,853 29%
Il SR A Net Fee and Commission Income 676 562 20%
FiAt &S Other Operating Income 115 182 -37%
CESE Operating Expenses 1,135 945 20%
B [ Write-back of/(Charge for) Impairment
(#RK) Losses on Loans and Advances 115 (132) -187%
PR Al T Al Profit before Tax 1,952 1,603 22%
BLIH Tax 343 357 ~4%
IS AR A i ) Profit Attributable to Equity Holders 1,609 1,246 29%
L LiTipidia
WHAERSH (H &0 At Year End (in HK$ million) 2007 2006 % Change
B K Loans and Advances 121,704 75,648 61%
B Total Assets 192,304 146,392 31%
1E AR Total Deposits 141,236 109,893 29%
J SR A R Total Equity 15,008 11,085 35%
W R Financial Ratios 2007 2006
EAT R A Capital Adequacy 13.0% 16.0%
AR ) 4 R Average Liquidity for the Year 43.9% 44.1%
IAEHA HE Cost to Income 35.7% 36.4%
B R Loans to Deposits 61.9% 68.6%
S5 w2 Financial Calendar
N PUE S inal Results Announcement &% = = 13 March 2008
NIRRT Final Results A T NFE=AT=H March
R ATEE H Posting Date for Annual Report ZRZ)AENAZ LA 29 April 2008
T e R D R B R Closing Period of Register of Members CERMETATHEAR 15 to 22 May 2008
LT A and Register of Warrant Holders —t+=H
JEHCE AR R € H 3 Date of Annual General Meeting “EENELA A+ TH 22 May 2008
i BUREE H Dividend Payment Date ZRF NN A A BHiE on or about

20 June 2008
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T BA B WE DL FIVE YEAR SUMMARY
ZAF (HEWT) For the Year (in HK$ million) 2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
FALE WA Net Interest Income 2,388 1,853 1,316 1,275 823
e YL EATIN Net Fee and Commission Income 676 562 403 271 262
HoAth g S A Other Operating Income 115 182 314 99 59
%’ i Operating Expenses 1,135 945 890 744 314
B [E 4 Write-back of /(Charge for) Impairment

(3E5K) Losses on Loans and Advances 115 (132) (6) 22 (129)
SR i v A Profit before Tax 1,952 1,603 1,208 936 645
BiIH Tax 343 357 227 176 123
B SR B Ak i ) Profit Attributable to Equity Holders 1,609 1,246 981 760 522
3B ) Per Share (in HK$) 2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
g A A Basic Earnings per Share 1.41 1.11 0.91 0.80 0.71
IS Dividend per Share 0.86 0.66 0.53 0.45 0.38
AR H CH#E0) At Year End (in HK$ million) 2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
LR &N Loans and Advances 121,704 75,648 70,406 62,740 41,811
B AR Total Assets 192,304 146,392 115,782 99,344 75,320
TR A Total Deposits 141,236 109,893 70,341 63,404 42,307
JREHRHE 4 A Total Equity 15,008 11,085 9,870 8,541 5,917
W R Financial Ratios 2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
EATE Capital Adequac 13.0% 16.0% 15.7% 17.4% 16.7%

. p quacy
AR R A LR Average Liquidity for the Year 43.9% 44.1% 36.5% 37.8% 41.3%
FERHCEAF LR Loans to Deposits 61.9% 68.6% 97.4% 94.9% 96.0%
U B MR LR Loans to Total Assets 63.3% 51.7% 61.0% 63.2% 55.5%
W ANIEH LA Impaired Loan/NPL Ratio 0.5% 1.2% 0.9% 1.3% 1.7%
e — R Collective/General Provision Coverage* 1.1% 0.8% 0.8% 0.8% 0.8%
I N S Cost to Income 35.7% 36.4% 43.8% 41.9% 27.4%
IRB Dividend Payout 64.3% 59.5% 60.6% 62.0% 66.4%
TH R [l R AR Return on Average Assets 1.0% 1.0% 0.9% 0.9% 0.8%
S48 788 AR [ % Return on Average Common Equity 13.6% 12.4% 11.0% 10.3% 10.2%
* BLIE [k it * Including “Regulatory Reserve”
RIS B JBE 3K MEE A ¥ A
Operating Profit Before Impairment Losses/Provisions Profit Attributable to Equity Holders
EEA [E S
HKS$ million HKS million

2,200
2,000
1,800
1,600
1,400
1,200
1,000
800
600
400
200

0

+8%

795

+13%
901

+24%
2,044

+45%
1,652
+27%
1,143

2003

2004

2005 2006 2007

1,800
1,600
1,400
1,200
1,000
800
600
400
200

0

+27%
1,246

+29%
981
+46%
760
+10%
522

+29%
1,609

2003 2004 2005 2006

2007



S B D

8 W T 84T (Bi) A FR/A % M Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited
BT LAEAEY, W Annual Report 2007

Financial Performance

PR

Customer Deposits

1. $ERUNE 5 1. ByType 2007 2006
bR ] Current 3.9% 3.6%
& Savings 12.0% 12.2%
M Fixed 84.1% 84.2%
Gt Total 100.0% 100.0%
2. IRERSIY H 5 2. By Remaining Maturity 2007 2006
PSR I RV RR AR 2R Repayable on Demand 16.1% 15.8%
=X DY Three Months or Less 82.0% 81.1%
—4E DL E A = AR A One Year or Less, but Over Three Months 1.7% 2.8%
AL E S —F Five Years or Less, but Over One Year 0.2% 0.3%
B Total 100.0% 100.0%
3. EEWES 3. By Currency 2007 2006
#IT HKD 57.3% 54.3%
BN UsD 36.6% 43.4%
HoAt Others 6.1% 2.3%
Arf Total 100.0% 100.0%
oAt FE WA Other Operating Income
2007 2006
A WA B g8 72 DA Net Trading Income and Net Loss on Financial
AN TAE(AR R Assets and Liabilities designated
ARl B at Fair Value through Profit or Loss
iz W E 78.2% 73.0%
R H a R g S A Dividend Income from Financial Investments 3.3% 1.4%
EHAIA Management Fee Income 6.8% 3.5%
LES AN Rental Income 0.8% 0.8%
TEYEMRBRA Rental Income from Investment Properties 0.8% 0.0%
HoAth Others 10.1% 21.3%
Gt Total 100.0% 100.0%
¥ e B 1k B
Total Assets Total Deposits
[ER: XV ERYi
HKS$ million +31% HKS$ million
200,000 192,304 160,000 29%
141,236
180,000 140,000
160,000 lzég'ﬁ'z 0000
140,000 17% ’

120,000

100,000
+21%

80,000 75320

60,000
40,000
20,000

0

115,782

2003

2005 2006 2007

100,000

80,000

60,000

40,000

20,000

0

+56%
109,893
+11%
+50% 70,341
63,404
+5%
42,307

2003 2004 2005 2006 2007
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IS¢ ¢ ey Loan Portfolio
1. JATES 5 1. By Industry Sectors 2007 2006
TEA T 2 B Loans for Use in Hong Kong
L e i Industry, Commercial and Financial
L/E Sl % Property Development 5.7% 5.8%
L ESia-y Property Investment 14.4% 17.6%
EA 1o 3 Financial Concerns 4.2% 5.1%
AR A Stockbrokers 0.1% 0.2%
B FE Wholesale and Retail Trade 3.1% 2.9%
EARTHE Civil Engineering Works 0.3% 0.6%
Bk N Manufacturing 3.2% 4.3%
SR SR R ) Transport and Transport Equipment 6.5% 10.6%
wI @"fh&ﬁﬁﬂ Electricity, Gas and Telecommunications 1.7% 1.2%
s - AEE KRR Hotels, Boarding House & Catering 0.8% 1.5%
HoAfth Others 3.9% 6.3%
A Individuals
E%;Ef [JEEAHE Loans for the purchases of
DL [FANZ flats in Home Ownership Scheme,
iRt ] K Private Sector Participation Scheme
[fﬁ% EEE‘ ‘ and Tenants Purchase Schemes 0.3% 0.2%
S| S
Wi AT 2 Loans for the purchase of
J‘% %Z%%ﬁ( Other Residential Properties 9.7% 14.2%
5 AR EK Credit Card Advances 0.1% 0.1%
Hith Others 1.1% 1.7%
H o E Trade Finance 22.8% 9.0%
 AET U LUSME ) 2 K Loans for Use outside Hong Kong 22.1% 18.7%
At Total 100.0% 100.0%
2. RSN H B 5 2. By Remaining Maturity 2007 2006
JEUIS BEOR I R R A 22 Repayable on Demand 7.3% 9.0%
AP One Year or Less 33.6% 21.7%
FAEE LN HEE— 4 Five Years or Less, but Over One Year 37.1% 39.4%
A LA Over Five Years 21.7% 29.6%
STf7 4 R A0 Undated 0.3% 0.3%
et Total 100.0% 100.0%
3. IR 3. By Currency 2007 2006
it HKD 60.2% 75.0%
B USD 31.4% 20.9%
Hth Others 8.4% 4.1%
GLi Total 100.0% 100.0%
ek K Bk 43 WA EEAK A &Y £k b &
Total Loans and Advances Impaired Loan/NPL Ratio
AEEIT Tt
HKS$ million %
o000 i o
120,000
100,000 7%
80,000 o a5
60,000 i o
40,000

0

2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007
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Implementing the established strategy of “Deeply -

) rooted in Hong Kong, effectively serving both Hong
Kong and the Mainland”, we have been developing our

scope of business and providing comprehensive services

to our clients in Hong Kong and the Mainland. Working

in unity, the management and staff at all levels strive to

achieve the best results for the Group.
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With a high level of professionalism, we have been actively developing
capital market related businesses and providing consultation and financing
services for corporate mergers and acquisitions.






24 BB RS (EW) AT
CEF LR

LR EEEA AW

i

LWL ()

LRG> LI A FEREANAEERE ARG TR REFR o ZEEHLRER LR AORE - eRE
bR R B A ~ WL SRR RS WA TR L - A R B o AN I L HEA S T T JUAR SRAT S
5> BUE B TR ERAT A BR A A (TR Y T dRAT) R -

ERBEL L (AL

Tk TR ASFER AT A RERERARTRI TR REE o E L ABUE PR TRMRITRITR - E®
HREEAEEH - ARRATIER - BIFRSER - MG SEB A MBS E o £ RS B ORE RIS
WIS B TR A BRAH B0 o e A8 =+ AR SRAT B LR SRR AT SE T IE BIRE o £ R J P B TR AR
7 (w0 ABRA R 2 i

REG A (H FAACIE B TR

KA UL O BEEEA A REEAL B ARGES R B AL B A T A T
B o R TR TE R T A AL B AT 2 M A R R AT 2 A - B AT T R A W
DAY TR O 4 A B ) T PR A B4 70 J T R 0 A AT LA ) G T A AT PR A )
2R o TR A ERAT 2 A 7 o BT R B () AT PR T 2 T i T SRR 4 AT R A 2 e
P T A A B 7 2 T TR B A ) 2 T o S S o A i % A
RELER Y o e AT i — 1 — T S S -

BT Se 4 (B T HEF)

BROEA > s - A SRR AT T RERAE AT E S o BROCAE R R SO R S KB T A
PRRE - B (B %) o BROCAEBEA 0 — + AR SRATSERSAEHR > B2 v I T AT B PR S A AR AR L o Aty N P Y T
SATHARBARA R 2 E - A5 MR ERRAT & T R R A R AR 2 EH -

VORML A (- FIARACEE PR TR

B o I TR R T REIAEL A AT HAL B SRS 2 I o 6 FAE ] ERAT By AR SRAT 2 E S R
BB o BRI E IR R T AL A ZAT S A SRAT A N T 2 W) TSR s A BR AN ) B TARER I ARBE A BR A 7]
AR Wit 28 B vh B2 (R B () A BRA Rl 2 S o Bo At R R AR\ A AT 3 A ST 2 P TR 20 W] 2 e 41
T2 # S o B e B R AT ARAT SR8 RO B R AL B BTN BB 2 & B o BT AR A ORI 55 28 i K B2 e 1
S REH B o HRE A = T IR ERAT S AR o IMIMAARERATR > B A S F T A B SEF T EAEANA
W B AEEATRAT PR AT EGRE - RAEBATRFEEZAGLRE - FHEMTHEZEGRE - FBEEFMAEL
/NMEARE ~ SRATHIZR B MR KA K -



SR TR AAT () AR 25
EFLEEH

RS (EF - FI AR EAT TEA#)

SR > WK 0 B ZFFE A A INAAREAT 5 B FARKC I > SR FAE+ A B R AR ERAT Z IR A - SR
W EETAE = A BERAL /A RAT 2 EE L AT BRI A SRAT 2 W M 20 W) 3 i SR AT S T8 i B E
AN Rl ZHH o gRSEAINR —FL-LE LA HAEARATRA 40% B3 i 19 IEC Investments Limited Z#5F o 5i5E/4
PR L I REOCEE > SR ARAT B AR B o SRR R AR AR IR AR o AN AASSRATHT - RGBT ERAT 1
RT3 AT 0 S A A

ETWPAR - SBS. » KV# L (L FHTHEE)

THIR > ATk B FERECAREREAARRITE LG ESE > BARITERZREG TN - THIREE
TS SR 20RO B > MR A B B YR - BV S AC BT B B o T AR BT A U KB B B AR R A
JRE A% - S ARORGR i B A ) 7 o S v I SO R REL Y SE AT 5T o BRI — JLIU VAR 78 s e P A B A I LA IR 55 7 A2
o URGHETEAT - BE - TEIPHERIEL 2T -

PROMREE S A (L BT E )

o> /R s A SFRTE N RERE /ARG BELIFATESR . BARTREZEGZ TN - RERXE
T SR FE AP PG M B2 > JEBRER 4 e TARR B (T 36 TARER) B o AR SGAE T SR i s R B2 H-40 el BURF T 75 e 18 T2 R
o AR AR LY PLEL GRAR o AR SR R BUL S A TS R A IR A R - R T B A RIE R - T Rk
A SERF AR A B ERF AN A MR RIS ) T AT Ak s B I R AR A R T
AR S AT A B TR AR A R A R 2 ATEUR R e A RIS L S I BT e R EF R AR
TRNEA TR - RENEREEFEHERGT TR  WIBER— UL EIMA TR S 325 A IR 7 5 B
B SOE AR R B BT RS > SR — UL B B R TR ATAT AR B - IR AR R R R AR FF
AR W AL T 58 5 B BT AT R ) 2 A B AR > I — JL/\JUAE 22— JUL = AR I ) AR A s o o S )
BB R Z B e 2 O (8~ Gl AT ER) - B SEAR RS (B AR AR AE B (N EIR) « SRIeA e G 2
B TR A g6 s HhafaEa s Ae BT Z B g Em - FEREA BT - PR KT R HE0E 18R
AFEIEHZ B AR IR FEARENEFRBEZAGNZR TR BERCMIRFHHNZEGIEE - FEL M
EWE LR B SR RIERZ B GRZ B (T RN - BRGNS AT K& e M RIS Z B gl & B KAk R
RegEHZ ARG/ MEREENLE -



26 BT RET (GEW) HRA T
CEF LR

oo N e BN B R

WA > FHKIoD (#/ E#H T7EFH)

B AT SR B BB SN R L A ST B T R BRSNS B R A e
(LR o FJE kB B 5 6 T 55 AT WA ) B RV B AT WA 7 2 S R o+ i R T 20 5
B LTI o B TN A UL S BOA S A B 1B o 2208/ 4 I BT Cambridge B TITHS S5 45
S A T AR S S O 5 I 2 e LV A S S B S BR - Sl 0 K 78 3252 (INSEAD)
S T BB BB o I R A - S WO B B B A SR T2 M T R B SR SR
SR o TR S U BN S LA ACER [ A RV | BHEG - 15 BB - PR A
i A L A B PR MM - SRR UL LR U R LA A B2 A [ it 0 K A3 4 ) 7
B o RO T WS 0 SR 4 | T » RS A 0 TS R T 4 5 MR B B 5 S B IR IE IS« 20e/E i S
SR T AT 2 TS B T SO - W YR A - HOP L T B R R R - R B
A B AR N A 0T M A B R o A O AL U B UL A B B R - BB
oA RO 0 P P A S B 2 L~ o R S 5% AR JE D o L R
VS VR 9 o R o 7 R o Do - R o T A A 2 B 2R P 0+ R
Tl A O VR - R K TR B o 0 8 BT 36 B AR PR R S R AR T
feByETRR -

WGICWI S e () A A2 B e A )

WA AR > RFERRAETH B ARSATEEE W RITF T A UFE RERE A A RIT AR » Ik —F
FNF— AT R ASRAT I S EC B o WGSEA IR A3 A SRAT 2 ' [ )8 /A W1 ICBC (Asia) Wa Pei Nominees Limited 5 T-8R 55 {5
AEABRA R ZEF o AR TR R GRIE RSB W ARA S =+ ZF A IRIT K8 - NG
POERS s B a b B o

Reetuk e (A EAE)

S - DO+ T6E - B - FE LA MAARBRITIN ~FE-L4F = AR AT 7 B BE ARSI B 5 40 B o ZR5E AT
FAGRAT 2 G MBS 2 W) TR B G BAT FR A 7] ~ ICBCA (C.1.) Limited S T8 5u i & 4 BT R A m) (iR T OR & &
EHARA) 2 # S o RIS LI AEASRATRA 40% B i 19 IEC Investments Limited Z 85 o JSpA A S BAR
EWN S i DN EUp e e RGBT R ONE SF it S e VARSI SO R i B AN N AT RS /N o S I
ZEREGE » INBYAE R R RTE R A G 2 & B RIEHAE T/ E RSB 2 408 -



BT RARAT () A 27
EFLEEH

B MR E B B R

WSEME A (A

WRAEE > AT B FEFLAE A IMAARSRAT 2 B S ARSI B A B o RSB AR R E LA\ AT A AT
EEME N A TG FEABRA Al Z # o o WR R R s 20 PR SR S LB B0 o RS /R A i — - = 4R 4R
TT3E0s 2 K880 » BLTEVE AT B R BEHE o TRIMAARSRATHT > SRSk AT SR SRAT A v 0 AT A T B -

LB (L) PEARAEHE)
LS W5k > A SRR AMAARRST R B PR B BT S R R R A T T B

B o R SR L AOE KA, - TR B A S SRR R o OB E AT AR SRAT S S R R 2 A
5 o






Mk — IR AR I > ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂ%%/ﬁ%@’fﬁ > B
P51 A A SR TR NG - 52 ~ S8R P B AR B
R > FTIE R A4 BE SRR > 55 ) B A o
L BT Z — -

As a progressive and forward-looking financial
institution, we will continue to upgrade our computer
platform, introduce new customer relationship
management systems and foster brand loyalty. We will
strengthen all efforts to become one of the leading
commercial banks in Hong Kong.
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Dr. Jiang Jianqing  Chairman
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The economy in the Mainland and Hong Kong remained buoyant in 2007, with accelerated economic integration between the
two territories. As the flagship of Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (“ICBC”) in Hong Kong, the Bank capitalized on
opportunities provided by the macroeconomic environment. In accordance with our strategy of “Deeply rooted in Hong Kong,
effectively serving both Hong Kong and the Mainland”, we are committed to build a China and Hong Kong integrated financial
services platform to meet the needs of our clients. The Bank will further develop its scope of business and provide comprehensive
services in Hong Kong for clients from the Mainland as well as sophisticated services for clients in Hong Kong. Meanwhile, with
the support of our wholly-owned subsidiary, Chinese Mercantile Bank, the Bank strengthened cooperation with local branches of
its parent company, ICBC, and penetrated into the China market through business cooperation and provision of complementary
services.

Benefiting from the successful implementation of the above-mentioned strategies, ICBC (Asia) has worked in unity in the past year.
All employees and the management strived to achieve satisfactory operating results. The Group’s consolidated profit after tax was
HK$1,609 million in 2007, rising HK$363 million or 29% over 2006. With strict risk management policies, the Group’s impaired
loan ratio in 2007 remained at a low level of 0.5%. In addition, the Group made a provision of US$30 million for US40 million worth
of structured investment vehicle held, in accordance with our prudent principles.

Apart from maintaining our position as the leading bank in the local corporate syndication finance market, the Group has been
actively developing capital market related businesses and providing consultation and financing services for corporate mergers
and acquisitions, in view of the needs of Chinese enterprises to develop overseas markets with global positioning. Meanwhile, we
successfully served as the receiving bank of Initial Public Offering (IPO) business for 28 corporations in 2007, firmly establishing
our expertise in the receiving bank business of IPO issues.

The Group has stepped up its efforts to reshape its retail banking business with focus on the development of “Wealth Management”
services to enhance value contribution of the retail banking business. In 2007, a quarter of our branches were redesigned and
renovated while wealth management centres were established to provide comprehensive wealth management services for retail
customers, leveraging on our edge in information and personnel related to the Mainland. During the year, investment seminars on
the economy in China were held to help Hong Kong people to benefit from China’s economic growth through investments. The
Group shared the same wealth management brand with ICBC, and launched the “Elite Club” designed for high-end clients. We
provide our “Elite Club” clients in the Mainland and Hong Kong with integrated and dedicated services to allow them to enjoy the
convenience of cross-border financial management, so as to achieve our goal of becoming the “Most Outstanding Chinese Wealth
Management Brand in the World”.

It is our formulated strategy to develop the Mainland market with the support of our wholly-owned subsidiary, Chinese Mercantile
Bank. In 2007, with the core RMB banking business, Chinese Mercantile Bank leveraged on the synergy with the Bank and ICBC to
provide comprehensive services for our clients in Hong Kong and China. Chinese Mercantile Bank made considerable progress in
the highly competitive market with profit after tax amounting to HK$73 million in 2007, doubling the amount in 2006, to become
one of our key profit contribution subsidiaries. In 2008, Chinese Mercantile Bank will strive to develop the market in the Mainland,
with the Guangzhou branch expected to open for business in the middle of this year.

Meanwhile, the Bank has taken an active part in corporate social responsibility activities, assisting our parent company, ICBC,
to present invaluable collections from the Shanghai Bank Museum owned by ICBC. An exhibition, “The Development of Banks
in Shanghai and Hong Kong”, has been held at the Hong Kong Museum of History commencing since 28 November 2007,
representing the first of its kind in Hong Kong. I had the honour to host the opening ceremony together with the Chief Executive
of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region, Mr. Donald Tsang. The exhibition shows the corporate culture of our parent
company and the Group, and has drawn favourable comments from various walks of the society. Due to the overwhelming
response, the exhibition has been extended until 26 May 2008.

Looking forward to 2008, despite the global sub-prime crisis, macroeconomic adjustments in the Mainland, corporate
restructuring, inflation and other unfavourable external factors, the management and all employees of the Group firmly believe
that through cooperation with our parent company, we will play an even more effective role in Hong Kong to provide integrated
financial services for clients in the Mainland and Hong Kong and to enhance client loyalty. Meanwhile, the Group will further
promote its strategy for diversification, and provide clients with comprehensive financial services so as to increase our contribution
to clients and raise our income from intermediary businesses. The Group will continue to upgrade its computer platform, introduce
new customer relationship management systems and enhance its brand image. Furthermore, we will strengthen our overall
competitive edge with the ultimate goal of becoming one of the leading commercial banks in Hong Kong, and create better returns
for our customers and shareholders.

Dr. Jiang Jianqing
Chairman

Hong Kong, 13 March 2008
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis

OVERVIEW

In July 2007, we celebrated the 10th Anniversary of the Hong Kong SAR. We also witnessed a continuous improvement in the local
economy in general, with a remarkable increase in consumer spending and rising optimism about the future economic environment
of Hong Kong. It has also been an exceptionally good year for the property market as a whole, even though the stock market suffered
from certain setbacks in the last quarter of 2007. Generally speaking, the banking industry in Hong Kong remained stable in 2007
despite the increasing volatility of the global financial market due to the sub prime crisis in the United States.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

The Group achieved a consolidated profit attributable to equity holders of HK$1,609 million for the year ended 31 December 2007,

representing an increase of 29% as compared to HK$1,246 million in 2006.

Net interest income for the year ended 31 December 2007 increased by HK$535 million or 29% to HK$2,388 million. The
improvement was attributable to a strong growth in our loan portfolio during 2007, coupled with the slight improvement of overall

net interest margin from 1.45% to 1.47%.

Net fee and commission income increased by 20% to HK$676 million from HK$562 million for 2006. The increase was mainly
due to a significant growth in our commission income derived from stock brokerage business. Overall, the ratio of total net fee and

commission and other operating income to the total operating income decreased to 25%, as compared to 29% in 2006.

Operating expenses increased by HK$190 million or 20% to HK$1,135 million from HK$945 million in 2006. The cost to income
ratio dropped slightly from 36.4% to 35.7%, mainly due to the increase in total operating income, together with the effective cost

control over the year.

The consolidated impairment losses reduced by HK$4 million or 3% to HK$134 million in 2007. This included the write-back of
HKS$115 million and HK$3 million for impairment losses on loans and advances and held-to-maturity securities respectively, while
impairment losses on available-for-sale financial investments reached HK$252 million in 2007. Of this, HK$234 million or US$30

million was impairment loss on note issued by a structured investment vehicle.

The Group realized a HK$17 million gain from disposal of investment securities, a drop of 80% as compared to HK$83 million in
2006.

Loans Composition 2007 Income Composition 2007

Net Gains from Foreign
Other Income Exchange Activities

Net Free and
Commission Income

Loans for use outside
Hong Kong

Industrial, Commercial &
Financial

Trade Finance
Property Development &

Other Property Investment Net Interest Income
Individuals - Residential
Mortgage

Individuals - Others
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Management's Discussion and Analysis

Share of profits from associates reached HK$11 million, representing an increase of 83% as compared to HK$6 million for 2006.
This included HK$7.6 million profit contribution from China Ping An Insurance (Hong Kong) Company Limited.

BALANCE SHEET

The consolidated total assets of the Group reached HK$192,304 million as at 31 December 2007, representing an increase of
HK$45,912 million or 31% as compared to HK$146,392 million as at 31 December 2006.

Consolidated total loans and advances increased significantly by HK$46,056 million or 61% to HK$121,704 million as at 31
December 2007, as compared to HK$75,648 million as at 31 December 2006.

Total customer deposits amounted to HK$137,530 million, representing an increase of 38% as compared to HK$99,571 million as
at 31 December 2006.

Total certificates of deposits issued amounted to HK$3,705 million, representing a decrease of 64% as compared to HK$10,322
million as at 31 December 2006.

Investments in associates reached HK$184 million as a result of the acquisition of a 40% stake in IEC Investments Limited in

September 2007. This represents an increase of HK$150 million, as compared to HK$34 million as at 31 December 2006.

CAPITAL AND LIQUIDITY MANAGEMENT

At the end of 2007, the capital adequacy ratio for the Group was 13.0% (2006: 16.0%). The Group maintained an adequate level of
capital in 2007 and the average liquidity ratio amounted to 43.9% (2006: an average of 44.1%).

ASSET QUALITY

Consolidated impaired loans decreased by HK$251 million to HK$647 million as at 31 December 2007, as compared to HK$898

million as at 31 December 2006. As a result, the consolidated impaired loan ratio was down drastically from 1.2% to 0.5%.

As at 31 December 2007, the cumulative loan impairment allowances (previously referred to as the “provisions for bad and doubtful
debts”) aggregated to HK$336 million (2006: HK$432 million). This included HK$126 million (2006: HK$201 million) of individual
impairment allowance and HK$210 million (2006: HK$231 million) of collective impairment allowances. The decrease of the

impairment allowance was mainly due to the improvement of asset quality and the enhancement in risk and credit control.

1984

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China was established
to take over the industrial and commercial credit loans and
savings business formerly operated by the People’s Bank of
China. ICBC is the largest commercial bank in Mainland
China.

(This is extracted from publication of “The Development of Banks in Shanghai and Hong
Kong” Exhibition)
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis

Overdue loans decreased from HK$203 million as at 31 December 2006 to HK$104 million as at 31 December 2007, which
represents less than 0.1% of advances to customers.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Below are the summaries of the performance of our individual business operations in 2007 and their respective outlook for 2008.

RETAIL BANKING

Our Retail Banking business achieved satisfactory results
in 2007. Retail customer deposit base grew significantly
while residential mortgage loans and hire purchase loans
increased moderately. Commission income from stock
brokerage and investment business reached another
record high. Profit contribution from our Retail Banking
business grew to HK$336 million in 2007 as compared to
HK$284 million in 2006.

The residential mortgage market in Hong Kong remained
highly competitive. In order to protect their respective

market share, local banks tended to offer attractive

K I §

mortgage plans through rate-cut. Due to the fierce price 2
ICBC (Asia) launched the “Elite Club” banking services

competition and upsurge of inter-bank market rates, the
interest margin of our mortgage loans tightened further.
This led to a big draw back in our revenue from mortgage
business for the whole year after netting off the funding cost. Nevertheless, our market share stepped further upward from 1.98% in
2006 to 2.7% in 2007 and newly acquired retail mortgage business in 2007 was amounted to HKD5.1 billion which was more than
a double from 2006.

Hire purchase and leasing business recorded a stable growth in 2007. Our market share on taxi and public light bus financing further
increased to approximately 16% to rank us among the top 4 in the market. However, lending interest rates were squeezed inevitably
and the funding cost raised continuously which further reduced the overall profitability.

During 2007, we leveraged on our expanded branch network to actively acquire new target customers. In particular, customer
deposits increased 25% as compared to last year. This contributed to a reduction in funding cost, which partially offset the negative
effect of tightening margin of retail loans. Benefiting from the favorable investment environment and our continuous effort in
developing the non-interest income base, the fee and commission earned from our stock brokerage business grew more than 100%
as compared to 2006. Sale of investment products including mutual funds and equity-linked products also grew remarkably. In
particular, total sale of mutual funds in 2007 was almost triple of that in 2006. Even better, insurance sale grew about 10 times as

compared to last year.
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Wealth management is the strategic focus of our Retail Banking business in 2007. The brand new wealth management service “Elite
Club” was launched on 28 March 2007 in line with our parent company’s strategy to establish an internationally well-known wealth
management brand. It provides high quality service allowing high net-worth customers to enjoy the unique cross-border services
and to manage their finance with ease. Our exclusive services are also extended to Mainland China, such as access to private guest
rooms and priority counters of ICBC. Customers also enjoy privileges on wealth management product subscription at any ICBC
branch. At the service launch, there were large-scale marketing and promotion campaigns and renovation of branch premises with
Wealth Management Centre and dedicated counters. The number of customers in the high net-worth customer segment and the

general customer segment grew by 21% and 34% respectively, as compared to the end of 2006.

During 2007, we acted as the receiving bank for the IPO of 28 enterprises, including China Agri-Industries Holdings Limited, Ajisen
(China) Holdings Limited, Regal REIT, China CITIC Bank, Dah Chong Hong Holdings Limited, Alibaba.com Limited, Sinotruk
(Hong Kong) Limited, China Railway Group Limited and BYD Electronic (International) Company Limited. Such success further
strengthened our position as one of the core IPO receiving banks in Hong Kong.

We continued our branch network rationalization project and began to set up new branches for the first time since 2006. In order to
strengthen the geographic coverage of our branch network, we opened three new branches, namely Mei Foo Branch and Wanchai
Road Branch in April 2007, and Hung Hom Branch in October 2007. We have also commenced the renovation project on branches
with old design theme in 2007. Our Mongkok Branch renovation project was completed in November 2007. “Elite Club” Wealth
Management Centres are set up in the following branches to provide quality and professional financial services, i.e. Hennessy Road
Branch, Tsim Sha Tsui Branch, Tsim Sha Tsui East Branch, Central Branch, Sheung Wan Branch, Mongkok Branch, Wanchai Road
Branch and Hung Hom Branch. Up to the end of 2007, we had 41 branches in which about one-fourth of them adopted our new
design theme.

In 2008, we shall strengthen our marketing effort to acquire new target customers and deposits, and solidify our various retail
banking business lines through more active cross-selling activities. We shall continue the branch network rationalization project
in order to extend the geographic coverage of our network and to improve the branch environment with a view to provide better

service experience to our customers.

For mortgage business, we expect that the local property market will continue its boom in 2008 due to the effect of “negative interest
rate”. We shall leverage on this favorable market condition to acquire new loans to further strengthen our mortgage business.
Through tailor-made mortgage loan plans (e.g. Wise Mortgage), we aim to attract those cash rich homebuyers, and to introduce

them to our “Elite Club” banking services.

2000

Union Bank of Hong Kong Limited was renamed Industrial and Commercial Bank
of China (Asia) Limited, which became the flagship of ICBC in developing overseas
business.

(This is extracted from publication of “The Development of Banks in Shanghai and Hong Kong” Exhibition)
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To enhance the competitive edge on wealth management products and services, we shall continue to develop different types of
investment products and line up with various financial institutions to offer a diversified range of investment products for our

customers. We shall also design different promotion offers in order to sustain the growth of our wealth management business.

In phone banking business, we shall strive to attain higher service standards. In addition to enhancing our call centre to satisfy
the growing service expectation of customers, we shall further concern about our customer care so as to cross-sell, up-sell and do

referral services. We believe that it will create value to both our customers and the Bank.

We shall enhance the electronic banking services including improving the existing Personal Internet Banking Services and offering

new Internet Securities Services functions, Automated Phone Securities Services, and Commercial Internet Banking services.

Furthermore, we shall keep on upgrading our IT system platform, improving the new Customer Relationship Management System
and Sales Target Management System in order to raise our marketing capability and quality, and to provide more comprehensive,

convenient and quality banking services to our different segments of customers.

TREASURY AND MARKETS

Profit contribution from our Treasury & Markets (“T&M”) business amounted to HK$280 million in 2007 as compared to HK$355
million in 2006. The decline in profitability of T&M was mainly attributable to the sub-prime crisis in the U.S., which adversely
affected the performance of our debt securities portfolio. In particular, an impairment loss of HK$234 million or US$30 million was
made against our total holding of a US$40 million note issued by a structured investment vehicle, namely Cullinan Finance Limited.

Despite the difficult market conditions, T&M still managed to report a strong growth in net interest income.

The transaction volume for RMB Non-deliverable Forward Contracts executed by T&M rose sharply during the year since a new
business model was implemented. In addition, we acted as a co-manager and placing bank for the 2-year 5 billion RMB bond issued
by China Development Bank in July 2007, which is the first RMB bond issued outside of Mainland China. Leveraging on our parent
company’s strength and our solid base in the local market, T&M will strive to become a major player of the offshore RMB market

in Hong Kong.

During 2008, T&M will focus on expanding its debt securities portfolio in order to take advantage of the current situation of
widening credit spread and the anticipated rate cut by the U.S. Federal Reserve. In addition, T&M will continue to make use of the
support and the sales network of ICBC and our wholly-owned subsidiary, Chinese Mercantile Bank, to cross-sell treasury products

and provide “one stop” cross-border financial services to existing and potential clients in Mainland China.

COMMERCIAL BANKING

2007 was another very successful year for our Commercial Banking business, which recorded a profit contribution of HK$740
million as compared to HK$587 million in 2006. In general, Small and Medium Enterprises (SME) in Hong Kong benefited from
the booming global and local economy. Our loan advances and deposits achieved strong growth by 31% and 68% respectively as a
result of a steady expansion and diversification of our customer base. In addition, we were able to maintain a below market average

loan impairment ratio, which was one of the key factors contributed to the favorable results.
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We continued to focus on providing a wide range of
products and services to our customers, including
commercial loans, trade finance, factoring, foreign
exchanges and remittances, currency swaps and derivatives,
equipment and machinery financing, internet banking
and other specialised services for Diamond Trade Finance,
European Banking and Indian Banking. In particular,
through our successful IPO receiving bank business, we
were able to attract new commercial clients for deposits as

well as dividend payment service following their listing .

Looking ahead, the business environment is getting more

challenging in 2008. We shall remain supportive to our

SME clients and at the same time, we shall continue to

ICBC (Asia) attended World SME Expo organized by TDC

carefully monitor the loan quality since they may be
adversely affected to a certain extent by the trend of rising

production cost and downturn in the economic conditions of overseas markets.

Through our cooperation with Chinese Mercantile Bank and with various branches of ICBC in Mainland China, we aim to further

develop our customer base particularly for those Chinese enterprises planning to expand their business overseas.

CORPORATE AND INVESTMENT BANKING

Profit contribution from our Corporate and Investment Banking business grew significantly to HK$488 million in 2007 as
compared to HK$334 million in 2006. The remarkable increase was attributable to a strong growth in the net interest income of
around 30% in 2007.

Riding on the property market boom supported by the expectation of continual interest rate cuts, we achieved considerable growth
in the loan portfolio for property related lending. Major deals include acting as a mandated coordinating arranger in a HK$15.2
billion syndicated loan for Sun Hung Kai Properties Limited and a HK$17.3 billion syndicated facility for IFC II Development
Limited.

We continued the strategic move to diversify from traditional corporate banking business. As part of the transformation exercise,
a syndication team was officially set up in October 2007 to upgrade and strengthen our corporate banking and syndication
capabilities. Although syndication and bilateral lending remain as our focus, we also put more resources in structured finance
business. Such change was evidenced in the lending composition where our structured finance team recorded a robust increase
in the size of its loan portfolio. This team dealt with local and offshore transactions including leveraged buyout and acquisition
financing at relatively higher margins. Major deals include acting as the mandated lead arranger in an US$5 billion financing for
Dubai World and in an US$1.5 billion Islamic financing transaction. An US$100 million bilateral facility was also extended to a

multinational private equity fund for a general mandatory offer of Digital China Holdings Limited.

As a result of the increasing trend of Chinese big corporations expanding overseas, we expect that the prospects of our Corporate

and Investment Banking business will be reasonably encouraging in 2008.
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FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

In 2007, our Financial Institutions business achieved satisfactory results through diversification over a full range of transactional

banking businesses, including but not limited to cash management, trade finance and credit related products.

The new business platform built in 2006 became fully operational throughout 2007. This platform consists of three sections, namely
Bank Financial Institutions, Non-Bank Financial Institutions and Intra-group Business sections, each of which caters for the
different business requirements of our diverse client base. Since competition in the financial institutions industry is very intense, all
three sections will continue to enhance their respective transactional banking products in order to satisfy the growing needs of our

clients.

In 2008, our Financial Institutions business will focus mainly on diversifying its existing client base, and to provide more value-

added services to our customers.

CREDIT CARD BUSINESS

= - Our credit card business continued to improve durin
EAlPESEEFRESS P 8

2007. Average monthly turnover and average monthly
outstanding balance grew by 45% and 27% respectively.
Average monthly revolving balance grew by 13% against
an overall declining revolving balance in the overall credit
card market. Merchant outlets turnover grew by 70%. Such
business growth was achieved as the result of vigorous
marketing events and promotions and new business
initiatives. Services streamlining measures like tier-pricing
(for both issuance and merchant business), tailor-made

segment events, direct mail promotions, and new credit

bearing policies were made. Our Dual Currency Card is
ICBC (Asia) launched "Dragon Centre MasterCard” now enhanced with PPS and autopay channels for RMB. A
new Dual Currency Business Credit Card was introduced
during the year. Cross-selling of credit cards to our existing bank customers was actively pursued at the introduction of simplified
application procedure. An agreement for mutual merchant support in Mainland China and Hong Kong has been signed with ICBC
Peony Card Centre, under which cardholders of our Bank and Peony Card holders enjoy the same merchant privileges in both

Mainland China and Hong Kong.

2003

ICBC (Asia) acquired Fortis Bank Asia HK retail and commercial banking
operations.

Established in 1902 in Brussels, the Banque Belge pour L Etranger was the only
Belgian bank ever to set foot in China. Its Shanghai branch opened in December
1902, with the bank soon setting up offices in Beijing, Tianjin, Hankou and

Hong Kong. In addition to handling deposits and currency exchange, the bank
also invested in China s railroad business.

(This is extracted from publication of “The Development of Banks in Shanghai and Hong Kong” Exhibition)
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We expect to achieve further growth in our credit card business in 2008. A new Dragon Centre MasterCard is launched in December
2007. Further co-branded cards with insurance companies are in the pipeline. We also intend to introduce our first Platinum Card

in order to meet customers’ need.

CHINESE MERCANTILE BANK

In 2007, Chinese Mercantile Bank (“CMB”) accelerated its expansion in RMB banking business on the back of a strong economy
in Mainland China. CMB achieved a net profit of HK$73 million for the year ended 31 December 2007, representing an increase of
HK$50 million or 217%, as compared to HK$23 million for the year ended 31 December 2006.

Total assets of CMB was HK$8,085 million as at 31 December 2007, representing an increase of 336% over the end of 2006. Total
customer deposit of CMB was HK$1,353 million as at 31 December 2007. The existing paid-up capital of CMB amounts to RMB1.06
billion.

CMB had been licensed to operate RMB banking business for customers other than Chinese citizens in the Mainland in early 2007.
With the expected opening a new branch office in Guangzhou by the middle of 2008 following the approval of China Banking
Regulatory Committee (CBRC), the overall competitive edge of CMB will be further enhanced.

HUMAN RESOURCES

The number of staff of the Bank as at 31 December 2007 was 1,377. During 2007, measures were in place to enhance our position to
attract, develop, and retain the knowledgeable and skillful employees. These included active and flexible recruitment and selection
effort, emphasis on business-oriented training
programs, promotion of job skills development,
a more productive work environment for
employees, and closer communication with

employees to better understand their needs.

At the same time, we offer support to our Staff
Association to organise and promote various
recreational and social gathering activities for
staff, such as picnics, buffet gatherings, interest
classes, sports events and Annual Dinner, in
order to maintain and promote good employer-
employee relationship and a better work and life

balance for employees.

ICBC (Asia) organized Staff Annual Dinner
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

The Hong Kong Council of Social Service awarded the Bank with the “Caring Company 5 Year Plus” Logo in recognition of the
Bank and its staff’s contribution and commitment to the community over all these years. The Caring Company logo is to recognise

private companies with business operations in Hong Kong that demonstrated good corporate citizenship.

The Bank was honored that we were appointed again as the Chairman of the Caritas Fund Raising Committee for the year 2007-
2008. The Bank and its staff volunteers were committed to support Caritas-Hong Kong by soliciting donations from business
associates and customers through various fund raising activities including donation boxes at branches, television charity show, sales
of raffle tickets and bazaars. The Bank also donated to Caritas-Hong Kong part of retail spending revenue from the jointly issued
affinity card, Caritas-HK MasterCard.

The Bank hosted the fourth Study Tour entitled “Economic Development & Exchange with Minority Races at Yunnan”. It was
successfully held in late July 2007. 32 students were fully sponsored by the Bank, business partners and customers. The students had

taken the opportunity to learn the economies and cultural development of minority races in Yunnan.

To celebrate the 10th Anniversary of the HKSAR, the Bank hosted a charity dance performance, ‘Qingming Riverside’, at the Grand
Theatre of The Hong Kong Culture Centre whereby Hong Kong Dance Company presented the dance performance. With the
support from the Bank’s customers, business partners and the public, a donation amount of over HK$900,000 was raised. All the

proceeds from the dance performance go to support Caritas-Hong Kong and the Hong Kong Dance Company.

The Bank’s parent company, Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Limited, and the Leisure and Cultural Services Department
of the Government of the Hong Kong SAR jointly presented “The Development of Banks in Shanghai and Hong Kong” exhibition.
It is the first time for Hong Kong to organise a large-scale banking industry exhibition, in which the story of development of banking
industry in both cities and their long history of cooperation in trade and commerce are told. Most of the precious exhibits are
provided by ICBC Shanghai Bank Museum. The exhibition is held at the Hong Kong Museum of History from 28 November 2007
to 26 May 2008.

In 2008, the Bank will continue to contribute to the community service and demonstrate good corporate citizenship towards the

harmonious society.

2006

ICBC was established in Beijing in 1984 as the largest commercial bank in Mainland
China. On 27 October 2006, the bank was listed simultaneously on the Hong Kong and
Shanghai stock exchanges. The capital accumulated in this listing reached 20 billion US
dollars, the highest for any IPO anywhere in the world. The successful simultaneous
launch of A shares and H shares marked an important milestone in the co-operative
relationship between the financial markets in Hong Kong and China and further
internationalised the financial institutions on the Mainland.

(This is extracted from publication of “The Development of Banks in Shanghai and Hong Kong” Exhibition)
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Tbtoqgh _c.ooperation with branches of our parent company,
we are committed to further expanding our presence in Hong
Kong, promoting customer loyalty and providing integrated
financial services to our clients in Hong Kong and the Mainland.

Commitment
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Dr. Jiang Jianqing (Chairman)

Dr. Jiang, aged 55, was appointed as the Chairman and a Director of the Bank in June 2000. Dr. Jiang graduated from Shanghai
University of Finance and Economics, and received a Master’s Degree in engineering and a Doctorate Degree in management,
respectively after finishing postgraduate and doctorate courses at Shanghai Jiaotong University. Dr. Jiang has over 29 years of
banking experience and he is the Chairman of Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Limited.

Ms. Wang Lili (Vice Chairman)

Ms. Wang, aged 56, was appointed as the Vice Chairman and a Director of the Bank in December 2002. Ms. Wang is the Senior
Executive Vice President of Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Limited, primarily responsible for matters relating to the
assets and liabilities management, corporate banking business, international business, financial market business and legal affairs.
Ms. Wang graduated from Nankai University and received a MBA Degree from the University of Birmingham of United Kingdom.
Ms. Wang has over 32 years of banking experience and was awarded a Certificate of Competence for Professor in the banking field.
She is also the Chairman of the Board of Directors of ICBC (London) Limited.

Mr. Zhu Qi (Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. Zhu, aged 47, was appointed as a Director of the Bank in June 2000 and the Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer of
the Bank in October 2001. He was also appointed as the Chairman of Chinese Mercantile Bank, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Bank, in August 2005. Mr. Zhu is a Director of certain other wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Bank, namely, ICBC (Asia) Bullion
Company Limited, ICBC (Asia) Nominee Limited and ICBC (Asia) Asset Management Company Limited (formerly ICBC Asset
Management Company Limited). He is also a Director of China Ping An Insurance (Hong Kong) Company Limited, an associate of
the Bank, and the Deputy Chairman of ICEA Finance Holdings Limited, the Chairman of Industrial and Commercial International
Capital Limited and a Director of The Tai Ping Insurance Company, Limited. Mr. Zhu graduated from Middle China Economy and
Financial University with a Bachelor’s Degree and a Master’s Degree in Economics. He has over 21 years of banking experience.

Mr. Chen Aiping (Non-executive Director)

Mr. Chen, aged 49, was appointed as a Director of the Bank in December 2002. Mr. Chen holds a Bachelor of Arts Degree from
Wuhan University and a Master of Business Administration (International) Degree from The University of Hong Kong. He
has over 22 years of banking experience and is the General Manager of the International Business Department of Industrial and
Commercial Bank of China Limited. He is also the Chairman of Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Luxembourg S.A. and
a Director of Xiamen International Bank and ICEA Finance Holdings Limited.

Mr. Wong Yuen Fai (Director, Deputy General Manager and Alternate Chief Executive)

Mr. Wong, aged 52, joined the Bank as a Deputy General Manager in July 2004 and was appointed as a Director and an Alternate
Chief Executive of the Bank in August 2004. Mr. Wong was also appointed as a Director of ICBC (Asia) Bullion Company Limited
and ICBC (Asia) Nominee Limited, wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Bank, and a Director of China Ping An Insurance (Hong
Kong) Company Limited, an associate of the Bank, in July 2004. Mr. Wong was also appointed as a Director of Chinese Mercantile
Bank, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Bank in August 2005. Mr. Wong is an associate member of The Chartered Institute of
Bankers (UK) and The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators (UK). He holds a Master’s Degree in Applied Finance
from the Macquarie University, Australia. Mr. Wong has 34 years of banking experience. Prior to joining the Bank, Mr. Wong was
the Chief Executive Officer of Standard Chartered Bank, China from January 2001 to June 2003. Mr. Wong is currently a member
of the Hong Kong Housing Authority, a member of the Hong Kong Town Planning Board, a member of the Disciplinary Panel A
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, a member of the Banking Advisory Committee and the Chairman of
Friends of the Earth (HK).
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Mr. Zhang Yi (Director, Deputy General Manager and Alternate Chief Executive)

Mr. Zhang, aged 45, joined the Bank as an Assistant General Manager in January 2003 and was promoted as a Deputy General
Manager of the Bank in December 2003. Mr. Zhang was appointed as a Director and an Alternate Chief Executive of the Bank
in March 2005. He is also a Director of Chinese Mercantile Bank and ICBC (Asia) Investment Holdings Limited, wholly-owned
subsidiaries of the Bank. Mr. Zhang was also appointed as a Director of IEC Investments Limited, a company owned as to 40% by
the Bank, in September 2007. Mr. Zhang graduated from Shanghai University of Finance & Economics with a Master’s Degree in
Money & Banking and qualified as a Senior Economist. Prior to joining the Bank, Mr. Zhang was the General Manager of Financial

Planning Department of Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Limited, Shanghai Municipal Branch.
Professor Wong Yue Chim, Richard, S.B.S., ].P. (Independent Non-executive Director)

Professor Wong, aged 55, was appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director of the Bank in July 2000. Professor Wong is
the Chairman of the Audit Committee of the Bank. Professor Wong graduated from University of Chicago with a Bachelor’s and
a Master’s Degrees in Economics and also a Doctorate in Economics. Professor Wong is the Deputy Vice-Chancellor and Chair of
Economics of The University of Hong Kong. He has been active in advancing economic research on policy issues in Hong Kong and
the PRC. Professor Wong was awarded the Silver Bauhinia Star in 1999 by the Government of the HKSAR for his contributions in

education, housing, industry and technology development.
Mr. Tsui Yiu Wa, Alec (Independent Non-executive Director)

Mr. Tsui, aged 58, was appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director of the Bank in August 2000. Mr. Tsui is the Chairman
of the Nomination Committee of the Bank. Mr. Tsui graduated from University of Tennessee with a Bachelor of Science Degree
and a Master of Engineering Degree in Industrial Engineering. He has completed the Program for Senior Managers in Government
at the John F. Kennedy School of Government at Harvard University. Mr. Tsui is currently the Chairman of WAG Worldsec
Corporate Finance Limited and also the Vice-Chairman of China Mergers and Acquisition Association. Prior to his current
appointment, he was the Adviser and Council Member of the Shenzhen Stock Exchange from July 2001 to June 2002 and was the
Chief Executive of Regent Pacific Group Limited, a Hong Kong listed investment company, from August 2000 to February 2001. He
was also the Chairman of Hong Kong Securities Institute from December 2001 to December 2004. He joined The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited in 1994 as an Executive Director of the Finance and Operations Services Division and became the Chief
Executive from 1997 to 2000. He was also the Chief Operating Officer of Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited from March
2000 to July 2000 and the General Manager (Finance, Technology & Human Resources), and then Assistant Director (Licensing),
and at the same time the General Manager (Human Resources) of the Securities and Futures Commission of Hong Kong from
1989 to 1993. Mr. Tsui also involved in numerous government and community activities, including being a former Chairman of
the Supervisory Committee of Tracker Fund of Hong Kong and the Organizing Committee of Independent Commission Against
Corruption Professional Ethics Programme for the Securities, Futures and Investments Sectors, a former member of the Standing
Committee on Company Law Reform, the Hong Kong Trade Development Council Financial Services Advisory Committee,
The Community Chest of Hong Kong Corporate and Employee Contribution Programme Organizing Committee (Banking and
Finance Group), the Banking and Finance Industry Training Board of the Vocational Training Council and the Investment Sub-

Committee of the Government Committee of the Beat Drugs Fund Association.
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Mr. Yuen Kam Ho, George, FHKIoD (Independent Non-executive Director)

Mr. Yuen, aged 63, was appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director of the Bank in April 2003. Mr. Yuen is the
Chairman of Remuneration Committee and the Alternate Chairman of Audit Committee of the Bank. Mr. Yuen is currently an
independent non-executive director of Tradelink Electronic Commerce Limited and LeRoi Holdings Limited. Both are Hong
Kong listed companies. He graduated from The University of Hong Kong with a Bachelor’s Degree (Honors) in Economics and
Political Science. Mr. Yuen has attended post-graduate studies in marketing management at the International Marketing Institute,
Cambridge, Massachusetts, U.S.A. and has completed the Hong Kong Administrators Course (commissioned by the Hong Kong
Government) in public administration and international relations at Oxford University, the United Kingdom, and the International
Executive Program in INSEAD, France respectively. In June 2003, Mr. Yuen was admitted to the Leadership in Development
Program organized by Kennedy School of Government, Harvard University. In June 2004, Stanford University, California, U.S.A.
had also invited Mr. Yuen to participate in its “Corporate Governance” forum and in early 2006 the University awarded a fellowship
to Mr. Yuen as a non-profit leader at its Centre for Social Innovation. Mr. Yuen had been Chief Executive of The Better Hong Kong
Foundation for nine years since September 1997. Prior to his joining the Foundation, he was the Assistant Director/Acting Deputy
Director of the Information Services Department of the Hong Kong Government. Mr. Yuen plays an active role in organizing
international business conferences in Hong Kong and also takes part in numerous government and community activities, including
being a board member of the East-West Strategic Development Commission. Mr. Yuen was the Panel member of the Central Policy
Unit of the HKSAR Government on the Pan-Pearl River Delta between 2003-2007. Mr. Yuen is currently a member of The Chinese
People’s Political Consultative Conference, Guangxi Autonomous Region, China; an advisor of the Institute of Finance and Trade
Economics; Chinese Academy of Social Sciences; an advisor of The Shanghai Academy of Social Sciences, China; an advisor of The
Board of International Investment of Guangzhou Municipality, China; and a Special Advisor of the China National Committee for
Pacific Economic Cooperation (PECC China). Mr. Yuen is a Fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Directors, a member of the British
Institute of Management and the Institute of Marketing, U.K., and was also commended by the U.S. President, George W. Bush for

his efforts in support of coalition’s campaign against global terrorism.
Mr. Fung Siu Ming (Deputy General Manager and Chief Risk Officer)

Mr. Fung, aged 55, was appointed as the Chief Risk Officer of the Bank on 10 October 2005, the appointed day for the merger of
the Bank and Belgian Bank, Hong Kong Branch, and was promoted as a Deputy General Manager of the Bank in January 2006.
Mr. Fung is also a Director of ICBC (Asia) Wa Pei Nominees Limited and ICBC (Asia) Trustee Company Limited, wholly-owned
subsidiaries of the Bank. Mr. Fung holds a Bachelor’s Degree in Social Sciences and Law from The University of Hong Kong. Mr.

Fung has over 33 years of local banking experience specialized in bank lending and credit risk management.
Mr. Leung Ming Hym, Peter (Chief Financial Officer)

Mr. Leung, aged 45, joined the Bank in July 2001 and was appointed as an Assistant General Manager and the Chief Financial
Officer since March 2007. Mr. Leung is also a Director of certain wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Bank, namely, ICBC (Asia)
Investment Holdings Limited, ICBCA (C.I.) Limited and ICBC (Asia) Asset Management Company Limited (formerly ICBC Asset
Management Company Limited). He was also appointed as a Director of IEC Investments Limited, a company owned as to 40%
by the Bank. Mr. Leung holds a Bachelor’s Degree in Accounting and Financial Analysis from University of Newcastle upon Tyne,
UK and a Bachelor’s Degree in Laws from University of London, UK. Mr. Leung is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants (UK). He is also an associate member of The

Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales. Mr. Leung has over 16 years of experience in corporate finance.
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Mr. Cheng Yiu Lung (Chief Operation Officer)

Mr. Cheng, aged 52, joined the Bank as Assistant General Manager and the Chief Operation Officer in March 2007. Mr. Cheng was
also appointed as a Director of ICBC (Asia) Trustee Company Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Bank, in August 2007.
Mr. Cheng holds a Bachelor’s Degree of Business Administration from The Open University of Hong Kong. Mr. Cheng has over
33 years of banking experience, specialized in operations management and control. Prior to joining the Bank, Mr. Cheng was the
Alternate Chief Executive of Wachovia Bank, N.A. Hong Kong Branch.

Mr. Jiang Yisheng (Assistant General Manager)

Mr. Jiang, aged 41, joined the Bank as Assistant General Manager in April 2007 and oversees the overall development and operation
of Corporate Banking Department and Debt Capital Markets Department of the Bank. Mr. Jiang graduated from Xi’an Jiaotong
University with a Bachelor’s Degree in Engineering and a Master’s degree in Economics. Mr. Jiang has over 12 years of banking and

finance experience.
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The Directors of Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited (the
“Bank”) have pleasure in submitting their annual report together with the audited
accounts of the Bank and the Group (the Bank together with its subsidiaries
hereinafter referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2007.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND SEGMENTAL ANALYSIS OF
OPERATIONS

The principal activities of the Bank are the provision of banking, financial and other
financial related services. The principal activities of the subsidiaries are shown in
Note 36 to the accounts.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year by business and geographical
segments is set out in Note 5 to the accounts.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2007 are set out in the
consolidated income statement on page 75.

The Directors have declared an interim dividend of HK$0.23 per ordinary share,
totaling HK$262,114,000 which was paid on 16 October 2007.

The Directors recommend the payment of a final dividend of HK$0.63 per ordinary
share, totaling approximately HK$772,350,000 as at 31 December 2007, subject to
adjustments arising from the allotment of new shares upon exercise of warrants by
the warrant holders of the Bank.

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group and the Bank during the year are set out in
Note 42 to the accounts.

DONATIONS

Charitable and other donations made by the Group during the year amounted to
HK$543,000.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES AND PROPERTY, PLANT AND
EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in investment properties and property, plant and
equipment of the Group and the Bank during the year are set out in Notes 32 and 33
to the accounts respectively.

SHARE CAPITAL AND WARRANTS

Details of the movements in share capital and warrants of the Bank are set out in
Note 41 to the accounts.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Distributable reserves of the Bank at 31 December 2007 calculated in accordance
with the provisions of Section 79B of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
amounted to HK$2,740,683,000.
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HARA BT FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY
DATR oy 7 B2 130 2 AW OB AT B 2 B4R - e A A o A summary of the results and assets and liabilities of the Group for the last five

financial years is set out below.

2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
T#x T THIT THsIC T
HKS$’000 HK$’000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
¥4 Results
T SRORE A a5 ) Profit attributable to
equity holders 1,608,788 1,245,592 980,601 760,391 522,130
% e K £ Assets and liabilities
P R Total assets 192,304,060 146,391,759 115,781,677 99,343,650 75,319,624
BEHER Total liabilities 177,295,921 135,306,456 105,911,823 85,454,003 65,224,015
J RURE 45 K RE Total equity 15,008,139 11,085,303 9,869,854 13,889,647 10,095,609
192,304,060 146,391,759 115,781,677 99,343,650 75,319,624
MEE U AR ERAT B gR PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE BANK’S LISTED
SECURITIES
AR BRAT I A R M GFRE [ (e B T a8 % - AR SRAT M4 I During the year, the Bank has not redeemed any of its listed securities. Neither
JEA FRAE RN T AT RS o the Bank nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased or sold any of the Bank’s listed
securities.
HPY BOARD OF DIRECTORS
AN GRAT T AR B e AR i TR O 2 R The Directors of the Bank during the year and up to the date of this report are:
o
LAV () Dr. Jiang Jianqing (Chairman)
TRERE Lo+ (R FNE) Ms. Wang Lili (Vice-Chairman)
KRB (H AR AR AT AR Mr. Zhu Qi (Managing Director & Chief Executive Officer)
BREZF-5e e Mr. Chen Aiping
B MR Mr. Wong Yuen Fai
Bk Mr. Zhang Yi
Damis Jacobus Ziengs JeA: (X 44 Dennis Jacobus Ziengs) Mr. Damis Jacobus Ziengs (also known as Dennis Jacobus Ziengs)
O —FZ)\4F—H P4 HEE) (resigned on 24 January 2008)
FEFWHEIL > sBS. - KTah+* Professor Wong Yue Chim, Richard, $.B.S., J.p. *
TR it Mr. Tsui Yiu Wa, Alec *
A e+ Mr. Yuen Kam Ho, George *

* NI RATH * Independent Non-executive Director
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Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited

Mr. Wong Yuen Fai, Professor Wong Yue Chim, Richard, S.B.S, J.P. and Mr. Tsui
Yiu Wa, Alec will retire by rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting in
accordance with Articles 94(1) and 94(2) of the Bank’s Articles of Association. All
retiring Directors, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

The Non-executive Directors and the Independent Non-executive Directors of the
Bank are not appointed for specific term but subject to the retirement by rotation
and re-election at the annual general meeting in accordance with the Bank’s Articles
of Association.

The Bank has received from each Independent Non-executive Director an annual
confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) (the “Listing Rules”) and the Bank considers all of its Independent Non-
executive Directors are independent.

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has any existing or proposed service contract with the Bank which is
not expiring or terminable within one year without payment of compensation, other
than statutory compensation.

No contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s business to which the Bank
or any of its holding company, subsidiaries, or fellow subsidiaries was a party and in
which a Director of the Bank had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

Continuing connected transactions

During the year and in the normal course of business, the Group entered into a
number of transactions which in the opinion of the Directors constitute connected
transactions under the Listing Rules. The transactions were with Industrial and
Commercial Bank of China Limited (“ICBC”), the ultimate holding company of the
Bank, and its fellow subsidiaries (collectively “ICBC Group”) and the details of these
transactions are as follows:

1. Inter-bank lending and borrowing transactions

As part of the Bank’s day-to-day business, inter-bank placements are
made to and inter-bank deposits are taken from the ICBC Group. As at 31
December 2007, approximately HK$2,210,922,000 (2006: HK$2,046,421,000)
of inter-bank placements were made by the Bank to the ICBC Group. The
interest income attributable to these placements in 2007 was approximately
HK$64,864,000 (2006: HK$291,125,000).
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Continuing connected transactions (continued)

1.

Inter-bank lending and borrowing transactions (continued)

As at 31 December 2007, approximately HK$12,117,878,000 (2006:
HK$11,329,369,000) of inter-bank deposits were placed with the Group by
the ICBC Group. Included in this balance is an amount of HK$1,560,160,000
(2006: HK$388,900,000) representing utilisation of a standby credit facility of
US$3,000,000,000 (2006: US$3,000,000,000) granted by ICBC to the Bank for
working capital purposes. The interest expense attributable to these deposits
in 2007 was approximately HK$458,562,000 (2006: HK$692,880,000).

Derivatives transactions

The Bank entered into various derivatives transactions with the ICBC Group,
including but not limited to interest rate swaps and various options contracts
for the purpose of balance sheet and/or interest rate risk management or
hedging against customer-driven transactions.

The total notional amount of the outstanding derivatives transactions between
the Bank and the ICBC Group as at 31 December 2007 was approximately
HK$8,022,596,000 (2006: HK$9,695,183,000). The interest income and
expense attributable to these transactions in 2007 were approximately
HK$405,116,000 (2006: HK$454,678,000) and HK$508,007,000 (2006:
HK$552,376,000) respectively. Net option premium expense attributable to
these transactions in 2007 was approximately HK$781,000 (2006: HK$5,000).

Foreign exchange transactions

The Bank also entered into foreign exchange contracts with the ICBC Group
for the purpose of foreign exchange risk management and in response to
customer-driven transactions in a similar manner as mentioned above for
derivatives transactions. The total contractual amount of the outstanding
foreign exchange transactions with the ICBC Group as at 31 December
2007, including spot, forward and swap transactions, was approximately
HK$8,663,742,000 (2006: HK$30,783,747,000).

Inter-bank capital markets transactions

The Bank entered into the following inter-bank capital markets transactions
with the ICBC Group for the purpose of portfolio and risk management and
compliance with the relevant regulatory requirements. The transactions could
also provide long term funding to the Bank and its subsidiaries for general
working capital:

(a) buying and selling debt securities (either issued by independent third
parties or the ICBC Group) from and to the ICBC Group in the primary

and secondary markets;

(b)  buying and selling debt securities on behalf of the ICBC Group; and
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Continuing connected transactions (continued)

4.

Inter-bank capital markets transactions (continued)
(c)  selling debt securities issued by the Bank and its subsidiaries

Approximately HK$277,532,000 (2006: HK$436,571,000) of debt
securities were sold to the ICBC Group, in primary and secondary
markets in 2007. On the other hand, approximately HK$6,433,000
(2006: HK$38,857,000) debt securities were purchased from the ICBC
Group.

The Bank issued and subscribed by ICBC fixed rate certificates of
deposit with nominal value of US$100,000,000 (2006: US$500,000,000).
The interest expense attributable to these certificates of deposit in 2007
was approximately HK$179,458,000 (2006: HK$200,423,000).

In addition, the Bank issued subordinated floating rate notes totaling
US$775,000,000 and HK$1,500,000,000 (2006: US$775,000,000 and
HK$1,500,000,000) and were fully subscribed by ICBC. The interest
expense attributable to these notes in 2007 was approximately
HK$424,241,000 (2006: HK$348,560,000).

Capital markets transactions

The Bank entered into various capital markets transactions with the ICBC
Group, which include arranging of, participation/sub-participation in
loans, acquiring and disposing interests in syndicated or individual loans,
subscription and/or issuance of debt securities and tax efficient financing.
Approximately HK$405,138,954,000 (2006: HK$47,829,544,000) of the
Bank’s interest in loans including syndicated loans were disposed to the ICBC
Group and approximately HK$112,357,231,000 (2006: HK$31,364,597,000)
of the ICBC Group’s interest in loans including syndicated loans were
purchased by the Bank in 2007. Fee attributable to the above transactions of
approximately HK$10,858,000 (2006: HK$6,143,000) was paid to the ICBC
Group in 2007.

Trade finance transactions

The Bank entered into trade finance transactions with the ICBC Group which
included buying and selling interests in certain trade finance products only
in relation to bills of exchange secured under letters of credit, inwards and
outwards collection, and trade loans. Approximately HK$24,533,036,000 of
the above trade finance transactions with ICBC Group were entered into in
2007 (2006: HK$852,945,000).

A waiver from strict compliance of the Listing Rules for disclosure requirements for
the continuing connected transactions as listed under items 2 to 6 above between the
Bank and the ICBC Group have been granted by the Stock Exchange in November

2007.
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Continuing connected transactions (continued)

7.

Dividend services

On 4 June 2007, ICBC (Asia) Trustee Company Limited (“ICBCA Trustee”,
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Bank), entered into a dividend services
agreement with ICBC under which ICBCA Trustee was appointed by ICBC to
provide services in relation to distribution and payment of dividends payable
by ICBC to the holders of its H shares of RMB1.00 each (“ICBC Shares”) and
such services include, but not limited to, facilitating the payment of dividends
by ICBC to the holders of the ICBC Shares through the bank accounts of the
Bank and handling any unclaimed dividend payments in respect of the ICBC
Shares that arise from time to time.

The consideration of the services provided by ICBCA Trustee will be
calculated on the basis of a combination of the following:

1. aninitial one-off fee payment;

2. basic service fee in respect of payment of each dividend announced by
ICBC (including special dividend, interim dividend, final dividend and
unclaimed dividend); and

3. a fee based on the number of holders of ICBC Shares to which dividend
payments are made by ICBC.

As at 31 December 2007, the total services fee received by ICBCA Trustee from
ICBC was approximately HK$319,000.

Custodian and trustee services

On 4 September 2007, the Bank entered into a custodian and trustee
services agreement with ICBC under which the Bank was appointed by
ICBC to provide custodian, settlement and clearing services in relation to
the investments outside the People’s Republic of China (“PRC”) in certain
investment products by the customers of ICBC in connection with the
Qualified Domestic Institutional Investor scheme of the PRC.

The consideration of the services provided by the Bank will be calculated on
the basis of the amount(s) of the assets for which custodian, settlement and
clearing services are provided by the Bank at the prevailing market rates from
time to time (excluding reimbursement of other expenses incurred during the
course of the provision of such services).

The annual aggregate services fee paid to the Bank by ICBC under the
custodian and trustee services agreement will not exceed the sum of
HK$2,000,000.

As at 31 December 2007, the total services fee received by the Bank from
ICBC was approximately HK$961,000.
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Continuing connected transactions (continued)

9.

Management services, premises income, premises expense and fee expense

The Bank entered into the following types of agreements with the ICBC
Group:

()

(®)

(c)

(d)

(e)

®

providing services such as accounting and budgeting, internal audit,
marketing and back office settlement and clearing to the Hong Kong
Branch of ICBG;

providing services such as management, administrative and marketing
functions in respect of credit card business of ICBC;

receiving services such as banking network, system and computer
operations from ICBC;

receiving services rendered by ICBC branches for assisting the Bank in
PRC loan business.

suites 2501-2, 26th floor and portion of floor area of 28th floor of ICBC
Tower used by the ICBC Group; and

portion of the first floor of No. 9 Queen’s Road Central, Hong Kong
rented by the Central Branch of the Bank.

The total service fee incomes received from the ICBC Group in respect
of (a) and (b) above in 2007 were approximately HK$6,375,000 (2006:
HK$6,300,000). The service fee expenses paid to ICBC in respect of (c) and (d)
above in 2007 were approximately HK$13,156,000 (2006: HK$10,283,000). In
respect of (e) above, the total premises incomes received from the ICBC Group
were HK$16,443,000 (2006: HK$8,104,000). In respect of (f) above, the total
premise and management fee expenses paid to the ICBC Group in 2007 were
approximately HK$6,431,000 (2006: HK$3,966,000).
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Continuing connected transactions (continued)

The Independent Non-executive Directors have reviewed and confirmed that the
connected transactions as disclosed herein were conducted in the following manner:

(1) Such transactions were:

(i)  entered into by the Bank in the ordinary and usual course of its
business;

(if)  entered into on an arm’s length basis, as applicable;

(iii) conducted either (a) on normal commercial terms; or (b) if there are no
sufficient comparable transactions to judge whether they are on normal
commercial terms, on terms that are fair and reasonable so far as the
Bank and the independent shareholders are concerned; and

(iv) entered into either (a) in accordance with the terms of the agreements
governing such transactions; or (b) (where there are no such
agreements) on terms that are no less favourable than those available to
or from independent third parties, as applicable.

(2)  The annual aggregate value of each of the relevant categories of the connected
transactions had not exceeded the annual upper limit or specified threshold,

as applicable.

The auditors of the Bank have confirmed that the continuing connected transactions
carried out during the year:

(1)  have received the approval of the Directors of the Bank;

(2) are in accordance with the pricing policies of the Bank if the transactions
involve provision of goods or services by the Bank;

(3)  have been entered into in accordance with the relevant agreements governing
the transactions; and

(4) have not exceeded the cap disclosed in the previous announcements.
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During the year, the Group had made Relevant Advances to ICBC Group in the
ordinary course of the Group’s banking business which, in aggregate, exceed
8% under the assets ratio as defined under Rule 14.07(1) of the Listing Rules.
Accordingly, the Bank is under a general obligation to disclose the details of the
Relevant Advances and therefore the disclosure below is made in compliance with
Rule 13.20 of the Listing Rules.

As at 31 December 2007, the types of Relevant Advances and the balance of the
relevant outstanding amounts due from, and all guarantees given on behalf of, the
ICBC Group were as follows:

THEIT
HK$°000

A1 B £k 0N Type of the Relevant Advances
T B LR ERAT 2 B 5 B CR IR Trade Loan to ICBC outstanding 20,045,203
R 58 B P SRAT A T A5 R A CR AR Confirmed ICBC Standby Letter of Credit outstanding 26,270
P27 B R AR AT BT A N CRAER) Money Market to ICBC outstanding 1,946,183
1o b R AT AR P 4% 1 =2 A R R A Total Relevant Advances to ICBC Group 22,017,656

HRE LR RNES 13,1406 » AR SR [ 1) b B T R RAT S [
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Pursuant to Rule 13.14 of the Listing Rules, the Bank is required to make disclosure
once the Relevant Advances made by the Group to the ICBC Group had exceeded
3% under the assets ratio as defined under Rule 14.07(1) of the Listing Rules since
the previous disclosure made in an announcement. The Bank had subsequently
made further announcements in respect of the amounts of the Relevant Advances
made by the Group to the ICBC Group pursuant to Rule 13.14 of the Listing Rules.
Further details of the Relevant Advances are set out in Note 10 of the Supplementary
Financial Information.

The interest rates charged for the Relevant Advances mostly are floating interest
rates based on the prevailing interbank offer rate, except for money market
placement whose interest rates are set by the ICBC Group and based on the
prevailing interbank bid rate. The Relevant Advances are repayable in full at
maturity, and the maturity date for the Relevant Advances generally ranges from
overnight to 1 year, or longer than 1 year on capital market instruments. The
Relevant Advances to the ICBC Group are not secured by any collateral.

The Relevant Advances to the ICBC Group were made by the Group in the
ordinary course of the Group’s banking business, and on normal commercial
terms commensurate with customers of the Group having similar credit ratings or
financial strengths.
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As at 31 December 2007, the interests of the Directors and chief executives of the
Bank in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Bank and its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (the “SFO”)) (the “Associated Corporations”) as recorded in the register
required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Bank
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) of the Listing Rules were as follows:-

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited 57

ERcl 2
HIB By 8 H
Number of shares/
underlying shares held

e Ik £

IR A BERTT 4 o
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HHHM  Director 2510 interests are held sharesheld Warrants® Interests share capital

LA Dr. Jiang Jianqing HaEA A Beneficial owner 14,547 1,596@ 16,143 0.0013%

RFEFSEA Mr. Zhu Qi i £ 2PN Beneficial owner 51,954 57009 57,654 0.0047%

JREESEAE Mr. Zhang Yi fEE T 2N Beneficial owner 2,078 2289 2,306 0.0002%

EE&UEA Mr. Yuen Kam Ho, George j-E% 2PN Beneficial owner 26,041 1,850® 27,891 0.0023%
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the Bank entitles the holder thereof to subscribe in cash for one share, at an initial
subscription price of HK$20 per ordinary share (subject to adjustment) of HK$2.00 each
in the issued share capital of the Bank, at any time during the period from 7 November
2007 to 6 November 2008 (both days inclusive).

2. This represented an interest in 1,596 units of registered warrants giving rise to an interest
in 1,596 underlying shares.

3. This represented an interest in 5,700 units of registered warrants giving rise to an interest
in 5,700 underlying shares.

4. This represented an interest in 228 units of registered warrants giving rise to an interest
in 228 underlying shares.

5. This represented an interest in 1,850 units of registered warrants giving rise to an interest
in 1,850 underlying shares.

All the interests stated above represent long positions. As at 31 December 2007, no
short positions were recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 352
of the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2007, none of the Directors or chief
executives of the Bank or their spouses or children under 18 years of age were
granted, or had exercised, any rights to subscribe for any equity or debt securities
of the Bank or any of its Associated Corporations that was required to be recorded
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Bank and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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At no time during the year was the Bank or any of its holding company, or its
subsidiaries, or fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the
Directors of the Bank to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or
debentures of, the Bank or any other body corporate.

As at 31 December 2007, so far as the Directors were aware, the following persons
(other than Directors or chief executives of the Bank) were interested in 5% or more
of the issued share capital or short positions in shares or underlying shares of the
Bank which would fall to be disclosed to the Bank under Divisions 2 and 3 of Part
XV of the SFO or which were required to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO:-

EL¥e) )
B Iy % H
Number of shares/
underlying shares held
S ek g
Fefiie 2 50y IBeABERT 2 e
Capacity in I3 M 2 MY Approximate %
BOR A which interests Number of Wl IRt O Total of total issued
Name of shareholder are held shares held Warrants® interests share capital
e TR SR AT IR 5 SEETE X SN 772,112,228 - 772,112,228 62.98%
ARRAF @
Industrial and Commercial Beneficial owner
Bank of China Limited®
rh il A BOE AT R T 2 R AR 772,112,228 - 772,112,228 62.98%
AR ®
Central SAFE Investments Interest of controlled
Limited® corporation
rpE RN B A B @ T 2 AR 772,112,228 - 772,112,228 62.98%
Ministry of Finance of the Interest of controlled
People’s Republic of China® corporation
Fortis Bank SA/NV® J-EX7 ZEDN 100,913,330 11,212,592 112,125,922 9.15%
Beneficial Owner
Fortis N.V.® ZAE 2 R AR 100,913,330 11,212,592 112,125,922 9.15%
Interest of controlled
corporation
Fortis SA/NV® T 2 R AR 100,913,330 11,212,592 112,125,922 9.15%
Interest of controlled
corporation
Fortis Brussels SA/NV® T 2 R AR 100,913,330 11,212,592 112,125,922 9.15%

Interest of controlled
corporation
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER PERSONS’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES (continued)

Notes:

1.

The underlying shares represent registered warrants of the Bank. Each warrant of
the Bank entitles the holder thereof to subscribe in cash for one share, at an initial
subscription price of HK$20 per ordinary share (subject to adjustment) of HK$2.00 each
in the issued share capital of the Bank, at any time during the period from 7 November
2007 to 6 November 2008 (both days inclusive).

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Limited (“ICBC”) is the legal owner of
772,112,228 ordinary shares of the Bank. Each of Central SAFE Investments Limited
(“Central SAFE”) and Ministry of Finance of the People’s Republic of China (“Ministry of
Finance”) is interested in such shares as a result of Central SAFE and Ministry of Finance
being entitled to exercise, or control the exercise of, one-third or more of the voting
power at general meetings of ICBC.

Fortis Bank SA/NV is the legal owner of 100,913,330 ordinary shares and 11,212,592
registered warrants of the Bank. Each of Fortis N.V., Fortis SA/NV and Fortis Brussels
SA/NV is interested in such shares and underlying shares as a result of Fortis N.V. and
Fortis SA/NV being entitled to exercise, or control the exercise of, one-third or more of
the voting power at general meetings of Fortis Brussels SA/NV and Fortis Brussels SA/
NV being entitled to exercise, or control the exercise of, one-third or more of the voting
power at general meetings of Fortis Bank SA/NV.

This represented an interest in 11,212,592 units of registered warrants giving rise to an
interest in 11,212,592 underlying shares.

All the interests stated above represent long positions. As at 31 December 2007, no
short positions were recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 336
of the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2007, the Bank had not been notified
by any persons (other than Directors and chief executives of the Bank) who had
interests or short positions in the shares or underlying shares of the Bank which
would fall to be disclosed to the Bank under the provisions of Part XV of the SFO
or which were recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 336 of the

SFO.
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The following is a summary of the Share Option Scheme, disclosed in accordance

H#y

ETE R B ARSRAT IR R R B A AT R B 2
A A LSl B [ AR 4 A G B e A 4 18 % 2
HEAHREE

with the Listing Rules:

1.

Purpose

To provide incentive or reward to eligible participants for their contribution
to, and continuing efforts to promote the interests of the Bank and to enable
the Group to recruit and retain high-calibre employees.

2% 2. Participants

ARGRAT AT BRI M A SRAT S M > 7] 2 # o AT The chief executive officer of the Bank, the directors and any full-time

= employees of the Bank or its subsidiaries.

VI AR R I RE T B BEAT 2 B AR DA R i AR A 3. Total number of shares available for issue under the Share Option

P B T BT R AR Z "4 1 Scheme together with the percentage of the issued share capital as at
the date of the annual report

DR AR 5 B AR S ) B AR SR AT AT A I At SRR RE ST 81 (4n The total number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all options

) T 2 AT SR A T (0 i ) B A T SR to be granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other share option

M FIAEEER - EREF AT H AR schemes of the Bank, if any, must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the total

AERRBCHE S ) 2 PUR R B ) 8T I AR number of shares in issue on 10 May 2007 (the date of the passing of the

B2 10% > RI112,125,921 SRy (IE A 4E P88 H I E resolution approving the Share Option Scheme), that is, 112,125,921 shares

BEATIEARA)9.15%) © (representing approximately 9.15% of the issued share capital as at the date of
the annual report).

B2 B8 2 e B 4. Maximum entitlement of each participant

AT AT+ A T 13 [H] oA RIAT ol AR 52 R PR ) M A 4R The total number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of all options

ATARAT AR BME R BT 82 S T4k 2 5 (granted and to be granted, whether exercised, cancelled or outstanding)

HECREEATHE ~ O sEBS s AR AT i ) A3y 2 B3 under the Share Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of the

BEAT MO T AT 2 R MRS A E AR T Bank to each participant in any 12-month period must not exceed 1% of the

BATIRARZ 1% © share capital of the Bank then in issue.

JEURRLABE 0 Je R 2 Pt A -2 0 i 5. Period within which the shares must be taken up under an option

WZ PR o g e ARSI AT > A Rz g e > HI Such period as shall be prescribed by the directors to each grantee, and in

TP R IORE 2 B AT H 0 HRERL > M AE a1y the absence of such determination from the date upon which the offer for

BUN > ATEEAZEA R SR RE S F AR T 4 A i iy o the grant of option is accepted but shall end in any event not later than 10
years from the date of grant of the option subject to the provisions for early
termination thereof.

R PR RE AT A5 T 0 ZE R A I LA PR 6.  Minimum period for which an option must be held before it can be
exercised

T [0 B B R EME RS T A A I 2 A R Directors may, at their absolute discretion, fix any minimum period for which

JRHEAT AR A 2 AR e R ~ RS AT an option must be held, any performance targets that must be achieved and

faIFR 3 H B B b AT Z AT HARBRAT: any other conditions that must be fulfilled before the options can be exercised
upon the grant of an option to a participant.

T B 5 B A SR B RE IR 2B 2 R DA B A ke 7. Amount payable on application or acceptance of the option and the

S RS P T R 2 Pl sk i R

TR AN R e 2 B SO 1.00 s T AUE -

S BT AR SR I A 1 R R 28 H A H AR B
HE -

period within which payments or calls must be made or loans for
such purposes must be repaid

A consideration of HK$1.00 is payable on acceptance of the offer of the grant
of an option.

An option may be accepted by a participant within 28 days from the date of
the offer of grant of the option.
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8.  Basis of determining the subscription price

The subscription price of a share in respect of any option granted under the
Share Option Scheme is determined by the directors but it must be at least the
highest of (i) the closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotation sheets on the date of grant of the option, which must be a
business day; (ii) the average closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of grant of the option; and (iii) the nominal value of the
shares.

9. Remaining life

Subject to early termination and approval of the shareholders of ICBC, the
Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of 10 years
commencing on the date on which the Share Option Scheme is adopted by
resolutions of the shareholders of the Bank in its general meeting.

The Share Option Scheme was approved by the shareholders of the Bank at the
annual general meeting held on 10 May 2007. The adoption of the Share Option
Scheme is subject to the approval of the shareholders of ICBC, the holding company
of the Bank.

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole or any
substantial part of the business of the Bank were entered into or existed during the
year.

During the year, the five largest customers of the Group accounted for less than 30%
of the total of interest income and other operating income of the Group.

As at the date of this report, the Bank has maintained the prescribed public float
under the Listing Rules, based on the information that is publicly available to the
Bank and within the knowledge of the Directors of the Bank.

The Bank is committed to maintain high standards of corporate governance
practices and also follows the module set out in the Supervisory Policy Manual
entitled “Corporate Governance of Locally Incorporated Authorized Institutions”
issued by the Hong Kong Monetary Authority on 21 September 2001. Details of
the Bank’s corporate governance practices are set out in the Corporate Governance
Report on pages 63 to 72 of its 2007 Annual Report.

The Bank is required to comply with the Banking (Disclosure) Rules effective 1
January 2007, which have superseded the supervisory policy manual on financial
disclosure issued by the Hong Kong Monetary Authority (HKMA). The Banking
(Disclosure) Rules set out the minimum standards for public disclosure which
locally incorporated authorized institutions must disclose in respect of the income
statement, state of affairs and capital adequacy. The accounts for the financial year
ended 31 December 2007 have been fully complied with the applicable disclosure
provisions as set out in the Banking (Disclosure) Rules.

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited 61
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The emoluments of the Directors of the Bank (including executive Directors and
Non-executive Directors) on named basis are set out on page 161 of the Bank’s
accounts for the year ended 31 December 2007.

Pursuant to Rule 8.10(2) of the Listing Rules, the following Directors of the Bank
had declared interests in the following entities of which businesses are considered to
compete or are likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the businesses of
the Bank during the year:

Dr. Jiang Jianqing is the Chairman of Industrial and Commercial Bank of China
Limited.

Ms. Wang Lili is the Chairman of ICBC (London) Limited.

Mr. Zhu Qi is the Deputy Chairman of ICEA Finance Holdings Limited and the
Chairman of Industrial and Commercial International Capital Limited.

Mr. Chen Aiping is the Chairman of Industrial and Commercial Bank of China
Luxembourg S.A., the Director of each of Xiamen International Bank and ICEA
Finance Holdings Limited.

All of the above companies provide an extensive range of financial services.

Mr. Damis Jacobus Ziengs is the Chief Executive Officer, Asia of Fortis Insurance
International, which is engaged in insurance activities. Mr. Ziengs resigned as Non-
executive Director of the Bank on 24 January 2008.

The Board of the Bank, including three Independent Non-executive Directors,
provides independent views to the Board in making the Board’s decisions. The
Audit Committee of the Bank, which consists of three Independent Non-executive
Directors, meets regularly to assist the Board in reviewing the financial performance,
internal controls and compliance systems of the Bank and its subsidiaries. The Bank
is, therefore, capable of carrying on its businesses independently of, and at arm’s
length from, the businesses in which Directors have declared interests.

The consolidated accounts have been audited by Ernst & Young who retire and,
being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment. Ernst & Young were appointed
as auditors of the Bank by the Directors to fill the casual vacancy following the
resignation of PricewaterhouseCoopers in 2006. There have been no other changes
of auditors in the past three years.

On behalf of the Board
Dr. Jiang Jianqing
Chairman

Hong Kong, 13 March 2008
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The Bank is committed to maintain high standards of corporate governance
practices and also follows the module set out in the Supervisory Policy Manual
entitled “Corporate Governance of Locally Incorporated Authorized Institutions”
issued by the Hong Kong Monetary Authority on 21 September 2001. The Bank has
complied with the code provisions set out in the Code on Corporate Governance
Practices (the “Code”) contained in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules throughout
the financial year ended 31 December 2007, except for the deviations from Code
Provisions A.4.1 and E.1.2 which are explained in the relevant paragraphs below.

A.1 The Board
The Board of Directors has the collective responsibility for leadership
and control of the Bank and be collectively responsible for promoting
the success of the Bank by directing and supervising the Bank’s affairs.
The Board sets strategies for the Bank and monitors the performance
and activities of the senior management.

The Board meetings are held at least once every quarter, such regular
Board meetings will normally involve the active participation, either
in person or through other electronic means of communication, of a
majority of Directors entitled to be present. Special Board meetings will
be held when necessary.

The Board of the Bank held five meetings in 2007. The attendance
records of individual Directors are as follows:

W ik
Number of
Meetings
WA Name of Director Attended
ZAE L Dr. Jiang Jianging 5
(ERERIEBITES) (Chairman, Non-executive Director)
ERER L Ms. Wang Lili 3
(R F e FERATH D) (Vice Chairman, Non-executive Director)
RFHEA Mr. Zhu Qi 5
(AR T AR (Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer)
PR SZF-5E A Mr. Chen Aiping 4
(FEHITH E) (Non-executive Director)
HE IR SEE Mr. Wong Yuen Fai 5
(BUTHEF) (Executive Director)
FkSeE Mr. Zhang Yi 5
(fT#EH) (Executive Director)
Damis Jacobus Ziengs 55/E Mr. Damis Jacobus Ziengs 2
(FERATHES) (Non-executive Director)
ET WA - sBS. - AP+ Professor Wong Yue Chim, Richard, S.B.S., J.P. 4
(B IF AT ) (Independent Non-executive Director)
TREEE e Mr. Tsui Yiu Wa, Alec 5
(BSLIEHITHE ) (Independent Non-executive Director)
=ikt Mr. Yuen Kam Ho, George 5
(B IF AT ) (Independent Non-executive Director)
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The Directors of the Bank are consulted to include matters in the agenda
of its regular Board meetings. The Director(s) may seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances to assist him/her in
discharging his/her duties to the Bank. The Directors also have access to
advice and services of the Company Secretary to ensure due compliance
of the Board procedures, and all applications rules and regulations.

Notice of meeting shall be given to all Directors by the Company
Secretary at least two weeks before the date of the meeting to provide
sufficient notice to give all Directors an opportunity to attend. Under
special circumstances, the Company Secretary will promptly contact all
Directors by way of telephone.

Minutes of the meetings of the Board and the Board committees have
been recorded in sufficient detail the matters considered by the Board
and the committees, decisions reached, including any concerns raised
by Directors or dissenting views expressed. Draft and final versions of
the minutes of the Board are sent to all Directors for their comment and
records respectively.

Minutes of the meetings of the Board, the Audit Committee, the
Nomination Committee and the Risk Management Committee of the
Bank are kept by the Company Secretary. Minutes of the meetings of
the other Board committees (as listed under Section D.2 of this report)
are kept by the appointed secretary of each committee. Minutes of
the meetings of the Board and all the Board committees are open for
inspection at any reasonable time on reasonable notice by any Director.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Dr. Jiang Jianging is a Non-executive Director and the Chairman of the
Board. Mr. Zhu Qi is the Chief Executive Officer of the Bank. With the
support of the experienced senior management, Mr. Zhu assumes the
responsibility to supervise the daily management and operations of the
Bank, including the implementation of major strategies and initiatives
adopted by the Board of Directors from time to time. The roles of
Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer of the Bank are
segregated, with a clear division of responsibilities.

Board Composition

As at the date of this report, the Board of the Bank consisted of nine
Directors comprising three Executive Directors, three Non-executive
Directors and three Independent Non-executive Directors. All the
Directors are expressly identified by such categories in all corporate
communications that disclose their names. All the Independent
Non-executive Directors meet the guidelines for assessment of their
independence as set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

The Bank benefits from the substantial business, banking and
professional experience of its Directors. Biography of the Directors is set
out in the “Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management”
section under the Bank’s 2007 Annual Report.
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A4 Appointments, Re-election and Removal

The Non-executive Directors and the Independent Non-executive
Directors of the Bank are not appointed for specific term but subject
to the retirement by rotation at and re-election at the annual general
meetings in accordance with the Bank’s Articles of Association. Save
for the Managing Director of the Bank, at each annual general meeting
one-third of the Directors for the time being or, if their number is not
a multiple of three, then the number nearest but not exceeding one-
third, shall retire from office by rotation and any Director appointed by
the Directors to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition shall hold office
only until the next following annual general meeting. All the retiring
Directors are eligible for re-election.

In compliance with the Code Provision A.4.2, Mr. Zhu Qi, the
Managing Director of the Bank, had offered himself for retirement
at the 2005 Annual General Meeting of the Bank and was re-elected
Director of the Bank.

In compliance with the requirement of Code Provision A.4.2 and
Articles of 94(1) and 94(2) of Articles of Association of the Bank,
Mr. Wong Yuen Fai, Professor Wong Yue Chim, Richard, $.B.S., J.p.
and Mr. Tsui Yiu Wa, Alec will offer themselves for retirement at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Bank and being eligible, will
offer themselves for re-election.

Save for the retiring directors as mentioned above under this item, who
will offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Bank, as at the date of this report, no Director held office
for over three years.

The Nomination Committee was established on 20 January 2005 with
specific Terms of Reference, which state clearly with its authority and
duties. The Terms of Reference of the Nomination Committee have
included the specific duties set out in paragraphs A.4.5(a) to (d) of the
Code, with appropriate modifications when necessary. It is responsible
for assessing the suitability of the candidates and recommending to the
Board all new appointments of Directors and senior executives (such as
chief executive officer, alternate chief executive, chief financial officer).
The Committee reports directly to the Board of Directors and meets at
least once a year.

As at the date of this report, the current members of the Nomination
Committee consists of three members, comprising two Independent
Non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Tsui Yiu Wa, Alec (Chairman)
and Mr. Yuen Kam Ho, George, and a Non-executive Director, namely
Mr. Chen Aiping.
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The Nomination Committee of the Bank held one meeting in 2007 and
the attendance records of the individual members are as follows:

W faR
ZHERAREA Name of Committee Member Number of Meeting Attended
REEE S Mr. Tsui Yiu Wa, Alec 1
OB FERUATHEHIE ) (Independent Non-executive Director and Chairman)
e Mr. Yuen Kam Ho, George 1
(BSLIEHITHES) (Independent Non-executive Director)
PR EZF-5E A Mr. Chen Aiping 0
(FEHATHE) (Non-executive Director)

A5

A6
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During the year, the Nomination Committee of the Bank considered the
replacement for the Bank’s Chief Financial Officer.

Responsibilities of Directors

The Bank regularly reminds all Directors of their functions and
responsibilities and updates them of the legal and regulatory
developments. Through regular Board meetings and circulation of
regular financial reports and other materials (such as the minutes of the
meetings of the other Board committees), all Directors are informed of
the business operation and financial situation of the Bank.

The functions of the Non-executive Directors of the Bank as set out in
the Terms of Reference of the Board of Directors include the functions
as specified in Code Provision A.5.2 (a) to (d) of the Code (with
appropriate modifications when necessary).

The Bank has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) set out in Appendix 10
of the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct regarding Directors’
securities transactions. The Bank confirms that, having made specific
enquiry of all Directors, the Directors have complied with the required
standard set out in the Model Code for the year ended 31 December
2007.

Supply of and Access to Information

The Directors have full and timely access to all relevant information of
the Bank so that they can make an informed decision in discharging
their duties and responsibilities as Directors. The Board and each
Director has separate and independent access to the management of the
Bank.
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B.1 The Level and Make-up of Remuneration and Disclosure

The Remuneration Committee of the Bank was established on 20
January 2005 with specific Terms of Reference, which state clearly with
its authority and duties. It oversees the remuneration of the Directors
and senior management of the Bank to ensure that their remuneration
is appropriate for their duties and consistent with the Bank’s culture,
strategy and control environment. The Committee is also responsible
for recommending to the Board on the Bank’s remuneration policy
framework. The Committee reports directly to the Board of Directors
and meets at least once a year.

ARG TR > FMERGZHARAR
VU4 > ARG =40 M AL JE AT g R i
(ERE) ~ ETW#EIL - S.B.S. » KPaht - Kik
WETESEAE - DL — & IR AT R T o
4EIN > Damis Jacobus Ziengs W THiZE 5 &%
B MR R NF—H I HEHT

As at the date of this report, the current members of the Remuneration
Committee consists of four members, comprising three Independent
Non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Yuen Kam Ho, George
(Chairman), Professor Wong Yue Chim, Richard, S.B.S., J.P., and
Mr. Tsui Yiu Wa, Alec, and one Non-executive Director, namely Mr.
Chen Aiping. Mr. Damis Jacobus Ziengs, who was a member of the
Remuneration Committee during the year 2007, has resigned on 24
January 2008.

RRT 2 HME RGN —EFFLERTT K
Gk o W& B2 BRI

The Remuneration Committee of the Bank held one meeting in 2007
and the attendance records of the individual members are as follows:

Wk

ZHAMBRA Name of Committee Member Number of Meeting Attended

ok AL e Mr. Yuen Kam Ho, George 1
(R S7 FEAUITHE H K ETE) (Independent Non-executive Director and Chairman)

FET WS > sBS.  AP4+ Professor Wong Yue Chim, Richard, S.B.S.,J.P. 1
(RS IFA T ) (Independent Non-executive Director)

REEE oA Mr. Tsui Yiu Wa, Alec 1
(a7 IR AT E ) (Independent Non-executive Director)

RV ek Mr. Chen Aiping 0
(FEpiT#ES) (Non-executive Director)

Damis Jacobus Ziengs 5&/E Mr. Damis Jacobus Ziengs 1
(FEMATHES) (Non-executive Director)

ABSERR - ERTEFEZHMER > HRA
AT R LAEERUR F R L7 -

N HiHZE B 7 e M S AR A
WECEFZAETF A=+ —HILFEEZ RS
SAL (AR RATE 2 RBAL) « & BEIR
25 i B 1) S 0 1 s A R\ B R R
WEZEFZANET A=+ —HILEEZRB

Information relating to the remuneration of each Director for 2007 is
set out in Note 17 to the Notes to Accounts of the 2007 Annual Report
of the Bank.

During the year, the Remuneration Committee considered and
recommended to the Board the allocation of performance bonus of the
Group (including that of the Executive Directors) for the year ended 31
December 2006. The Committee also considered and recommended to
the Board the performance bonus of senior management for the year
ended 31 December 2006.
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C2

C3

Financial Reporting

Monthly reports on financial results are submitted to the Board for
ongoing monitoring. Business performance and financial situation of
the Bank are reported to the Board at each Board meeting to assist the
Board to have a balanced, clear and comprehensive assessment of the
Bank’s performance, position and prospects.

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
accounts of the Bank. As at 31 December 2007, the Directors are not
aware of any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions
which may cast significant doubt upon the Bank’s ability to continue as
a going concern. The Directors have prepared the accounts of the Bank
on a going concern basis.

A statement by the external auditors with respect to their financial
reporting responsibilities is included in the Independent Auditors’
Report on pages 73 and 74 of the Bank’s 2007 Annual Report.

Internal Controls

The Board is responsible for the system of the internal controls and
the review of the effectiveness of the Bank and its subsidiaries through
well-established procedures, policies and systems of the Bank. The
review covers all material controls, including financial, operational and
compliance controls and risk management functions.

The Internal Audit Department evaluates the Bank’s internal controls
on an on-going basis and reports to the Audit Committee at least 4
times each year on significant findings on internal controls. Copy of the
minutes of the Audit Committee meetings will also be sent to the Board
for information.

Audit Committee

The Bank has established an Audit Committee with specific written
Terms of Reference set out clearly its authority and responsibilities. The
Terms of Reference of the Audit Committee have included the duties set
out in Code Provision C.3.3 of the Code, with appropriate modifications
when necessary. It reviews the effectiveness of both the external and
internal audit and of internal controls and risk evaluation.

As at the date of this report, the current members of the Audit
Committee consists of four members, comprising three Independent
Non-executive Directors, namely Professor Wong Yue Chim, Richard,
S.B.S., J.P. (Chairman), Mr. Tsui Yiu Wa, Alec and Mr. Yuen Kam Ho,
George, and a Non-executive Director, namely Mr. Chen Aiping.
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The Audit Committee of the Bank held four meetings in 2007 and all
the meetings were with the participation of the external auditors of the
Bank. The attendance records of the individual members at the Audit

Committee are as follows:

R kK

ZHAZAMA Name of Committee Member Number of Meetings Attended

ETWEEL > sBs. - KT4h+ Professor Wong Yue Chim, Richard, $.B.S., .. 4
(B AT E S I ERE) (Independent Non-executive Director and Chairman)

=ikt Mr. Yuen Kam Ho, George 4
B I AT S OB %) (Independent Non-executive Director and Alternate Chairman)

TR ST Mr. Tsui Yiu Wa, Alec 4
(B AT ES) (Independent Non-executive Director)

PRS- F-5E Mr. Chen Aiping 2
(FEHATHE) (Non-executive Director)

AR > SR A S ] 2 A A T 8 A MR
W B IR A% BUR S 2 2 4 Al 2 4,598,000 5 7T K
2,115,000 #5 70 o TR I BUR K A4 2

During the year, the fees paid to the external auditors of the Group for
the audit services and non-audit services amounted to HK$4,598,000
and HK$2,115,000 respectively. Details of the significant non-audit

PR service assignments and the fees paid were as follows:
URER-¢il
FeA% SIS P2 Nature of Non-audit Service Fees Paid
BB Hws Tax service HK$231,000
20 B Review of interim accounts HK$850,000
B H BRI Regulatory review HK$175,000
oAl iR Other services HK$859,000
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During the year, the work performed by the Audit Committee of the
Bank is summarized as follows:

- Met with external auditors to discuss the general scope of their

audit work;

- Reviewed external auditors’ management letter and management

response;

- Reviewed the external auditors’ 2007 audit plan;

- Reviewed the external auditors’ reports and findings and the
management response;

- Reviewed the internal audit plan for the year of 2007;

- Reviewed the internal audit reports covering the evaluation of

internal controls;

Reviewed the independent assessment report on the effectiveness
of the Bank’s internal control system;

Reviewed the audited accounts and final results announcement
for the year of 2006;

Reviewed the Interim Report and the interim results announcement
for the six months ended 30 June 2007.
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Management Functions

The Board assumes the responsibility for leadership and control of
the Bank and delegates aspects of its management and administration
functions to the Management. The Board sets up clear guidelines as to
the powers to the Management, in particular, with respect to reporting
mechanism and the matters that shall be subject to the approval of
the Board (such as substantial changes in the management structure,
the business objectives, strategies and business plans, the policies
and manuals which may substantially affect the financial and risk
management of the Bank).

Board Committees

Apart from the Audit Committee (particulars are disclosed under C.3),
the Remuneration Committee (particulars are disclosed under B.1) and
the Nomination Committee (particulars are disclosed under A.4), the
Board has also established the following four specialised committees
which comprise Directors and where appropriate, other senior
executives from relevant areas:

1. General Management Committee
The General Management Committee was established on 24
September 2001 to supervise the overall operation of the Group.
The Chairman of the Committee is the Chief Executive Officer,
and the other committee members are the Deputy General
Managers and the Assistant General Managers designated by the
Chief Executive Officer. 16 meetings were held during the year.

2. Credit Committee

The Credit Committee sets up credit related policies, guidelines
and procedures in order to maintain the quality of the credit
portfolio of the Bank. It reviews and approves large credit
exposures, manages credit risk concentration, accepts or rejects
new credit strategies and responds to deteriorating credits.
The Committee consists of the Head of Credit Analysis and
Administration Department (Chairman), the Chief Risk Officer
and the Deputy General Managers or Assistant General Managers
in charge of business lines.

3. Asset and Liability Management Committee

The Asset and Liability Management Committee was established
on 12 July 1999 to closely monitor the mix of liquid assets and
funding channels, and the exposure to movements in interest
rate and foreign exchange. The Committee members also meet
to review the optimal liquidity level in response to internal
requirements and external market indicators. It comprises the
Chief Financial Officer (the Chairman and Secretary of the
Committee), all Deputy General Managers, the designated
Assistant General Managers in charge of business units, the
Chief Risk Officer, the Head of Market Risk of Risk Management
Department and the Head of Treasury & Markets Department.
The Committee meets on a monthly basis.



4. JEBEEMEAE
EBEEHZ B En —EE AU HH K
ST B T B B i A 4 1 L
BT ~ BOR X 2 50 B -
W% RGO SRR - FIERIE R T
Wy B - B A By - A R - R
LR B S A By o 5% 2% B i JEl R A
B (M) ~ ATEAEE - ARRAT— 2 M 9k
PATEDS - AEMER MR - BE
FAEMRAT RS 2 G AR PR
SR PR BT MG
EIATBER FA - B S 2 17 5 SR
T BN R GIE BR AR
T - %% BRI EEET - RE
%,

TRIEA S 2 BT AR M BB B - AR
R A RSy s A 2 AR B 48 2
Ry Sl S IR T R R
Ty AR LRSS o A BB RS - i
S A 2 BOR AR ELT SR E 1)
SN Z S B TR R -

5 HERRZEAE

BERRZEER _FEFLEE] I
HMSL > B RS TE R e i B o
B 2% B S A SR 2 S B HTLIECRE
T 7 D 5 95 2 10 2 G S A v Sz o JRUBGR
B Z B EEN > AT B R 2 AL
B> LA e A JE Wi B T DL AR R
JEGBSE 5 [ B A0E A SR AT 45 T AT
b BB B BOR - FRY R iR
e A R PE o R B
PR A ()~ A AER
AR (B E) - RS R A (5L
BT i B R R A BT 6
WP 2 ARRALIL - %% B0 3 81T
—UE -

VA5 22 BB AT R E 2 T AT > B8
W HCHE B BT - T B - FiZ B a &
R4 % B g 1) g R PR s ek - R
FOHIH R 2 Z B 2 R T R W
et o

s TR ERAT (B A PR AW Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited 7]
ZRF-LAAEH W Annual Report 2007

4. Risk Management Committee

The Risk Management Committee was established on 5
September 2002 to review and report to the Board of Directors
on the adequacy and efficiency of risk management procedures,
policies and systems of the Group. It focuses on credit risk,
interest rate risk, market risk, liquidity risk, operational risk,
reputation risk and legal risk. The Committee comprises the
Chief Risk Officer (Chairman), the Chief Executive Officer, an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Bank, the Deputy
General Manager in charge of Treasury & Markets, the Deputy
General Manager in charge of Retail Banking, the Chief Financial
Officer, the Chief Operation Officer, the Head of Treasury
& Markets Department, the Head of Credit Analysis and
Administration Department, the Head of Market Risk of Risk
Management Department, the Head of Systems & IT Department
and the Head of Legal and Compliance. The Committee meets on
a quarterly basis.

In accordance with the Group’s asset portfolio structure and
risk profile, the stress-testing program as part of an on-going
risk monitoring exercise has been implemented. The stress
test results are regularly reported to the Risk Management
Committee for review. Policies and tolerances addressing risk
identification, measurement, monitoring and control will be
directly communicated to those areas affected throughout the
Group.

5. Operational Risk Committee

The Operational Risk Committee was established on 25 July
2007 to focus on operational risk management. It reviews and
reports to the Risk Management Committee on the adequacy
of operational risk management policies, procedures and
systems for the Bank. It also evaluates the effectiveness of
existing policies, and the need for other risk control tools as to
mitigating operational risks; makes recommendations or decides
on amended/increased/decreased operational control policies,
procedures and measures of the Bank. It comprises the Chief Risk
Officer (Chairman), Chief Operation Officer, Head (or Deputy
Head) of Human Resources Department, Head (or Deputy
Head) of Internal Audit Department, Operational Risk Head and
representative from Retail Banking Department. The Committee
meets on a quarterly basis.

Each of these committees has specific written terms of reference
which clearly sets out its authorities and duties. The Audit Committee,
the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee are
required to report their decisions or recommendations to the Board.
Material matters are reserved for the approval of the Board according to
the terms of reference of such committees.
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Effective Communication

A separate resolution was proposed by the Chairman of the Meeting
of the 2006 Annual General Meeting in respect of each separate issue
including the re-election of the retiring Directors. The Bank organises
press conferences and analysts’ meetings to explain its annual and
interim results in detail. The website of the Bank www.icbcasia.com
contains the “Investor Relations” and “About Us” sections which
offer timely access to the Bank’s publications, press releases and other
business information.

The Chairman was unable to attend the 2006 Annual General Meeting
due to other important business engagements. The Chairman and/
or its members of each of the Audit Committee, the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee attended the 2006 Annual
General Meeting of the Bank to answer questions from shareholders.

Voting by Poll

The procedures for voting by poll, which comply with the Listing
Rules and the Articles of Association of the Bank, are set out in every
circular sent to shareholders of the Bank during the year of 2007. The
Bank shall regularly inform shareholders of the procedures for voting
by poll and ensure compliance with the requirements about voting by
poll contained in the Listing Rules and the Articles of Association of the
Bank.
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
INDUSTRIAL AND COMMERCIAL BANK OF
CHINA (ASIA) LIMITED

(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the accounts of Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia)
Limited (the “Bank”) set out on pages 75 to 220, which comprise the consolidated
and Bank’s balance sheets as at 31 December 2007, and the consolidated income
statement, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated cash
flow statement for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory notes.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
ACCOUNTS

The directors of the Bank are responsible for the preparation and the true and fair
presentation of these accounts in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. This responsibility includes designing,
implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and
the true and fair presentation of accounts that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting
policies; and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

AUDITORS’” RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these accounts based on our audit.
Our report is made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 141 of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the accounts are free from material
misstatement.
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Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the
amounts and disclosures in the accounts. The procedures selected depend on the
auditors’ judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement
of the accounts, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditors consider internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and true
and fair presentation of the accounts in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the accounts.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion.

In our opinion, the accounts give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Bank
and of the Group as at 31 December 2007 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
and have been properly prepared in accordance with the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants

18th Floor

Two International Finance Centre
8 Finance Street

Central Hong Kong

Hong Kong
13 March 2008
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For the year ended 31 December 2007
2007 2006
Ff & T TH T
Notes HK$’000 HK$ 000
FLE A Interest income (6) 8,845,058 6,926,521
FE S Interest expense (6) (6,457,053) (5,073,952)
(6) 2,388,005 1,852,569
Wi K AR 4 A Fee and commission income 7) 719,362 582,596
Wi A 4 Sl Fee and commission expense (7) (43,647) (20,484)
(7) 675,715 562,112
e TN Net trading income (8) 185,592 216,031
TRE LA HEERHERARZ Net loss on financial assets and liabilities designated at
el ISV &=Ci-te ot~} fair value through profit or loss 9) (95,708) (82,882)
AR H & & 2 R A Dividend income from financial investments (10) 3,800 2,619
HoAth & 2E A Other operating income (11) 21,281 46,713
3,178,685 2,597,162
ESE Operating expenses (12) (1,134,895) (945,359)
2,043,790 1,651,803
B 1988 (S 8H) Write-back of/(charge for) impairment losses
on loans and advances (14) 114,866 (132,171)
FrA 23 E RS Write-back of/(charge for) impairment losses
EAE T YACES) on held-to-maturity financial investments (29) 3,131 (5,666)
R B S R BUE B JS Charge for impairment losses on available-for-sale
financial investments (28) (251,929) -
1,909,858 1,513,966
A 2 T i ) Net revaluation gains on investment properties (32) 2,761 -
P [ ) 2 K AR A Net gain/(loss) from disposal/reversal of revaluation (15) 11,102 (15)
A b % - b (5 R RE deficits of property, plant and equipment and
FAE A2 g (k548 18R leasehold land and land use rights
B A B < AR U R A Net gain on disposal of available-for-sale
financial investments 16,616 83,271
1,940,337 1,597,222
JREA W A ) s ) Share of profits of associates (30) 11,297 5,739
1,951,634 1,602,961
Tl IE Income tax expense (16)
— & - Hong Kong (326,172) (277,687)
— g4 - Overseas (17,594) (90,754)
— IRAERIIA — Deferred tax 920 11,072
1,608,788 1,245,592
— — Interim dividend declared during the year (19) 262,114 224,252
—HEIRA B E - Final dividend proposed after the balance sheet date ~ (19) 772,350 515,779
1,034,464 740,031
— A ~ Basic (20) HK$1.41 HKS$1.11
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SRFLETCAS R
As at 31 December 2007

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited

2007 2006
! T#x T
Notes HK$’000 HK$ 000
B 4 B AE $RAT 5L Cash and balances with banks and
HoAth 4 et 2 4547 other financial institutions (22) 43,666,354 45,495,112
SRAT B HLAth 4 il i A Placements with and advances to banks and other
IR financial institutions (23) 1,005,234 5,015,135
FRERS 7 R 4 il & Financial assets held for trading (24) 54,256 56,468
678 A AR EAS Financial assets designated at fair value through
B RA R GREE profit or loss (25) 1,754,742 1,704,349
A TR Derivative financial instruments (26) 1,213,738 713,202
T~ GRAT I HoAth Loans and advances to customers, banks and other
4 LA 2 B financial institutions (27) 121,703,671 75,647,756
SRE - Financial investments: 18,640,728 15,185,290
— Bt & - Available-for-sale (28) 15,326,911 11,052,318
ek - Held-to-maturity (29) 3,313,817 4,132,972
TR A 2 B & Investments in associates (30) 184,054 34,485
T I oAt ST 5 Goodwill and other intangible assets (31) 1,043,582 1,050,773
' <L//ES Investment properties (32) 40,624 -
LIE Y& 4] Property, plant and equipment (33) 257,753 249,417
FHEE T b % - b fif P A Leasehold land and land use rights (34) 44,604 61,427
HA & Other assets (35) 2,694,720 1,178,345
192,304,060 146,391,759
SRAT B oA Deposits from banks and
B R A7 A BR other financial institutions 20,235,806 12,007,678
A4 TR Derivative financial instruments (26) 1,351,698 773,116
B AR Deposits from customers (37) 137,530,227 99,570,557
—J5E LA PEE SR RAAR — Designated at fair value through profit or loss 298,274 385,298
— DABESH A - At amortised cost 137,231,953 99,185,259
E B T A7 2 Certificates of deposit issued (37) 3,705,396 10,322,035
— 5 LA PEE SR RARR — Designated at fair value through profit or loss 3,105,399 5,350,864
— DAHRSH A - At amortised cost 599,997 4,971,171
HE LLAHE (AR A R AR Debt securities in issue designated
ZEBITES at fair value through profit or loss (37) 3,119,872 2,997,804
BATRUE & (& Current income tax liabilities 134,378 171,787
RIEBIIH & i Deferred income tax liabilities (38) 336,256 115,885
VAR AR AN 2 A4 (B A5 0A Subordinated debts measured at amortised cost (39) 7,545,620 7,527,950
HoAth & fif Other liabilities (40) 3,336,668 1,819,644
177,295,921 135,306,456
il Share capital (41) 2,451,904 2,242,518
PR B 1 A Retained earnings (42) 3,481,533 2,734,266
HAt ks Other reserves (42) 9,074,702 6,108,519
15,008,139 11,085,303
192,304,060 146,391,759
L REBf Fgoy =B ] Jiang Jianqing Zhu Qi Wong Yuen Fai Tsang Mei Kuen
E3 HFRATE HFEHF AR Chairman Managing Director & Deputy ~ Company Secretary
BEI TR il Director & General Manager
Chief Executive

Officer
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CEREFETH=1—H
As at 31 December 2007
2007 2006
! T#x T
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
4 R AR $RAT B Cash and balances with banks and
HUAh 5 Rl B 2 A5 A7 other financial institutions (22) 43,160,520 44,926,368
SRAT B HLAth 4 il i A Placements with and advances to banks and other
ALK financial institutions (23) 1,620,813 5,779,578
FHERR S R &Rl E E Financial assets held for trading (24) 54,256 56,468
678 A AR EAS Financial assets designated
B RA R GREE at fair value through profit or loss (25) 1,754,742 1,704,349
firAE 4l T2 Derivative financial instruments (26) 1,226,446 713,202
B~ GRAT R H A A Rl Loans and advances to customers, banks
e 2 B and other financial institutions 27) 114,877,082 74,651,076
SRE - Financial investments: 18,640,065 15,184,581
— Bt & - Available-for-sale (28) 15,326,248 11,051,609
ek - Held-to-maturity (29) 3,313,817 4,132,972
RIS AT 2 G Investments in associates (30) 152,646 14,508
T M o w1 2 & Investments in subsidiaries (36) 1,874,432 1,417,707
PR R HAth ST Goodwill and other intangible assets (31) 681,744 711,335
Evd-L7/ES Investment properties (32) 26,000 -
VEI G L] Property, plant and equipment (33) 166,690 152,581
T b, 2 - of M Leasehold land and land use rights (34) 44,604 61,427
HoAth e Other assets (35) 3,279,274 1,265,007
187,559,314 146,638,187
SRAT B HAth 45 Deposits from banks and
TS 2 A R B A B other financial institutions 16,230,140 12,009,483
itk 4R T E Derivative financial instruments (26) 1,351,698 773,116
BN Deposits from customers (37) 139,973,358 103,000,988
— R LA PEEAE R RAR ~ Designated at fair value through profit or loss 298,274 3,375,296
— LAHRSH A — At amortised cost 139,675,084 99,625,692
BT Certificates of deposit issued (37) 3,705,396 10,322,035
—J5E LA PEE SR RAAR — Designated at fair value through profit or loss 3,105,399 5,350,864
— DAHESS R A — At amortised cost 599,997 4,971,171
BATHIHARE Current income tax liabilities 108,597 132,343
PR SERL EH & 5 Deferred income tax liabilities (38) 324,717 115,885
DA S AR AR 2 14 (B A5 TH Subordinated debts measured at amortised cost (39) 7,545,620 7,527,950
HoAh £ Other liabilities (40) 3,719,621 1,822,474
172,959,147 135,704,274
Jili& Share capital (41) 2,451,904 2,242,518
£ B8 35 F) Retained earnings (42) 3,282,967 2,634,070
HAt At Other reserves (42) 8,865,296 6,057,325
14,600,167 10,933,913
187,559,314 146,638,187
B350 REf gy iEES ] Jiang Jianqing Zhu Qi Wong Yuen Fai Tsang Mei Kuen
Ev 3 HIEAEI HEE AL = Chairman Managing Director & Deputy ~ Company Secretary
BT pk ks Director & General Manager
Chief Executive

Officer
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BE-ZLZLFEF A=t —HILEE
For the year ended 31 December 2007

2007 2006
B sE T TH T
Notes HK$’000 HK$°000
—H— B Z R4 g Total equity as at 1 January 11,085,303 9,869,854
SRAT SE AL AR Revaluation surplus on bank premises (42) 22,666 11,332
AL B Reversal of revaluation reserve upon disposal
SRATY) SE RF ] of bank premises (42) - (30)
Hifes & S g Changes in fair value reserve of available-for-sale
2N AR E) financial investments (42) 951,098 697,382
IR R (PR A A1 Transfer from available-for-sale financial
B8 A R Rt investments reserve to the income
A48 15 3% statement on impairment (42) 234,024 -
TRERITHIE R Recognition of deferred tax liabilities in revaluation
B G G AL A reserves on bank premises
it R A TE £ i and available-for-sale financial investments (42) (221,319) (122,158)
S SRR g 2 ) A Exchange differences arising from translation
Z ME R 2 of results of a foreign subsidiary (42) 74,319 24
TR AR £ 2% A BRE R 2 o 1 % A Net profits not recognised in the income statement 1,060,788 586,550
J5 SRE A i A Profit attributable to equity holders (42) 1,608,788 1,245,592
i3\ Dividends (42) (777,893) (616,693)
DARAR B 84T 1 I A Shares issued in lieu of dividends (41) 504,816 =
AT R B RS EEA T R A Shares issued on exercise of warrants (41) 1,526,826 -
AT AR ST Share issue expenses (41), (42) (489) -
T AT —HZ AR SEEE  Total equity as at 31 December 15,008,139 11,085,303
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HECEFZLEL A= HIEFEE
For the year ended 31 December 2007
2007 2006
! T#x T
Notes HK$’000 HK$ 000
BT Operating activities
R il i A1) Profit before tax 1,951,634 1,602,961
A ER SRS (Write-back of)/charge for impairment
NRERAEIE I =ES losses on held-to-maturity financial investments (29) (3,131) 5,666
B ([0]438) 4Rk (Write-back of)/charge for impairment losses
on loans and advances (14) (114,866) 132,171
LS SR E R Charge for impairment losses on available-for-sale
financial investments (28) 251,929 -
LT 5 Amortisation of intangible assets (12) 48,629 45,006
FH A A Y Amortisation of leasehold land (12) 734 1,137
e Depreciation (12) 43,243 35,970
HAEEIER S Interest paid on subordinated debts 424,241 348,560
Wi [m] E i K Recoveries of loans and advances written off (14) 63,719 44,028
B e i R S Net gain from disposal/reversal of revaluation
B At e &l Wi i AR deficits of property, plant and equipment (15) (10,249) (859)
AE A M % - Ml (Write-back of)/charge for impairment losses
R ERAEEIPE=ES on leasehold land and land use rights (15) (853) 874
LR 215 i Net revaluation gain on investment properties (32) (2,761) -
HB A 1AL B s < RS U PR Net gain on disposal of available-for-sale financial investments (16,616) (83,271)
JREA S5 ) s Share of net profits of associates (30) (11,297) (5,739)
A EmRER S A& Dividend income from listed financial assets
SR FE 2 BRI held for trading (10) (409) -
REJE BTk Dividend income from unlisted
AR 2 BRI available-for-sale financial investments (10) (3,391) (2,619)
2,620,556 2,123,885
BB (BN W (Increase)/decrease in operating assets:
FA=AR A DL 2 g Treasury bills maturing beyond three months (1,508,330) 491,006
R =8 H Lh 2 8R17 Placements with and advances to banks and other
T HoAth 4 i 2 A7k financial institutions maturing beyond three months (327,407) 1,938,776
FrA ZR SRS Held-to-maturity financial investments 819,134 929,506
FR1EsC 5 i Bl e e Financial assets held for trading 2,212 (56,221)
88 A HEERHE R Financial assets designated
AW Gl at fair value through profit or loss (50,393) (14,339)
e B G Al B & Available-for-sale financial investments (5,357,314) (2,029,436)
B~ SRAT M H A Rl Loans and advances to customers, banks and other financial
B A institutions and other assets (47,517,853) (5,843,284)
AirHE i T H Derivative financial instruments (443,970) (103,365)
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BE_EFELET A=+ HILERE

For the year ended 31 December 2007

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited

2007 2006
R 3T T T
Notes HK$’000 HK$ 000
) (4) Operating activities (continued)
A, (BD) Increase/(decrease) in operating liabilities:
FE=AH DL B2 aRAT & Deposits from banks and other financial institutions
A <5 R B A7 K 57T maturity beyond three months 6,080,482 (11,539,885)
HFEAAR Deposits from customers 39,507,492 37,032,587
BB TG Certificates of deposit issued (6,616,639) 970,730
B LA B E AR R Debt securities in issue designated
M2 B #1752 at fair value through profit or loss 122,068 19,189
HoAth & i Other liabilities 1,454,496 371,402
i 4 T H Derivative financial instruments 522,016 50,197
R 11 7 ST ) Net cash (outflow)/inflow from operating
Z B4 () AR activities before tax (10,693,450) 24,340,748
E A RSB AR Net Hong Kong profits tax paid (334,870) (197,070)
T NBL AT I A Net overseas tax paid (46,401) (7,901)
BB Z B4 (F) WAE  Net cash (outflow)/inflow from operating activities (11,074,721) 24,135,777
BEES) Investing activities
[ 3= =g/l Purchase of an associate (138,138) -
i AT Purchase of intangible assets (32,217) (2,625)
=L/ E & 4] Purchase of property, plant and equipment (33) (50,803) (67,539)
RV E IS TR E /e Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 8,542 57,365
LB A AR s < BB T A5 KA Proceeds from disposal of available-for-sale
financial investments 2,032,530 1,895,582
A H bR ERS S i Dividend income from listed financial assets
SRE A 2 BRI A held for trading (10) 409 -
K H I LT Dividend income from unlisted
SR E 2 B A available-for-sale financial investments (10) 3,391 2,619
BB 2 A WA T RE Net cash inflow from investing activities 1,823,714 1,885,402
il E‘ZE‘ L) Financing activities
E TR MEEIE Issuance of subordinated debts - 2,175,012
ﬁ PR IBOHE RIE B4 T ) e £ Issuance of shares on exercise of warrants (41) 1,526,826 =
§§” (s Share issue expenses (41),(42) (489) -
1% fE R TE A S S Interest paid on subordinated debts (424,241) (348,560)
A 2 B R Dividends paid on ordinary shares (41),(42) (273,077) (616,693)
Fll T ) 2 B AR R Net cash inflow from financing activities 829,019 1,209,759
T S e B 7 Effects of foreign exchange differences 94,616 13,546
Iﬁ%&% [R] B 4 78 H Net (decrease)/increase in cash
Z () /B and cash equivalents (8,327,372) 27,244,484
ﬁ(‘* —H 2Bl %R BI4HE  Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January 52,021,729 24,777,245
WA= —H2Z84% Cash and cash equivalents
e R at 31 December (43) 43,694,357 52,021,729
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The principal activities of the Bank are the provision of banking, financial and
other financial related services. The principal activities of the subsidiaries are
shown in Note 36 to the accounts.

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these
consolidated accounts are set out below. These policies have been consistently
applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated accounts of the Group have been prepared
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) (which include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and
interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”), accounting principles generally accepted in
Hong Kong and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. These accounts
also comply with the applicable disclosures provisions of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited.

The consolidated accounts have been prepared under the historical cost
convention, except for certain buildings modified by the revaluation,
available-for-sale financial assets, financial assets and financial liabilities
held for trading, financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss and derivative financial instruments which have
been measured at fair value.

The preparation of accounts in conformity with HKFRSs requires the
use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires management
to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the Group’s
accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement
or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant
to the consolidated accounts are disclosed in Note 3.

2.2 Impact of new and revised Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards

The Group has adopted the following new and revised HKFRSs for
the first time for the current year’s accounts. Except for in certain
cases, giving rise to new and revised accounting policies and additional
disclosures, the adoption of these new and revised standards and
interpretations has had no material effect on these accounts.

HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures
HK(IFRIC)-Int 8 Scope of HKFRS 2

HKAS 1 Amendment Capital Disclosures
HK(IFRIC)-Int 9 Reassessment of Embedded Derivatives

HK(IFRIC)-Int 10 Interim Financial Reporting
and Impairment
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Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited

B

Impact of new and revised Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (continued)

The principal effects of adopting these new and revised HKFRSs are as
follows:

()

(b)

(©)

(d)

(e)

HKEFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures

This standard requires disclosures that enable users of the
accounts to evaluate the significance of the Group’s financial
instruments and the nature and extent of risks arising from
those financial instruments. The new disclosures are included
throughout the accounts. While there has been no effect on
the financial position or results of operations of the Group,
comparative information has been included/revised where
appropriate.

Amendment to HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements

- Capital Disclosures

This amendment requires the Group to make disclosures that
enable users of the accounts to evaluate the Group’s objectives,
policies and processes for managing capital. These new
disclosures are shown in Note 4.7 and Note 1 of Supplementary
Financial Information to these accounts.

HK(IFRIC)-Int 8 Scope of HKFRS 2

This interpretation requires HKFRS 2 to be applied to any
arrangement in which the Group cannot identify specifically
some or all of the goods or services received, for which equity
instruments are granted or liabilities (based on a value of the
Group’s equity instruments) are incurred by the Group for a
consideration, and which appears to be less than the fair value
of the equity instruments granted or liabilities incurred. As the
Group has not issued any equity instruments to its employee, the
interpretation has had no effect on these accounts.

HK(IFRIC)-Int 9 Reassessment of Embedded Derivatives

This interpretation requires that the date to assess whether an
embedded derivative is required to be separated from the host
contract and accounted for as a derivative is the date that the
Group first becomes a party to the contract, with reassessment
only if there is a change to the contract that significantly modifies
the cash flows. As the Group’s existing policy of accounting for
derivatives complies with the requirements of the interpretation,
the interpretation has had no effect on these accounts.

HK(IFRIC)-Int 10 Interim Financial Reporting and Impairment

The Group has adopted this interpretation as of 1 January 2007,
which requires that an impairment loss recognised in a previous
interim period in respect of goodwill or an investment in either
an equity instrument classified as available-for-sale or a financial
asset carried at cost is not subsequently reversed. As the Group
had no impairment losses previously reversed in respect of such
assets, the interpretation has had no impact on the financial
position or results of operations of the Group.
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2.3 LA E G AR A R0 A v B 25 i o i 1) 2.3 Impact of issued but not yet effective Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards

RRZEIRE R - A E R B F DLT B A The Group has not applied the following new and revised HKFRSs, that
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have been issued but are not yet effective, in these accounts.

HKEFRS 8

HKAS 1 (Revised)
HKAS 23 (Revised)
HK(IFRIC)-Int 11

Operating Segments '

Presentation of Financial Statements’
Borrowing Costs’

HKERS 2 - Group and

Treasury Share Transactions?

HK(IFRIC)-Int 12 Service Concession Arrangements *

HK(IFRIC)-Int 13 Customer Loyalty Programmes?

HK(IFRIC)-Int 14 HKAS 19 - The Limit on a Defined Benefit
Asset, Minimum Funding Requirements

and their Interaction *

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2009
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 March 2007
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2008

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2008

HKEFRS 8, which will replace HKAS 14 Segment Reporting, specifies how
an entity should report information about its operating segments, based
on information about the components of the entity that is available
to the chief operating decision maker for the purposes of allocating
resources to the segments and assessing their performance. The
standard also requires the disclosure of information about the products
and services provided by the segments, the geographical areas in which
the Group operates, and revenue from the Group’s major customers.
The Group expects to adopt HKFRS 8 from 1 January 2009.

The revised HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements was issued
in December 2007. The standard separates owner and non-owner
changes in equity. The statement of changes in equity will include only
details of transactions with owners, with all non-owner changes in
equity presented as a single line. In addition, the standard introduces
the statement of comprehensive income: it presents all items of income
and expense recognised in profit or loss, together with all other items
of recognised income and expense, either in one single statement, or in
two linked statements. The Group is still evaluating whether it will have
one or two statements.

HKAS 23 has been revised to require capitalisation of borrowing costs
when such costs are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of a qualifying asset. As the Group’s current policy for
borrowing costs aligns with the requirements of the revised standard,
the revised standard is unlikely to have any financial impact on the
Group.
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2.3

Impact of issued but not yet effective Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (continued)

HK(IFRIC)-Int 11 requires arrangements whereby an employee is
granted rights to the Group’s equity instruments to be accounted for as
an equity-settled scheme, even if the Group acquires the instruments
from another party, or the shareholders provide the equity instruments
needed. HK(IFRIC)-Int 11 also addresses the accounting for share-
based payment transactions involving two or more entities within
the Group. As the Group currently has no such transactions, the
interpretation is unlikely to have any financial impact on the Group.

HK(IFRIC)-Int 12 requires an operator under public-to-private service
concession arrangements to recognise the consideration received
or receivable in exchange for the construction services as a financial
asset and/or an intangible asset, based on the terms of the contractual
arrangements. HK(IFRIC)-Int 12 also addresses how an operator shall
apply existing HKFRSs to account for the obligations and the rights
arising from service concession arrangements by which a government
or a public sector entity grants a contract for the construction of
infrastructure used to provide public services and/or for the supply of
public services. As the Group currently has no such arrangements, the
interpretation is unlikely to have any financial impact on the Group.

HK(IFRIC)-Int 13 requires that loyalty award credits granted to
customers as part of a sales transaction are accounted for as a separate
component of the sales transaction. The consideration received in the
sales transaction is allocated between the loyalty award credits and the
other components of the sale. The amount allocated to the loyalty award
credit is determined by reference to their fair value and is deferred until
the awards are redeemed or the liability is otherwise extinguished. The
adoption of HK(IFRIC)-Int 13 is unlikely to have a significant impact
on the Group’s results of operations and financial position.

HK(IFRIC)-Int 14 addresses how to assess the limit under HKAS
19 Employee Benefits, on the amount of a refund or a reduction in
future contributions in relation to a defined benefit scheme that can
be recognised as an asset, in particular, when a minimum funding
requirement exists. As the Group currently has no defined benefit
scheme, HK(IFRIC)-Int 14 is not applicable to the Group and therefore
is unlikely to have any financial impact on the Group.

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of the impact
of these new and revised HKFRSs upon initial application. So far, it
has concluded that while the adoption of HKFRS 8 may result in new
or amended disclosures, these new and revised HKFRSs are unlikely
to have a significant impact on the Group’s results of operations and
financial position.
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2.4 Basis of consolidation

The consolidated accounts include the accounts of the Bank and
its subsidiaries and attributable share of results and reserves of its
associates (collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31
December 2007.

(a)

®)

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are those entities in which the Bank, directly or
indirectly, controls the composition of the Board of Directors,
controls more than half of the voting power or holds more than
half of the issued share capital; or over which the Bank has a
contractual right to exercise a dominant influence with respect
to that entity’s financial and operating policies. The results of
subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year are included
in the consolidated income statement from the effective date of
acquisition or up to the effective date of disposal, as appropriate.

All significant intercompany transactions and balances within the
Group are eliminated on consolidation.

The gain or loss on the disposal of a subsidiary represents the
difference between the proceeds of the sale and the Group’s share
of its net assets together with any goodwill or negative goodwill
taken to reserves and which was not previously charged or
recognised in the consolidated income statement.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the Bank’s income
statement to the extent of dividends received and receivable.
The Bank’s investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less any
impairment losses.

Associates

An associate is an entity, not being a subsidiary or a jointly-
controlled entity, in which the Group has a long term interest of
generally not less than 20% of the equity voting rights and over
which it is in a position to exercise significant influence.

The Group’s investments in associates are stated in the
consolidated balance sheet at the Group’s share of net assets
under the equity method of accounting, less any impairment
losses. The Group’s share of the post-acquisition results and
reserves of associates is included in the consolidated income
statement and consolidated reserves, respectively. Unrealised
gains and losses resulting from transactions between the Group
and its associates are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s
investments in the associates, except where unrealised losses
provide evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.
Goodwill arising from the acquisition of associates is included as
part of the Group’s interests in associates.

The results of associates are included in the Bank’s income
statement to the extent of dividends received and receivable. The
Bank’s investments in associates are treated as non-current assets
and are stated at cost less any impairment losses.

For regulatory reporting, the basis of consolidation is set out in
Note 1 of the “Supplementary Financial Information” section.
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2.5

2.6

2.7

Revenue recognition - interest income and expenses

Interest income and expense are recognised in the income statement
for all interest-bearing financial instruments using the effective interest
method.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a financial asset or a financial liability and of allocating the
interest income or interest expense over the relevant period. The
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the financial
instrument or, when appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying
amount of the financial asset or financial liability. When calculating
the effective interest rate, the Group estimates cash flows considering
all contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example,
prepayment options) but does not consider future credit losses. The
calculation includes all fees and points paid or received between parties
to the contract that are an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and all other premiums or discounts.

Once a financial asset or a group of similar financial assets has been
written down as a result of an impairment loss, an interest income is
recognised using the rate of interest used to discount the future cash
flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss.

Revenue recognition — non-interest income

Fee and commission income and expense

Fees and commissions are generally recognised on an accrual basis
when the service has been provided. Commitment fees for loans that
are likely to be drawn down are deferred (together with related direct
costs) and recognised as an adjustment to the effective interest rate on
the loan. Loan syndication fees are recognised as revenue when the
syndication has been completed and the Group retained no part of the
loan package for itself or retained a part at the same effective interest
rate as the other participants. Portfolio and other management advisory
and service fees are recognised based on the applicable service contracts,
usually on a time-apportionate basis.

Net trading income

Net trading income comprises all gains and losses from changes in the
fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities classified as held for
trading. Gains or losses arising from changes in fair value of derivatives
to the extent as described in the accounting policy set out in Note 2.10
are reported as “Net trading income”.

Gains and losses on foreign exchange trading and other transactions are
also reported as “Net trading income” except for those gains and losses
on translation of foreign currencies recognised in foreign exchange
reserve in accordance with the accounting policy set out in Note 2.15.

Financial assets

Financial assets in the scope of HKAS 39 are classified as financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables, held-to-
maturity financial investments and available-for-sale financial assets,
as appropriate. When financial assets are recognised initially, they are
measured at fair value, plus, in the case of investments not at fair value
through profit or loss, directly attributable transaction costs.
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Financial assets (continued)

The Group assesses whether a contract contains an embedded
derivative when the Group first becomes a party to it and assesses
whether an embedded derivative is required to be separated from the
host contract when the analysis shows that the economic characteristics
and risks of the embedded derivative are not closely related to those
of the host contract. Reassessment only occurs if there is a change in
the terms of the contract that significantly modifies the cash flows that
would otherwise be required under the contract.

The Group determines the classification of its financial assets after
initial recognition and, where allowed and appropriate, re-evaluates this
designation at the balance sheet date.

When the fair value of unlisted equity securities cannot be reliably
measured because (i) the variability in the range of reasonable fair value
estimates is significant for that investment or (ii) the probabilities of the
various estimates within the range cannot be reasonably assessed and
used in estimating fair value, such securities are stated at cost less any
impairment losses.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on
the trade date, that is, the date that the Group commits to purchase or
sell the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the period generally
established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

(a)  Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include
financial assets held for trading and financial assets designated
upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.
Financial assets are classified as held for trading if they are
acquired for the purpose of sale in the near term. Derivatives,
including separated embedded derivatives, are also classified as
held for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging
instruments. Gains or losses on these financial assets are
recognised in the income statement. Any dividends or interest
earned on these financial assets are recognised in the income
statement as “Dividend income from financial investments” and
“Interest income” respectively.

Where a contract contains one or more embedded derivatives,
the entire hybrid contract may be designated as a financial asset
at fair value through profit or loss, except where the embedded
derivative does not significantly modify the cash flows or it is
clear that separation of the embedded derivative is prohibited.

Financial assets may be designated upon initial recognition
as at fair value through profit or loss if the following criteria
are met: (i) the designation eliminates or significantly reduces
the inconsistent treatment that would otherwise arise from
measuring the assets or recognising gains or losses on them on a
different basis; (ii) the assets are part of a group of financial assets
which are managed and their performance evaluated on a fair
value basis, in accordance with a documented risk management
strategy; or (iii) the financial asset contains an embedded
derivative that would need to be separately recorded.
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2.7 Financial assets (continued)

(b

(c)

(d)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables, including cash and short-term funds,
placements with and advances to banks and other financial
institutions, trade bills and loans and advances to customers,
banks and other financial institutions, are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. Such assets are subsequently
carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method less
any allowance for impairment. Gains and losses are recognised
in the income statement when the loans and receivables are
derecognised or impaired, as well as through the amortisation
process.

Held-to-maturity financial investments

Non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments and fixed maturity are classified as held-to-maturity
when the Group has the positive intention and ability to
hold to maturity. Held-to-maturity financial investments are
subsequently measured at amortised cost less any allowance for
impairment. Amortised cost is computed as the amount initially
recognised minus principal repayments, plus or minus the
cumulative amortisation using the effective interest method of
any difference between the initially recognised amount and the
maturity amount. This calculation includes all fees and points
paid or received between parties to the contract that are an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and all
other premiums and discounts. Gains and losses are recognised in
the income statement when the investments are derecognised or
impaired, as well as through the amortisation process. Were the
Group to sell or reclassify other than an insignificant amount of
held-to-maturity financial investments, the entire category would
be tainted and reclassified as available-for-sale.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivative financial
assets that are designated as available for sale or are not classified
in any of the other three categories. After initial recognition,
available-for-sale financial assets are measured at fair value, with
gains or losses recognised as a separate component of equity
until the investment is derecognised or until the investment is
determined to be impaired, at which time the cumulative gain
or loss previously reported in equity is included in the income
statement. Interest and dividends earned are reported as interest
income and dividend income, respectively and are recognised in
the income statement as “Net interest income” and “Dividend
income from financial investments”. Losses arising from the
impairment of such investments are recognised in the income
statement as “Impairment losses on available-for-sale financial
investments” and are transferred from the investment revaluation
reserve.
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2.7 Financial assets (continued)

(e)

Derecognition of financial assets
A financial asset is derecognised where:

. the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired;

. the Group retains the rights to receive cash flows from
the asset, but has assumed an obligation to pay them in
full without material delay to a third party under a “pass-
through” arrangement; or

. the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from the asset and either (a) has transferred substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

Where the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from an asset and has neither transferred nor retained substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the
asset, the asset is recognised to the extent of the Group’s continuing
involvement in the asset. Continuing involvement that takes
the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured
at the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the
maximum amount of consideration that the Group could be
required to repay.

Where continuing involvement takes the form of a written and/
or purchased option (including cash-settled option or similar
provision on the transferred asset, the extent of the Group’s
continuing involvement is the amount of the transferred asset,
that the Group may repurchase, except in the case of a written put
option (including a cash-settled option or similar provision) on
an asset measured at fair value, where the extent of the Group’s
continuing involvement is limited to the lower of the fair value of
the transferred asset and the option exercise price.
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2.7

2.8

Financial assets (continued)

(f)  Fair value

The fair values of quoted investments are based on current bid
prices. If the market for a financial asset is not active (and for
unlisted securities), the Group establishes the fair value by using
valuation techniques. These include the use of recent arm’s length
transactions, reference to other instruments that are substantially
the same, a discounted cash flow analysis, and option pricing
models refined to reflect the issuer’s specific circumstances.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is objective
evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired.
Objective evidence of impairment is a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (a “loss event”) and that
loss event (or events) has an impact on the estimated future cash flows
of the financial asset or group of financial assets that can be reliably
estimated.

Objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial assets
is impaired includes observable data that comes to the attention of the
Group about the following loss events:

. significant financial difficulty of the issuer or obligor;

. a breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in interest
or principal payments;

. the Group, for economic or legal reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, granting to the borrower a concession that the
lender would not otherwise consider;

. it becoming probable that the borrower will enter into
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

. the disappearance of an active market for that financial asset
because of financial difficulties;

. deterioration in the value of collateral;
. downgrading below the investment grade level; or
. observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in

the estimated future cash flows from a group of financial assets
since the initial recognition of those assets, although the decrease
cannot yet be identified with the individual financial assets in
the group, including adverse changes in the payment status of
borrowers in the Group; or national or local economic conditions
that correlate with defaults on assets in the Group.
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Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(a)

Assets carried at amortised cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on loans
and receivables or held-to-maturity financial investments carried
at amortised cost has been incurred, the amount of the loss is
measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding
future credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted at
the financial asset’s original effective interest rate. The carrying
amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance
account and the amount of the loss is recognised in the income
statement. Loans and receivables together with any associated
allowance are written off when there is no realistic prospect of
future recovery and all collateral has been realised. If a loan, a
receivable or held-to-maturity financial investment has a variable
interest rate, the discount rate for measuring impairment loss is
the current effective interest rate determined under the contract.
As a practical expedient, the Group may measure impairment on
the basis of an instrument’s fair value using an observable market
price.

The present value of the estimated future cash flows of a
collateralised financial asset less costs for obtaining and selling
the collateral, reflects the cash flows that may result from
foreclosure whether or not the foreclosure is probable.

For the purposes of a collective evaluation of impairment,
financial assets are grouped on the basis of similar credit risk
characteristics (i.e. on the basis of the Group’s grading process
that considers asset type, industry, geographical location,
collateral type, overdue status and other relevant factors). Those
characteristics are relevant to the estimation of future cash flows
from groups of such assets by being indicative of the debtors’
ability to pay all amounts due according to the contractual terms
of the assets being evaluated.
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2.8

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(a)

Assets carried at amortised cost (continued)

Future cash flows in a group of financial assets that are collectively
evaluated for impairment are estimated on the basis of the
contractual cash flows of the assets of the Group and the historical
loss experience for assets with credit risk characteristics similar to
those of the Group. Historical loss experience is adjusted on the
basis of current observable data to reflect the effects of current
conditions that did not affect the period on which the historical
loss experience is based, and to remove the effects of conditions
in the historical period that do not exist currently.

Estimates of changes in future cash flows from groups of assets
should reflect and be directionally consistent with changes in
related observable data from period to period (for example,
changes in unemployment rates, property prices, payment
status, or other factors indicative of changes in the probability of
losses in the Group and their magnitude). The methodology and
assumptions used for estimating future cash flows are reviewed
regularly by the Group to reduce any differences between loss
estimates and actual loss experience.

When a loan is uncollectable, it is written off against the related
allowances for loan impairment. Such loan is written off after all
the necessary procedures have been completed and the amount of
the loss has been determined. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off decrease the amount of allowances for loan
impairment in the income statement.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised (such as
an improvement in the debtor’s credit rating), the previously
recognised impairment loss is reversed by adjusting the allowance
account. The amount of the reversal is recognised in the income
statement to the extent that the carrying value of the assets does
not exceed its amortised cost at the reversal date.
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2.8 Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(b

Assets classified as available-for-sale

In the case of equity investments classified as available-for-
sale, a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of the
security below its cost is considered in determining whether the
asset is impaired. The determination of what is “significant” or
“prolonged” requires judgement. If any such evidence exists for
available-for-sale financial assets, the cumulative loss, measured
as the difference between the acquisition cost and the current fair
value less any impairment loss on that financial asset previously
recognised in the income statement, is removed from equity
and recognised in the income statement. Impairment losses
recognised in the income statement on equity instruments are
not reversed through the income statement. If, in a subsequent
period, the fair value of a debt instrument classified as available-
for-sale increases and the increase can be objectively related to an
event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised in the
income statement, the impairment loss is reversed through the
income statement.

2.9 Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified into two categories: financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss and other financial liabilities. All
financial liabilities are classified at inception and recognised initially at
fair value.

(a)

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

This category has two sub-categories: financial liabilities held for
trading and those designated at fair value through profit or loss at
inception.

Financial liabilities designated as at fair value through profit or loss,
including our own debt securities in issue and deposits received
from customers that are embedded with certain derivatives, are
designated as such at inception. Financial liabilities designated at
fair value through profit or loss are carried at fair value and any
gains and losses from changes in fair value are recognised in the
income statement.

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if it is incurred
principally for the purpose of sale in the short term. Derivatives,
including separated embedded derivatives are also classified as
held for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging
instruments. Any interests charged on these financial liabilities
are included in the income statement under “Interest expense”. It
is carried at fair value and any gains and losses from changes in
fair value are recognised in the income statement.

Where a contract contains one or more embedded derivatives, the
entire hybrid contract may be designated as a financial liability
at fair value through profit or loss, except where the embedded
derivative does not significantly modify the cash flows or it is
clear that separation of the embedded derivative is prohibited.
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2.9 Financial liabilities (continued)

(a)

®)

(c)

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (continued)
A financial liability is designated as fair value through profit or
loss at inception if it meets the following criteria:

. The designation eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency (sometimes
referred to as “an accounting mismatch”) that would otherwise
arise from measuring the financial liability or recognising the
gains and losses on the financial liability on a different bases;

. the liability is part of a group of financial liabilities which are
managed and their performance evaluated on a fair value
basis, in accordance with a documented risk management
strategy; or

. the financial liability contains an embedded derivative that
would need to be separately recorded.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value
net of transaction costs incurred and are subsequently stated
at amortised cost. Any difference between proceeds net of
transaction costs and the redemption value is recognised in the
income statement over the period of the other financial liabilities
using the effective interest method unless the effect of discounting
would be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost. The
related interest expense is recognised within “Interest expense” in
the income statement.

Derecognition of financial liabilities
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the
liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from
the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of
an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange
or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original
liability and a recognition of a new liability, and the difference
between the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the
income statement.
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2.10 Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which
a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured
at their fair value. Fair values are obtained from quoted market prices
in active markets, including recent market transactions, and valuation
techniques, including discounted cash flow models and options pricing
models, as appropriate. All derivatives are carried as assets when fair
value is positive and as liabilities when fair value is negative.

The best evidence of the fair value of a derivative at initial recognition
is the transaction price (i.e. the fair value of the consideration given or
received), unless the fair value of that instrument is better evidenced
by comparison with other observable current market transactions in
the same instrument (i.e. without modification or repackaging) or
based on a valuation technique whose variables include only data from
observable markets. When such evidence exists, the Group recognises
profits on day one.

Certain derivatives embedded in other financial instruments, are
treated as separate derivatives when their economic characteristics
and risks are not closely related to those of the host contract and the
host contract is not carried at fair value through profit or loss. These
embedded derivatives are measured at fair value with changes in fair
value recognised in the income statement unless the Group chooses to
designate the hybrid contracts at fair value through profit or loss.

Derivatives that qualify for hedge accounting

The method of recognising the resulting fair value gain or loss on a
derivative depends on whether the derivative is designated as a hedging
instrument, and if so, the nature of the item being hedged. The Group
designates certain derivatives as either: (i) hedges of the fair value of
recognised assets or liabilities or unrecognised firm commitments
(fair value hedge); or (ii) hedges of highly probable future cash flows
attributable to a recognised asset or liability, or a forecasted transaction
(cash flow hedge). Hedge accounting is used for derivatives designated
in this way provided that certain criteria are met.

The Group documents, at the inception of the transaction, the
relationship between hedging instruments and hedged items, as well
as its risk management objective and strategy for undertaking various
hedge transactions. The Group also documents its assessment, both at
hedge inception and on an ongoing basis, of whether the derivatives
that are used in hedging transactions are highly effective in offsetting
changes in fair values or cash flows of the hedged items.
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2.10 Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting
(continued)

(a)

®)

Fair value hedge

Changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and
qualify as fair value hedges are recorded in the income statement,
together with any changes in the fair value of the hedged asset or
liability that are attributable to the hedged risk.

If a hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting, the
adjustment to the carrying amount of the hedged item for which
the effective interest method is used is amortised to the income
statement over the period to maturity. The adjustment to the
carrying amount of a hedged equity security remains in retained
earnings until the disposal of the equity security.

Cash flow hedge

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives
that are designated and qualify as cash flow hedges is recognised
in equity. The gain or loss relating to the ineffective portion is
recognised immediately in the income statement.

Amounts accumulated in equity are recycled to the income
statement in the periods in which the hedged item will affect
profit or loss (for example, when the forecast sale that is hedged
takes place).

When a hedging instrument expires or is sold, or when a hedge
no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting, any cumulative
gain or loss existing in equity at that time remains in equity and is
recognised when the forecast transaction is ultimately recognised
in the income statement. When a forecast transaction is no longer
expected to occur, the cumulative gain or loss that was reported
in equity is immediately transferred to the income statement.

Derivatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting

Certain derivative instruments do not qualify for hedge accounting.
Changes in the fair value of any derivative instrument that does not
qualify for hedge accounting are recognised immediately in the income
statement.
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Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported
in the balance sheet when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or
realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Sale and Repurchase agreements

Securities sold subject to repurchase agreements (“Repos”) are
reclassified in the accounts as pledged assets when the transferee has
the right by contract or custom to sell or repledge the collateral; the
counterparty liability is included in deposits from banks and other
financial institutions or deposits from customers, as appropriate.
Securities purchased under agreements to resell (“Reverse Repos”)
are recorded as loans and advances to customers, banks or other
financial institutions, as appropriate. The difference between sale and
repurchase prices is treated as an interest and is accrued over the life
of the agreements using the effective interest method. Securities lent to
counterparties are also retained in the accounts.

Securities borrowed are not recognised in the accounts, unless they are
sold to third parties, in which case the purchase and sale are recorded
with the gain or loss included in the trading income. The obligation to
return them is recorded at fair value as a trading liability.

Repossessed assets

Repossessed collateral assets are reported as off-balance sheet items and
are stated at fair value. In the recovery of impaired loans and advances,
the Group may take possession of the collateral assets through court
proceedings or voluntary delivery of possession by the borrowers. In
accordance with the Group’s accounting policy set out in Note 2.8(a),
impairment allowances for impaired loans and advances are maintained
after taking into account the net realisable value of the collateral assets.
On a sale transaction of repossessed assets, the amount received will be
used to offset the loans and advances first until they are fully recovered,
and any remaining amount will be released to the borrowers.

Segment reporting

A business segment is a group of assets and operations engaged in
providing products or services that are subject to risks and returns that
are different from those of the other business segments. A geographical
segment is engaged in providing products or services within a particular
economic environment that are subject to risks and returns that are
different from those of the segments operating in other economic
environments.
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2.15 Foreign currency translation

(a)

(b)

(c)

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the accounts of each of the Group’s entities
are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (the “functional
currency”). The consolidated accounts are presented in Hong
Kong dollars, which is the Bank’s functional and presentation
currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional
currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from
the settlement of such transactions and from the translations
at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in the income
statement, except when deferred in equity as qualifying cash flow
hedges and qualifying net investment hedges.

Translation differences on non-monetary items, such as equity
held at fair value through profit or loss, are reported as part of the
fair value gain or loss. Translation differences on non-monetary
items, such as equities classified as available-for-sale financial
assets, are included in the investment revaluation reserve in
equity.

Group companies

The results and financial positions of all the group entities (none
of which has a functional currency which is the currency of a
hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional currency
different from the presentation currency are translated into the
presentation currency as follows:

. assets and liabilities for each balance sheet presented are
translated at the closing rate at the date of that balance
sheet;

. income and expenses for each income statement are

translated at average exchange rates (unless this average is
not a reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect of
the rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in which case
income and expenses are translated using the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions); and

. all resulting exchange differences are recognised as a
separate component of equity.
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Foreign currency translation (continued)

(c)  Group companies (continued)

On consolidation, the exchange differences arising from the
translation of a net investment in foreign entities, and of
borrowings and other currency instruments designated as
hedges of such investment, are included in a separate component
of equity. When a foreign operation is sold, such exchange
differences are recognised in the income statement as part of the
gain or loss on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of
a foreign entity are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign
entity and translated at the closing rate.

(d)  Consolidated cash flow statement
For the purpose of the consolidated cash flow statement, the cash
flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated into Hong Kong
dollars at the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows.
Frequently recurring cash flows of overseas subsidiaries which
arise throughout the year are translated into Hong Kong dollars
at the weighted average exchange rates for the year.

Property, plant and equipment

Bank premises and properties comprise mainly branches and offices.
Bank premises and properties are shown at fair value, based on
periodic, but at least triennial, valuations by external independent
valuers, less subsequent depreciation. Any accumulated depreciation
at the date of the revaluation is restated proportimately with the
change in the gross carrying amount of the asset so that the carrying
amount of the asset after revaluation equals its revalued amount. All
other items of property, plant and equipment are stated at historical
cost less depreciation and impairment losses. Historical cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.
Cost may also include transfers from equity of any gains or losses on
qualifying cash flow hedges of foreign currency purchases of property,
plant and equipment.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the
Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other
repairs and maintenance are expensed in the income statement during
the financial period in which they are incurred.

Increases in the carrying amount arising on revaluation of bank
premises and properties are credited to other reserves in shareholders’
equity. Decreases that offset previous increases of the same asset are
charged against bank premises revaluation reserves directly in equity;
all other decreases are expensed in the income statement. Each year
the difference between the depreciation amount based on the revalued
carrying amount of the asset expensed in the income statement and the
depreciation amount based on the asset’s original cost is transferred
from the bank premises revaluation reserve to retained earnings.

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited 99



100 o BT RRAT (B AL )
SEF LR

2.16

2.17

Annual Report 2007

3 T el ()

Y26 TS < ST SR ELARAR S - DU
ST 22 47 I e A B A e R A
TR 4 2 TR BR A (E

AT E TAMSE B AE 1 3 2 T BR AR 5 42401
UES I 4R - DA
HEWEEE  RHEERE 2 EEEMEE

DA e
&AL Bt % -4

TR AR A5 ST I A ol R R BT (R - o P 4 1 B
P Tk AR S AE TR o

ik S0 2 MR T (B A FEA T T i ] 3 - %
B 22 R TR {7 R 9 {0 2 HE T (e < T
(HEMEEF AREE -

W B s At B 2 A T HLO ) = 5
ANy 7 AR AR AR AR R g I B IR R o 7
T e R AT JEE 2 AR i 3R N WIERT 2t B g
AEAT L > 77 8965 T 45 3 T T A LA ) R
T 2 ZE R0 o 7%t 45 FA R I > A B A (i
O3 B (ol 1 Bl B 0 i 43 R AR R LR 5
Tt M) -

Y <EYE S

A USCHR AR A A sl 8147 T
HIAS RS LB A RIAG ) 2 WIS U B 26

Ve AR R IR A AR 2 L A
A LA A 2 o

RIFECETH A 2 LA & BOE Y 2 A
SEF > RIS A LA AN « KCEFAE
TR A 77 AR ©

B A A i A (B4 AR B 22 5 AR ) Tl
W o PR AR - BOE W LA T EAE S
MR o APE(E TOARBRE R T S AR R > 0 i%
AR B 2 M~ A B EOIR UL 2 AT AT 25 B A i
AEETARE o UNUL BRI AT > AR 4 AR
kBT 125 Ui R A 2 T 35 2 9 W (B AR s
P BB e Ui B TR o RS i AR 4R I A (i
W22 B g a2 15 51 4T > 3 i A5k (i
ETRRS o PR LS AUER GG
BOEWIE > BT 5 1 R AR 2 B S A
LA TR o

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited

2.16

2.17

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated using
the straight-line method to allocate cost or revalued amounts to their
residual values over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

Bank premises
and properties

Over the remaining lease period of the land
on which the properties are situated or
50 years, whichever is shorter

Leasehold improvements ~ Over the lease term of the leased premises

or 10 years, whichever is shorter

Furniture and equipment 4 to 10 years

The residual values, useful lives and the depreciation method are

reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each balance sheet date.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable
amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its estimated
recoverable amount, with the amount charged directly to income
statement.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use
or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or retirement recognised in the
income statement in the year the asset is derecognised is the difference
between the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant
asset. On disposal of a revalued asset, the relevant portion of the reserve
realised in respect of previous valuations is transferred to retained
earnings as a movement in reserves.

Investment properties

Property that is held for long-term yields or for capital appreciation or
both, and that is not occupied by the companies in the consolidated
Group, is classified as investment properties.

Investment properties comprise land held under operating leases and
buildings held under finance leases.

Land held under operating leases are classified and accounted for as
an investment property when the rest of the definition of investment
property is met. The operating lease is accounted for as if it were a
finance lease.

Investment properties are measured initially at its cost, including
related transaction costs. After initial recognition, investment
properties are carried at fair value. Fair value is based on active market
prices, adjusted, if necessary, for any difference in the nature, location
or condition of the specific asset. If this information is not available,
the Group uses alternative valuation methods such as recent prices
on less active markets or discounted cash flow projections. These
valuations are performed in accordance with the guidance issued by
the International Valuation Standards Committee. These valuations are
reviewed annually by external valuers. Investment properties that are
being redeveloped for continuing use as investment properties, or for
which the market has become less active, continue to be measured at fair
value.
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Investment properties (continued)

The fair value of investment properties reflects, among other things,
rental income from current leases and assumptions about rental income
from future leases in the light of current market conditions.

The fair value also reflects, on a similar basis, any cash outflows that
could be expected in respect of the properties. Some of those outflows
are recognised as liabilities, including finance lease liabilities in respect
ofland classified as investment properties; others, including contingent
rent payments, are not recognised in the accounts.

Subsequent expenditure is charged to the asset’s carrying amount only
when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the
item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs are expensed in
the income statement during the financial period in which they are
incurred.

Changes in fair values are recognised in the income statement.

If an investment property becomes owner-occupied, it is reclassified
as property, plant and equipment, and its fair value at the date of
reclassification becomes its cost for accounting purposes. Properties
that are being constructed or developed for future use as investment
properties is classified as property, plant and equipment and stated at
cost until construction or development is completed, at which time
they are reclassified and subsequently accounted for as investment
properties.

If an item of property, plant and equipment becomes an investment
property because its use has changed, any difference between the
carrying amount and the fair value of this item at the date of transfer is
recognised in equity as a revaluation of property, plant and equipment
under HKAS 16. However, if a fair value gain reverses a previous
impairment loss, the gain is recognised in the income statement.

Leasehold land and land use rights

Leasehold interest in the land held for own use is accounted for as being
held under an operating lease where the fair value of the interest in any
buildings situated on the leasehold land could be measured separately
from the fair value of the leasehold interest in land at the time the lease
was first entered into by the Group. The interest in leasehold land is
stated at cost less impairment loss in the balance sheet and is amortised
to the income statement on a straight-line basis over the remaining lease
term.

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition over the fair
value of the Group’s share of the net identifiable assets and liabilities
and contingent liabilities assumed of the acquired subsidiaries at the
date of acquisition. Goodwill on acquisition of subsidiaries is included
in intangible assets. Goodwill on acquisition of an associate is included
in “Investments in associates”. The carrying amount of goodwill is
reviewed for impairment annually or more frequently if events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be
impaired. Goodwill is carried at cost less accumulated impairment
losses. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a
subsequent period. Gains and losses on the disposal of an entity include
the carrying amount of goodwill relating to the entity sold.
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Goodwill (continued)

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for the purpose of
impairment testing. Each of those cash-generating units is represented
by a primary reporting business segment.

Intangible assets

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite or
indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over the
useful economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there is an
indication that the intangible asset may be impaired.

The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an intangible
asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at each balance sheet
date.

Gains or losses from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and are recognised in the income statement when
the asset is derecognised.

(a)  Computer software
Acquired computer software licences are capitalised on the basis
of the costs incurred to acquire and bring to use the specific
software. These costs are amortised over their estimated useful
lives of four years.

Costs associated with developing or maintaining computer
software programmes are recognised as an expense as incurred.
Costs that are directly associated with the production of
identifiable and unique software products controlled by the
Group, and that will probably generate economic benefits
exceeding costs beyond one year, are recognised as intangible
assets. Direct costs include the costs of software development
employee and an appropriate portion of relevant overheads.

Computer software development costs recognised as intangible
assets are amortised over their estimated useful lives (not
exceeding four years).

(b)  Trading rights
Trading rights represent eligibility rights with indefinite useful
lives to trade on or through The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited and are tested for impairment annually. Such intangible
assets are not amortised. The useful life is reviewed annually to
determine whether indefinite life assessment continues to be
supportable, and if not, the change in the useful life assessment
from indefinite to infinite is accounted for on a prospective basis.
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Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to amortisation,
but are tested for impairment annually. Assets that are subject to
amortisation are reviewed for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not
be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by
which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell
and value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are
grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable
cash flows (cash-generating units). In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using
a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. An impairment
loss is charged to the income statement in the period in which it
arises, unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case
the impairment loss is accounted for in accordance with the relevant
accounting policy for that revalued asset. A previously recognised
impairment loss of an asset other than goodwill is reversed only if there
has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount of that asset, but not to an amount higher than the carrying
amount that would have been determined (net of any depreciation/
amortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in
prior years. A reversal of such impairment loss is credited to the income
statement in the period in which it arises.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax is
recognised in the income statement, or in equity if it relates to items that
are recognised in the same or a different period directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods are
measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities.

Deferred income tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the balance sheet date between the tax bases
of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated
accounts. However, if the deferred income tax arises from initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit nor loss, it is not accounted for
as deferred income tax. Deferred income tax is determined using tax
rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the
balance sheet date and are expected to apply when the related deferred
income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.
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2.22 PSRt () 2.22 Income tax (continued)
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Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences arising on
investments in subsidiaries and associates, except where the timing
of the reversal of the temporary difference is controlled by the Group
and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

Deferred tax related to fair value re-measurement of available-for-
sale financial investments and cash flow hedges, which are charged or
credited directly to equity, is also credited or charged directly to equity
and is subsequently recognised in the income statement together with
the deferred gain or loss.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each balance
sheet date and is reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred tax asset to be utilised. Conversely, previously unrecognised
deferred tax assets are reassessed at each balance sheet date and are
recognised to the extent that it is probable that sufficient taxable profit
will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax assets to be
utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are
expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the liability
is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally
enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the
same taxation authority.
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2.23 Employee benefits

(a)  Employee leave entitlements
Employee entitlements to annual leave and long service leave are
recognised when they accrue to employees. An accrual is made
for the estimated liability for annual leave and long service leave
as a result of services rendered by employees up to the balance
sheet date.

(b)  Pension obligations

The Group operates a defined contribution retirement scheme
under the Occupational Retirement Schemes Ordinance (the
“ORSO Scheme”) and another defined contribution retirement
scheme under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance
(the “MPF Scheme”) for those employees of the Group who
are eligible and have elected to participate in the schemes. The
Group’s contributions to the ORSO Scheme are made based on
a percentage of the eligible employees’ basic salaries and those
made to the MPF Scheme are made based on a percentage of
the eligible employees’ relevant income as defined in the MPF
Scheme. These contributions are expensed as incurred and are
reduced by contributions forfeited by those employees of the
Group who leave the schemes prior to the contributions vesting
fully. The assets of the schemes are held separately from those of
the Group in independently administered funds.

2.24 Provisions

Provisions for restructuring costs and legal claims are recognised when
(i) the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result
of past events; (ii) it is more likely than not that an outflow of resources
will be required to settle the obligation; and (iii) the amount has been
reliably estimated. Restructuring provisions comprise lease termination
penalties and employee termination payments. Provisions are not
recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that
an outflow will be required in settlement is determined by considering
the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even if the
likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one item included in the
same class of obligations may be small.
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2.25

2.26

2.27

Operating leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of
ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as operating leases.
Payments made under operating leases (net of any incentives received
from the lessor) are expensed in the income statement on a straight-line
basis over the period of the lease. The Group’s interests in leasehold land
and land use rights are also accounted for as operating leases.

Where the Group is a lessor under operating leases, assets leased out are
included in property, plant and equipment in the balance sheet. They
are depreciated over their expected useful lives on a basis consistent
with similar owned property, plant and equipment. Rental income (net
of any incentives given to lessees) is recognised on the straight-line basis
over the lease term.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are initially stated
at cost and subsequently recognised on the straight-line basis over the
lease terms.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purposes of the consolidated cash flow statement, cash and cash
equivalents comprise balances with maturity less than three months
from the date of acquisition, including cash and balances with banks
and other financial institutions, treasury bills, other eligible bills and
certificates of deposit.

Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and
whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain events not wholly within the
Group’s control.

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past
events and whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence
or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly
within the Group’s control, or a present obligation arising from past
events that is not recognised either because an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation
is not probable or the amount of obligation cannot be measured with
sufficient reliability.

Contingent assets are not recognised but are disclosed in the notes to the
accounts when an inflow of economic benefits is probable. When the
inflow is virtually certain, it will be recognised as an asset.

A contingent liability is not recognised as a provision but is disclosed
in the notes to the accounts. When a change in the probability of an
outflow occurs so that outflow is probable, it will then be recognised as
a provision.
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2.28 Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a)

(b)
(c)

(d)

()

®

(g)

the party, directly or indirectly through one or more intermediaries,
(i) controls, is controlled by, or is under common control with,
the Group; (ii) has an interest in the Group that gives it significant
influence over the Group; or (iii) has joint control over the Group;

the party is an associate;
the party is a jointly-controlled entity;

the party is a member of the key management personnel of the
Group or its parent;

the party is a close member of the family of any individual
referred to in (a) or (d);

the party is an entity that is controlled, jointly controlled or
significantly influenced by or for which significant voting power
in such entity resides with, directly or indirectly, any individual
referred to in (d) or (e); or

the party is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of the
employees of the Group, or of any entity that is a related party of
the Group.
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2.29

2.30

Dividends

Final dividends proposed by the directors are classified as a separate
allocation of retained profits within the equity section of the balance
sheet, until they have been approved by the shareholders in a general
meeting. When these dividends have been approved by the shareholders
and declared, they are recognised as a liability.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared, because
the Bank’s memorandum and articles of association grant the directors
the authority to declare interim dividends. Consequently, interim
dividends are recognised immediately as a liability when they are
proposed and declared.

Fiduciary activities

The Group commonly acts as trustees and in other fiduciary capacities
that result in the holding or placing of assets on behalf of individuals,
trusts, retirement benefit plans and other institutions. These assets and
income arising thereon are excluded from these financial statements, as
they are not assets of the Group.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year. Estimates and
judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience
and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to
be reasonable under the circumstances.

(@)

Impairment allowances on loans and advances

The Group reviews its loan portfolios to assess impairment on a
monthly basis. In determining whether an impairment loss should
be recorded in the income statement, the Group makes judgements
as to whether there is any observable data indicating that there is a
measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows from a portfolio
of loans before the decrease can be identified with an individual loan
in that portfolio. This evidence may include observable data indicating
that there has been an adverse change in the payment status of a
group of borrowers, or in the national or local economic conditions
that correlate with defaults on assets in the group of borrowers.
Management uses estimates based on historical loss experience
for assets with credit risk characteristics and objective evidence of
impairment similar to those in the portfolio when scheduling its future
cash flows. The methodology and assumptions used for estimating
both the amount and timing of future cash flows are reviewed regularly
to reduce any differences between loss estimates and actual loss
experience.

Fair value of derivatives

The fair values of financial instruments that are not quoted in active
markets are determined by using various valuation techniques
according to the nature of the financial instruments. These include
third party price quotation, a discounted cash flow and option pricing
models. These models are built by reputable system suppliers and are
widely used in the market. They are reviewed and calibrated by qualified
personnel independent of the area that created them. Valuation outputs
are generated from these systems using the relevant current observable
market parameters and are verified before they are used for financial
reporting purposes.
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Impairment of available-for-sale financial investments

The Group determines that available-for-sale financial investments are
impaired when there has been a significant or prolonged decline in the
fair value below its cost. This determination of what is significant or
prolonged requires judgement. In making this judgement, the Group
evaluates, among other factors, the normal volatility in share prices. In
addition, impairment may be appropriate when there is evidence of a
deterioration in the financial health of the investee, industry and sector
performance, changes in technology, and operating and financing cash
flows.

Held-to-maturity financial investments

The Group follows the guidance of HKAS 39 to classify non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity
as held-to-maturity. This classification requires significant judgement.
In making this judgement, the Group evaluates its intention and ability
to hold such investments to maturity. If the Group fails to keep these
investments to maturity other than for the specific circumstances for
example, selling an insignificant amount close to maturity, it will be
required to reclassify the entire class as available-for-sale financial
investments. The investments would therefore be measured at fair value
and not at amortised cost.

Fair value of bank premises and properties

The fair value of the bank premises and properties is estimated based on
the valuation made by an independent professional valuer on an open
market basis.

Estimated impairment of goodwill

The Group tests annually whether goodwill has suffered any
impairment, in accordance with the accounting policy. The recoverable
amounts of cash-generating units have been determined based on
the value-in-use calculations. These calculations require the use of
estimates of discount rate and long-term growth rate.

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in numerous jurisdictions.
Significant estimates are required in determining the worldwide
provision for income taxes. There are many transactions and
calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain
during the ordinary course of business. The Group recognises liabilities
for anticipated tax audit issues based on estimates of whether additional
taxes will be due. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is
different from the amounts that were initially recorded, such differences
will impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the period in
which such determination is made.
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4.1

Overall risk management

Pursuant to the implementation of Basel II New Accord since January
2007, the Group practices risk management in increasing congruence
with the principles and requirements of the New Accord. The Board
oversight and a top-down approach permeate through the Group’s risk
management structure, product design, processes, policies and internal
control. For its business plan and activities, the Group identifies,
assesses, monitors, controls, reports and reviews the major risks to
ensure capital adequacy and compliance with regulatory guidelines and
the Board’s risk expectation.

Risk management structure and principles

A structure is built, facilitating the Board and senior management
oversight and bottom-up reporting of the evolution of various risk as
the Group implements its business plan. Overall daily risk management
is in the hand of the Risk Management Department (RMD), which
is headed by the Group’s Chief Risk Officer (CRO), with three
sections responsible respectively for credit, market and operational
risks. The RMD and its three risk management sections are, in turn,
answerable to three Functional Committees. The Credit Committee,
the Asset & Liability Committee and the Operational Risk Committee
oversee respectively the Group’s policies, practice and control of the
Group’s credit, market and operational risks. Together with the Legal
& Compliance Department and the Bank’s General Management
Committee, they control the Group’s major risks in conformity with
Basel II Pillar I and II. These three Committees report to the Risk
Management Committee and the Board, with surveillance alongside
by the Internal Audit and Audit Committee in ensuring sufficient risk
monitoring, internal control, corporate governance and regulatory
compliance.

The Risk Management Committee, which meets once every three
months, is chaired by the Group’s Chief Risk Officer (CRO) and
participated by two Directors, including an independent non-executive
Director. Other members of this Committee are the Group’s Chief
Financial Officer (CFO), Chief Operation Officer (COO), Head
of IT, Head of Credit and delegates from Business Lines and Risk
Management Department.

Ultimately, the Risk Management Committee is to ensure no excessive
risk beyond regulatory and Board stipulation. If, however, the excessive
risk does unexpectedly come about, senior management and the Board
must know about it and decide if any rectifying measures are needed.

The Bank’s new product will go through the essential steps of
development process to ensure its commercial viability, ethical
suitability and statutory compliance. Usually there are four
steps in the process namely (i) Evaluation, (ii) Development (iii)
Commercialization and (iv) Launch.

A product proposal consists of sections of product introduction, risk
assessment, business plan, and tentative launch date should be prepared
for the approval of New Product & Business Committee or its delegated
authority before launch. The Committee comprises members from
business, operations, IT, finance, risk, audit and compliance to ensure
the new product is developed and launched under the surveillance of
various functions.
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Risk management structure and principles (continued)

B TR AT () AT R A A

4.1

)

el | B PR (40)
JE R EPEAERE R A (

4.1

syodie],

ANUIANY PUE 150D JO JuaWIYSI[dW0d0y
oouerdwop) yrury [eyde)) pue ysny
Bunioday pue [oxuo) eurdu] SuLIONUOIN
UIIINSEI “UONRIYIUIP] NS

[PA9T 2UIT JUOL]

pue [onuo) [eurdju] ‘vonerndo

Sunsag, ssang pue Sunsappeq

uonepIfeA [PpoN Surpnpur suerduor)
pue saanentuy [ [aseq ‘(Quauntedaq
souerdwoy pue [e8a7 pue (A 1dax2)
1201 SR JoryD 03 Sunrodar 1) Sunioday
pue [onuo)) ‘Surio)ruoA sny ATrecq

12497 310ddng

s)10doa1 [T [aseq pue ysi ‘rejrides Sunnpoxd
(aAT) yuaunreda (T JuswaSeue y [eIoURUL]
pue (qAY) Jusunreda( JuswaSeuey

STy f9omdeIg pue A31[0 Justuaeury Ysry
Jo udtsap pue Surroyruowr oty ut uonedonred
2010 org F[PPIAN YUOI] [247T YSIH
saaNIIITO)) JuswaSeuey

sourdwo) [T pue IT ‘T Ie[[Id 10F

Sur122)g [T [oseg Aoenbapy [eyden Suruuelq
Tende) Burrojuoly sy ineddy sy
$9IPIWUO)) pIeog

uoneoyoadg
uoneadxy Surureq 9ySis1aAQ 11 [2seg
suonedof[y [eide) ouruIason) aerodon
‘ssaud[qeuosey pue Aiqeray AyiSayug sjr 10y
Tonuoy feurdu] Jo 1ySisIaaQ maddy ysry
SI0122I1(T JO preog

a[oyq

InynIg yudawaeuey

i Y WO
~ EFE R T B e 7
ol S HAL - B

Al REZE D 7

R O Rk L 2~ EEE Y
P < [f) T i S O B )
© bl sB R0 5 A SPT A Blsh i 5 50K
Vi SR« Y W ] g B
1) T W A A A

(CHND) fy st e 5, S 27 ()

i S i 5 B 5 Y W
TR T bl
S [l ek 2 MH O 2 ()
o 3R SN Y S %
BEZHE

/]

W= WM YU
RO L) T UN T - B
Y Y - 3H
BHZHEE

MBI TS - HH
L WYY BEFED
MM T O W R [

DCH B (32
BEE
3

e 5

o

|5 8f 0y 2ouepm <« - - -

W o Suntodoy  ——

*039 YSLI 9JBI }SAI)UT NSLI :ozﬁsmmu
ystr aduerduwos pue eSay st Ayrpmbry Surpnpour ‘sysix jo sad4y [re Surroyuowr aq M,

0 0 W e [ 0 W SO R S T SN S TR

$IDIJO U0 J& [OIIU0D
[RUIUT JO ISTOIIXD
+ 1201 uonerdQ
Jo1yD + syusunredaq
21 Yoeg pue yroddng

B LYWL i I S

+ IR B+ bl
bl S -

v

juaunaedaq
ouerdwoy pue [eSo o
MO R -
INY Jo uondag
sty euoneradp

SO B 7AYo

v

(2anrurwoy) sampadorq pue £1og
@anrurwoy) Sutapune| ASUON-nUY

Qa))1WWo)) SSauISng PUE 19npo1g MaN)

(BHZHEWWW - BHEWHWRY

B EZHEN W)

2910y Ysny [euoneradQ

BHZY G

-
1
1
sy reuonerado

BV Tk

y1oddns Sunzodar pue waysAs Surpraord

juaunreda(g ASojouyda ], wonEULIOJU] PUE SWA)SAS

IAY JO UON23G SR
ey pue yusuneda(q
s1oyIe[y 3 Amseary,

Sl £
g L AN i 3

(rsrg Anpmbr) AN

(20154 (W) QN

N JO UONDS SR 11BN
SR S g 1 Z QN

v

001V
BHZHAN IR

A
1
1
ST 1T

st
_

i sk 3 3 S WE A 2
I MR I .

Juaunedsq uonensuTWpy

pue sisA[euy 31pa1D

PUE SaUT'T SSIUISNE JUBAI[DX

snorrea woyj s1oaoxddy
pue sisA[euy JIpa1D)
+ Omx:mﬂ_u.:mugvuao .
Y
HEULLT Y Z i
5,77 A X BB Ll
MBS+ Y EEETE o

1242 JULT JUOL] pUv
043100 pusdIU] ‘UoyvIadQ)

IRBB A TSN - T
A
"
1

N Jo uondds o104

pue [01U0D) JIPAID
SRR A ) 2 N
12427 340ddng

HE

22)31WUWIOY) JIPAID)

BHZHY

A
1
1
SSRI HPOID)

L)

99)JIWIUIOY) JUIUIDTRURTA] [2ISUIK) /,091[UUUIOY) JUIUIDTRURIA] YSRT

BHZH W B HZH S

L((anruwro) 1pny pue yipny reuraiuy 4q parroddns pue pajsisse) $1019211(T JO preog

(AW MYBEZAEN BEZARNNMY) BEH

NS Judsuadeury [eIaur) SUTSIXY YIIM UONBISIIU PUE YIOMIWEL] JUdwaSeurAl Ysry

O Tk Al Y — e R e

IS



112 hBTREHRAT (Ed) A AT

ZEZALAFH W Annual Report 2007

4.2

o BB

{5 BB 2y R % 5 ek e AT LB 2 B s AT
T 28 AR 2 AR SR L « 7 41 [l B2 2 7 1 £
JEUBSE B A0 R AL T i > BELAR A [ 2 A B
TR AEVERRLIE o ASSE [ 2 5 SLHRRE T th DA 2%
R4 L -

(@) fEEAHTER > WAL R - AR
W] ~ A5 BEREAR SRR IE R — R B
A ) o BT R SRAT RO 2 R ER (S BUAR
J§ (G461 Bl A sk R Rt IR 2 5080
EDRAEER K

(b) fREEBIR QAL R A P (5
A ~ KA B 2 2 SO B A 4R U A
Z I IEAT -

(o) AH BT fnaf AT b 4R R AR B -
AT 2 KRR AN B R TR B A B K
(NPL) B LA L il ~ 263~ AEwT E
it 5 BEEUR o BLBKRETR M IR AR M5 B dsT
ot Rt A T SR 1 A2 [ S R
e -

15 EEMk AR th H B S A T A BUR
L HESETS I AR 1) T8 R 2 B AR AR (TR A AR
AR 2 R B A ) TR o i 6 AR R P R A JELBY
IR > b BRAR  ERAE o

B /N 5 B DR K o £ TR B o 2 i AR
N B R A B A5 BT AR B E 2 A
Jr A A B R — o S RE R R - 5 B
REAR B AT RE B A% £ AT - B W AR R
ZA G AR E g RIR A SRR 2
IR St e AUEST - FRRIERRA TR
FERTAR ~ 224 ~ AR T g TR I O Jo £ il
FHIN 2 HERE

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited

4.2 Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of loss arising from a customer’s inability to
honour its financial obligations as and when they fall due. The Group
adopts the Standardised Approach for Basel II credit risk purpose,
which is apposite to the Group’s scale and complexity of operation. The
Group’s credit function is made up of:

(a)  Credit analysis, where credit risks are assessed, credit compliance
is checked, credit rating and the next credit review date are
recommended/decided. All revolving credit lines for non-bank
entities other than loans fully collaterised by cash deposit are
subject to review at least once yearly.

(b)  Credit administration, where the Group ensures that all required
credit conditions, collateral and security documentation have
been properly fulfilled before loan drawdown.

(c) Credit control, where post-approval compliance review is
performed, overdue and excess control is enforced, non-
performing loan (NPL) borrowers are analysed, and, credit
policies are designed, reviewed, revised and put into practice.
This function also prepares credit statistical reports and
participates in Basel II credit data collection for compliance
purpose.

The credit function is independently managed by its head who has few
direct business contact and who reports to the Deputy General Manager
(DGM) in charge of risk and also to the Group’s CRO. The credit
control unit belongs to the RMD, headed directly by the CRO.

Except for small amount consumer and machine loans for which credit
scoring or approval parameters are pre-set by senior management of
the credit function, the handling of all other loans always entails the
credit function. The credit function intervenes either by performing
compliance checking, or, much more often, in the form of final credit
approval according to the credit authority delegated by the Board on the
basis of the Credit Committee’s reccommendation. The credit authority
delegation is a function of credit rating, security, weighted risk amount
and the type of credit facility in question.
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Credit risk (continued)

The Credit Committee sets credit policies and approves all large size
credit applications. Credit policies generally require further approval by
the Board, while Chief Executive Officer (CEO) has to endorse credit
applications which are above a certain weighted risk amount, but only
after they have been approved by the Credit Committee, chaired by the
Head of Credit. The Credit Committee includes the heads of business
lines, and the DGM in charge of risk. The concurrence of the credit
function shall be mandatory to any approval that is required from the
Credit Committee.

The credit function has the final decision in credit rating, including
the downgrading of individual customer to NPL grade or to special
mention grade according to the Group’s credit manual or the relevant
HKMA supervisory policy guidelines.

The credit function, the Special Assets Department and the DGM in
charge of risk have a role to play in the determination of the Group’s
individual and collective impairment according to its internal model
derivation in line with HKAS 39 specifications.

A property valuation and revaluation policy agreed by the Board is
strictly adhered to. The Group resorts to a list of approved external
surveyors for such valuation exercises.

It is a concrete part of the Group’s policy to diversify its credit risk, for
which geographical country risk limit, industry sector limit, non-bank
counterparty cluster limit and lending product limits are set by the
Board. The credit function or the Credit Committee favours secured
risk and generally respects a policy which caps the unsecured credit
risk exposure to non-bank counterparties according to their respective
credit rating and scale of business operation.

The Group takes on exposure to credit risk, which is the risk that a
counterparty will cause a financial loss for the Group by failing to
discharge an obligation. Credit exposures arise principally from loans
and advances and debt securities in the Group’s asset portfolio. There
is also credit risk arising from off-balance sheet financial arrangement

such as loan commitments.
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4.2 %EELFXAX (47) 4.2 Credit risk (continued)
(a)  FFEA P B 5 B bl T2 AR (a) Maximum exposure to credit risk before collateral held or
K17 B other credit enhancements
ARSEH AT
Group Bank
“ERLE ZEREN “ER LA ZERETNE
2007 2006 2007 2006
T Tk THL Tk
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
HEEAMENZ Credit risk exposures relating to
£ Se BB on-balance sheet assets are as follows:
B4 RAESRAT B A Cash and balances with banks and
SRR S5 other financial institutions 43,666,354 45,495,112 43,160,520 44,926,368
Gy EN AT T ve Placements with and advances to banks
TR and other financial institutions 1,005,234 5,015,135 1,620,813 5,779,578
FHEZ A i Mg R Financial assets held for trading 54,256 56,468 54,256 56,468
78 A TEE S % Financial assets designated at
AIRZ R fair value through profit or loss 1,754,742 1,704,349 1,754,742 1,704,349
fESM LA Derivative financial instruments 1,213,738 713,202 1,226,446 713,202
KF - 471 KA Loans and advances to customers, bank
SREEZER and other financial institutions 121,703,671 75,647,756 114,877,082 74,651,076
ks SRR E Available-for-sale financial investments 15,326,911 11,052,318 15,326,248 11,051,609
A ZEHE RS Held-to-maturity financial investments 3,313,817 4,132,972 3,313,817 4,132,972
HME A RN Credit risk exposures relating to off-
£ Se ML B balance sheet items are as follows:
BHORE KU B Bk Loan commitments and other credit
related commitments 90,836,109 49,038,494 89,765,349 48,961,972
PR IR B A5 SR B A B B Financial guarantees and other credit
related contingent liabilities 6,573,592 4,661,635 6,530,247 4,561,635

REHH At balance sheet date 285,448,424 197,517,441 277,629,520 196,539,229
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4.2 %EELFXAX (47) 4.2 Credit risk (continued)
b) [FEEZF (b)  Credit quality
2 4% Gross loans and advances
. e 0 S N e S A . (i)  Distribution of gross loans and advances by credit quality
@ %{” SUR AP RLZ ST Bl are summarised as follows:
ARG X
Group Bank
“RRLAE RN “RRLE ZERENE
2007 2006 2007 2006
Ti#x T Ti#n Tt
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
KF 2 B Gross loans and advances to customers:
B 175 ol (B Neither past due nor impaired 99,331,362 73,491,511 92,578,451 72,483,476
CaE R Past due but not impaired 808,227 1,355,796 808,227 1,355,796
B Impaired 646,603 898,389 646,603 898,389
A5t Total 100,786,192 75,745,696 94,033,281 74,737,661
AL AHT
Group Bank
“ERLE e <9 SRR “EER
2007 2006 2007 2006
T T Ti#x Tk
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
SRAT R A4 R A Gross loans and advances to banks
ZERAE and other financial institutions:
WA S 75 A ol (L Neither past due nor impaired 20,641,536 = 20,588,784 =
Ca A A Past due but not impaired - = - -
BAC:) Impaired - - - -
A5t Total 20,641,536 - 20,588,784 -
M FEENET+_A=+—H > if There was no outstanding balance of loans and advances
AT ] S 5 2 SRAT S HoAth & to banks and other financial institutions as at 31 December
W2 EREEAT o 2006.
(1) REARIEIAIR R E 2 S B (i)  Distribution of gross loans and advances that were neither
past due nor impaired
A G H B IR 3 B T R e (E 2 Bk The credit quality of the portfolio of loans and advances
IO 7 (5 A8VE 2] 2 IR A A ) i b7 that were neither past due nor impaired at the balance sheet
4 NERETAR & ﬁiﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁi . dates can be assessed by reference to the internal rating
system adopted by the Group.
AL X T
Group Bank
R B “RRLE e SN2 SRR “ETNE
PR LR 2007 2006 2007 2006
ERR Internal S&P’s T T T T
Credit rating rating Equivalent HK$'000 HK$000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
R Pass Grade AZE AE AAAEBBB- AAA to BBB- 38,227,539 12,201,561 37,961,197 12,201,561
FZH FH BB+%BB  BB+toBB 59,275,277 42,526,596 55,345,444 41,558,224
1] 1 BB-ZB+  BB-toB+ 14,020,010 17,394,092 11,410,522 17,354,429
B Special Mention KEL KL BZCCC-  BtoCCC- 8,450,072 1,369,262 8,450,072 1,369,262
At Total 119,972,898 73,491,511 113,167,235 72,483,476
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4.2  Credit risk (continued)

)

Credit quality (continued)
Gross loans and advances (continued)

(ii)

Distribution of gross loans and advances that were neither
past due nor impaired (continued)

The various internal and external rating criteria and
calibration are mapped back to one single internal credit
rating scale for statistical and regulatory purposes. The
Standard & Poor’s (S&P) ratings are based on mapping the
individual probability of default of each internal grade with
that of the Standard & Poor’s ratings.

The credit function and the Credit Committee decide
an individual borrower’s credit rating. Credit rating is
a function of quantitative and management attributes.
Economic outlook, account conduct and industry risk are
also the considering factors. The Group has different rating
scales for large corporates and small to medium enterprises
(SMESs). The external rating of S&P, Moodys and Fitch will
be adopted, if available.

The following table gives a distribution of the Group’s total
loans and advances by credit rating. The Group calibrates
its borrowing customers into Grade A - Grade O and
works out their respective weighted average probability of
default (PD) and loss given default (LGD) since 2005.

Pass Grades A to H &
I to ]

Special Mention Grades K to IL,

Non-Performing M to (0]

Loan (NPL) Grade

Grades A - J: Loans where borrowers are currently in
meeting commitment, and full repayment of interest and
principal is not in doubt. There are 10 grades within the
performing categories from A to J.

Grades K - L: All pass grade accounts which have overdue
loans for a period exceeding one month are subject to being
downgraded to the special mention rating or below, unless
with strong justification irrespective of the internal ratings.
Borrowers exhibiting one or more of the characteristics per
the HKMA'’s special mention or non-performing grades
definition will also be subjected to downgrading to special
mention or below as decided by the Credits Department.
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4.2 %EELFXAX (47) 4.2 Credit risk (continued)
(b) FHEZE (4) (b)  Credit quality (continued)
AR () Gross loans and advances (continued)
(i) B HHE R S 2 S AAAE (iii) Gross loans and advances which were past due but not
impaired
LR 4381 5 7 i 45 8 B #0259 48 The analysis below shows the gross loans and advances to
RIB(HZ KT~ $R-AT S H At 4 Tl i customers, banks and other financial institutions that were
W2 SR AR past due but not impaired at the balance sheet date:
AL ARG
Group Bank
“RERLE BTN it 2 2 3 BTN
2007 2006 2007 2006
T#x THsIC T#x T
HKS$’000 HK$000 HK$’000 HK$ 000
LA A 30 H Past due up to 30 days 717,548 1,192,483 717,548 1,192,483
i 31-60 H Past due 31-60 days 72,717 135,841 72,717 135,841
it 61-90 H Past due 61-90 days 12,530 15,849 12,530 15,849
oo H LAk Past due over 90 days 5,432 11,623 5,432 11,623
st Total 808,227 1,355,796 808,227 1,355,796
HEA i 2 AP E Fair value of collateral 624,871 916,112 624,871 916,112

RS (€K P RN (e 22 5 s B Other than gross loans and advances, no financial assets
FEN ﬁz ZHEHEHR ﬂf 4111:&' ] <3 il were past due but not impaired at the balance sheet dates in
B 2 A R H o 2007 and 2006.
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4.2  Credit risk (continued)

)

Credit quality (continued)
Gross loans and advances (continued)

(iv)

)

Loans and advances individually impaired (continued)

The Group has a policy of downgrading customers to the
NPL grade when overdue is longer than 90 days. Very
seldom would outstandings for over 120 days be retained in
the pass grade instead of the impaired. Impaired accounts
are typically transferred to management by the Special
Assets Department, so that the prospect and means of
recovery can be more independently evaluated, decided
and implemented. The Special Assets Department may
not take any immediate recovery action or even in help in
circumstances where the customer in question is deemed
to be able to be rehabilitated and the collateral is important
to the customer’s continued business operation. The Group
may at times join or seek agreement with other creditor
banks to stand still in concert. Otherwise, the Group will
take appropriate measures to preserve the customer’s
assets, to maximise recovery and to realise property
collaterals in a timely manner either by private sale or by
public auction at prices that are in acceptable proximity
with the average of several external valuations.

The Group adopts an objective individual impairment
policy in compliance with the HKAS39 requirements.
Impairment requirement, if any, can always be traceable
back to reasonably expected discounted repayment cash
flow and/or the assessed net realisable value of collateral.

Renegotiated loans that would otherwise be past due or
impaired

Restructuring activities include extended payment
arrangements, approved external management plans,
modification and deferral of payments. Following
restructuring, a previously overdue customer account is
reset to a normal status and managed together with other
similar accounts. Restructuring policies and practices are
based on indicators or criteria which, in the judgment
of management, indicate that payment will most likely
continue. These policies are kept under continuous
review. Restructuring is most commonly applied to term
loans, in particular customer finance loans. Renegotiated
loans that would otherwise be past due or impaired
totalled HK$2,333,013 as at 31 December 2007 (2006:
HK$266,002,823).
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4.2 %EELFXAX (47) 4.2 Credit risk (continued)

(b) FHEZE (4) (b)  Credit quality (continued)
R B AR 7 I Debt and equity securities

T AR AR E B 7y 2 S f TR Financial investments by rating agency designation
NRIRA T H = B R A s
RE B> 2 A BT o TOARYR B A
ZRPRRERAN S A E RS 1 2 4 BB
AT o ERAZFETHRZHEIT - &
A B BT N R A 2 WP AR SE AR

The table below presents an analysis of financial investments by
rating agency designation at 31 December, based on Standard &
Poor’s ratings or their equivalent to the respective categories of
financial investments. In the absence of such issue ratings, the
rating scale adopted by the issuers are used.

FHERW

/W i %

Ru¥ R APRE HER% Held-to-
Trading Designated Available-for-sale maturity 5t
assets at fair value investments investments Total
M Group T T T T Ti#x
e & S8 2007 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
AAA AAA - - 432,060 - 432,060
AA-FAA+ AA-to AA+ 14,553 303,416 2,824,413 2,266,860 5,409,242
A-EA+ A-toA+ 39,703 522,790 6,159,406 965,314 7,687,213
T A- Lower than A- - 928,536 5,312,941 81,643 6,323,120
At Unrated - - 598,091 - 598,091
At Total 54,256 1,754,742 15,326,911 3,313,817 20,449,726

HHEZEI

f&E itk %

hEE AVEE HERE Held-to-
Trading Designated ~ Available-for-sale maturity gt
assets at fair value investments investments Total
HEE Group T T T T T
ZERENE 2006 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
AAA AAA = = 252,060 = 252,060
AA-FEAA+ AA-t0 AA+ 13,868 197,231 1,736,948 2,167,084 4115131
A-EA+ A-toA+ = 504,936 5,750,898 1,702,083 7,957,917
&5 A- Lower than A- 4,600 1,002,182 2,829,026 263,805 4,137,613
il Unrated = = 483,386 = 483,386
At Total 56,468 1,704,349 11,052,318 4132972 16,946,107
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42 fE&mEEE ) 4.2 Credit risk (continued)
(b) FHEZE (4) (b)  Credit quality (continued)
& 55 AR 5 (%) Debt and equity securities (continued)

YL

)| fhik ¥

Ry B AT g Held-to-
Trading Designated Available-for-sale maturity it
assets at fair value investments investments Total
AP Bank Tk Tk Tk Tk Tk
i & S5 2007 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
AAA AAA - - 432,060 - 432,060
AA-E AA+ AA-to AA+ 14,553 303,416 2,824,413 2,266,860 5,409,242
A-ZA+ A-to A+ 39,703 522,790 6,159,406 965,314 7,687,213
&R A- Lower than A- - 928,536 5,312,941 81,643 6,323,120
Kt Unrated - - 597,428 - 597,428
a5t Total 54,256 1,754,742 15,326,248 3,313,817 20,449,063

REERM

fiEL) it #®E

h B ATEE WERE Held-to-
Trading Designated ~ Available-for-sale maturity gt
assets at fair value investments investments Total
HET Bank T T Tl T T
ZEENGF 2006 HK$000 HK$000 HKS$000 HKS$000 HKS$000
AAA AAA - - 252,060 - 252,060
AA-Z AA+ AA-to AA+ 13,868 197,231 1,736,948 2,167,084 4,115,131
A-ZA+ A-to A+ - 504,936 5,750,898 1,702,083 7,957,917
{5 A- Lower than A- 42,600 1,002,182 2,829,026 263,805 4,137,613
it Unrated = = 482,677 = 482,677

At Total 56,468 1,704,349 11,051,609 4,132,972 16,945,398
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4.2  Credit risk (continued)

)

(c)

(d)

Credit quality (continued)
Debt and equity securities (continued)

Investment portfolio

As at 31 December 2007, the bank’s debt securities portfolio
amounted to HK$16.01 billion, with a 18.15% increase over
the HK$13.55 billion in 2006. HK$2.53 billion or 15.79% of
total bond portfolio will mature in 2008. The majority of total
bond portfolio are denominated in US$ and HK$ whereas the
rest are in other currencies, such as €, AUS$ and ¥. In term of
booking, over 90% of the outstanding exposures are kept in the
available-for-sale and fair value book category. The quality of
these debt securities portfolios is still very good. Over 90% of total
portfolio falls within the investment grade category. The Bank’s
debt securities portfolio operates under a strict and prudent
risk management framework and is in compliance with all pre-
determined internal investment guidelines, which are reviewed
and approved by the Board of Directors annually. It is noteworthy
that the bank has no exposure to collateralised debt obligations
(CDO) and U.S. subprime mortgages but has some exposures to
structured-investment vehicles (SIV). The Bank took HK$234
million or 75% write-downs for SIV investment in the fourth
quarter of 2007 and ended the year with HK$78 million of SIV
exposure remaining after impairment. The Bank will continue
its diversification policy and quality policy in its debt securities
investment.

Derivatives

The Group maintains strict control limits on open derivative
positions. At any one time, the amount subject to credit risk is
limited to the current fair value of instruments that are favourable
to the Group (i.e. assets where their fair values are positive),
which is only a small fraction of the contracts in relation to
derivatives, or is limited to the notional values used to express the
volume of instruments outstanding. This credit risk exposure is
managed as part of the overall lending limits with counterparties
on nominal amounts. Collateral or other security is not usually
obtained for credit risk exposures on these instruments, except
where the Group requires margin deposits from counterparties.

Master netting arrangements

The Group further restricts its exposure to credit losses by
entering into master netting arrangements with counterparties
with which it undertakes a significant volume of transactions.
Master netting arrangements do not generally result in an
offsetting of balance sheet assets and liabilities, as transactions are
usually settled on a gross basis. However, the credit risk is reduced
by a master netting arrangement to the extent that if an event of
default occurs, all amounts with the counterparty are terminated
and settled on a net basis.
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4.2  Credit risk (continued)

(e)

Credit-related commitments

The primary purpose of these instruments is to ensure that funds
are available to a customer to settle his obligations as required.
Guarantees and standby letters of credit which represent
irrevocable assurances that the Group will make payments in the
event that a customer cannot meet its obligations to third parties
carry the same credit risk as loans. Documentary and commercial
letters of credit which are written undertakings by the Group
on behalf of a customer authorising a third party to draw drafts
on the Group up to a stipulated amount under specific terms
and conditions are collateralised by the underlying shipments
of goods to which they relate and therefore carry less risk than a
direct lending.

Commitments to extend credit represent unused portions of
authorisations to extend credit in the form of loans, guarantees
or letters of credit. With respect to credit risk on commitments
to extend credit, the Group is potentially exposed to loss in
an amount equal to the total unused commitments. However,
even the worst scenario, loss is likely to be less than the total
unused commitments, as most commitments to extend credit
are contingent upon customers maintaining specific credit
standards. The Group monitors the term to maturity of credit
commitments because longer-term commitments generally have
a greater degree of credit risk than shorter-term commitments.

Collateral and other credit enhancements

The Group holds collateral against loans and advances to
customers in the forms of mortgages over property, other
registered securities over assets, cash deposits and guarantees.
Collateral generally is not held over loans and advances to banks,
except when securities are held as part of the reverse repurchase
and securities borrowing activity. Collaterals held as security for
financial assets other than loans and advances is determined by
the nature of the instrument.
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4.2 %EELFXAX (47) 4.2 Credit risk (continued)
(8) 1 EIE ST Wt (g¢)  Credit risk stress test
R A s < Rl B ) B BIOR AR 5] > ARBE In accordance with the HKMA supervisory policy guidelines,
9 S A S O ~ i o e T e B 1 the Group runs counterparty credit risk stress test periodically
Z Al REfs BB T - B 5 TS in estimation of the probable credit loss in a mild, moderate
LB R T B o ASE AR R TR and severe crisis scenario. The Group performs credit risk
28 TR DU AR 2 A 4 P A A ] (4 stress test on the basis of the empirical data during the Asian
TRR ARV LIE) N Z AR BT financial crisis spanning 2000 and 2004, including the 2003 SARS
15 SR RE T T o B B 2% B o A ) epidemic. The Risk Management Committee reviews the stress
JESTHIGE ~ FR FBARAE [ E A test, its parameters and its impact on the Group’s regulatory
FER AL o RS LT - IR IR CAR. Contingent measures will be devised to control possible
I il A P22 ) AT RE AR S AR adversities, if deemed necessary.
T ARt A A ) . g A B A B The following table summarises the result of the Group’s latest
B JRE g R S R credit risk stress tests for counterparties.
31/12/2007 31/12/2006
ZRBLAE TR
fE BBt Crisis scenario +=A=+—H +=ZA=+—H
D AR H R (B EH ) Mild NPL (HK$'m) 4,242 3,461
AT (%) NPL ratio (%) 4.22% 4.20%
TEE SRS (H##IT) Expected credit loss (HK$'m) 551 533
T A A H R (B ETT) Moderate NPL (HK$'m) 4,876 4,038
B KL (%) NPL ratio (%) 4.85% 4.90%
TEHIME S48k (A B on) Expected credit loss (HK$'m) 766 742
Jif T AEA K (H #T) Severe NPL (HK$'m) 5,450 4,615
AT EEFIEE 2 (%) NPL ratio (%) 5.47% 5.60%
TEWIE 8% (H B#o) Expected credit loss (HK$'m) 1,020 989

B b s SRt A A i F R B
HEAT 7 B i 2 T o i i B R E AT
A B o A R S EOR (B () A% T
DA A ~ wfa ~ AR - R A b g
A T8 R 46% 1) Sy REE SR A UA )
A SRR A

All the above credit risk reports are reviewed monthly by
the Credit Committee or quarterly by the Risk Management
Committee. Warning signals or policy deviations, if any, will be
investigated, discussed, rectified or dealt with, and, if necessary,
be reported to the Board in due course for information,
instruction or approval.
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(a) AR E PSS
A B T 5 AR BOR o JEL
M B2 B & ([RMC) BN A4 # A
5 ) % A 2B T 3 R\ B T B > 1 B 2 g
A7 17 35 JEL R B o AT O ol 7 B
BEEMZEEE ([ALCO)) B &E > Iktih> A
T E IR H H T 5 R B T B DA % 2 B
M RFERRE - ALCOMMAMREHZ
& (TRMCJ) [f) # 25 € RE A< 48 [ 2 1l 35
JER A BLELR ~ FRF R R B2 T K
K o

T a2 H A B - B ek
T PO P AR A e o 2 J i B
55 IHEAT o BEERRZAE AR HEHE R A 2 4 1
DL b JERBg 3 48 P 22 280 S i 5 g/ AL
SESHERT o A I 22 PR R A A 1 A 1 3
LRI ST AR M2 BOR AR ST -

4.3 Market risk

Market risk is the risk that market rates and prices on assets, liabilities
and off-balance sheet positions change, thus causing profits or losses.
The Group takes on the exposure to market risk that arises from open
positions in foreign exchange, money market, debt securities and
derivatives. The Group may also take proprietary market risk positions
in equity securities mainly at the time of their respective IPO process.
Management position on equities is also assumed, in which case it
becomes an investment item, deducted at times from the Bank’s equity.
Most off-balance sheet derivative positions arise from the execution of
customer-related orders and transactions taken for hedging purpose.
Proprietary trading activities are relatively not sizeable at this stage.

The objective of the Group’s market risk management is to optimise
return and control market risk in ways consistent with the Group’s
status as a premier provider of financial products and services as well as
the Group’s risk profile.

The Group classifies exposures to market risk into either trading or
non-trading portfolios. Trading portfolios include those positions
arising from market-making, proprietary position taking and other
marked-to-market positions so designated. Non-trading portfolios
primarily arise from the effective interest rate management of the
Group’s retail, corporate and commercial banking assets and liabilities.

(a)  Market risk management framework

The Board of Directors reviews and approves policies for the
management of market risk. The Risk Management Committee
(“RMC”) assists the Board on market risk management by
reviewing and guiding market risk activities within the Group.
This role is also played by the Asset and Liability Management
Committee (“ALCO”), which, in addition, approves other than
routine market risk activities as well as participates in policy and
limit setting. ALCO reports to the Board of Directors via the
RMC for the adequacy and efficiency of market risk management
policies, procedures and systems of the Group.

The daily primary control, management and assumption of
market risk are principally undertaken by Treasury & Markets
within risk limits and guidelines approved by the Board of
Directors. Monitoring of the utilisation of these approved limits
is performed on a regular basis by an independent market risk
unit of the Risk Management Department. The Group’s Internal
Audit Department also helps to ensure compliance with the
approved policies and procedures.
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4.3 Market risk (continued)

)

Measurement of market risk

The measurement techniques used to quantify the market risk
arising from our trading and non-trading activities include
sensitivity analysis and stress testing. Sensitivity measures,
concentration and stop-loss limits are used as the risk
management tools. Limits are set for each portfolio, product
and risk type. Stress tests are performed regularly to assess the
potential losses under extreme circumstances. The RMC and
ALCO reviews stress test results on a regular basis.

Interest rate risks

Interest rate risk is the risk that the Group’s financial performance
may be adversely affected by a change in market interest rates.
Interest rate risk arises mainly from the maturity mismatch of
interest bearing assets and liabilities and yield curve movement.

Interest rate risk is managed within risk limits approved by
the Board of Directors. Limits are set for each maturity band,
in addition, to an aggregate limit, for the entire investment
securities portfolio. Sensitivity measures, concentration and stop-
loss limits are used as the risk management tools. Stress testing
is also performed to highlight potential risks that may arise
from extreme circumstances. The day-to-day interest rate risk
management is performed by Treasury & Markets and subject to
ALCO supervision and direction.

The Group manages its interest rate risk by way of entering into
on or off balance sheet interest rate risk hedging instruments.
The effectiveness of the hedging activities is assessed regularly in
accordance with the HKAS 39.

The table below summarises the Group’s exposure to interest rate
risks. Included in the table are the Group’s assets and liabilities
at carrying amounts, categorised by the earlier of contractual
repricing or maturity dates.

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited 125
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4.3 Market risk (continued)

(c) Interest rate risks (continued)

= L = i =g #A —& ik HiAERE it K
Upto 13 312 1=5 Over 5 Non-interest ib)
1 month months months years years Bearing Total
AEH Group T T T TR TR THL T
“BBUETAZET R 31 December 2007 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(i Assets
B4 RAST R Cash and balances with banks and

SRR R other financial institutions 42,984,966 - - - - 681,388 43,666,354
TR R SRR Placements with and advances to

A BER banks and other financial institutions - 2,826 962,408 - - - 1,005,234
A ke AR Financial assets held for trading - - 14139 2517 - 37,600 54256
EEUATEESHEE  Financial assets designated at fair

MNEZ B R value through profit or loss 100,006 - - 372,348 1,262,388 - 1,754,742
it eI Derivative financial instruments - - - - - 1,213,738 1,213,738
P iR Loans and advances to customers,

SRR AR banks and other financial institutions 74,035,240 27,390,941 16,982,279 2,927,774 294317 73,120 121,703,671
ke SR Available-for-sale financial investments 2,776,506 3,586,122 1,800,386 3,070,317 1,619,352 2473728 15,326,911
T ke Held-to-maturity financial investments 1,054,165 1,373,291 804,718 81,643 - - 3,313,817
HbEE Other assets 287,308 - - - - 3,978,029 4,265,337
HgE Total assets 121,238,191 32,393,180 20,564,430 6,454,599 3,196,057 8,457,603 192,304,060
g Liabilities
EGYE L Deposits from banks and

Ve other financial institutions 10,370,899 6,294,755 2,827,990 - - 742,162 20,235,806
AEARTE Derivative financial instruments - - - - - 1,351,698 1,351,698
KFfia Deposits from customers 109,808,760 20,642,716 2,645,960 30816 10,141 4,391,834 137,530,227
E#TTE Certificates of deposit issued 544,084 357,823 1,389,503 1,413,984 - - 3,705,396
BEUATHEESEEE  Debt securities in issue designated

Mz 2815 at fair value through profit o loss - 3,119,872 - - - - 3,119,872
DABESH AR A B2 Subordinated debts measured

iR at amortised cost 2,021,156 3,730,280 1,794,184 - - - 7,545,620
Hif b Other liabilities 194,760 - - - - 3,612,542 3,807,302
AR Total liabilities 122,939,659 34,145,446 8,657,639 1,444,800 10,141 10,098,236 177,295,921
PUEL Total interest sensitivity gap (1,701,468) (1,752,266) 11,906,791 5,009,799 3,185,916 (1,640,633) 15,008,139




h s TR ERAT (B A PR A W] Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited 127

T ALAFH W Annual Report 2007
4.3 TR EE () 4.3 Market risk (continued)
(c) FIFmE 5 (47) (c) Interest rate risks (continued)
—fAR —Z=fiA oy ) —EHF HAEDLE Rt
Upto 1-3 312 1-5 Over 5 Non-interest st
1 month months months years years Bearing Total
AR Group T T Tkt T T T THL
“EENFFH=1—H 31 December 2006 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$1000 HK$'000
(A Assets
BERERTR Cash and balances with banks and

Hiva B & other financial institutions 45,280,373 - - - - 214,739 45,495,112
TR R AR Placements with and advances to

ZHHRER banks and other financial institutions - 5,015,135 - - - - 5,015,135
A ke AR Financial assets held for trading - 13,868 - - - 42600 56,468
BEUATEESEGEE  Financial assets designated at

MNEZ BRI fair value through profit or loss - - 206,057 501415 996,877 - 1704349
it eI Derivative financial instruments - - - - = 713,202 713,202
KF - iR Loans and advances to customers,

SRR AR banks and other financialinstitutions 55,366,407 16,377,634 3,036,038 594,639 176,825 76,213 75,647,756
ke SR Available-for-sale financial investments 1,486,495 2,494,582 1,102,922 3,944,875 969,995 1,053,449 11,052,318
HEH S RRY Held-to-maturity financial investments 2,040,724 1,264,600 623,16 20443 - - 4132972
HitgeE Other asses 85,645 = = = = 2,488,802 2574447
g Total assets 104.259,644 25,165,819 4988233 5,245,361 2,143,697 4589,005 146391,759
fifg Liabilities
EGYE L Deposits from banks and other

Wz R financial institutions 11,509,143 206,241 - - = 292,294 12,007,678
MELHTE Derivative financial instruments = = = = = 773,116 773,116
KFffan Deposits from customers 81,463,561 11,717,383 3,037,996 12319 10,111 3,309,187 99,570,557
CE#fTrE Certificates of deposit issued 649,585 1,539,640 6,151,374 1,981,436 - - 10,322,035
BEUATEESBEEE  Debt securities in issue designated at

MNEZEBTTEE fair value through profit or loss - 2,997,804 - - - - 2,997,804
ARSI A B2 Subordinated debts measured

iR at amortised cost 1,516,710 4222300 1,788,940 s = = 7,527,950
K & Other liabilities 36,433 - - - = 2,070,883 2,107,316
AR Total liabilities 95,175,432 20,683,368 10,978310 1,993,755 10,111 6,465,480 135,306,456
PUEL T Total interest sensitivity gap 9,084,212 4482451 (5990,077) 3,251,606 2,133,586 (1,876,475) 11,085,303
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4.3 Market risk (continued)

(c) Interest rate risks (continued)

= L = i =&#+2HA —& ik HiAERE it K
Upto 13 312 1=5 Over 5 Non-interest ib)
1 month months months years years Bearing Total
AR Bank THL T T T T THL T
“BBUETAZET R 31 December 2007 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(A Assets
B4 RASRT R Cash and balances with banks and

SRR R other financial institutions 42,479,132 - - - - 681,388 43,160,520
TR R SRR Placements with and advances to

i BER banks and other financial institutions - 2,826 1,577,987 - - - 1,620,813
A ke AR Financial assets held for trading - - 14139 2517 - 37,600 54256
FHEUATEESHEE  Financial assets designated at fair

MNEZ BRI value through profit or loss 100,006 - - 372,348 1,262,388 - 1,754,742
it eI Derivative financial instruments - - - - - 1,226,446 1,226,446
KF - ST AR Loans and advances to customers,

{74 -v8 banks and other financial institutions 72,717,490 26,378,942 15,227,859 336,237 143,434 73,120 114,877,082
ke SR g Available-for-sale financial investments 2,776,506 3,586,122 1,800,886 3,070317 1,619,352 2,473,065 15,326,248
ST e Held-to-maturity financial investments 1,054,165 1,373,291 804,718 81,643 - - 3,313,817
HbEE Other assets 287,308 - - - - 5,938,082 6,225,390
HgE Total assets 119,414,607 31,381,181 19,425,589 3,863,062 3,045,174 10,429,701 187,559,314
fifg Liabilities
EGYE L Deposits from banks and other

Ve financial institutions 9,541,717 5,594,194 321,082 - - 773,147 16,230,140
AEARTE Derivative financial instruments - - - - - 1,351,698 1,351,698
KRt Deposits from customers 109,408,954 20,612,716 2,164,784 3,102,982 10,141 4,673,781 139,973,358
E#fTE Certificates of deposit issued 544,084 357,823 1,389,503 1,413,984 - - 3,705,396
DMBRIRA AR Subordinated debts measured

R atamortised cost 2,021,156 3,730,280 1,794,184 - - - 7,545,620
i & Other liabilities 194,760 - - - - 3,958,175 4,152,935
ARHH Total liabilities 121,710,671 30,295,013 5,669,555 4,516,966 10,141 10,756,801 172,959,147
PRk 1 A Total interest sensitivity gap (2,296,064) 1,086,168 13,756,034 (653,904) 3,035,033 (327,100) 14,600,167
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4.3 Tﬁi%fﬂ FXAX (47) 4.3 Market risk (continued)
(c) FIFREfz (4% (c)  Interest rate risks (continued)
—fAR —Z=fiA =E 1+ —EHF HAEDLE Rt
Upto 13 3-12 1-5 Over 5 Non-interest At
1 month months months years years Bearing Total
T Bank T T Tkt T T T T
“EENFFH=1—H 31 December 2006 HK$ 1000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$1000 HK$'000
(A Assets
B4 RASRT R Cash and balances with banks and

SRR R other financial institutions 4711629 = = = = 214739 44,926,368
TR R SRR Placements with and advances to

i BER banks and other financial institutions = 5,199,081 277,138 = = 303,359 5,779,578
A ke mERE Financial assets held for trading - 13,868 - - - 42600 56,468
FEEUATEESHEE  Financial assets designated at fair

MNEZ BRI value through profit or loss - - 206,057 501415 996,877 - 1704349
it eI Derivative financial instruments - - = = = 713,202 713,202
KF - ST AR Loans and advances to customers,

{74 v banks and other financial institutions 55,301,061 15,843,082 2,659,256 594,639 176,825 76,213 74,651,076
ke SR Available-for-sale financial investments 1,486,495 2494582 1,102922 3,944,875 969,995 1,052,740 11,051,609
HEH S RRY Held-to-maturity financial investments 2,040,724 1,264,600 623,16 20443 - - 4132972
Hit&eE Other asses 85,645 = = = = 3,536920 3,622,565
g Total assets 103,625,554 2481513 4,868,589 5,245,361 2,143,697 5,939,773 146,638,187
fifg Liabilities
EGYEN L Deposits from banks and other

Wz R financial institutions 11,510,246 206,241 = = = 292,99 12,009,483
MELHTE Derivative financial instruments = = = = = 773,116 773,116
KRt Deposits from customers 81,802,191 14,707,381 3,037,996 12319 10,111 3,430,990 103,000,988
CE#fTfrE Certificates of deposit issued 649,585 1,539,640 6,151,374 1,981,436 - - 10,322,035
DMBRRA AR Subordinated debts measured

R atamortised cost 1,516,710 4222300 1,788,940 = = = 7,527,950
i & Other liabilities 36,433 = = = = 2,034,269 2,070,702
ARHH Total liabilities 95,515,165 20,675,562 10,978,310 1,993,755 10,111 6,531,371 135,704,274

pES I Total interest sensitivity gap 8,110,389 4,139,651 (6,109,721) 3,251,606 2,133,586 (591,598) 10933913
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4.3 Market risk (continued)

(c)

Interest rate risks (continued)

Trading portfolio

The Group’s control of interest rate risk is based on restricting
individual operations to trading within the market risk limits,
and a list of permissible instruments authorised by the Board
of Directors. In particular, trading in derivative products is
supported by robust control systems whereas more complicated
derivatives are mainly traded on the back-to-back basis.
Sensitivity measures, concentration and stop-loss limits are
used as risk management tools. Risk limits are independently
monitored on a daily basis.

Non-trading portfolio

The principal objective of interest rate risk management of
non-trading portfolios (also known as the “banking book”) is
to optimise net interest income. This is done on a daily basis
by Treasury & Markets taking over the interest rate risk in
non-treasury business under the supervision of ALCO. When
the behavioural characteristics of a product differ from its
contractual characteristics, the behavioural characteristics are
assessed to determine their actual underlying interest rate risk.
ALCO monitors all such behavioural assumptions and interest
rate risk positions to ensure that they comply with interest rate
risk limits established by the Board. Interest rate risk limits are
set for the purpose of governing the interest rate risk arising
from non-trading portfolios. The limits are measured and
independently monitored on a regular basis. Interest rate risk
exposures of the banking book are reported to the ALCO on a
monthly basis.

There are four primary forms of interest rate risk faced by the
Group with regard to its banking book: re-pricing (or maturity
mismatch) risk, yield curve risk, basis risk and option risk.
Interest rate risk is measured in relation to the impact of changes
in interest rates on earnings or economic value assuming all other
factors to remain constant, e.g. no action was taken by Treasury
& Markets or other business units to mitigate the impact of this
interest rate risk, interest rates of all maturities move by the same
amount. Prepayment, early withdrawal of customer loans or
deposits are usually not entertained or with fees paid.

Net interest income

A principal part of the Group’s management of interest rate risk
in non-trading portfolios is to monitor the sensitivity of projected
net interest income under varying interest rate scenarios
(simulation modelling). Excess impact, if any, will be analysed
and rectified.

Stress testing on banking book exposures is performed on a
monthly basis to assess the impact on earnings or economic
value under extreme circumstances. The analysis is based on the
following assumptions:

(i)  there is a parallel shift in the yield curve and in interest
rates;

(ii)  there are no other changes to the portfolio;
(iii) no loan prepayment is assumed; and

(iv) deposits without fixed maturity dates are assumed to be
repriced on next day.
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4.3 Market risk (continued)
(c) Interest rate risks (continued)
Stress testing of net interest income

The tables below show the stress testing results on our banking
book for the years ended 31 December 2007 and 2006.

AR A H A 2B
(R %5 ) 200 555 4
Impact on earnings over
the next 12 months
(if interest rates change

by 200 basis points)
TR LA e A%
T U
-4 Currency 2007 2006
HK$’000 HK$’000
ETT US$ 176,804 148,232
It HK$ 141,775 30,846
HEFE UL H R R R
Impact on economic value (Jon 7 3.5 ) 200 1 252

Impact on economic value
(if interest rates change

by 200 basis points)

“RRLAgE e A%

T R

-4 Currency 2007 2006
HK$000 HK$’000

ETT Us$ 353,599 173,043
It HK$ 39,282 57,673
HENZ B EE L FipsS g2 S A WG B 2 BRAT PR %

Impact on earnings (Pl 5 B 5845 A R A ) 2 200 AL M2 5% -

S5 ) 200 i 2L HE M 2 58 4% [ER(FIES 7S

Impact of changes in
rates (except for

Impact of changes in
managed rates on interest

fixed and managed bearing assets change
rates) on interest bearing assets, by 200 basis points, while
by 200 basis points other rates remain unchanged
ZRRLAE ZRE N BRI ZREINAE
2007 2006 2007 2006
T T T#0 THIT
HK$°000 HKS$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
B US$ 1,506,552 1,334,835 59,527 57,940
oo HKS$ 1,545,541 1,232,608 1,086,763 971,673
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4.3

Market risk (continued)

(c) FIREfz (%) (c) Interest rate risks (continued)
RIS i Sensitivity analysis
T R EE S A B R 25 3 ] g A B AR 4 The table below show the sensitivity analysis on net interest
[ SR 4T B T 2 B A B s 18 R v A1 S IR A income (NII), and profit or loss of a reasonably possible
(NII) 2 SR EE 4 A > BIRA 35 S0 A0 s Tl movement in interest rates on our banking book, i.e. a 100 basis
1 2% [ 4% 77 11 100 {5 24T 34 m > i BT points parallel increase in US$ and HKS$ yield curves, with all
B H A AR A other variables held constant:
TR 8 HEA K
WA Sk W2 5 8
(F#1) (F#1)
(B d) (B3t i)
Change in
projected net Impact on profit
interest income or loss
(HK$°000) (HK$'000)
AR R Year (Note i) (Note ii)
ZRELAE 2007 17,515 6,997
e A% 2006 58,693 2,758
i) EEEARRA Z BURE ST i)  Sensitivity of projected net interest income

I e 2 S R T R R A
WESLAERT - Sl (BT 7 L
ARG o % BB 1 P B AN
R I TR A %
0 0 B A S T2 R R
RS -

i) R E O U
VA _E USRS R B [ F B (E IR
T T [ 22 5 HRA | T e 2R 2 w2 56 A1)

SURB - BN F 70 FIvs TE I3 5
57 T AT ED RS AL -

The interest rate sensitivities set out in the table above are
based on simplified scenarios assuming all other variables
remain constant. The figures represent the effect of the
pro forma movements in net interest income based on the
projected yield curve scenarios and the Group’s current
interest rate risk profile.

ii)  Sensitivity of profit or loss

The sensitivities above show only those interest rate risk
exposures arising from the “fair-value book” and the
“trading book”. Instantaneous parallel change in US$ and
HKS$ yield curves are assumed.
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4.3 TGJEBE () 4.3 Market risk (continued)
d) Bk (d)  Currency risk

R T < i L (B (L R A R S L T
BB 2 SR

A SR 22 A1 S g = 2 G 45 B P A A T
ZHNESE 5y B U A AN SR B ARAT 26T 2 &
W m B o [R5 52 5 2 e Ak 2 B W R B T
P BPEAREY > DUR g AT v A1
ARREETEPLER - HEeREN
B IRSOE AR - )8 H AR
TEAT RIS o

AL A S B A AT 2 S R
B o e AR A B 1 191
Wz e BRI » B BOE b -
8325158 L B 1A S 2 TR,
B2 MR > 32 RS A A
B AR G T2 B0 B 22
AT -

Currency risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument
will fluctuate due to changes in foreign exchange rates.

The Group’s foreign exchange exposures mainly comprise
foreign exchange dealing by Treasury & Markets and currency
exposures originated from the Group’s banking business.
Currency exposures arising from non-trading businesses are
transferred to Treasury & Markets for centralised management
within the foreign exchange position limits approved by the
Board of Directors. The Board has set limits on positions by
currency. Positions are independently monitored against the
approved limits on a daily basis.

The table below summarises the Group’s and the Bank’s exposure
to foreign currency exchange risk. Included in the table are the
Group’s and the Bank’s assets and liabilities at carrying amounts,
categorised by currency. The off-balance sheet gap represents
the difference between the notional amounts of foreign currency
derivative financial instruments, which are principally used
to reduce the Group’s and the Bank’s exposure to currency
movements and their fair values.
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4.3 ﬁfi%fﬂliﬁ (47) 4.3 Market risk (continued)
(d)  EWE 4 (d)  Currency risk (continued)
ST BN Hfb Mt
HKS$ US$ Other Total
ARG Group T#x T#x T T
“RFEETHA=STH 31 December 2007 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
Y Assets
B4 AR SRAT I Cash and balances with banks and
Fofth 4 Rl 2 517 other financial institutions 2,448,553 37,729,764 3,488,037 43,666,354
TESRAT M oAb 4 Rl A Placements with and advances to
2R R banks and other financial institutions 50,000 955,234 - 1,005,234
FHERC Y R s Financial assets held for trading 38,014 14,139 2,103 54,256
FEE DA HRERIH G R Financial assets designated at
AR SREE fair value through profit or loss 466,939 1,287,803 - 1,754,742
it amTE Derivative financial instruments 879,585 276,862 57,291 1,213,738
o~ SRAT LA 4 R Loans and advances to customers,
etk B banks and other financial institutions 73,259,040 38,259,605 10,185,026 121,703,671
ffiksn s S R & Available-for-sale financial investments 3,592,240 9,182,063 2,552,608 15,326,911
Fifi 2SR BE Held-to-maturity financial investments 2,197,620 986,054 130,143 3,313,817
N = NCIPS & Investments in associates 184,054 - - 184,054
PR HA AT Y Goodwill and other intangible assets 1,042,775 - 807 1,043,582
B Investment properties 26,000 - 14,624 40,624
VEE ] Property, plant and equipment 166,690 - 91,063 257,753
FHE A b F - fe Leasehold land and land use rights 44,604 - - 44,604
HApth Other assets 1,604,909 324,208 765,603 2,694,720
B Total assets 86,001,023 89,015,732 17,287,305 192,304,060
i1 Liabilities
AT R A Deposits from banks and other
Wt 2 FEAR A iR financial institutions 7,532,994 8,865,384 3,837,428 20,235,806
fi 4/ TR Derivative financial instruments 983,297 308,438 59,963 1,351,698
BFAFN Deposits from customers 78,763,080 50,322,632 8,444,515 137,530,227
CE AT Certificates of deposit issued 2,426,154 1,279,242 - 3,705,396
B DA THRERHER Debt securities in issue designated
A2 B85 at fair value through profit or loss - 3,119,872 - 3,119,872
DASESE AR A B2 Subordinated debts measured
BB at amortised cost 1,500,000 6,045,620 - 7,545,620
HAb R - QRS & Other liabilities, including
IEAERITE AR current and deferred tax liabilities 2,565,493 996,568 245,241 3,807,302
£l Total liabilities 93,771,018 70,937,756 12,587,147 177,295,921
B AR A T Net on-balance sheet position (7,769,995) 18,077,976 4,700,158 15,008,139
Ba AR B BT Off-balance sheet net notional position (1,343,075) 964,502 378,573 -
15 Skl Credit commitments 79,186,501 15,893,347 2,329,853 97,409,701
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4.3 ﬁfi%fﬂliﬁ (47) 4.3 Market risk (continued)
(d)  EWE 4 (d)  Currency risk (continued)
ESTH ETin HAth st
HK$ US$ Other Total

AAEH Group T THTT R T T
RN A=+ —H 31 December 2006 HKS$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
Y Assets
B4 RARSRAT I Cash and balances with banks and

Fofth 4 i i 2 45 47 other financial institutions 2,029,470 41,345,978 2,119,664 45,495,112
TESRAT R oAb 4 Rl A Placements with and advances to

ZAER K banks and other financial institutions 290,000 4,725,135 - 5,015,135
FefEsc 5 sk i B e Financial assets held for trading 42,700 13,768 - 56,468
TEEUATEMESEGE Financial assets designated at

AR SRR fair value through profit or loss 199,593 1,298,699 206,057 1,704,349
fiE 4w TR Derivative financial instruments 336,192 295,835 81,175 713,202
B~ 8RAT L H A S R Loans and advances to customers,

etk B banks and other financial institutions 56,758,065 15,832,216 3,057,475 75,647,756
LS E S BB E Available-for-sale financial investments 2,542,552 6,986,456 1,523,310 11,052,318
Fifi 2 S RBE Held-to-maturity financial investments 2,615,784 1,298,588 218,600 4,132,972
B AT 28R % Investments in associates 34,485 - - 34,485
TR e A AT Y Goodwill and other intangible assets 1,050,773 - - 1,050,773
LEI G Property, plant and equipment 152,582 96,814 21 249,417
HL B b At (5 Leasehold land and land use rights 61,427 = = 61,427
Hith & Other assets 558,254 546,786 73,305 1,178,345
B Total assets 66,671,877 72,440,275 7,279,607 146,391,759
1% Liabilities
AT B A Deposits from banks and other

Wtk 2 FE AR T A i financial institutions 6,165,452 5,691,071 151,155 12,007,678
i 4 mTH Derivative financial instruments 340,494 351,502 81,120 773,116
BN Deposits from customers 54,016,732 43,243,782 2,310,043 99,570,557
E BT Certificates of deposit issued 5,058,658 5,263,377 = 10,322,035
8 LA TR AR G Debt securities in issue designated

AR BT at fair value through profit or loss - 2,997,804 - 2,997,804
DIESH AR AR 2 Subordinated debts measured

B atamortised cost 1,500,000 6,027,950 = 7,527,950
Hib & > g K& Other liabilities, including

R HER JH £ £ current and deferred tax liabilities 1,212,226 783,243 111,847 2,107,316
£l Total liabilities 68,293,562 64,358,729 2,654,165 135,306,456
B AR A T Net on-balance sheet position (1,621,685) 8,081,546 4,625,442 11,085,303
R f iR R BT Off-balance sheet net notional position (1,572,767) 1,273,225 299,542 -
15 Bkt Credit commitments 45,213,801 7,180,743 1,305,585 53,700,129
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4.3 ﬁfi%fﬂliﬁ (47) 4.3 Market risk (continued)
(d)  EWE 4 (d)  Currency risk (continued)
ST E T Hfb Mt
HKS$ US$ Other Total

N oH) Bank T#x T#x T T
“RFEETHA=STH 31 December 2007 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
Y Assets
B4 RARSRAT I Cash and balances with banks

Fofth 4 i i 2 45 47 and other financial institutions 2,454,280 37,557,607 3,148,633 43,160,520
TESRAT B oAb 4 Rl A Placements with and advances to

AR BB banks and other financial institutions 329,784 1,291,029 - 1,620,813
FefEsc 5 sk i G e Financial assets held for trading 38,014 14,139 2,103 54,256
TEEUATEMESEGE Financial assets designated at

ANIEZ &R E fair value through profit or loss 466,939 1,287,803 - 1,754,742
fi 4/ TR Derivative financial instruments 879,585 289,570 57,291 1,226,446
B~ 8RAT A S R Loans and advances to customers,

etk B banks and other financial institutions 72,792,243 37,655,378 4,429,461 114,877,082
LS E S BB E Available-for-sale financial investments 3,591,577 9,182,063 2,552,608 15,326,248
Fifi 2SR BE Held-to-maturity financial investments 2,197,620 986,054 130,143 3,313,817
N NP % Investments in associates 152,646 - - 152,646
TR A vl 2 Bl Investments in subsidiaries 1,481,160 393,272 - 1,874,432
PR HA T Y Goodwill and other intangible assets 681,744 - - 681,744
B Investment properties 26,000 - - 26,000
LEN G Property, plant and equipment 166,690 - - 166,690
T b e - Ml A Leasehold land and land use rights 44,604 - - 44,604
Hpth e Other assets 2,079,451 381,294 818,529 3,279,274
WgE Total assets 87,382,337 89,038,209 11,138,768 187,559,314
fifi Liabilities
SRAT R A 5 Bl Deposits from banks and other

W2 A S A financial institutions 7,414,977 8,775,160 40,003 16,230,140
4 TR Derivative financial instruments 983,297 308,438 59,963 1,351,698
B Deposits from customers 79,032,628 53,409,960 7,530,770 139,973,358
BTG Certificates of deposit issued 2,426,154 1,279,242 - 3,705,396
DIESH AR AR 2 Subordinated debts measured

B atamortised cost 1,500,000 6,045,620 - 7,545,620
Hib & s > Affng Other liabilities, including

SRR T AR current and deferred tax liabilities 3,001,188 1,028,024 123,723 4,152,935
£ fiE Total liabilities 94,358,244 70,846,444 7,754,459 172,959,147
B AR A T Net on-balance sheet position (6,975,907) 18,191,765 3,384,309 14,600,167
Ba AR R BT Off-balance sheet net notional position (34,229) (125,984) 160,213 -
5 Bkt Credit commitments 79,004,700 15,834,478 1,456,418 96,295,596
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4.3 ﬁfi%fﬂliﬁ (47) 4.3 Market risk (continued)
(d)  EWE 4 (d)  Currency risk (continued)
ESTH ETin HAth st
HK$ US$ Other Total

AT Bank F#I0 TG T T
CEENEFA=F—H 31 December 2006 HKS$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
Y Assets
B4 RARSRAT I Cash and balances with banks

Fofth 4 i i 2 45 47 and other financial institutions 2,056,441 40,870,726 1,999,201 44,926,368
TESRAT R oAb 4 Rl A Placements with and advances to

ZAER K banks and other financial institutions 380,000 5,399,578 - 5,779,578
FefEsc 5 sk i B e Financial assets held for trading 42,700 13,768 - 56,468
TEEUATEMESEGE Financial assets designated at

AR SRR fair value through profit or loss 199,593 1,298,699 206,057 1,704,349
fiE 4w TR Derivative financial instruments 336,192 295,835 81,175 713,202
B~ 8RAT L H A S R Loans and advances to customers,

etk B banks and other financial institutions 56,579,519 15,014,082 3,057,475 74,651,076
LS E S BB E Available-for-sale financial investments 2,541,843 6,986,456 1,523,310 11,051,609
Fifi 2 S RBE Held-to-maturity financial investments 2,615,784 1,298,588 218,600 4,132,972
N RN 2 BE& Investments in associates 14,508 - - 14,508
TR A vl 2 Bl Investments in subsidiaries 1,417,707 = = 1,417,707
PR HA T Y Goodwill and other intangible assets 711,335 - - 711,335
L ENE L] Property, plant and equipment 152,581 - = 152,581
T A b R At i A Leasehold land and land use rights 61,427 = = 61,427
HAth & e Other assets 594,868 553,365 116,774 1,265,007
B Total assets 67,704,498 71,731,097 7,202,592 146,638,187
fifi Liabilities
AT R HA 5 Rl Deposits from banks and other

Wt 2 A7 3k S s financial institutions 6,166,156 5,692,172 151,155 12,009,483
4 TR Derivative financial instruments 340,494 351,502 81,120 773,116
HFAFN Deposits from customers 54,143,659 43,232,895 5,624,434 103,000,988
BT R Certificates of deposit issued 5,058,658 5,263,377 - 10,322,035
DIBESS AR AR Z Subordinated debts measured

B &R at amortised cost 1,500,000 6,027,950 - 7,527,950
HAB R - QRS & Other liabilities, including

IEAERLTE A R current and deferred tax liabilities 1,235,149 782,391 53,162 2,070,702
£ B Total liabilities 68,444,116 61,350,287 5,909,871 135,704,274
BRI N AT Net on-balance sheet position (739,618) 10,380,810 1,292,721 10,933,913
R B AN AT B Off-balance sheet net notional position (587,717) 592,456 (4,739) -
5 Bkt Credit commitments 45,057,502 7,160,520 1,305,585 53,523,607
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4.3 ﬁf%ﬁu&b}z (47) 4.3 Market risk (continued)
d) B () (d)  Currency risk (continued)
SN SR (0455 (K 52 7 1 M e A 22 JaBE o 3 Foreign currency exposures include those rising from trading
TEAG R AR B (O XFHE - position. The net option position is calculated using the delta
equivalent approach.
N EBEBLER - BENFETH=1— There was no net structural position in a particular foreign
H oo Sl 484G 48 SN A MM R R B AR R currency constitutes (in absolute terms) not less than 10% at its
DI 109% 2 £ T AN 65 A 1k o M TR B (9% total net structural position in all currencies as at 31 December
EHEETH) - 2007 and 2006.
BURTE T Sensitivity analysis
O RN = 1 e =2 = A sensitivity analysis calculates the effect of a reasonable possible
E R CEBNFEZ AT RE A E) 2 R movement of the currency rate for the year 2007 and 2006
T A LAt 58 A R AN 5 o respectively, with all other variables held constant.
i) REZFULETHAH=Z+—HZH i)  Foreign currency position as at 31 December 2007
ipg
A Group ESn
MR T WL Equivalent in HK$’000 US$
R IE DB Sensitivity analysis
TH# 1% (Gh#ELT)
Rk B W RE SR 4 4L 1 40 L Assumed % change in 1% appreciation
currency rate (vs. HKS)
i A S s 1R 2 TEAE A2 (T JC)  Potential effect on profit or loss (HK$'000) 90,286
B4 2 VETE R (T ot) Potential effect on equity (HK$'000) 91,821
ii) ATEENFET A= F—HZAb ii)  Foreign currency position as at 31 December 2006
g3
E
RS T oT Equivalent in HK$'000 US$
BURBE AT Sensitivity analysis
FHE 1% (LT
TRk B W R SR 4 AL 1 40 b Assumed % change in 1% appreciation
currency rate (vs. HK$)
i A SR 2 TEFE RS2 (T T)  Potential effect on profit or loss (HK$'000) 34,500
4 2 VETE R (T ot) Potential effect on equity (HK$'000) 69,865
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4.3 Market risk (continued)

(e)

Equity price risk

Equity price risk is the risk that the fair values of the equities
portfolio decrease as the result of changes in the levels of equity
indices and the value of individual stocks. Since the second half
of 2006, the Group has begun to take market risk positions in
shares at the time of their respective IPO process. Concentration
limits and stop-loss limits are set for individual share. Market risk
positions on equity are relatively not sizeable at this stage.

Investments that are held for the purpose of entering into a
strategic cooperation with the investee with a view to leveraging
the respective strengths to enhance the Group’s business are
classified by the Group as strategic investments. Other equity
investments are held for capital gain purposes.

For capital adequacy ratio purpose, the Bank deducts those
equity holdings taken for relationship and strategic reasons from
the core and supplementary capital and includes those equity
holdings taken for other reasons in the risk-weighted assets.
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A B B A BT
Group and Bank
2007 2006
T#x TH#IT
HK$°000 HK$000
AR AR 2 e A AR Fair value of equity securities after impairment:
— ki - Listed 2,425,131 991,903
—Jk ki ~ Unlisted 79,473 97,378
A G Bl B A AT
Group and Bank
2007 2006
TH#x THIT
HK$’000 HK$’000
2 H S AN S B R FY Cumulative realised gains or (losses) arising
BRI Bk (1) from sales and liquidations of equity exposure 370 75,313
TEREHE R, > A R Total unrealised gains or (losses)
AR BR BB 2k o recognised in the Bank’s reserves but
(E18) 5T not through the income statement 1,883,398 581,161
o wt SR AR T LR RS AE Unrealised gains included in or
b A PR B A ] A B B M 2 (losses deducted from) the Bank’s
P SRR B (D€ 5% BT 5 A v 11k supplementary capital for capital
A A B B e 4 P ) adequacy ratio purpose 145,544 -
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Liquidity risk

The Group is exposed to daily calls on its available cash resources from
overnight deposits, current accounts, maturing deposits, loan draw-
downs and guarantees, and from margin and other calls on cash-settled
derivatives. The Group does not maintain cash resources to meet all
of these needs, as experience shows that the rollover of a certain level
of maturing funds can be predicted with a high level of certainty. The
Board sets control on the funds available to meet such calls and on
the minimum level of inter-bank and other borrowing facilities that
should be in place to cover unexpected withdrawals. A liquidity risk
management policy is in place to govern the Group’s liquidity initiatives
and parameters. Stress tests are done quarterly.

The matching and controlled mismatching of the maturity and interest
rates of assets and liabilities is fundamental to the management of the
Group. It is unusual for banks to be completely matched, as transactions
often entail uncertain terms and are often of different types. While an
unmatched position potentially enhances profitability, it increases the
risk of losses and the liquidity risk of an entity.

The maturity of assets and liabilities and the ability to replace, at an
acceptable cost, interest-bearing liabilities as they mature are important
factors in assessing the liquidity of the Group and its exposure to
changes in interest rates and exchange rates.

Liquidity requirements to support calls under guarantees and
standby letters of credit are considerably less than the amount of
the commitments themselves because the Group does not generally
expect its third parties to draw funds under the agreements. The total
outstanding contractual amount of commitments to extend credit does
not necessarily represent future cash requirements, as many of these
commitments will expire or terminate without being funded.
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4.4 {}ﬁ@] ﬁfﬁfﬁ FXAR (47) 4.4 Liquidity risk (continued)
FRIESE H EEKB AT EMEHE 2 The tables below summarise the Group’s and the Bank’s assets and
B E 3 A A 1 M AR SR AT 2 e BLA i liabilities by maturity based on the remaining period at balance sheet
date to the contractual maturity date.
AEH Group AR = )il —7 =2
MR EDN WA MR —EHE HENE
Repayable Upto 13 312 1-5 Over 5 TR it
on demand 1 month months months years years  Indefinite Total
“ERLE Ti#n T T T Tién Tibn T T
+ZA=+—H 31 December 2007 HK$000  HK$000  HK$000 HKS000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000
bif:3 Assets
e RIESTR Cash and balances with banks and other
BRUEE vd financial institutions 1,598,983 42,067,371 - - - - - 43,666,354
G E e Placements with and advances to banks
W2 and other financial institutions - - 4282 962,408 - - - 1,005,234
(Bl v Financial assets held for trading - - 14,139 - 2517 - 37,600 54,256
FEUATEESRGR Financial assets designated at fair value
MEZ ERERE through profit or loss
—FTHEH 2 s - certificates of deposit held - 100,006 - - - - - 100,006
—HibfER - other debt securities - - - - 348 1282388 - 1,654,736
ik &M TR Derivative financial instruments - 153,575 101,442 444,175 289,959 224,587 - 1,213,738
P SR Loans and advances to customers, banks
SRR 85k and other financial institutions 8938589 6,000,707 13,685,754 21,232,446 45,102,686 26,402,701 340,788 121,703,671
s ES Mt s Available-for-sale financial investments
— WA - equity securities - - - - - - 2,467,004 2,467,004
— Pk 2 e i - certificates of deposit held - - - 296,085 - 25,364 - 321,449
—HibfES - other debt securities S 24185 100010 1,347,441 8414379 2,445719 6724 12,538,458
HAZHMERRE Held-to-maturity financial investments
— B - treasury bills 1,983,493 - - - - - - 1983493
— At ~ other debt securities - - - 481339 734650 114335 - 1,330,324
REE AT 2 &G Investments in associates - - - - - - 184,054 184,054
[ Y ERRISIA Goodwill and other intangible assets - - - - - - L0358 1,043,582
¥ Investment properties - - - - - - 40,624 40,624
VEIE ] Property, plant and equipment - - - - - - 257,753 257,753
FHLE T J - S Leaschold land and land use rights - - - - - - 4,604 44,604
Hlb g Other assets B,042 1534632 871203 165266 54,536 199 45800 2,694720
By Total assets 12,544,107 50,080,476  14,815374 24,929,160 54971075 30,495,293 4,468,575 192,304,060
fifg Liabilities
LGP Deposits from banks and other
& WS financial institutions 221,774 8760248 6,438,863 2,860,880 54,041 - - 20,235,806
Mtk aMTA Derivative financial instruments - 176866 126,138 430345 382,882 235467 - 1,351,698
FF R Deposits from customers 2,081,366 92,119,154 20,642,724 2,347,686 329,156 10,141 - 137,530,227
BTG Certificates of deposit issued - 471804 418308 1,301,300 1,513,984 - - 370539
$E A TR Debt securities in issue designated at fair
FARZ BBITER value through profit or loss - - - - 3119872 - - 3119872
DABE BRI A T2 F R (R Subordinated debts measured at amortised cost 500,000 - - - 4549364 2,496,256 - 7,545,620
Hit R GfAE Other liabilities, including current
RERIER K and deferred tax liabilities 107,859 1724887 1,130,586 407,176 428,805 4,566 3423 3,807,302
AR Total liabilities 24810999 103,252,959 28,756,619 7,347,387 10,378,104 2,746,430 3423 177,295,921
W 250 Net liquidity gap (12,266,892) (53,172,483) (13941,245) 17,581,773 44,592,971 27,748,863 4465152 15,008,139
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4.4 Liquidity risk (continued)

HEH Group IR —fEA —% =7
IR Y EUN) =WA tZEA —ERE DL
Repayable Upto 1-3 3-12 1-5 Over 5 TR gt
on demand 1 month months months years years  Indefinite Total
ZEENR T Tl Tl Tl T T Tl Tl
FoH=+-H 31 December 2006 HKS000  HK$000  HK$'000  HKS$000  HK$000  HKS000  HK$000  HKS'000
hi{:3 Assets
A RIESTR Cash and balances with banks and other
BREE vd financial institutions 1,180,089 44,315,023 = = = = - 45495112
TEsRAT R4 Placements with and advances to banks
({42 8- and other financial institutions = - 5015135 = = = - 501513
(Bl i Financial assets held for trading - - - - 13,868 - 42,600 56,468
fE VA FEERE L Financial assets designated at fair value
MEZ ERERE through profit or loss
— ke 2 ~ certificates of deposit held = - - - 99,704 - - 99,704
—HibfER - other debt securities = = - 206057 40711 996,877 - 1604645
ik e TR Derivative financial instruments - 41,809 44337 172,475 146,670 307,911 - 713,202
KPR AR Loans and advances to customers, banks
74 -¢ and other financial institutions 6783548 2438667 5450068 8526432 29835048 22,406,174 206919 75,647,756
s ES Mt E Available-for-sale financial investments
— WA - equity securities - - - - - - 1046681 1,046,681
—FitE A ~ certificates of deposit held - - - 99990 297,555 41,680 - B
—HibfEH - other debt securities = 6174 277775 1228356 5912208 2,079,131 6768 9,566,412
HAZHMERRE Held-to-maturity financial investments
— R - treasury bills - 850564 660918 475163 - - - 1,986,645
—FitE A - certificates of deposit held = = = 232,666 - - - 232,666
—HibfEH ~ other debt securities = 199,422 - 309343 104457 180,439 - 1913661
REE AR Z B E Tnvestments in associates = = = = = = 34,485 34,485
T R A Goodwill and other intangible assets - - - - - - 1,050,773 1,050,773
ESC U] Property, plant and equipment = = = = - - 249,417 249417
HLE 3 K £ o A Leasehold land and land use rights = = = = = = 61,427 61,427
Hh g Other assets 818 481017 458496 151,121 50,152 = 9441 1178345
By Total assets 7991755 48388676 11906729 11421603 37962273 26012212 2708511 146,391,759
fifs Liabilities
LGP R Deposits from banks and other
Wz R R financial institutions 1224831 10576606 206,241 = = = - 12,007,678
fitk A LA Derivative financial instruments - 59,459 36,956 173626 249,788 253,087 - 773,116
KFfiak Deposits from customers 15774822 6746995 73988174 2,750,613 299,842 10,111 - 99,570,557
BTG Certificates of deposit issued - 107377 500744 7,073,098 2640816 - - 10,322,035
$E AT B RS R Debt securities in issue designated at fair
EIN. VAR v value through profit or loss - - - - 2,997,804 - - 2,997,804
VARSI A T2 75 0 (R Subordinated debts measured at amortised cost = - 544460 500,000 2994530 3488960 - 757,950
Hitne i > wm R Other liabilities, including
RERIER K current and deferred tax liabilities 93640 605459 780,162 413,659 78506 = 135890 2,107,316
ARt Total liabilities 17,093,293 18095896 76056737  10910,99% 9261286 3,752,358 135,890 135,306,456
WG Ak Net liquidity gap (9,101,538) 30,292,780 (64,150,008) 510,607 28,700,987 22,259,854 2,572,621 11,085,303
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4.4 {}ﬁ@] ﬁfﬁfﬂ FXAR (47) 4.4 Liquidity risk (continued)
ASRAT Bank AR = )il —% X
MR EDN WA MR —EHE HENE
Repayable Upto 13 312 1-5 Over 5 TR it
ondemand  1month months months years years  Indefinite Total

“ERLE Ti#n T T T Tién T T T
+ZA=+—H 31 December 2007 HK$000  HK$000 HK$000 HKS000 HK$000 HK$000 HKS000  HK$000
jid: Assets
e RIESTR Cash and balances with banks and other

BRUEE vd financial institutions 1,271,553 41,888,967 - - - - - 43,160,520
TESRAT R4 Placements with and advances to banks

L 7aE Vi S and other financial institutions - - 4282 1,577,987 - - - 1,620813
(Bl v Financial assets held for trading - - 14,139 - 2517 - 37,600 54,256
FEUATEESRGR Financial assets designated at fair value

MEZ ERERE through profit or loss

— k¥R 2  certificates of deposit held - 100,006 - - - - - 100,006

—HthfES - other debt securities - - - - 348 1282388 - 1,654,736
ik &M TR Derivative financial instruments - 153,575 101,442 444,175 302,667 224,587 - 1,226,446
P B E Loans and advances to customers, banks

R B3 and other financial institutions 8,938,589 4715316 12,632,826 19,480,655 42,517,091 26251817 340,788 114,877,082
s ES Mt s Available-for-sale financial investments

— WA - equity securities - - - - - - 2,467,004 2,467,004

— Pk 2 e ik - certificates of deposit held - - - 296,085 - 25,364 - 321,449

—HibfEH - other debt securities S 24185 100010 1,347,441 8414379 2,445719 6,061 12,537,795
HAZEMERRE Held-to-maturity financial investments

— B  treasury bills 1,983,493 - - - - - - 1983493

Hibfes ~ other debt securities - - S 81339 7650 114335 - 1330324
REE AT 2 &G Investments in associates - - - - - - 152,646 152,646
RIBARZ & E Investments in subsidiaries - - - - - - 1874432 1874432
T8 R A Goodwill and other intangible assets - - - - - - 681,744 681,744
REYE Investment properties - - - - - - 26,000 26,000
EYE] Property, plant and equipment - - - - - - 166690 166,69
TG 3t e o i VB Leasehold land and land use rights - - - - - - 44,604 44,604
Hihz Other assets 18,005 1,093,778  1,878319 168,011 74,361 - 46,800 3,279,274
Wy Total assets 12211640 48,175,827 14,769,562 23,795,693 52418013 30,344,210 5,844,369 187,559,314
£l Liabilities
LGSR Deposits from banks and other

LA Ve financial institutions 1,554,616 8760248 5,594,194 321,082 - - - 16,230,140
AR TR Derivative financial instruments - 176,866 126138 430,345 382,882 235,467 - 1,351,698
KFfE Deposits from customers 21,913,573 92,169,089 20,612,724 1,866,509 3,401,322 10,141 - 139,973,358
EE#TE Certificates of deposit issued - 471804 418308 1,301,300 1,513,984 - - 370539
DI A2 B R Subordinated debts measured at amortised cost 500,000 - - - 4549364 2,496,256 - 7,545,620
Hitn& i > pmE Other liabilities, including

REEHIEA & current and deferred tax liabilities 81,691 1276355 1,988,763 394532 408,171 - 3423 4152935
AfAH Total liabilities 24,049,880 102,854,362 28,740,127 4,313,768 10255723 2,741,864 3,423 172,959,147
bk g ke Net liquidity gap (11,838,240) (54,678,535) (13970,565) 19481925 42,162,290 27,602,346 5840946 14,600,167
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4.4 Liquidity risk (continued)

ASRIT Bank BRI —fif -2 =4
IR Y BT =WA tZEA —ERE DL
Repayable Upto 13 3-12 1-5 Over 5 TR st
on demand 1 month months months years years  Indefinite Total
ZEENR T Tl Tl Tl T T i i
+=A=+—H 31 December 2006 HKS000  HK$000  HK$'000  HKS$000  HK$000  HKS000  HK$000  HKS'000
hi{:3 Assets
A RIESTR Cash and balances with banks and other
BREE vd financial institutions 1,119,887 43,806,481 = = = = - 44926368
TEsRAT R4 Placements with and advances to banks
L 7&E Vi S and other financial institutions - - 5199081 580497 - - - 5779578
i’%iﬁjﬁ% SHEE Financial assets held for trading - - - - 13,868 - 42,600 56,468
fE VA FEERE L Financial assets designated at fair value
MEZ ERERE through profit or loss
— ke 2 ~ certificates of deposit held = - - - 99,704 - - 99,704
—HtfEs - other debt securities = = - 206057 401,711 996,877 - 1604645
fiksMIE Derivative financial instruments - 41,809 44,337 172,475 146,670 307,911 - 713,202
P B E Loans and advances to customers, banks
R B3 and other financial institutions 6783548 2370577 4849947 8207057 29824654 22406174 206919 74,651,076
s ES Mt E Available-for-sale financial investments
— WA - equity securities - - - - 1046681 1,046,681
—FitE A ~ certificates of deposit held - - - 9999 297,555 41,680 - B
—HibfEH ~ other debt securities = 6174 277775 1228356 5912208 2,079,131 6059 9,565,703
HAZHMERRE Held-to-maturity financial investments
— R - treasury bills - 850564 660918 475163 - - - 1,986,645
—FitE A - certificates of deposit held = = 232,666 - 232,666
—HibfEH ~ other debt securities = 199,422 - 309343 104457 180,439 - 1913661
REEARZRE Investments in associates - - - - - - 14,508 14,508
B AR Z B E Tnvestments in subsidiaries = = = = - - LA7707 L1770
T T Ht e i Goodwill and other intangible assets - - - - - - 711,335 711,335
EYE] Property, plant and equipment - - - - - - 152,581 152,581
FE L R b Leasehold land and land use rights - - - - - - 61427 61427
iz Other assets 818 479586 500,462 153,108 19275 = 54458 1,265,007
Wy Total assets 7931553 47812613 11532520 11684912  37.950,102 26012212 3714275 146,638,187
£l Liabilities
LGSR Deposits from banks and other
[ Y& 0esi financial institutions 1,226,636 10,576,606 206,241 - - - - 12,009,483
AR TR Derivative financial instruments - 59,459 36,956 173,626 249,788 253,287 - 773,116
KFfE Deposits from customers 16166939 67518262 13265223 2,750,613 389,840 10,111 - 103,000,988
BB Certificates of deposit issued - 107,377 500,744 7,073,098 2,640,816 - - 10,322,035
DI AR 2 B R Subordinated debts measured at amortised cost - - 544,460 500,000 2,994,530 3,488,960 - 7,527,950
Hitn& > pImE Other liabilities, including
REEHIEA & current and deferred tax liabilities 93640 601166 766992 412968 78,506 = 17430 2,070,702
AfAH Total liabilities 17487215 78862870 15320616 10910305 9253480 3,752,358 117430 135,704,274
b g uke Net liquidity gap (9555,662) (31,050.257)  (3,788,09) 774607 28,696,622 22259854 3596845  10,933913
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4.4 {ﬁ@]ﬁﬁﬁll‘ﬁ (47) 4.4 Liquidity risk (continued)
TREFINGE A Z2 A A A The table below presents the cash flows payable by the Group under
A8 LA T 5 Y 2 B 0 A A < R R DA R non-derivative financial liabilities, derivative financial liabilities that
HE S5 0 T AR 4 Al T L TE R A A (B A B 4 will be settled on a net basis and derivative financial instruments that
Tt o A A B T AR T U ) oA AR T B B R will be settled on gross basis by the remaining contractual maturities
AR RN E B A B > TER N TR 2 at the balance sheet date. The amounts disclosed in the table are the
B R A& X ARSI BB EE o contractual undiscounted cash flows, whereas the Group manages the

inherent liquidity risk based on expected undiscounted cash inflows.

H9F LA A Y 8 BT 10 A AR A A T AL The Group’s derivatives that will be settled on a net basis include:

- SMERTETH : 55 BIARE 5 K - Foreign exchange derivatives: over-the-counter currency options;

- FIRATAE TH  FlRpEH 5 R 2 0 i = ?;lferest rate derivatives: interest rate swaps, forward rate
Je 355158 5 Bl 2 e agreements and OTC interest rate options

% DA AE R M A T A AR SR AT AR T R The Group’s derivatives that will be settled on a gross basis include:

- Q!; FEATAE TH - Bm e s - Ak - Foreign exchange derivatives: currency forward, currency swaps;
s & and

- FIRATAETH 8 AR o - Interest rate derivatives: cross currency interest rate swaps.
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4.4 Liquidity risk (continued)

A%H Group JER I
MR =MASUT =2+2MA —& R4 HAEY L
Repayable 3 months 3-12 1-5 Over 5 Ht
on demand or less months years years Total
“ERLE T THL T THL THL THL
+ZH=4—H 31 December 2007 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$000
i Liabilities
SRAT B At 5 Deposits from banks and
Wz fE e Rt other financial institutions 2,125,190 15,329,423 2,986,476 57,058 - 20,498,147
&P Deposits from customers 22,094,024 113,306,575 2,426,802 562,533 13,430 138,403,364
CH# TG Certificates of deposit issued - 921,715 1,392,838 1,513,984 - 3,828,537
A TEE Debt securities in issue
BEGRARL designated at fair value
EEBTES through profit or loss - 69,284 96,535 3,211,044 - 3,376,863
DIESH A AR 2 Subordinated debts measured at amortised cost
IR 500,000 83,418 318,061 4,549,364 2,496,256 7,947,099
HoAth4: A Other financial liabilities 89,467 2,022,687 254,275 345,043 4,700 2,716,172
SRA BRI Total financial liabilities 24,808,681 131,733,102 7474987 10,239,026 2,514,386 176,770,182
AR A6 Derivative cash flow
DhARAS B AT Derivative financial instruments
SRTH settled on net basis - 8,438 (159,022) 72,474 (4,883) (82,993)
WAL Total inflow - 12,880,686 21,209,424 6,131,133 1,158,617 41,379,860
bitaeEa Total outflow - (12,872,248)  (21,368,446)  (6,058,659)  (1,163,500)  (41,462,853)
DAL B iR Derivative financial instruments
SHITA settled on gross basis
AL Total inflow — 37,989,537 19,463,768 228,327 - 57,681,632
it th 40 Total outflow - (37,925294)  (19,305,485) (230,324) - (57,461,103)
HEA KR Off-balance sheet items
A%H Group —AEg T —Z 14 ARk Ht
No later than 1 year 1-5 years Over 5 years Total
Tl Tl Tl T
“ZZLEZ A=t 31 December 2007 HK$’000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000
BRI Loan commitments 67,906,657 14,847,747 - 82,754,404
fRE R R R s Guarantees, acceptances and
other financial facilities 6,573,592 - - 6,573,592
EHEEE Forward asset purchases 270,000 - - 270,000
CHREHA BN Forward deposits placed 7,811,705 - - 7,811,705
it Total 82,561,954 14,847,747 - 97,409,701
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4.4 {}ﬁ@] ﬁfﬁfﬂ FXAR (47) 4.4 Liquidity risk (continued)
AEH Group TR I
WFER —@ASUT =2+2M@A —FRE HAEM L
Repayable 3 months 3-12 1-5 Over 5 st
on demand or less months years years Total
ZERTN Tkt Tkt Tkt Tk Tk T
+=H=+—H 31 December 2006 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
ik Liabilities
SRAT S At 53 Deposits from banks and other
Wz fE e Rt financial institutions 1,233,188 10,794,231 = = = 12,027,419
KRN Deposits from customers 15,802,319 81,107,029 2,835,434 518,205 10,114 100,273,101
CH#TEGE Certificates of deposit issued - 658,213 7,452,408 2,640,816 = 10,751,437
RELVAFE Debt securities in issue designated at fair value
BEGRAIR through profit or loss
Z B BT = 69,113 96,253 3,217,046 - 3,382,412
DIESH AR AR 2 Subordinated debts measured at amortised cost
RIERE = 631,316 836,712 2,994,530 3,488,960 7,951,518
HAth 4R A Other financial liabilities 60,648 852,908 229,338 8,402 134,842 1,286,138
WA A% Total financial liabilities 17,096,155 94,112,810 11,450,145 9,378,999 3633916 135,672,025
AR AR Derivative cash flow
DA ARAS B iR Derivative financial instruments
SRTH settled on net basis = (29,182) (141,890) (339,935) (176,011) (687,018)
i o 4 Total outflow = 4,346,467 14,997,703 3,914,282 739,255 23,997,707
A Total inflow - (4,375,649)  (15,139,593) (4,254,217) (915,266)  (24,684,725)
DAL B A i Derivative financial instruments
SHITA settled on gross basis
i o 4 Total outflow = 52,912,964 6,306,875 262,615 = 59,082,454
A Total inflow - (52,900,792) (6,737,369) (257,482) - (59,895,643)
HEARFIEH Off-balance sheet items
AEE Group —EHLIF —BHE AR M5t
No later than 1 year 1-5 years Over 5 years Total
Tkt Tkt Tt Tt
ZEERFEFZA=1—H 31 December 2006 HK$000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
BRI Loan commitments 32,424,706 16,493,896 = 48,918,602
R - R R R Guarantees, acceptances and
other financial facilities 4,661,645 - - 4,661,645
CL 7 A MK Forward deposits placed 119,892 - - 119,892
At Total 37,206,243 16,493,896 = 53,700,139




148 B TR HAT (HEYH) A R AW
Annual Report 2007

“EF LR

44 JREE S EBE (g0

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited

4.4 Liquidity risk (continued)

AHAT Bank JER I
MR =MASUT =2+2MA —& R4 FHAEY L
Repayable 3 months 3-12 1-5 Over 5 Ht
on demand or less months years years Total
“ERLE THL THL TL THL TL T
+ZH=4—H 31 December 2007 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$000
g Liabilities
SRAT S At 53 Deposits from banks and
Wzt Rt other financial institutions 1,558,032 14,455,144 329,386 - - 16,342,562
&Pk Deposits from customers 21,926,231 113,326,241 1,928,454 3,629,943 13,430 140,824,299
CH#TGE Certificates of deposit issued - 921,715 1,392,838 1,513,984 - 3,828,537
DIESE AR A BR 2 Subordinated debts measured at amortised cost
RIEREE 500,000 83,418 318,061 4,549,364 2,496,256 7,947,099
Hib &R K Other financial liabilities 63,299 2,541,278 258,641 324,409 134 3,187,761
ARA L% Total financial liabilities 24,047,562 131,327,796 4227380 10,017,700 2,509,820 172,130,258
R4 Derivative cash flow
DIF A AT A Derivative financial instruments
SRTHR settled on net basis - 8,438 (168,242) 75,504 (4,883) (89,183)
AL Total inflow - 12,880,686 21,212,304 6,142,143 1,158,617 41,393,750
T AR Total outflow - (12,872,248)  (21,380,546)  (6,066,639)  (1,163,500)  (41,482,933)
DARBRAE T Derivative financial instruments
SHTA settled on gross basis
AL Total inflow = 37,989537 19,463,768 228,327 = 57,681,632
T AR Total outflow - (37,925294)  (19,305,485) (230,324) - (57,461,103)
HEARFMEH Off-balance sheet items
AHUT Bank —AERUT —F R4 AR L Ht
No later than 1 year 1-5 years Over 5 years Total
Tt Tl T T#L
“EFBLELAZTH 31 December 2007 HK$°000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000
BHRIE Loan commitments 67,210,076 14,473,568 - 81,683,644
i B o & i Guarantees, acceptances and
other financial facilities 6,530,247 - - 6,530,247
HHIEERE Forward asset purchases 270,000 - - 270,000
BT R Forward deposits placed 7,811,705 - - 7,811,705
it Total 81,822,028 14,473,568 - 96,295,596
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4.4 {}ﬁ@] ﬁfﬁfﬂ FXAR (47) 4.4 Liquidity risk (continued)
AHAT Bank JHELK I
WiFER —MASUT =2+2M@A —FRE HAEM L
Repayable 3 months 3-12 1-5 Over 5 A5t
on demand or less months years years Total
ZERBN Tt T T T T T
+=H=+—H 31 December 2006 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000
ik Liabilities
SRAT S At 53 Deposits from banks and other
Wzt Rt financial institutions 1,234,993 10,794,231 = = = 12,029,224
KRN Deposits from customers 16,194,387 81,155,345 2,835,434 3,508,203 10,114 103,703,483
CHIT Certificates of deposit issued - 658,213 7,452,408 2,640,816 = 10,751,437
DIESE AR A BR 2 Subordinated debts measured at amortised cost
RIEREE = 631,316 836,712 2,994,530 3,488,960 7,951,518
Hib &R K Other financial liabilities 60,648 874,023 208,647 8,402 116,382 1,288,102
ARA L% Total financial liabilities 17,490,028 94,113,128 11,353,201 9,151,951 3615456 135723764
RS AR Derivative cash flow
DIF A AT Derivative financial instruments
SMTHR settled on net basis = (29,182) (151,537) (342,687) (176,011) (699,417)
it th 40 Total outflow - 4,346,467 15,000,575 3,936,209 739,255 24,022,506
A SR Total inflow = (4,375,649)  (15,152,112) (4,278,896) (915266)  (24,721,923)
D) AR AR A T A Derivative financial instruments
SRTA settled on gross basis
it th 40 Total outflow - 52,912,964 6,806,875 262,615 - 59,982,454
A SR Total inflow - (52,900,792) (6,737,369) (257,482) - (59,895,643)
HEARRMEH Off-balance sheet items
AT Bank —HE T =8 Gl E HAERL L fst
No later than 1 year 1-5 years Over 5 years Total
Fikon Tt Tt T
ZEEANETZHA=1—H 31 December 2006 HK$000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
BRI Loan commitments 32,424,706 16,417,374 = 48,842,080
el Bfm o R B A Guarantees, acceptances and
other financial facilities 4,561,635 - - 4,561,635
CREHER Forward deposits placed 119,892 - - 119,892
At Total 37,106,233 16,417,374 = 53,523,607
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4.5

4.6

Strategy in using financial instruments

By their nature, the Group’s activities are principally related to the use of
financial instruments including derivatives. The Group accepts deposits
from customers at both fixed and floating rates, and for various periods,
and seeks to optimise the interest margins by investing these funds in
high-quality assets. The Group seeks to increase these margins generally
by consolidating short-term funds and lending for longer periods at
higher rates, while maintaining sufficient liquidity in the process to
meet all claims that might fall due.

The Group also seeks to raise its interest margins, net of allowances,
through lending to commercial and retail borrowers with a range of
credit standing. Such exposures involve not just on-balance sheet loans
and advances but also guarantees and other commitments such as
letters of credit and performance and other bonds.

The Group also trades in financial instruments by taking positions in
over-the-counter (“OTC”) instruments to take advantage of short-term
market movements in currencies, interest rates and securities prices.
The Board places trading limits on the level of exposure for trading
products.

(a)  Fair value hedges
The Group hedges part of the existing Hong Kong dollar and
foreign currency interest rate risk in its fixed rate assets by means
of interest rate and cross-currency interest rate swaps. The net fair
value of these swaps at 31 December 2007 was HK$0.3 million
(2006: HK$29 million).

(b)  Cash flow hedges
There were no such transactions during the year (2006: Nil).

Fair values of financial assets and liabilities
Financial instruments measured at fair value using a valuation technique

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets is based
on quoted market prices at the balance sheet date. The quoted market
price used for financial assets held by the Group is the current bid
price; the appropriate quoted market price for financial liabilities is the
current ask price.

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active
market (for example, over-the-counter derivatives) is determined by
using valuation techniques. The Group uses a variety of methods and
makes assumptions that are based observable on market conditions
existing at each balance sheet date. Dealer quotes are used for debt
securities and structured derivatives. The fair value of interest rate
swaps is calculated as the present value of the estimated future
cash flows. The fair value of forward foreign exchange contracts is
determined using forward exchange market rates at the balance sheet
date.
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Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (continued)

Where the transaction price in a non-active market is different to the
fair value from other observable current market transactions in the
same instrument or based on a valuation technique whose variables
include only data from observable markets, the Group immediately
recognises the difference between the transaction price and fair value (a
“Day 1” profit) in “Net trading income”. In cases where data which is
not observable is used, the difference between the transaction price and
model value is only recognised in the income statement when the inputs
become observable, or when the instrument is derecognised.

Financial instruments not measured at fair value
The fair values of financial assets and liabilities are estimated as follows:

(a)  Balances and placements with banks and other financial

institutions

The fair values of floating rate placements and overnight deposits
are their carrying amounts. The estimated fair value of fixed
interest-bearing deposits, all of which are due in less than one
year, is based on the discounted cash flows using the prevailing
money-market interest rates and the remaining maturity.
Therefore their fair values are approximately equal to their
carrying values.

(b)  Trade bills and loans and advances to customers, bank and

other financial institutions

Trade bills and loans and advances to customers, banks and
other financial institutions are net of allowances for impairment.
All items, except for a very insignificant portion of loans and
advances to customers, bear interest at a floating rate. The Group
has assessed the fair value of trade bills and loans and advances to
customers, bank and other financial institutions, after taking into
account the relevant market interest rates, and has noted that the
total fair value is not materially different from the total carrying
value.

(c)  Held-to-maturity financial investments
The fair value of held-to-maturity debt securities are determined
with reference to the available market values. If quoted market
prices are not available, then fair values are estimated on the
bases of pricing models or discounted cash flows that take
into consideration future earnings streams and valuations of
equivalent quoted securities.

i AP
Carrying value Fair Value
2007 2006 2007 2006
TH#L T Tt T#L
S B A AT Group and Bank HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$000
SR Financial asset
Fifi 2SR BE Held-to-maturity financial investments 3,313,817 4,132,972 3,315,275 4,134,900
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46 SRERENAMBZAHE @ 4.6 Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (continued)
d)  FS - RITRANM 2 R R 556 (d) Deposits and balances from customers, banks and other
financial institutions.
Ak BB HA B 09RO BRI AL R AT The estimated fair value of deposits and balances with no stated
(BB IR EIE S48 > a2 R BASRR A maturity is the amount repayable on demand. The fair values of
SEE(E RN A BE TR © those balances bearing floating rates are their carrying values.
E SRR SE AR 2 A T e T 35 e fE The estimated fair value of fixed interest-bearing deposits of
AT (6 2 JE 1l B B <6 ik ) banks and deposits from customers without quoted market price
FIERENH B RS FI R E - R a%E 4 is based on discounted cash flows using the interest rates for
ERBIRR B &5 H RS D — 4 > new debts with similar remaining maturity. As their maturity is
I HOER SRR H(E - normally less than one year from the balance sheet date, their fair
values are approximately equal to their carrying values.
(e) LEHITHFHFREMITH (e)  Certificates of deposit issued and subordinated debts
AR B SR T 2 A7 G A TR B 5 8 The Group has assessed the fair value of certificates of deposit
AHBH 2 AT AR > M R B T AL A B after taking into account the relevant yield curve, and has noted
IR T M TG A e R 2 5L o that the total fair value is not materially different from the total
carrying value.
() HAhEERAMEF (f)  Other assets and other liabilities
HoAth 7 S HA B R — A AT A LS The estimated fair value of the other assets and other liabilities,
SR > RICHAL AP A IR (E - which are normally non-interest-bearing, is their carrying value.
47 BAE 4.7 Capital management
A4 ) 2 B A B AR AR R A R B The Group’s objective for managing capital is to allocate capital in an
FIETAREA - DUBLAS T I 2 4850 % Jal b efficient and risk based approach to optimise risk adjusted return to the
S o A2 ) 7 A 2 3] JEL A A R B B shareholders. The Group periodically reviews its capital structure and
ZEATEREDL SR NS R B o maintains a strong capital base to support the development of its business.
v 4 R B R R AR SRAT MR A A AR The HKMA requires the Bank to maintain a ratio of total regulatory
R RE SR 2 B AR 78 2 HE ) FE AR capital to the risk-weighted asset (the capital adequacy ratio) at or
8% B LA | o ASHR [ 22 [ 4 W] A B A above the minimum of 8%. Subsidiaries of the Group are also subject
RN 8 55 S ) B s B AR 2 B T B 2 TR to statutory capital requirements from other regulatory authorities,
EARBLE o AT AR VLS8 EA 2 such as the Securities and Futures Commission. Capital adequacy
A S F PG LUE A KR B Bl € 2 A AT R and the use of regulatory capital are closely monitored by the Group’s
B2 R o T BRI 2R B DA AR TR R R management, employing techniques based on the Capital Rules. The
BRI T HBEREHER o AT LMK required information is filed with the HKMA on quarterly basis. The
AT 7 Pl R B A S R B R (1) © disclosure of capital adequacy and capital base are shown in Note (1) of
Supplementary Financial Information.
DL B 7R A SRAT A 7 T JE 0T foh e S AE — T 4R The following exhibits the Bank’s Basel II Pillar I Regulatory Capital
R A AR T B o AR AR B A B IR Adequacy Ratio (CAR) on consolidated basis. The Group will perform
EBUAT EAFRE K Bie > ASE A B 2E 1 o o capital planning and allocation in due course to fulfill Basel II Pillar 1T
AR Z BRI o RS AE N - A SR BB SE T standards. During those two years, the Group complied with all of the
T vis 4 W S R A MIE I 2 TR B AR E o externally imposed capital requirements by the HKMA.
2007 2006
G A Capital adequency ratio 13.0% 16.0%
4.8 BT ERE 4.8 Operational risk

B R B 1R R R A S R B EUOR REBE
o NBAT 5 KRR ESMEF R 7| B R
JEB:

Operational risk is the risk of losses resulting from inadequate systems,
process failure, fraud, people problem and external events.
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Operational risk (continued)

The operational risk section within the Risk Management Department
is the designated unit in charge of operational risk.

The operational risk section identifies key risk points in processes
and evaluates the underlying operational risks by reference to their
respective estimated impact and frequency via relevant interviews
and self-assessment exercises. Given the risk appetite that the Board
endorses, the Section sets up key risk indicators and collects actual
loss data across the Group’s business lines for monitoring the
underlying or remaining operational risks. Operational risk reports and
recommendations for better control are submitted to the Operational
Risk Committee, and then the Risk Management Committee, both of
which meet quarterly, for final reporting to the Board if needed.

Legal and compliance risk

Legal and compliance risk is the prospective risk of legal and regulatory
sanctions, financial loss, or reputation loss that the Group may suffer
as a result for violations of, or non-compliance with, all applicable laws,
regulations, internal policies with respect to the conduct of business.

Legal and compliance staff members advise the management on the
legal and regulatory developments and assist them in establishing
policies, procedures and monitoring program to ensure compliance
with the legal and regulatory requirements. They conduct regular
compliance checking so that the Group can identify any potential non-
compliance issue and take remedial action on a timely basis. They also
issue monthly bulletin and arrange training at least quarterly to enrich
the knowledge of all staff in the legal and regulatory requirements.
Furthermore, regular reports on non-compliance issues and the legal
and regulatory developments are made to the General Management
Committee.

Geographical area

The Group operates predominantly in Hong Kong. Less than 10% of
the Group’s income, profit, assets, liabilities, contingent liabilities or
commitments are attributable to the Group’s overseas operations.

Class of business

The Group comprises five business segments. Commercial banking
represents commercial lending and trade financing. Retail banking
represents retail banking, hire purchase and leasing, and credit card
business. Treasury and markets represents foreign exchange, money
market and capital market activities. Corporate and investment banking
mainly comprise corporate banking, the provision of debt capital
market and investment banking. Unallocated items mainly comprise
the central management unit, bank premises and any items which
cannot be reasonably allocated to a particular business segment.

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited 153
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e d:!
W& B¥ AT
R RERT Treasury ~ Corporate and Vit ]
Commercial Retail and  investment KB Inter- segment it
banking banking markets banking  Unallocated  elimination Total
T T T T T Tl T#x
“RRLA 2007 HKS'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS'000
ST/ ON Net interest income 810,496 527,977 576,057 321,141 152,334 - 2,388,005
e ULEIN Fee and commission income 262,792 285,181 8,478 149,192 13,719 - 719,362
Wi B4 () /WA Pee and commission (expense)/income (11,178) (25,826) 952 (4,965) (2,630) - (43,647)
e ING T Net fee and commission income 251,614 259,355 9,430 144,227 11,089 - 675,715
B Net trading income 7,172 10,215 38,215 2,104 127,886 - 185,592
RELVATEIAES R Net gain/(loss) on financial assets and liabilities
MEZSHEERAR  designated at fair value
gt/ (iR) through profit or loss - - 41,989 - (137,697) - (95,708)
KASMEEZBEMA  Dividend income from financial investments - 500 - 164 3,136 - 3,800
HfbE A Other operating income 5,449 3,860 1,459 352 10,161 - 21,281
AR Inter-segment income - 312,070 - - 831 (312,901) -
BERA Operating income 1,074,731 1,113,977 667,150 467,988 167,740 (312,901) 3,178,685
BEL Operating expenses (310,729) (485,704) (156,353) (52,186) (129,923) - (1,134,895)
i b Inter-segment expenses - - - - (312,901) 312901 -
FARBERE Operating profit/(loss) before
ZEERR/ (BR) impairment losses 764,002 628,273 510,797 415,802 (275,084) - 2,043,790
v CIEEIEUR Write-back of/(charge for)
E48 / (388) impairment losses on loans and advances (22,343) 19,273 (14,777) 72,137 60,576 - 114,866
FAZIMEMBERME  Write-back of impairment
[ losses on held-to-maturity financial investments - - 3,131 - - - 3,131
fft s E SRR Charge for impairment losses on
lEEEPS available-for-sale financial investments - - (234,024) - (17,905) - (251,929)
MRBERR Operating profit/(loss) after
ZEERRA/ (BR) impairment losses 741,659 647,546 265,127 487,939 (232413) - 1,909,858
AL Net revaluation gains on investment properties 2,461 - - - 300 - 2,761
e/ Net gain/(loss) from disposal/reversal
MR AAHE TR of revaluation deficits of property,
THREZ BB plantand equipment and leasedhold land and
a1 land use rights (3,944) 634 1) - 14413 - 11,102
EREHESBAE  Netgain on disposal of available-
gl for-sale financial investments - - 15270 - 1,346 - 16,616
AL/ (B8 Operating profit/(loss) 740,176 648,180 280,396 487,939 (216,354) - 1,940,337
FEAG e A vl g Al Share of profits of associates - - - - 11,297 - 11,297
BRBtaER/ (B1R) Profit/(loss) before tax 740,176 648,180 280,396 487,939 (205,057) - 1,951,634
AEE Segment assets 44,118,104 23,832,969 83,969,158 35,273,131 215,456 - 187,408,818
BB AR Z B E Investments in associates - - - - 184,054 - 184,054
FEEE Unallocated assets - - - - 4,711,188 - 4,711,188
N2 Total assets 44,118,104 23,832,969 83,969,158 35,273,131 5,110,698 - 192,304,060
A Segment liabilities 47,119,378 46,445,828 22,856,188 45311917 285,485 - 162,018,79%
FAEA R Unallocated liabilities - - - - 15,277,125 - 15,277,125
AR Total liabilities 47119378 46445828 22,856,188 45311917 15,562,610 - 177295921
S Capital expenditure 3,774 31,102 2,691 79 32,962 - 70,608
e S A Depreciation and amortisation charges 10,573 18,221 1,832 314 61,666 - 92,606
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¥R
ipy g7
TERAT ZEAL Treasury ~ Corporate and it b
Commercial Retail and investment R Inter-segment A5t
banking banking markets banking  Unallocated elimination Total
T Tl Ti Tik T T T
ZEERN 2006 HKS$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$000
W B A Net interest income 684,990 576,564 335,086 243,883 12,046 = 1,852,569
e UEIN Fee and commission income 196,219 171,192 12,848 201,295 1,042 - 582,596
Y EST Fee and commission expense (8,169) (11,774) - (411) (130) = (20,484)
e ING T Net fee and commission income 188,050 159418 12,848 200,884 912 = 562,12
FEHUA Net trading income 20486 7315 101,236 (35,605) 122,599 = 216,031
I Z‘EWA\W? (HfFHE4 %  Netloss on financial assets and liabilities
NEZERERE designated at fair value
)3 %Eﬁﬁ WA through profit or loss = = (28,132) - (54,750) = (82,882)
KAEMEEZBEIA  Dividend income from financial investments = 451 = 207 1,961 = 2619
HhE A Other operating income 1,653 3,061 495 45 41459 - 46,713
AR Inter-segment income - 40,882 - = 830 (41,712) -
EIUN Operating income 895,179 787,691 41,533 409,414 125,057 (41,712) 2,597,162
BEL Operating expenses (267,545) (455,051) (82,958) (45,751) (94,054) - (945,359)
I Inter-segment expenses - - - - (41,712) 41,712 -
FARBERR Operating profit/(loss) before
AL/ (BR) impairment losses 627,634 332,640 338,575 363,663 (10,709) - 1,651,803
j=v (CIEEIEUR Write-back of/(charge for)
i/ L8 impairment losses on loans and advances (38,542) (3,642) 519 (90,105) (401) - (132,171)
FHEIMSREBERE  Write-back off(charge for) impairment
BRERE/ ) losses on held-to-maturity financial investments - - (5,666) - - - (5,666)
BRBERE Operating profit/(loss) after
ZEERH/ ) impairment losses 589,092 328,998 333,428 273,558 (11,110) = 1,513,966
e /R Net gain/(loss) from disposal/reversal
WERBRHRHE LR of revaluation deficits of property,
TR M4 plantand equipment and leasehold land and
2t/ (R 1 land use rights (2,108) (4.346) (333) o) 6,793 - (15)
EREHESBAE  Netgain on disposal of available-
pal e for-sale financial investments - - 2,345 60,926 = = 83,271
BEGF/ (BR) Operating profit/(loss) 586,984 304,652 355,420 334,483 (4317) - 1,597,222
TE e A Al Share of profits of associates - - - - 5,739 - 5,739
Bt Profit before tax 586,984 304,652 355,420 334,483 1422 = 1,602,961
ibEE Segment assets 29,241,176 21,514,131 66,522,447 26,462,469 280,560 - 144020783
REEARZRE Investments in associates - - - - 34,485 - 34,485
REEE Unallocated assets - - - - 2,336,491 = 2,336,491
e Total assets 29,241,176 21,514,131 66,522,447 26,462,469 2,651,536 - 146391759
Gin9=U Segment labilities 24,859,221 36,920999 14,498,113 38,862,466 285,82 - 115426621
FMEAR Unallocated liabilities - - - - 19,879,835 - 19,879,835
AR Total liabilities 24,859,221 36,920999 14,498,113 38,862,466 20,165,657 - 135306456
B Capital expenditure 10,689 56,383 38 77 12,273 - 79,460

i L&A Depreciation and amortisation charges 8,637 14,956 1,341 65 57,114 - 82,113
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2007 2006
T#T T
HK$’000 HK$000
PAURIEH Z FLEMA - Interest income on:
B 4 S RAT B Cash and balances with banks and

At <5 B 2 465 A7 other financial institutions 1,964,141 1,408,186
GRAT B Ath 45 Rl A Placements with and advances to

AR banks and other financial institutions 445,676 603,495
KF -~ GRAT S HAth Loans and advances to customers,

S ARG 2 B banks and other financial institutions 5,589,240 4,155,868
SR E — ke & Financial investments — available-for-sale 586,293 472,063
SEE — a2 5 Financial investments — held-to-maturity 164,922 174,642

8,750,272 6,814,254
FHERR Y ik 2 R Financial assets held for trading 652 359
78 PLA-PEE A B 5 R AR Financial assets designated
2 A RE R at fair value through profit or loss 94,134 111,908
8,845,058 6,926,521
DA H Z FLE S Interest expense on:
GRAT By HoAth 45 R b i 2~ fE 3 ) 458k Deposits from banks and other financial institutions 748,146 789,524
KPP Deposits from customers 4,700,536 3,139,040
T T Certificates of deposit issued 186,649 249,077
DA A AR 2 AR AE AR T Subordinated debts measured at amortised cost 424,241 348,560
HoAtb Others 50,868 63,845
6,110,440 4,590,046
5 E DI P EER R RARR Financial liabilities designated
Z R at fair value through profit or loss 346,613 483,906
6,457,053 5,073,952
LN ON Net interest income 2,388,005 1,852,569
BEEEZLET+HA=1T—HIEEE » BF - 857 The amount of interest income on loans and advances to customers, banks
T At 45 Rl R 2 R B A U3 B K IB s 2 and other financial institutions includes the interest income on unwinding
S ] 915,000 70 ( —FEINAE ¢ 14,203,229 1% of discount on loan impairment losses of HK$915,000 for the year ended 31

Jo) (Fftgk27) - December 2007 (2006: HK$14,203,229) (Note 27).
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2007 2006
T#T T
HK$’000 HK$000
B B R AE R Loans, overdrafts and guarantees 245,433 253,810
w5 M A A Securities and brokerage 182,803 77,148
g ' >
205y Trade finance 140,820 119,162
BFHR Credit card 32,951 20,512
TR Remittance 22,837 19,821
TRk Insurance 11,538 9,083
HoA 2 K 7 S SRA TR 5 Other retail and commercial banking services 31,693 28,887
HoAtb Others 51,287 54,173
W AR A A Fee and commission income 719,362 582,596
Wi I A 42 3 Fee and commission expense (43,647) (20,484)
WSz 2 T AR 4 e A\ VAR Net fee and commission income 675,715 562,112
Horp Of which:
W SO A TR AR (A o8 2 B TR R R I Net fee income, other than amounts included
ERtA ~ SRR E BT in determining the effective interest rate, arising from
678 LA TEE AR 5 RAR financial assets or financial liabilities that are not held
2 4 A i A R T E A for trading nor designated at fair value
ZAKIEERSM) through profit or loss 386,253 372,973
KA AR [ QR P Rf e Net fee income on trust and other fiduciary
BB A5 R S HA 32 5T\ EXS activities where the Group
7 73 A= 2 FRSCE A holds or invests on behalf of its customers 9,020 7,075
2007 2006
T#IT T
HK$’000 HK$000
Hrp: Of which:
i 7 i AL AL Wi B A B s Fee and commission income by product line constitutes
AT IR R AR 4 KRR not less than 10% of the total amount of fees and
[ER e R 1 commission income, as follows:
— s KA - securities and brokerage 182,803 77,148
— SRR - sydication loan 137,385 131,181
— 1T e 5 ~ inwards bill 82,895 82,619
— K — instalment loan - 77,612
2007 2006
Tl R
HK$’000 HK$°000
JBRER Equity investments (976) 14,387
(e Debt securities 65,259 (27,480)
fiidE TH Derivatives 56,161 100,546
S Foreign exchange 65,213 128,578
HAh Others (65) -
BN Total net trading income 185,592 216,031

T 20 T A SR RL 3 DABIRGH RAS A MR 2 <l 8 i i

413,000 #57G °

Included in total net trading income is the gain on financial liabilities

measured at amortised cost of HK$413,000.
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2007 2006
T#x T
HK$’000 HK$ 000
i 78 LA-FEE A B i RAUR Financial assets designated
2 &G E at fair value through profit or loss 51,867 (16,763)
16 LAA-TE A SR 45 R AR Financial liabilities designated
2 &R B R at fair value through profit or loss (147,575) (66,119)
1678 AA-THE(E A8 1R 5 R AR Total net loss on financial assets
4 T E I and liabilities designated at
B 1R TR A KA fair value through profit or loss (95,708) (82,882)
2007 2006
T T
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHEE B S Dividend income from listed financial assets held
2 Ei AR E 2 S for trading 409 =
IE T LS B S R & Dividend income from unlisted available-for-sale
Z BRI A financial investments 3,391 2,619
A H AR 2 S IS SRR Total dividend income from financial investments 3,800 2,619
2007 2006
T#IT T
HK$’000 HK$000
BT A Management fee income 7,857 6,300
FHA A Rental income 887 1,535
BB FHEUA Rental income from investment properties 963 =
W SENEAETBIA Z Less: Direct operating expenses arising from investment properties (118) -
BEW L AW that generated rental income during the year
HoAte Others 11,692 38,878
HoAth 2 2B A S8%H Total other operating income 21,281 46,713
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200_7 20(L6
T#x T
HK$’000 HK$000
BT HH Staff costs:

—# 4 B HA ST H — Salaries and other costs 526,392 494,359
— B - Redundancy payments 1,125 401
—IBRE — Retirement benefit costs 30,384 29,225
557,901 523,985

LEN S P Premises and equipment expenses, excluding depreciation and

(LG8 S e amortisation:

— YA — Rental of premises 151,888 97,449
— HAth - Others 65,818 75,896
217,706 173,345
reE MRS S Depreciation and amortisation expenses 92,606 82,113
127 ST 4 Auditors’ remuneration 4,598 3,564
1T B General administration expenses 28,062 27,907
TEE% 2 Business promotion expenses 39,648 28,127
= Qi) Communication expenses 42,390 32,910
HoAth# 2557 Other operating expenses 151,984 73,408
eSS Lk Total operating expenses 1,134,895 945,359

I 4R i AT B 2 AR IR ST A A AR SR I SR AR Ak 4
wld ) S R A e w ) ([t ) 2B 2 fatask

REERt S > AEEZ B TIEA S EREHREE T
PEFCRTE 51 B > A A ) AT Y2 i £ R DA ek R AT 2
HEEK - Eﬂqaéﬂfﬂu/\usooow&m TERTINAE
3,050,000 #570) Z W UCAEER > AEEE H Rk 141, 000{%75
(ZZBEINAF ¢ 166 0004%71: R Btz

TGS P SIf R A 2 SR (TR RONAE ¢ M) o F
B2 G AR R A \ZF%@ZQ?%EE&IE

The retirement benefit scheme cost charged to the income statement
represents contributions payable by the Group to the ORSO Scheme and the
MPF Scheme (the “Schemes”).

Under the Schemes, the Group’s contributions are reduced by contributions
forfeited by those employees who leave the Schemes prior to the contributions
vesting fully. Forfeited contributions totalling HK$4,380,000 (2006:
HK$3,050,000) were utilised during the year, leaving HK$141,000 (2006:
HK$166,000) available at the year-end to reduce future contributions.

No contributions were payable to the Schemes at the year end (2006: Nil).
The assets of the Schemes are held separately from those of the Group in
independently administered funds.

2007 2006
T#T T
HK$’000 HKS$’000
BRI ([195) 8 (Write-back of)/charge for impairment losses on loans and advances
i e Al Individually assessed
— - New allowances 115,352 213,395
— — Releases (145,243) (56,181)
— Ui [m] (B 5E 27) ~ Recoveries (Note 27) (63,719) (44,028)
18] B A B ﬁ{ﬁfﬁﬁ% Net (write-back of)/charge for impairment losses on individually
(E1488) /o4 (BftE 27) assessed loans and advances (Note 27) (93,610) 113,186
AR Collectively assessed
— ~ New allowances 45,988 27,513
— 45 — Releases (67,244) (8,528)
— e[l (Pf5E27) - Recoveries (Note 27) - _
HLE RTAG L) ﬂﬁ?ﬁ% Net (write-back of)/charge for impairment losses on collectively
([E19%) /S o 38 (BteE 27) assessed loans and advances (Note 27) (21,256) 18,985
R AR ([E43) B A Net (write-back of)/charge to the income statement (114,866) 132,171
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2007 2006
TH#sL T
HK$’000 HK$000
Hh B ) S M AR 2 it VR A Net gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment 7,328 1,989
BEm (S 8Y) SRATH S E M Al Write-back of/(charge for) reversal of revaluation deficits of
bank premises 2,921 (1,130)
L, S - b P REE D (1R 2 Write-back of/(charge for) impairment losses on
a4, (SZ8) (e 34) leasehold land and land use rights. (Note 34) 853 (874)
11,102 (15)

T U FI AR T AR A AR BEA [ v 2 A s RS s A
YRR 17.5% (" BENAE © 17.5%) Wl o BRI
A7 B e 2 ) MRE SRS S 1) ot TEAR A A B B A7 i
PR AN [ T B R B TR R -

TR A R AR R S BIE f

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 17.5% (2006: 17.5%) on
the estimated assessable profits arising in Hong Kong during the year. Taxes on
profits assessable for overseas branches and subsidiaries have been calculated at
the rates of tax prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates, based
on existing legislation, interpretations and practices in respect thereof.

The amount of tax charged to the consolidated income statement represents:

2007 2006
T THIT
HK$’000 HK$000
AR — F s FIE B Current tax - provision for Hong Kong profits tax
AN BLIE Tax for the year 318,115 269,322
ML AR BEEA AN Underprovision in respect of prior years 8,057 8,365
326,172 277,687
AR TE — g SNBETE HE A Current tax - provision for overseas tax
A A B E Tax for the year 17,594 5,907
AT A B AN 2 Underprovision in respect of prior years - 84,847
17,594 90,754
IR] Hh B0 e A i W 2 A A Deferred taxation relating to the origination and reversal
ZARFERIIE (P 38) of temporary differences (Note 38) (920) (11,072)
342,846 357,369

A B A ] R T ) < 0 T BB B T ol 2 B
M 2 B LR 2 22 HT

The difference between the tax expense for the Group’s profit before tax and
the theoretical amount that would arise using the current tax rate is as follows:

2007 2006

T#x THETT

HK$’000 HK$000

il Profit before tax 1,951,634 1,602,961
B H17.5% Calculated at a tax rate of 17.5%

(ZFEINAE ¢ 17.5%) 7HE (2006: 17.5%) 341,536 280,519
A 3] AR B 2R 2 R 2 Effect of different tax rates in other countries 2,791 (1,210)
SEZEIBL 2 WA Income not subject to tax (81,764) (39,645)
SEBLBS T = AS 1k S Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 74,203 27,700
TR AR BE B JE i Adjustments in respect of current tax of previous years 8,057 93,212
ol FH AR 1 A R T e 15 Utilisation of tax losses from previous years - (2,203)
A3 A A R BLIE Share of tax of associates (1,977) (1,004)
P Tax charge 342,846 357,369
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@ EEBS (a) Directors’ emoluments

The remuneration of every director for the year ended 31 December

FER SRS 4 2007 is set out below:

VAL AT

(5 Rk 13)

54 Bt BHE4L  Contributions to
LK Salaries and Discretionary  the Schemes (as it
Fees allowances bonuses defined in Note 13) Total
T# T#E T T T
wAEH Name of director HK$000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
ZEERE L Dr. Jiang Jianqing 190 - - - 190
ERBLL Ms. Wang Lili 140 - - - 140
Kk Mr. Zhu Qi - 2,347 1,600 217 4,164
BRI Mr. Chen Aiping 90 - - - 90
fivey Vit Mr. Wong Yuen Fai - 3,310 1,550 305 5,165
SRESSEA: Mr. Zhang Yi - 1,723 1,300 159 3,182
Damis Jacobus Ziengs /&4 Mr. Damis Jacobus Ziengs 90 - - - 90
TF#i#d% » SBS. » K41+ Prof. Wong Yue Chim, Richard, SB.S. ].P.* 250 - - - 250
RIEHE L Mr. Tsui Yiu Wa, Alec* 250 - - - 250
PSR bt Mr. Yuen Kam Ho, George* 250 - - - 250
1,260 7,380 4,450 681 13,771

* WAL BATHE & Independent non-executive directors

The remuneration of every director for the year ended 31 December

HRERPHE—FTAET A=+ —HILE

BE RS R 2006 is set out below:

AR

(& THFE13)

B IR WIE/EAL Contributions to

[iEA Salaries and Discretionary the Schemes (as i
Fees allowances bonuses defined in Note 13) Total
T TH#T TH#T T T
HRILA Name of director HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
LHEN L Dr. Jiang Jianqing 190 - - - 190
ERBLL Ms. Wang Lili 140 - - - 140
Y S0 Mr. Zhu Qi - 2,300 1,400 212 3,912
BBtk Mr. Chen Aiping 90 - - - 90
HEHEE Mr. Wong Yuen Fai - 3,952 500 291 4743
IRESSEE Mr. Zhang Yi - 1,690 1,100 156 2,946
Damis Jacobus Ziengs 7/ Mr. Damis Jacobus Ziengs 90 - - = 90
ETFWHHL  SBS. - KFAId:*  Prof. Wong Yue Chim, Richard, $..S. ].P.* 220 - - - 220
RIS Mr. Tsui Yiu Wa, Alec* 220 - - - 220
AR Mr. Yuen Kam Ho, George* 220 - - - 220
1,170 7,942 3,000 659 12,771
* LI BATHE & Independent non-executive directors

There was no arrangement under which any director waived or agreed
to waive any remuneration during the year.

AT A T 0 S S ) A M 2B
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(b) FAAZFEHMAL (b) Five highest paid individuals
AEEENN SRS LA AN LA =4 The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the Group
(CBERNE - =4) > HME R B for the year included three directors (2006: three) whose emoluments
Beo SRR REMN DAL (CEEANFE W are reflected in the analysis presented above. The emoluments paid and
) NERElaan R payable to the remaining two (2006: two) individuals during the year

were as follows:

2007 2006
T#0 THIT
HK$’000 HK$°000
FEAFH A~ B REA Basic salaries, housing allowances,

HoAd R 2 A 1 other allowances and benefits in kind 4,439 4,244
fEAL Bonuses 1,660 1,600
N En UL Contributions to the Schemes 492 435

6,591 6,279
P <55 e BE 40 T The emoluments fall within the following bands:
T 4 g Emolument bands 2007 2006
2,000,001 # L % 2,500,000 #5 TT HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 - -
2,500,001 #5 7T % 3,000,000 # 7T HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 1 1
3,000,001 #C 2 3,500,000 57T HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 - -
3,500,001 #5 76 % 4,000,000 % 7T HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000 1 1
AR AR SRR 2 45 6 U A P E B FE AR SRATIR H 2 The consolidated profit attributable to equity holders of the Group includes a
it F1] 1,468,387,000 # 7G ( —ZEI/N4E + 1,225,939,000 #5 gross profit of HK$1,468,387,000 (2006: HK$1,225,939,000) which has been
JG) ° dealt with in the accounts of the Bank.
2007 2006
T#x THIT
HK$°000 HK$000
ELYRAST P 30 8 B 5 B 98 2 0.23 5 JC Paid interim dividend of HK$0.23 (2006: HK$0.20)

(ZZINAE 020 00) per ordinary share 262,114 224,252
5 YR ASH A I 5 B A5 5 49 0.63 5 T Proposed final dividend of HK$0.63 (2006: HK$0.46)

(ZFEZNAE  046W70) per ordinary share 772,350 515,779

1,034,464 740,031
REERNFEEA = AR e E > ERERIR At a meeting held on 13 March 2008, the directors proposed a final dividend
A AR e B BB A % 0.63 WS UG o A BRBEUR B A A of HK$0.63 per ordinary share. The proposed final dividend was not reflected
AR H RS REAT RS » EAFERE —FELF as dividend payable in these accounts, but will be reflected as an appropriation

ToHA =+ B IR AR B RS R of retained earnings for the year ended 31 December 2007.
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AR A B AT HR R EAG AF A - BRLAAE A E 8%
A7 B2 IR 3 B B o

Basic earnings per share amount is calculated by dividing the profit for
the year attributable to equity holders by the weighted average number of
ordinary shares in issue during the year.

2007 2006
JB R A 165 ] (%5 0) Profit attributable to equity holders (HK$’000) 1,608,788 1,245,592
B BE A7 08 1 2 I HE S 24 8 (T %) Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue (thousands) 1,139,221 1,121,259
T A B A (15 s o) Basic earnings per share (HKS per share) 1.41 1.11

ATERRALF A = — H I 50,284,049 5 R AT
GBI RE (BT NAE « JE) o B RAT B EHE RS
SN AR N LA B R B S B RORE 5 Ok T DA B
BEE _FRLES A = B IR R R

There were 50,284,049 warrants outstanding as at 31 December 2007 (2006:
Nil). Diluted earnings per share amount for the year ended 31 December 2007
has not been disclosed as the warrants outstanding had an anti-dilutive effect
on the basic earnings per share for the year.

B o
fhe) Xk Tt
lE ATHEAKR WSS HHEEE OBk CRSA
HERAMNE MG Designated  Available-  Heldto-  Loansand Other Gk
Trading  Hedging atfair value for-sale  maturity  receivables amortised cost Total
K%M Group T THL T T#x T T T#x T#L
REZRLEFZN=T-0 31 December 2007 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$000 HK$°000 HKS'000
B Assets
R RFma Cash and balances with banks and

Hit SRR G other financial institutions - - - - - - 13666354 43,666,354
G EN R 3 Placements with and advances to

ZHEFRER banks and other financial institutions - - - - - 1,005,234 - 1,005,234
itk ERMIR Derivative financial instruments 1,181,671 32,067 - - - - - 123738
KF -~ ST R Loans and advances to customers,

B4 YA banks and other financial institutions - - - - - 121,703,671 - 121,703,671
b8 G Investment securities 54,256 - 1,754,742 15,326911 3,313,817 - - 20,449,726
SREEAE Total financial assets 1,235,927 32,067 1,754,742 15,326911 3,313,817 122,708,905 43,666,354 188,038,723
FamEE Non-financial assets 4,265,337
g Total assets 192,304,060
s Liabilities
G EX Deposits from banks

SRERZ I NER and other financial institutions - - - - - - 20235806 20235806
fitk&MILA Derivative financial instruments 1,319,298 32,400 - - - - - 1351698
RN Deposits from customers - - 29874 - - - 1LY 137,530,227
BT sk RE BT Certificates of deposit issued and debt securities in issue - - 6225271 - - - 599,997 6,825,268
DMBBI A A2 R B EE Subordinated debts measured at amortised cost - - - - - - 7545620 7,545,620
SHAREH Total financial liabilities 1,319,298 3400 6523545 - - - 165613376 173,488,619
FemAak Non-financial liabilities 3,807,302
AR Total liabilities 177,295,921
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fEbl BHR b:
WEATEEAR  HESE SEEIY  BIGUE  CESNA
fEhfE  HWH%E  Designated  Avalable  Heldto-  Loansand Other ot
Trading Hedging  at fair value for - sale maturity  receivables amortised cost Total
HER Group T T T i Tl T T T
REZEAET A=A 31 December 2006 HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS$000
it Assets
Fe R Cash and balances with banks and

NI e other financial institutions = = = = = - 45495112 45495112
TEST R4 R b Placements with and advances to

2R B banks and other financial institutions - - - - - 5,015,135 - 5,015,135
itk 2MTR Derivative financial instruments 667,357 45,845 - - - - - 713,202
%F - R Loans and advances to customers,

SRR S5 banks and other financial institutions = = = = - 75647756 - 75,647,756
bl cic Tnvestment securities 56,468 S 1704349 11052318 4132972 = - 16946107
SREEGH Total financial assets 723,825 465845 1704349 11052318 4132972 80,662,891 45495112 143817312
FemGE Non-financial assets 2,574,447
gy Total assets 146,391,759
i Liabilities
TR Deposits from banks

Ey v e and other financial institutions - - - - - - 12,007,678 12,007,678
fit4MTE Derivative financial instruments 755,878 17,038 - - - - - 773,116
Rt Deposits from customers - - 385,298 - - - 9185259 99570557
CETHFRRCBEES Certificates of deposit issued and debt securities in issue - - 8348668 - - - AYTLITL 13319839
DVERGH AR AR 2 fR A8 fE Subordinated debts measured at amortised cost = = = = = - 757950 7,527,950
SRAREH Total financial liabiities 755,878 17038 8733966 = s - 123,692,058 133,199,140
FomAK Non-financial liabilities 2,107,316
ARAE Total liabilities 135,306,456
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70 i 9/4 T
il APREAK  MREE  REEEN RGO oA
HERAME  HWHE  Designated  Available- Held-to-  Loansand Other 3t
Trading  Hedging atfair value forsale  maturity  receivables amortised cost Total
P30 Bank T#x T#x T Ti#x T#x T#x T T#x
e 2 S5 gy = o | 31 December 2007 HKS000  HK$000  HK$000  HKS000  HK$000  HK$000  HKS000  HKS'000
it Assets
B4 kR Cash and balances with banks and

pE L v other financial institutions - - - - - - 3160520 43160520
FESIT RE M & R Placements with and advances to

ZHEFRER banks and other financial institutions - - - - - 1,620813 - 1,620,813
MESETHE Derivative financial instruments 1,194,379 32,067 - - - - - 1,226,446
KF - S R Loans and advances to customers,

SRRz &N banks and other financial institutions - - - - - 114,877,082 - 114,877,082
8- Cors Investment securities 54,256 - L4742 1532648 3313817 - - 20,449,063
SREEME Total financial assets 1,248,635 3,067 1754740 15326248 3313817 116497895 43,160,520 181,333,924
FomGRE Non-financial assets 6,225,390
e Total assets 187,559,314
it Liabilities
ST RN Deposits from banks

SRR R ER and other financial institutions - - - - - - 16230,140 16,230,140
EEHTE Derivative financial instruments 1,319,298 32,400 - - - - - 1,351,698
ASNiE Deposits from customers - - 298,274 - - - 139,675,084 139,973,358
B#fTHE Certificates of deposit issued - - 3105399 - - - 599997 3,705,396
DMBBI R A2 1R B RE Subordinated debts measured at amortised cost - - - - - - 7545620 7,545,620
SRARE Total financial liabilities 1,319,298 32400 3,403,673 - - - 164050,841 168,806,212
FERAR Non-financial liabilities 4152,93
ARAE Total liabilities 172,959,147
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fEbl BHR b:
WEATEEAR  HESE SEEIY  BIGUE  CESNA
fEhfE  HWH%E  Designated  Avalable  Heldto-  Loansand Other ot
Trading Hedging  at fair value for - sale maturity  receivables amortised cost Total
AT Bank T T T i Tl T T T
REZEAET A=A 31 December 2006 HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS$000
it Assets
B4 ReRfri Cash and balances with banks and

pE L v other financial institutions = = = = = - 44926368 44926368
TES1T R M & RN Placements with and advances to

ZHEFRER banks and other financial institutions - - - - - 5,779,578 - 5,779,578
MESETH Derivative financial instruments 667,357 45,845 = = = = = 713,202
KF - B4 R Loans and advances to customers,

SRRz &N banks and other financial institutions = = = = - 4651076 - TAB5L076
8- Cors Investment securities 56,468 - 1704349 1L0SL609 4132972 = - 1694539
SREESMH Total financial assets 723825 585 1704349 11051609 4132972 80430654 44926368 143015622
FomGRE Non-financial assets 3,622,565
e Total assets 146,638,187
itk Liabilities
ST RN Deposits from banks

SRR R and other financial institutions = = = = = - 12009483 12,009483
S TH Derivative financial instruments 755,878 17,238 - - - - - 773,116
KRl Deposits from customers - - 337529 - - - 99625692 103000988
B#fTHE Certificates of deposit issued - - 5350864 - - S AYTLITL 10322035
DABESH AR A B R M fER Subordinated debts measured at amortised cost - - - - = - 757950 7,527,950
SRARAE Total financial liabilities 755,878 17038 8726160 = s - 1413429 133633572
FERAR Non-financial liabilities 2,070,702
ARAE Total liabilities 135,704,274
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A A AT
Group Bank
2007 2006 2007 2006
T-#IL T T#IT T
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
Bl Cash in hand 214,809 214,739 214,809 214,739
HRLERAT 2 45T Balances with central banks 394,824 113,780 249,426 98,015
oAt BRAT F 4 Rl Balances with other banks and
W2 Hh5 AT financial institutions 989,350 851,570 807,318 807,133
A8 A LA E 2 Placements with banks and other
$RAT M HA financial institutions with maturity
4 R R X within one month 42,067,371 44,315,023 41,888,967 43,806,481
43,666,354 45,495,112 43,160,520 44,926,368
A A A HAT
Group Bank
2007 2006 2007 2006
T T T#T T
HKS$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
A—F+ A A 2z Placements with banks and
SRAT P HA other financial institutions maturing
S AR REAT 3K between one and twelve months 955,234 5,015,135 1,570,813 5,779,578
SRAT B At Gross advances to banks and
A6 B R MR other financial institutions 50,000 = 50,000 =
1,005,234 5,015,135 1,620,813 5,779,578
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G B B AR S AT
Group and Bank
2007 2006
T#T THIT
HK$°000 HK$000
B2 > HRATEE - Debt securities, at fair value:
e B Listed in Hong Kong 255 100
I L Unlisted 16,401 13,768
16,656 13,868
AR S > AT Equity securities, at fair value:

&M LT Listed in Hong Kong 37,600 42,600
FRVERS 5 i i 4 il s e A Total financial assets held for trading 54,256 56,468
FHERC o) g 2 Rl & e Financial assets held for trading are analysed by

AT NS category of issuer as follows:

INEHERE Public sector entities 14,553 13,868

SRAT e HoAth 4 A Banks and other financial institutions 39,703 42,600

54,256 56,468
A4 Bl B A AT
Group and Bank
2007 2006
T#x Tk T
HK$°000 HK$°000
i > A TEME - Debt securities, at fair value:

i N i Listed in Hong Kong 80,983 75,524

AT LA At [ i Listed outside Hong Kong 715,974 751,039

I ki Unlisted 957,785 877,786
8 € VA FEE R R AR Total financial assets designated at fair value through

2 4 R A profit or loss 1,754,742 1,704,349
16 A TE AR 4 AR Financial assets designated at fair value through profit or loss

EREEASUTIEE are comprised of the following items:

T A 2 AR RS TR R B H Certificates of deposit held remaining maturity

——fEH LA - Up to 1 month 100,006 =
——4ERL E B RAE — 1-5 years - 99,704
100,006 99,704

HAth i 25 Other debt securities 1,654,736 1,604,645

1,754,742 1,704,349
16 A TE AR 4 RARRZ Financial assets designated at fair value through profit or loss

BRVEFER LT AJERIHT ¢ are analysed by category of issuer as follows:

HH SRR K SR AT Central governments and central banks 209,143 208,116

INERE Public sector entities 203,410 197,231

SRAT T HoAth 4 A Banks and other financial institutions 480,758 483,121

foe Corporate entities 861,431 815,881

1,754,742 1,704,349
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The Group enters into the following equity, foreign exchange and interest
rate related derivative financial instruments for trading and risk management
purposes:

Currency forwards represent commitments to purchase and sell foreign
currency on a future date.

Currency and interest rate swaps are commitments to exchange one set of
cash flows for another. Swaps result in an exchange of currencies, interest
rates (for example, fixed rate for floating rate), or a combination of all these
(i.e. cross-currency interest rate swaps). Except for certain currency swap
contracts, no exchange of principal takes place.

Foreign currency, interest rate and equity options are contractual agreements
under which the seller (writer) grants the purchaser (holder) the right,
but not the obligation, either to buy (a call option) or sell (a put option) at
or by a set date or during a set period, a specific amount of the financial
instrument at a predetermined price. In consideration for the assumption of
foreign exchange and interest rate risk, the seller receives a premium from
the purchaser. Options are negotiated over-the-counter (“OTC”) between
the Group and its counterparty or traded through the stock exchange (for
example, exchange-traded stock option).

The contractual/notional amounts and fair values of derivative financial
instruments held by the Group are set out in the following tables. The
contractual/notional amounts of these instruments indicate the volume
of transactions outstanding at the balance sheet dates and certain of them
provide a basis for comparison with fair value instruments recognised on
the consolidated balance sheet. However, they do not necessarily indicate
the amounts of future cash flows involved or the current fair values of the
instruments and, therefore, do not indicate the Group’s exposure to credit or
market risks. The derivative financial instruments become favourable (assets)
or unfavourable (liabilities) as a result of fluctuations in market interest rates,
foreign exchange rates and equity relative to their terms. The aggregate fair
values of derivative financial instruments assets and liabilities can fluctuate
significantly from time to time.

The Group trades derivative products (both exchange-traded or OTC) mainly
for customer business. The Group strictly follows risk management policies
in providing derivative products to our customers and in trading of derivative
products in the interbank market.

Derivatives are also used to manage the interest rate risk of the banking book.
A derivative instrument must be included in the approved product list before
any transactions for that instrument can be made. There are limits to control
the notional amount of exposure arising from derivative transactions, and
the maximum tenor of the deal and management alert limit in profit or loss
is set. Every derivative transaction must be input into the relevant system for
settlement, mark to market revaluation, reporting and control.
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The following tables summaries the contractual/notional amounts of each

HZ&H/ ZEG B significant type of derivative financial instrument as at 31 December:
A
Group
w8 HEER ATV ARk
Contractual/ <4 1%
notional Fair value Fair value
amount assets liabilities
T#T T#T T#T
“RRLE 2007 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
1) FEEE fEz A TA 1) Derivatives held for trading
a) AhEERTAE T H. a) Foreign exchange derivatives
— &l - Currency forwards 93,761,244 674,483 (705,905)
— 3G AN W - OTC currency options bought and sold 28,466,452 97,606 (106,461)
HMEAT A T EL 4% Total foreign exchange derivatives 772,089 (812,366)
b) FIZFAT4E T H b) Interest rate derivatives
— ISR — Interest rate swaps 30,493,902 401,033 (498,197)
S AIE S - OTC interest rate options 7,484,940 5,171 (5,357)
— HAbF|RE &) — Other interest rate contracts 600,000 1,505 (1,505)
FlZefir e TR A Total interest rate derivatives 407,709 (505,059)
o) BAfA TR c) Equity derivatives
— AR - Equity options 80,852 1,873 (1,873)
FREEE e fiid TRHEE Total derivative assets/(liabilities)
(R A held for trading 1,181,671 (1,319,298)
2) FefES W EfTE TR 2) Derivatives held for hedging
a) HE A TEE 24T H  a) Derivatives designated as fair value hedges
— |44 — Interest rate swaps 2,266,544 32,067 (32,400)
FREE HE 2 i TR Total derivative assets/(liabilities)
G, (AR Ha% held for hedging 32,067 (32,400)
R TREmMEE Total recognised derivative assets/(liabilities)
(RfR) H%E 1,213,738 (1,351,698)
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A G
Bank
8 BEREW AP AP
Contractual/ <23 £14%
notional Fair value Fair value
amount assets liabilities
T T T
“RRLE 2007 HKS$°000 HKS$°000 HK$°000
1) FEEE R AT E TR 1) Derivatives held for trading
a) AMEMTAE T H a) Foreign exchange derivatives
— s - Currency forwards 93,761,244 674,483 (705,905)
—IGAN AR - OTC currency options bought and sold 28,466,452 97,606 (106,461)
HMEEATAE T H A0 %H Total foreign exchange derivatives 772,089 (812,366)
b) FIFAE T E b) Interest rate derivatives
— il Z — Interest rate swaps 33,614,222 413,741 (498,197)
— B AR R A - OTC interest rate options 7,484,940 5,171 (5,357)
— HAFIRAH) - Other interest rate contracts 600,000 1,505 (1,505)
2 fir il TR Aa%E Total interest rate derivatives 420,417 (505,059)
o) BAMAETH c) Equity derivatives
— A - Equity options 80,852 1,873 (1,873)
FHERE gz ik LA Total derivative assets/(liabilities)
G,/ (BlH) HEE held for trading 1,194,379 (1,319,298)
2) FRESE AR 2 AT A TH 2) Derivatives held for hedging
a) HE A TEE 2414 T H  a) Derivatives designated as fair value hedges
— Il R 45 — Interest rate swaps 2,266,544 32,067 (32,400)
FREE HE 2 T4 TR Total derivative assets/(liabilities)
i (A ) s held for hedging 32,067 (32,400)
ELRERRATAE TR Total recognised derivative assets/(liabilities)

i, (A A% 1,226,446 (1,351,698)
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ARSE B B AR SRA T
Group and Bank
ROV s AR NFE
Contractual/ B A
notional Fair value Fair value
amount assets liabilities
THIT THIT T
ZERTNE 2006 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000
1) FEE B R AT E TR 1) Derivatives held for trading
a) AMEMTAE T H a) Foreign exchange derivatives
— W - Currency forwards 78,090,202 275,436 (278,276)
— AN AR - OTC currency options bought and sold 10,926,410 20,773 (19,724)
HMRERTA: T HE AR Total foreign exchange derivatives 296,209 (298,000)
b) FlRATAE TR b) Interest rate derivatives
— | s — Interest rate swaps 25,819,500 366,340 (453,771)
— B AR R - OTC interest rate options 7,229,572 3,294 (3,341)
— HAbFREZ - Other interest rate contracts 905,561 1,222 (474)
A4 T H 4050 Total interest rate derivatives 370,856 (457,586)
o) BAMAETH c) Equity derivatives
— A A HE - Equity options 74,678 292 (292)
e EEfemt T HERE Total derivative assets/(liabilities) held for trading
(Ffif) A 667,357 (755,878)
2) FRESB R &R ATAE A 2) Derivatives held for hedging
a) HE M ATEE 2414 T H  a) Derivatives designated as fair value hedges
— I SR — Interest rate swaps 2,423,452 45,845 (17,238)
TR ES A& 2 AT A T H. Total derivative assets/(liabilities) held for hedging
EE (A M 45,845 (17,238)
CREsRfT A THAeMEE Total recognised derivative assets/(liabilities)
(B fi) A% 713,202 (773,116)
SR AR BRI DA AT A A TR B A s 8 The contractual or notional amounts of contingent liabilities and commitments and
MR TR A H W R S8 AT B - Bl R ¥ A B derivative financial instruments provide only an indication of the volume of
Ja g 50 - B . business outstanding at the balance sheet date and bear little relation to the

underlying risks of the exposures.
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Among the above derivative financial instruments, certain of them were
designated as hedging instruments for the fair value hedge purpose.

Fair value hedges are used by the Group to protect it against changes in the
fair values of financial assets due to movements in market interest rates. The
financial instruments hedged for interest rate risk mainly include available-
for-sale debt securities. The Bank uses interest rate swaps to hedge interest rate
risk.

ARLAEE BRI 4 P L 778 1 A el 2 9 705 22 T L R 06 3 ol i
FRUAH B A S AT B AR i e 3R A

The effectiveness of the hedges based on changes in fair values of the
derivatives and the hedged items attributable to the hedged risk recognised in

FI7RUE ¢ the income statement during the year is presented as follows:
A B AR BT
Group and Bank
2007 2006
T#T T
HK$°000 HK$000
AP OBE) » Gain/(loss) arising from fair value hedge, net:
Y FIEHH :
— TR - Hedging instruments (56,415) 2,623
— 3 g 2 A R 3 0 O - Hedged items attributable to the hedged risk 57,786 (2,420)
1,371 203

A B A BRI DA B i A e R B R T B AR
Fe s SE BRI w A

The aggregate replacement costs and credit risk weighted amounts of the
contingent liabilities and commitments and derivative financial instruments

are:
ARG R AR BT
Group and Bank
2007 2006
TR TIHEF-2
v SE B fEEJR R
A Credit risk A Credit risk
Replacement cost  weighted amount ~ Replacement cost  weighted amount
T#x T THIT TH#ETT
HKS$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$000
e Contingent liabilities and
KR commitments - 11,309,108 - 9,808,957
SMERH) Exchange rate contracts
— @l - Forwards 583,692 753,118 271,310 222,591
— — Swaps 49,096 67,133 3,015 6,751
— A B W ~ Currency options purchased 43,161 32,808 9,665 481
— Bt B R - Currency options written 53,876 224,124 3,365 1,199
729,825 1,077,183 287,355 231,022
MG A Interest rate contracts
— ) ~ Swaps 384,005 335,603 409,220 117,057
. N - Currency options purchased 5,171 17,204 3,227 555
— 4 A - Currency options written 1,830 3,544 540 258
391,006 356,351 412,987 117,870
HA &4 Other contracts 1,873 872 292 -
1,122,704 12,743,514 700,634 10,157,849

bR BRI H 2 AR B RT3 5 AR 2 S
AT A BB R4 A -

The replacement costs and credit risk weighted amounts of the exposures do
not take into account the effects of bilateral netting arrangements.
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(a) Loans and advances to customers, banks and other financial

institutions
AS ARG
Group Bank
2007 2006 2007 2006
T#x T T#x T
HKS$°000 HK$000 HK$’000 HK$ 000
EIRl-¢ Advances to customers 99,220,723 74,481,405 92,468,796 73,473,370
GRAT By HAth 4 it Advances to banks and other
et 2 B K financial institutions 20,641,536 - 20,588,784 -
[GEL 5 Trade bills 1,565,469 1,264,291 1,564,485 1,264,291
T~ GRAT Gross loans and advances to
HoAth 4 Bl i A customers, banks and other
B AR financial institutions 121,427,728 75,745,696 114,622,065 74,737,661
EEH?‘F'J@ Accrued interest 611,505 334,697 590,579 328,492
122,039,233 76,080,393 115,212,644 75,066,153
B R EA Less: Impairment allowances
— A Hl &G - Individually assessed (125,293) (201,112) (125,293) (201,112)
— AL - Collectively assessed (210,269) (231,525) (210,269) (213,965)
121,703,671 75,647,756 114,877,082 74,651,076
A SR ARG
Group Bank
2007 2006 2007 2006
T-#IL THT T#T T
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$000
JRAE SR A AE Gross impaired loans and advances 646,602 898,389 646,602 898,389
& 51 kaﬁ@% Impairment allowances made in
respect of such loans 125,293 201,112 125,293 201,112
ﬂﬁ%“ G U S Gross impaired loans and advances
MEZHSW as a percentage of total gross
loans and advances 0.5% 1.2% 0.6% 1.2%
A it T (B Market value of collateral 772,453 435,021 772,453 435,021
PE S S R B IR R B A B — ek Impaired loans and advances are defined as those loans which are

PR AT DA R] SEAL AR ARG T A R F

([ 8= 1 1)

o TS 1l it 5 A7 A %5 B B 2L

A8 T 2190 59 At ) B3R

WOEELER

Fe

AR ] 65 SRAT B H At 5 R AR B IR
A BUEER - TN % Bt ﬂfﬁ@ﬁ

individually determined to have objective evidence of impairment as a
result of one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition
of the asset (a “loss event”) and that loss event has an impact on the
estimated future cash flows of the loans that can be reliably estimated.

There were no impaired advances to banks and other financial
institutions as at 31 December 2007 and 2006 nor were there any

individual impairment allowances made for them on these two dates.
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(b) BF -~ $RAT S A4 A Bk R 2 & (b) Impairment allowances against gross loans and advances to
KR Y customers, banks and other financial institutions
A S
Group
A B Al FiReg 2
Individual Collective B
assessment assessment Total
T#x T#x T
e 2 2t 3 2007 HK$’000 HK$000 HK$000
EERE ) - Movements in impairment
allowances on loans and advances:
R CERLFE—H— HERE Balance at 1 January 2007 201,112 231,525 432,637
AR (K5 14) Impairment losses (Note 14) (93,610) (21,256) (114,866)
TS A BENR 7] 2 Bk Loans written off as uncollectible (45,022) - (45,022)
Ry NS NN e T A e Unwind of discount of loan impairment
VEM T (B3 ] allowances recognised as interest income
(Ffif5Ee6) (Note 6) (915) - (915)
WA [ e e A E Recoveries of advances written
s Bk (P 5E 14) off in previous years (Note 14) 63,719 - 63,719
T 5, K HEAth 1 4% Exchange and other adjustments 9 - 9
AERLEFFZH=+—H At 31 December 2007 125,293 210,269 335,562
kR H - Deducted from:
R Advances to customers 123,845 191,968 315,813
BRAT B HoAth Advances to banks and other
S R RS Bk financial institutions - 15,050 15,050
[HEL51 Trade bills 1,448 3,251 4,699
125,293 210,269 335,562
B S
Group
R FEAL HAEFE
Individual Collective HE
assessment assessment Total
THTT THIT T
TERTNE 2006 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
B A A ) Movements in impairment
allowances on loans and advances:
R RERNFE—H— H R Balance at 1 January 2006 267,418 209,583 477,001
TS s e B R Transferred from acquisition
SRATEW T of ICBC, Hong Kong Branch 514 2,948 3,462
WETR K (Fffak 14) Impairment losses (Note 14) 113,186 18,985 132,171
TERAS RE M ] 2 Bk Loans written off as uncollectible (209,831) = (209,831)
R RSN NG OR= S/ Unwind of discount of loan impairment
HEA BT B (B¢ ] allowances recognised as interest income
(KtzEe) (Note 6) (14,203) = (14,203)
WAz [ B A A B Recoveries of advances written
s B (M RE 14) off in previous years (Note 14) 44,028 - 44,028
V5, B HCAth 4 Exchange and other adjustments = 9 9
MEETARFEF—H=1+—H At 31 December 2006 201,112 231,525 432,637
fgR A - Deducted from:
EIak" v Advances to customers 199,271 227,880 427,151
SRAT S HAth 4 Rl A 0K Advances to banks and other financial institutions - - -
[HEL51 Trade bills 1,841 3,645 5,486
201,112 231,525 432,637




176 W TRGERAT () A BRA ] Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited

ZERZALAFH W Annual Report 2007

(b) FF - 47 R HAME R S A & (b) Impairment allowances against gross loans and advances to
ARIRAE HEM () customers, banks and other financial institutions (continued)
A GRAT
Bank
A B0 Ak iR 2
Individual Collective bk
assessment assessment Total
T#T T#T T#T
“RELAE 2007 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FEFR A e A S ) Movements in impairment
allowances on loans and advances:
R ELLFE—H — HERE Balance at 1 January 2007 201,112 213,965 415,077
BWAEIRK Impairment losses (33,966) (3,696) (37,662)
T A R e 2 K Loans written off as uncollectible (45,022) - (45,022)
T8 2 A B A 2 B3 (A Unwind of discount of loan impairment
AT (A 8 ] allowances recognised as interest income (915) - (915)
WAz [ A A A B Recoveries of advances written
i EH B off in previous years 4,075 - 4,075
TEE 5, B HoAth 4 8 Exchange and other adjustments 9 - 9
MoFEZEFE+ZH=1+—H At 31 December 2007 125,293 210,269 335,562
BR A : Deducted from:
HF R Advances to customers 123,845 191,968 315,813
SRAT o HoAth 4 R A B3 Advances to banks and other financial institutions - 15,050 15,050
[EETE Trade bills 1,448 3,251 4,699
125,293 210,269 335,562
ARAT
Bank
I FEAL HAEFAL
Individual Collective MR
assessment assessment Total
T RN T
TRTINAE 2006 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
FEFR A e A S ) Movements in impairment
allowances on loans and advances:
AT ELINAE—H — H R Balance at 1 January 2006 185,304 198,972 384,276
S 1 O P TR Transferred from acquisition
SATHUT of ICBC, Hong Kong Branch 514 2,948 3,462
WEE K Impairment losses 128,147 12,045 140,192
TER A BE M ] 2 Bk Loans written off as uncollectible (128,505) - (128,505)
TR A B 2 B Unwind of discount of loan impairment
HE A 4T HR (E 5% ] allowances recognised as interest income (14,203) - (14,203)
W I3 A 4 L MBS K Recoveries of advances written off in previous years 29,855 - 29,855
MREFEEANFEFH=1+—H At 31 December 2006 201,112 213,965 415,077
BR A : Deducted from:
EaRl-G e Advances to customers 199,271 210,320 409,591
SRAT S At 4 Rl i A 50K Advances to banks and other financial institutions = = -
[EETE Trade bills 1,841 3,645 5,486
201,112 213,965 415,077
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(c) Overdue advances to customers, banks and other financial
institutions (excluding trade bills and receivables)

The gross amount of the Group’s and the Bank’s advances to customers,
banks and other financial institutions (excluding trade bills and

TEH) M an R - receivables) which have been overdue is analysed as follows:
R W e
AR AENERAE  SENEREE Individual
fakim Rk Market value Amount of Amount of impairment
Gross advances P v B of collateral secured balance  unsecured balance allowance
Tl % of advances T Tl T Ti#x
A R AT Group and Bank HK$'000 to customers HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS$’000 HK$'000
“RRLE 2007
NEASPAT HER= (A Six months or less
but over three months 44,540 0.0 39,209 33,079 11,461 10,857
—SERLI T H A A One year or less but over
six months 43,207 0.0 27,340 20,284 22,923 21,881
B4 Over one year 14,554 0.0 9,238 4,365 10,189 13215
102,301 0.0 75,787 57,728 44,573 45,953
“EENE 2006
AMEAZEA T HER = A Six months or less
but over three months 95,707 0.1 104,466 68,006 27,701 17,174
—SEL T HERARA One year or less but over
six months 71,967 0.1 39,934 32872 39,095 24,575
B4 Over one year 31,716 00 11,903 7,848 23,868 25921
199,390 0.2 156,303 108,726 90,664 67,670

BT A

— T i (L A R E BT M it % B

e

— IR TS - HE IR RS TS
B

= AERAT SR AT it B R A R AR R LA T
ELMREEAT (T RELBRE 5 J%

— AT PR B R PO AR SR T
PRAE  SASSRAT A AT e FO I B Ao 5

BB BB R -~ AR R

The criteria for eligible collateral are as follows:

- The market value of the collateral is readily determinable or can
be reasonably established and verified;

- The collateral is marketable and there exists a readily available
secondary market for disposing of the collateral;

- The Bank’s right to repossess the collateral is legally enforceable
and without impediment; and

- If the collateral is a moveable asset, it should be under the Bank’s
custody, or its whereabouts can be located by the Bank.

The eligible collateral is mainly properties, deposits and shares.
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(d) b sari e (d) Other overdue assets
AL B A BT
Group and Bank
2007 2007 2006 2006
AR Hofl % JEGTALE HoAh 5
Accrued interest Other assets  Accrued interest Other assets
T-#IT T#IT T T
HKS$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
75 A s AR E 3 = (E A Six months or less but
over three months 25 - 320 2,361
—AEER DL E R S A One year or less but
over six months - - 1 _
R —4F Over one year 1,448 1 1,444
26 1,448 322 3,805
EAEE Rescheduled assets 2 - 12 -
28 1,448 334 3,805
HoA & 7 4 P 2L B hE T RE WK I - Other assets refer to trade bills and receivables.
(e) HEAEMRK (e) Rescheduled advances
A S I B AR AT
Group and Bank
2007 2006
T#T T
HK$’000 HK$’000
EAHEK (N ER Rescheduled advances (excluding overdue loans over three months) 109,883 43,044
=18 A ZanEEK)
2007 2006
HEEZITEE A As % of advances to customers 0.1 0.1
HRPEAE MG 7] 18 12 e 2k B 3 0T A — (" A 41 Rescheduled advances which have been overdue for more than three
B 3 (o) BEHE SR A A months under the revised repayment terms are included in the analysis
of overdue advances in (c) above.
MR ELFERZEENFET A =+—H> There were no advances to banks and other financial institutions
T A SR AT e JHL Al < il B A9 5 0 0 e = which were overdue for over 3 months; nor were there any rescheduled
BH 5 INGEAT ] SR AT B L Ath 4 i B A6 1) B 40 6 advances to banks and other financial institutions as at 31 December
e 2007 and 2006.
6  HemEE (f) Repossessed assets

MEEELETLZA=1—H - ALk E &
JEE R Al 51 T (B 2 34,360,000 #5 7T ( — & &N AR
+ = H=+—H : 37,065,000 7C) - %% &&=
(B A5 AN 4 [ L U (I vk 1 7 Bl A B 18
N B R TEh ) 4 T B o i B 1 N AT 2 B
SRR W2 -

At 31 December 2007, the estimated market value of the repossessed assets
of the Group amounted to HK$34,360,000 (2006: HK$37,065,000).
They only comprise properties which the Group has acquired access or
control (e.g. through legal actions or voluntary actions by the borrowers
concerned) for releasing in full or in part on the obligations of the
borrowers.
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> |
Group
2007 2006
T#T TH T
HK$’000 HK$°000
&5 - Debt securities:
R b Listed in Hong Kong 914,530 650,589
AU LA R T Listed outside Hong Kong 5,232,720 4,084,988
I bl Unlisted 6,946,681 5,270,060
13,093,931 10,005,637
AR S Equity securities:
i N i Listed in Hong Kong 2,387,531 949,303
E i) Unlisted 97,378 97,378
2,484,909 1,046,681
W IR R — SR Less: Impairment loss — debt securities (234,024) -
— AT - equity securities (17,905) -
R A B 4 i 150 4 Total available-for-sale financial investments 15,326,911 11,052,318
b iE Market value of listed securities 8,300,756 5,684,880
KEFABEERZ Debt securities after taking into account of impairment loss are
I aAEU NI - comprised of the following items:
PR 2 A7 K re R BR 2 3 H Certificates of deposit held remaining maturity
— =AU EE— - 3-12 months 296,085 99,990
——4FL LB - 1-5 years - 297,555
— R L ~ Over 5 years 25,364 41,680
321,449 439,225
HAtb i Other debt securities 12,538,458 9,566,412
12,859,907 10,005,637
ke B B R BB B T A B Available-for-sale financial investments are analysed by
SR category of issuer as follows:
HH LR K SR AT Central governments and central banks 576,654 405,059
AN EEE Public sector entities 811,415 739,595
SRAT S HAth 4 Rl i A Banks and other financial institutions 6,495,092 3,884,102
13 Corporate entities 7,442,304 6,022,069
ot Others 1,446 1,493

15,326,911 11,052,318
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AHAT
Bank
2007 2006
T#0 THIT
HK$’000 HK$°000
B Debt securities:
A Ll Listed in Hong Kong 914,530 650,589
A LLAMb R T Listed outside Hong Kong 5,232,720 4,084,988
E ] Unlisted 6,946,018 5,269,351
13,093,268 10,004,928
M 7 % Equity securities:
A Ll Listed in Hong Kong 2,387,530 949,303
I L Unlisted 97,379 97,378
2,484,909 1,046,681
W WEBR Less: Impairment loss — debt securities (234,024) -
— JBA IR ~ equity securities (17,905) -
A s 4 il 15 Y 4R Total available-for-sale financial investments 15,326,248 11,051,609
b2 HiE Market value of listed securities 8,300,756 5,684,880
KERE AR Z B Debt securities after taking into account of impairment loss are
LTS ¢ comprised of the following items:
T 2 AF KR TR iR 2 0 H Certificates of deposit held remaining maturity
e IV SE S - 3-12 months 296,085 99,990
—— 4L E B RAE — 1-5 years - 297,555
— HAEDLE — Over 5 years 25,364 41,680
321,449 439,225
HAbfEs Other debt securities 12,537,795 9,565,703
12,859,244 10,004,928
LSS & M B BB T A Available-for-sale financial investments are analysed by
SR category of issuer as follows:
Fp L B % A R AT Central governments and central banks 576,654 405,059
BT Public sector entities 811,415 739,595
SRAT e HoAth 4 A Banks and other financial institutions 6,495,092 3,884,090
i Corporate entities 7,442,291 6,022,069
oA Others 796 796
15,326,248 11,051,609

5 PR R < B S 2 Dol A S

Movement in impairment allowances on available-for-sale financial

investments

ARG Bl B AR BT

Group and Bank
2007 2006
T#T THIT
HK$°000 HK$000
w—HA—H At 1 January - -
AR 2 S8 Charge for impairment losses 251,929 -
WtH=A=+—H At 31 December 251,929 -
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A4 B B A AT
Group and Bank
2007 2006
T#T T
HK$°000 HK$°000
(e Debt securities:
— AL IR T Listed outside Hong Kong 562,630 666,950
— b Unlisted 2,753,722 3,471,688
3,316,352 4,138,638
AR A Less: Impairment loss (2,535) (5,666)
FfA 2 2 4 R & 405 Total held-to-maturity financial investments 3,313,817 4,132,972
ARik0; PAKIER Market value of listed securities 560,972 668,878
KERFABEIR R 5 Debt securities after taking into account of impairment
HFELLITIHEE ¢ loss are comprised of the following items:
T 2 AF R R TR iR 2 0 H Certificates of deposit held remaining maturity
— =AM kx4 - 3-12 months - 232,666
- 232,666
JHHS S Treasury bills 1,983,493 1,986,645
HAth i Other debt securities 1,330,324 1,913,661
3,313,817 4,132,972
Rl BB G RBOE BT Held-to-maturity financial investments are analysed by
I HTnR category of issuer as follows:
— R RBURF R R R AT Central governments and central banks 2,143,923 2,152,436
— NETERE Public sector entities 114,335 180,439
— 84T R HAt A Banks and other financial institutions 326,911 907,262
— {3k Corporate entities 728,648 892,835
3,313,817 4,132,972

T 2 2 0 4 43 T - A R 2 )

Movement in impairment allowances on held-to-maturity financial

investments

A 1M B A BT

Group and Bank
2007 2006
T Tt
HK$’000 HKS$’000
mh—H—H At 1 January 5,666 -
WEARSS ([145) /S8 (Write-back of)/charge for impairment losses (3,131) 5,666
wrHA=1+—H At 31 December 2,535 5,666
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A4 M
Group
2007 2006
T TH T
HK$’000 HK$°000
JRE A 3 i Share of net assets 154,268 34,485
[k Goodwill on acquisition 29,786 -
184,054 34,485
A BAT
Bank
2007 2006
T#T TH T
HK$’000 HK$°000
BB WASE > FF BT Investments at cost, unlisted shares 152,646 14,508
AR F A R RS AN T 2 RS RS AN F A IE The Group’s interests in its associates which are unlisted are as follows:
NS
Y fafi WA vl EREcR £
FE S 3 Assets Liabilities Revenues Profit HA
Place of T#T T#IT T#T THEIL % of interest
incorporation HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 held
2007
Fh B2 AR B (B i) A R D GRS
China Ping An Insurance (Hong Kong) Hong Kong 56,828 14,569 12,885 7,640 25
Company Limited
GRS
IEC Investments Limited Hong Kong 179,960 67,951 5,182 3,657 40
2006
rP RSP AR B (k) A7 RS 7 RS
China Ping An Insurance (Hong Kong) Hong Kong 47,675 13,190 10,743 5,739 25
Company Limited
o ] S22 R B (R HE ) A PR Bl 7E F e = — AR b China Ping An Insurance (Hong Kong) Company Limited engages in general
B o AN A 275,000 AR AT (E 100 #6258 insurance business in Hong Kong. The Group held 275,000 ordinary shares of
B o HK$100 each of this associate.
IEC Investments Limited 7E A7 s H G HEME - A% IEC Investments Limited engages in investment holding in Hong Kong. The

A 40,000 AR A BT {E 1 95 o0 2 A - Group held 40,000 ordinary shares of HK$1 each of this associate.
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ik A 2 S hE
[iE 4 Computer Trading b
Goodwill software rights Total
T#IL T T#T T#
A SR Group HK$’000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$’000
P SR T HE Cost or net carrying amount:
RoFEREE—H—H At 1 January 2007 953,172 183,544 1,895 1,138,611
WRE (BEE () M (i) Additions (Notes (i) and (ii)) 21,633 19,805 - 41,438
WEELET A =+—H At 31 December 2007 974,805 203,349 1,895 1,180,049
ZUREHESY Accumulated amortisation:

W oEELE—H—H At 1 January 2007 - 87,838 - 87,838

EERYUNE: 3] Charge for the year - 48,629 - 48,629

HoEELFE+H=+—H At 31 December 2007 - 136,467 - 136,467
R TA (. Net book value:

WoEELET A =+—H At 31 December 2007 974,805 66,882 1,895 1,043,582

AR A X5
kS Computer Trading Bt
Goodwill software rights Total
Tt T THIT T

AR Group HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HKS$°000
PR SR T VFE - Cost or net carrying amount:

R EENFE—H—H At 1 January 2006 937,906 183,885 1,895 1,123,686

E (BEE @) & (i) Additions (Notes (i) and (ii)) 15,266 1,570 = 16,836

& Disposal = (1,911) - (1,911)

A EENFE+H=+—H At 31 December 2006 953,172 183,544 1,895 1,138,611
TS - Accumulated amortisation:

R EERNF—H—H At 1 January 2006 = 42,832 = 42,832

A A Charge for the year - 45,006 - 45,006

RNZEEANFETF A =1—H At 31 December 2006 = 87,838 - 87,838
PR TRV (H Net book value:

A EENFE+H=+—H At 31 December 2006 953,172 95,706 1,895 1,050,773




184 T RERAT (3EM) AR/ R m Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited

ZEZALAFH W Annual Report 2007

Ik P
k4 Computer g
Goodwill software Total
T Tt Tt
AHUT Bank HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
PR SR T VFE - Cost or net carrying amount:
W ZEZLFE—H—H At 1 January 2007 615,669 183,503 799,172
WNE (R G) Additions (Note (i)) - 19,010 19,010
HoEELFE+H=+—H At 31 December 2007 615,669 202,513 818,182
SRR Accumulated amortisation:
HoEEELFE—H—H At 1 January 2007 - 87,837 87,837
GRNE: 3] Charge for the year - 48,601 48,601
AZELLFEF A =1—H At 31 December 2007 - 136,438 136,438
H TR V(L Net book value:
HoEELFE+H=+—H At 31 December 2007 615,669 66,075 681,744
AR
T Computer a5
Goodwill software Total
THo T FHso0
AT Bank HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
PR SR T HE - Cost or net carrying amount:
MNZEEANE—H—H At 1 January 2006 615,669 183,885 799,554
N (FEE ) Additions (Note (i) = 1,529 1,529
o Disposal - (1,911) (1,911)
W ZEREAREFZA=+—H At 31 December 2006 615,669 183,503 799,172
ZREHG Accumulated amortisation:
R ZEERFE—H—H At 1 January 2006 = 42,832 42,832
AF A S Charge for the year - 45,005 45,005
MEEEARFETFH=1—H At 31 December 2006 = 87,837 87,837
PR TH VR (H Net book value:
WEERERET A =+—H At 31 December 2006 615,669 95,666 711,335
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The core banking system was upgraded in October 2005 with direct costs
including software development consultancy fees and employee costs recognised
as an intangible asset as at 31 December 2007 and 2006 respectively.

In section 7.13 of the sale and purchase agreement of the acquisition of Belgian
Bank, Hong Kong Branch, it was agreed that the purchaser (the Bank) shall pay
to the seller (Fortis Bank) the difference between the payment by the debtor of
Belgian Bank’s debt and the amount paid by the purchaser during the period while
the tax deed is in effect. The clause 2.1.2 of the tax deed stipulated that the seller
will pay to the purchaser the tax liability which has arisen in respect of income,
profits or gains earned, accrued or received on or before the completion date. The
goodwill represents the difference between the amount paid on Belgian Bank’s
debts and the amount received from the tax deeds.

Impairment tests for cash-generating units containing goodwill

Goodwill is allocated to the Group’s cash-generating units (CGU) identified
according to business segment as follows:

2007 2006

T#L TH#T

HK$’000 HK$'000

A R B G R T Corporate and Investment Banking 585,715 585,715
PIESRAT Commercial Banking 215,053 201,682
FERT Retail Banking 132,873 124,611
HoAt Others 41,164 41,164
974,805 953,172

T 4 A 78 BLASE B T W [0 < AR U AR 6 P (B (BT 5 o
A7 32 R AL T AR M ) — 4 B T 1 B < £
wl o MR — A T R ) B < VAL 4% T A 0 £ A A 4
BT o e — A U0 A B < i T 2 8 R AN TR %
B 1 R T A S Y R PR R 6

FRR A (A R HT 03 2% 4% %2 10% (=%
10% %.20%) ©

TNE

L AR A A T TR i 4 B R LA R TR B R
B o ST H 3 R A AT A TR TR — B o

The recoverable amount of a CGU is determined based on the value-in-use
calculation. Such calculation uses cash flow projections based on financial budgets
approved by management covering a one-year period. Cash flows beyond the one-
year period are extrapolated using the estimate rates stated below. The growth rate
which applies to the cashflow projections over the one-year period does not exceed
the long term average growth rate for the business of which the CGU operates.

The discount rates used for value-in-use calculations are ranging from 4% to 10%
(2006: 10% to 20%).

Management determined the budgeted financial performance based on the past
performance and its expectation for market development. The weighted average
growth rates used are consistent with the forecasts included in industry reports.

ARG A GHT
Group Bank
2007 2006 2007 2006
TH#x TH#IT TH#x THIT
HKS$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$000
A—H—H ZiRHE Carrying amount at 1 January - = - -
L F )2 A Transfer from property, plant and
DK A B equipment and 37,770 - 25,700 -
b B - st e I RE leasehold land and
land use rights
AUk s VR AR Net revaluation gain 2,761 - 300 -
T 5, % JFE At 4 Exchange and other adjustments 93 - - -
WA=+ —HZIRHE Carrying amount at 31 December 40,624 = 26,000 -

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited 185
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The Group’s investment properties are situated in Hong Kong and Mainland
China and its net book value are held under the following lease terms:

AREH AU
Group Bank
2007 2006 2007 2006
T#L T T#L T
AL b Leaseholds HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
TEFERA Held in Hong Kong
RHMHE (504U E) Long term leases (over 50 years) 26,000 - 26,000 -
FR AR (10-50 4F) Medium term leases (10-50 years) - = - =
TR LUSMD R A Held outside Hong Kong
FRHAFH E (10-50 4F) Medium term lease (10-50 years) 14,624 = - -
40,624 - 26,000 -

AREATHREY N —FEFLE T+ H=+—Hh%
S B AR I A B A R TR TR A BT

I 8 L ME A 22 £ 26,000,000 #E T o ANERAT
B A RMIEMER —ZZLFE+ A =1T—HH
M 37 B3 A A I A A R T R A A
b 7 ik A R R AT PR 4 2 BR T 305 B i R s i e
S E £y 14,624,000 75 G ©

BEEYISEE R
“EEEFEF A=A

The Bank’s investment property was revalued on 31 December 2007 by A.G.
Wilkinson & Associates, an independent professionally qualified valuer,
at HK$26,000,000 on an open market, existing use basis. The investment
properties of the Bank’s subsidiaries were revalued on 31 December 2007 by
Shenzhen GuoZhongLian Asset and Real Estate Appraisal Consulting Co.,
Ltd., an independent professionally qualified valuer, at HK$14,624,000 on an
open market, existing use basis.

Particulars of investment properties
31 December 2007

A S [ 2 i S ) i
g % Ay Attributable interest
Location Use Lease term of the Group
7 ot B 1 Ll 8 G B B [EESiEZS R (504FLL L) 100%
Shop B on the Ground Floor Office building Long term lease (over 50 years) 100%
No. 8 Causeway Road
Hong Kong
TRYITAR 5 2 7 o K 2010 9% [EESikeS R £5 (10 % 50 4F) 100%
R 23 &
23/F, Dongfeng Building Office building Medium term lease (10-50 years) 100%
No.2010 Shennan Central Road
Futian District, Shenzhen
TRYIITHT A i i BB P A bl T2 [HESEEeS H IR 65 (10 % 50 4F) 100%
VOB LA ~ B
Unit A&B, 2/F, 4 Blocks Office building Medium term lease (10-50 years) 100%

SEG Technology Park
Zhenxing Road, Futian District, Shengzhen
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AEH Group
AT B B % PR B fii
Bank HlEYEEKE Furniture
premises and Leasehold and A5t
properties  improvements equipment Total
T T T T
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
MEEENFE+H=Z1T—H R At 31 December 2006 and
ZERFLE-H—H 1 January 2007:
BAAE A Cost or valuation 144,745 169,425 233,841 548,011
Bt KE Accumulated depreciation and
impairment (41,006) (83,820) (173,768) (298,594)
REEENFE+H=E1T—H R Net book value at 31 December 2006
CERFLE—H — H 2RI E and 1 January 2007 103,739 85,605 60,073 249,417
(LS EX S CY/ES Transfer to investment properties (12,716) - - (12,716)
NE Additions - 26,055 24,748 50,803
e Disposals (6,323) (51) (505) (6,879)
AL (F5ED) Revaluation (Note (i) 13,623 - - 13,623
GREIS Charge for the year (7,430) (20,916) (14,897) (43,243)
REE 50, J% JFEAl 4 5% Exchange rate and other adjustments 6,095 541 112 6,748
MEoEELET A =T—HZ Net book value at 31 December 2007
M THT 96,988 91,234 69,531 257,753
AZRELEF—H=+—H : At 31 December 2007:
FRAE SN E Cost or valuation 139,411 192,153 251,664 576,947
BT KdE Accumulated depreciation and
impairment (42,423) (100,919) (182,133) (319,194)
R oEELHETH =1+—H Net book value at 31 December 2007
Z BT 96,988 91,234 69,531 257,753
Rl A RASASE TN ¢ The analysis of cost or valuation of
the above assets is as follows:
ATERRLEL A =S —H At 31 December 2007:
T AME At cost - 192,153 251,664 443,817
FAh(E At valuation 133,130 - - 133,130
133,130 192,153 251,664 576,947




188 P TR§HRAT (diYH) A LA wl

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited

ZEZALAFH W Annual Report 2007
ASEH () Group (continued)
SRATIR E B3 AL B st
Bank  THEYEEE Furniture
premises and Leasehold and FoE
properties improvements equipment Total
T TUsIC U Tt
HK$’000 HK$’000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000
MEERZRFE+_H=Z1T—HK At 31 December 2005 and
ZEENFE—H—H 1 January 2006:
BAE A Cost or valuation 138,236 144,613 219,014 501,863
Bt KiE Accumulated depreciation and
impairment (34,195) (88,233) (168,093) (290,521)
MEEFERFET A =Z+—HR Net book value at 31 December 2005
CRFNE—H — H 2RI E and 1 January 2006 104,041 56,380 50,921 211,342
Gigeiba | Reclassification = 5,356 = 5,356
1 P SRAT A AT W Acquired from ICBC, Hong Kong Branch - - 2,183 2,183
wNE Additions - 40,411 24,945 65,356
e Disposals (3,309) (3,267) (2,384) (8,960)
H Al Revaluation 9,941 - - 9,941
GREIS Charge for the year (7,100) (13,273) (15,597) (35,970)
FE 52, B HoAth 8 8 Exchange rate and other adjustments 166 (2) 5 169
WEEEARETZA=T—HZ Net book value at 31 December 2006
R TR 38 (. 103,739 85,605 60,073 249,417
T EENEFH=+—H : At 31 December 2006:
FAE A (E Cost or valuation 144,745 169,425 233,841 548,011
R K E Accumulated depreciation and
impairment (41,006) (83,820) (173,768) (298,594)
W EENET A =+—H Net book value at 31 December 2006
Z BT HE 103,739 85,605 60,073 249,417
ERUEE 2 A SAR(E ST 0 The analysis of cost or valuation of
the above assets is as follows:
MEFEARFEFH=+—H At 31 December 2006:
R AE At cost - 169,425 233,841 403,266
Ak A At valuation 144,745 = = 144,745
144,745 169,425 233,841 548,011
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ARG Bank
AT B B % PR B fii
Bank HlEYEEKE Furniture
premises and Leasehold and A5t
properties  improvements equipment Total
T T T T
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$000
MEEENFE+H=Z1T—H R At 31 December 2006 and
ZERFLE-H—H 1 January 2007:
BAAE A Cost or valuation 17,057 160,875 228,071 406,003
Bt KE Accumulated depreciation and
impairment (1,335) (82,380) (169,707) (253,422)
REEENFE+H=E1T—H R Net book value at 31 December 2006
CERFLE—H — H 2RI E and 1 January 2007 15,722 78,495 58,364 152,581
T R Transfer to investment properties (646) - - (646)
NE Additions - 25,503 23,291 48,794
e Disposals (421) (51) (475) (947)
AL (Bf5E1) Revaluation (Note (i)) 1,204 - - 1,204
GRNEIS Charge for the year (736) (19,080) (14,471) (34,287)
[TEE 5, e JEL A 7 % Exchange rate and other adjustments (1) 9) 1 9)
WEoEELET A =T —HZ Net book value at 31 December 2007
M T 15,122 84,858 66,710 166,690
AZRELEF—H=+—H : At 31 December 2007:
FRAE SN E Cost or valuation 17,261 182,290 244,769 444,150
BT KdE Accumulated depreciation and (2,139) (97,432) (178,059) (277,460)
impairment
ME-EBELETH=1T—HZ Net book value at 31 December 2007
M TH 15,122 84,858 66,710 166,690
Rl A 2 RARSAEE TN ¢ The analysis of cost or valuation of
the above assets is as follows:
ATERRLEL A =S —H At 31 December 2007:
T AME At cost - 182,290 244,769 427,059
FAh(E At valuation 17,091 - - 17,091
17,091 182,290 244,769 444,150
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BT (41) Bank (continued)
SRATR B M2 NG il
Bank THEY2EHE Furniture
premises and Leasehold and Hast
properties improvements equipment Total
THT T THT T
HK$’000 HK$ 000 HK$’000 HK$°000
MEERFEFT A =+—H & At 31 December 2005 and
TEENFE-H—H : 1 January 2006:
A BA Cost or valuation 19,495 144,613 213,414 377,522
ZEtHr s s E Accumulated depreciation and
impairment (885) (88,233) (163,857) (252,975)
W EEHE+—HA=+—HK Net book value at 31 December 2005
CERTNFE—H — H ZIREEHE and 1 January 2006 18,610 56,380 49,557 124,547
I o TR SR AT A Wk A T i Acquired from ICBC, Hong Kong Branch = - 2,183 2,183
NE Additions - 37,217 24,327 61,544
e Disposals (3,309) (3,267) (2,365) (8,941)
GEf) Revaluation 1,254 = - 1,254
GRANELS Charge for the year (833) (11,833) (15,338) (28,004)
T 5, % JFE At 4 Exchange rate and other adjustments 0 (2) 0 (2)
MR ENRNETH=1T—HZ Net book value at 31 December 2006
M THT 15,722 78,495 58,364 152,581
W EENETH =+ —H At 31 December 2006:
JRAE AT (A Cost or valuation 17,057 160,875 228,071 406,003
T K E Accumulated depreciation and impairment  (1,335) (82,380) (169,707) (253,422)
W EENEFH=+—HZ Net book value at 31 December 2006
R T ¥ 15,722 78,495 58,364 152,581
B E 2 ARG E S HTANR ¢ The analysis of cost or valuation of
the above assets is as follows:
W EENETZH =+ —H At 31 December 2006:
i A At cost - 160,875 228,071 388,946
Al B At valuation 17,057 = = 17,057
17,057 160,875 228,071 406,003
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BITYER —ZELET A=+ — HREh B
SE Ak (L A 2 B2 4 YA R AT B £ 1 2 2 B T 53 i (A T
Al - AEMHBHARZ FECR -ZEZE L4+ A
= EARE e B R b A T B A A T R B R
T B0 R T B 7 A A R R
A s 2 2 BT S5 A (B AT A o FE A 2 8% (Jn1BR
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Bank (continued)

Note:

(@

The bank premises were revalued at 31 December 2007 based on the open market
value by A.G. Wilkinson & Associates, an independent professional valuer. The
premises of the Group’s subsidiary were revalued at 31 December 2007 based
on the open market value by Shenzhen GuoZhongLian Asset and Real Estate
Appraisal Consulting Co., Ltd, independent professionally qualified valuer of the
Mainland China. The revaluation surplus net of applicable deferred income taxes
was credited to bank premise revaluation reserve in shareholders’ equity. The
carrying amount of the bank premises and properties of the Group and the Bank
would have been HK$49,446,000 (2006: HK$50,436,000) and HK$10,120,000
(2006: HK$10,519,000) respectively had they been stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation.

The Group’s properties are situated in Hong Kong and Mainland China and

CUESEEE its net book value are held under the following lease terms:
A SR A HAT
Group Bank
2007 2006 2007 2006
T#T TH#E T T# THETT
iilhE ) Leaseholds HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
TERUERA Held in Hong Kong
RHHE (504U E) Long term leases (over 50 years) 4,519 5,853 4,519 5,853
T HFHE (10-504F) Medium term leases (10-50 years) 10,603 9,869 10,603 9,869
AU LA M R R Held outside Hong Kong
AT (10-504F) Medium term leases (10-50 years) 81,866 88,017 - =
96,988 103,739 15,122 15,722
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A4 B B AR BT
Group and Bank
T#T
HK$°000
HRTHT 3 (8 - Carrying amount:
REFELF—H—H At 1 January 2007 71,658
LLEPEX§L/ES Transfer to investment properties (15,990)
8 Disposal (1,219)
REFFLFE+FZA=1—H At 31 December 2007 54,449
SIS KA Accumulated amortisation and impairment:
S :95?{: F£—H—H At 1 January 2007 10,231
[Ls & g7/ES Transfer to investment properties (233)
RN Amortisation for the year 734
(L[] 48 (B3 15) Write-back of impairment (Note 15) (853)
HeE Disposal (34)
REFLLEFZHA=+—H At 31 December 2007 9,845
MR T v Net carrying amount:
REEEZLFEF A =1—H At 31 December 2007 44,604
AL B AGRAT
Group and Bank
THIT
HK$000
HRTHT VA - Carrying amount:
W EENRFE—H—H At 1 January 2006 108,736
e Disposal (37,078)
REERNFEFZH=1+—H At 31 December 2006 71,658
SIS SOsdA Accumulated amortisation and impairment:
R BERFE—H—H At 1 January 2006 17,032
A TR 1 £ Amortisation for the year 1,137
WHETR I S8 (K RE 15) Charge for impairment losses (Note 15) 874
fab 5 Disposal (8,812)
R EZEENFE A =+—H At 31 December 2006 10,231
HRTHT {3 (H - Net carrying amount:
REFEANFTZA=1—H At 31 December 2006 61,427
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The Group’s interests in leasehold land and land use rights represent
operating leases and their net book values are analysed as follows:

2007 2006
T#IT T
HK$’000 HK$’000
R > I RRA In Hong Kong, held on
— FHHAME# 50 4F - Leases over 50 years 29,748 47,070
— FHIAYE 10 & 50 4F 2 [H] — Leases between 10 to 50 years 14,856 14,357
44,604 61,427
AL ARHUT
Group Bank
2007 2006 2007 2006
T-#L T T#IL T
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HKS$’000
W] B Interest receivable 599,164 568,287 659,927 567,999
FARIE Prepayments 123,155 109,283 122,117 108,318
HEERF Settlement accounts 851,106 255,516 851,106 278,618
HAth Others 1,121,295 245,259 1,646,124 310,072
2,694,720 1,178,345 3,279,274 1,265,007
ARHAT
Bank
2007 2006
T T¥#Io
HK$’000 HK$’000
B > HRAEIE iy Investments at cost, unlisted shares 1,874,432 1,417,707




194 T RGERAT () A RRA ] Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited
ZEZALAFH W Annual Report 2007

DI AR EZE-LEF A =T —BiFa 2/ The following is a list of subsidiaries held by the Bank at 31 December 2007:
AT
AR,
I3 3 EMHEE A 2 i
R Place of B 3) Particulars of issued shares el 2 i di
Name incorporation Principal activities held/registered capital Interest held
2007 2006
HERRAT * GIE N HRATER NEH1,110,784,516 7 100% 100%
Chinese Mercantile Bank* People’s Republic Banking business RMBI,110,784,516
of China
THRETM A PRA il NG 6,000,000 B4 T 8 1 570 2 598 100% 100%
ICBC (Asia) Bullion Hong Kong Inactive 6,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$1 each
Company Limited
TSR YH 5 AT PR R it EASRAT Z AR E SRS 26,000,000 BCARE B TAI(E 1 5 TE 2 100% 100%
ICBC (Asia) Investment Holdings Hong Kong Management of the Bank’s PRC 26,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$1 each
Limited impaired loan-portfolio
LSRR AN R A s SEALAR RS 100 JBCAE T E 100 5 70 2 3 1 100% 100%
ICBC (Asia) Nominee Limited Hong Kong Provision of nominee services 100 ordinary shares of HK$100 each
TSRETI IR A PR A 7 il S ftaB IR A AR 100,000,000 B A E 1 T2 KA 100% 100%
ICBC (Asia) Securities Limited Hong Kong Provision of securities 100,000,000 ordinary shares
brokerage services of HK$1 each
TARTIYH(F FEA FRA it SRR 30,000 B 1 L 100 5 70 2 -8 i 100% 100%
ICBC (Asia) Trustee Company Hong Kong Provision of trustee services 30,000 ordinary shares of HK$100 each
Limited
ICBC (Asia) Wa Pei Nominees s AN 100 FBCAE T 1 570 2 4 100% 100%
Limited Hong Kong Inactive 100 ordinary shares of HK$1 each
ICBC Asia Wa Pei Limited* ELAIRE i 415,879 R LI (72,14 BOCZ %981 100% 100%
Belgium In liquidation 415,879 ordinary shares of EUR72.14 each
THE AR I RAF T SR A P 1,000,000 A i (L 1 s e 2 A 100% -
ICBC Asset Management Hong Kong Provision of asset 1,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$1 each
Company Limited** management services
ICBCA (C.L) Limited PSS BATRR 2l n Tl 1B (B 1 58 7e 2 B 100% 100%
Cayman Islands Being a special-purpose 1 ordinary share of US$1 each

vehicle for bond issuance

I BT A PR AR SRR RS AR 1A T {1 5202 T 100% 100%
UB China Business Management British Virgin Islands  Inactive 1 ordinary share of US$1 each

Co. Ltd. (“UBCBM”)

: iz K g RS B a4 Ak g S B A A RS AR 9 Not audited by Ernst & Young Hong Kong or other member firm of the Ernst & Young
2T global network firms

5 PR e * Foreign-owned enterprise

£ R BT\ AE— H +— H H BRI > Al > ¢ D ICBC Asset Management Company Limited has changed its name to ICBC (Asia) Asset
SR B A LA D ) 45 R B A TR EE N A PR Management Company Limited effective on 25 January 2008, pursuant to a special

Al REEENFE—H T HAEY - resolution passed by its shareholders on 11 January 2008.
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A4
Group
2007 2006
T U
HK$°000 HK$°000
B EFRR (1) Deposits from customers (i) 137,530,227 99,570,557
CLEATAE G (i) Certificates of deposit issued (i) 3,705,396 10,322,035
LB TR (iid) Debt securities in issue (iii) 3,119,872 2,997,804
A HUT
Bank
2007 2006
T U
HK$°000 HK$°000
B FFER Deposits from customers 139,973,358 103,000,988
CE T Certificates of deposit issued 3,705,396 10,322,035
WifaE - Notes:
() HFGEZR -EZZLETLA=Z+—HHATF (i)  The fair value of deposits from customer at 31 December 2007 was

FE{E BRI & 4 8 WK 400 #5570 (RN
4 K 1,400 B HETD) o B B Far A B 2
il 35 T B 2 A 2 S ) < R DA
" REREEANFL AT HZA
RHEB SRR AL TR - 45 E A TEE
KR RARZ B AT

HKS$4 million lower (2006: HK$14 million lower) than the contractual
amount at maturity. The amounts of changes in the fair value of the
financial liabilities that were attributable to changes in credit risk were
considered not significant during the year presented and cumulatively
as at 31 December 2007 and 2006. The breakdown of deposits from
customers designated at fair value through profit or loss is as follows:

ARG AGAT
Group Bank
2007 2006 2007 2006
T#T Tt T#T T
HK$°000 HKS$’000 HK$°000 HK$000
TR AL AR 1 Demand deposits and current accounts 5,347,433 3,586,664 4,874,797 3,654,181
T & Ak Savings deposits 16,564,063 12,110,797 16,927,904 12,435,397
T HA B 28 A K Time, call and notice deposits 115,618,731 83,873,096 118,170,657 86,911,410
137,530,227 99,570,557 139,973,358 103,000,988
(i) FHER_ZFZELFE+T_A=ZT—HHATE (ii)  The fair value of certificates of deposit issued at 31 December 2007
{3 A 4 & 48 = 1,900 80 (FEE N was HK$19 million higher (2006: HK$11 million lower) than the
K 1,100 B HETT) o [RE B B B ) it contractual amount at maturity. The amounts of changes in the fair
value of the financial liabilities that were attributable to changes in
CEREERCEEANFET A=A HZEA credit risk were considered not significant during the year presented
AT B SRR AN AER o and cumulatively as at 31 December 2007 and 2006.
(iii) [E25 b 482 4 %F 400,000,000 35 TC 2 2248 5 F (iii) The debt securities, which represented notes with an aggregate principal

T FFZPY4ESLH H ICBCA (C.1.) Limited (458847
WA MR A 7)) B80T > R AEAE 4.125% 0 R
CEBIAFEISLA S H B o AP (B A LE
[E] 77 3 IR AR R 5 50 25 A T a5 SRR R
ANZ &R MERER _FELFET A =1—
H %4 447,000 % 70 ( = F F N 4F ¢ 114,000,000 #5
J6) o PRE R A Bl i A Tl B AN TR (R

BWREEZEHEEUSLN _FELFE R F
ERETAZT—HZ R #HEHYR S
WAHEK -

amount of US$400,000,000, were issued in September 2004 by ICBCA
(C.I.) Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Bank, at a coupon
rate of 4.125% per annum and maturing on 16 September 2009. The
differences between the fair value and the amount that the Group
would be contractually required to pay upon maturity to the holders of
these notes amounted to HK$447,000 as at 31 December 2007 (2006:
HK$114 million). The amounts of changes in the fair value of the
financial liabilities that were attributable to changes in credit risk were
considered not significant during the year presented and cumulatively
as at 31 December 2007 and 2006.
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(i) EEHATEFEENR

(iii) The breakdown of debt securities in issue is as follows:

A AR
Group
2007 2006
T TH T
HK$°000 HK$’000
0 E R US$ fixed rate note
— A EER IR RANR — At fair value through profit or loss 3,119,872 2,997,804

PR P 2 ) A 2 <l B R T (B A
2 4 R SAE IF TR T 5 R 2 i {1 5
Z &AM T EESEE Z SHEEE o R0
oSl 32 A7 AL T R L2 A P E S E) Y
S R A LAt o 35 R 3R A S B T

AR FE B TE R ) B 05 T IRr 25 3R 1 £ BB R 17.5% 51
B REINAE 1 17.5%) °

RIEBIHE R,/ (R 2 BT

The amounts of changes in the fair value of the financial liabilities that
are attributable to changes in credit risk is determined as the amounts
of changes in the fair value of the financial liabilities that are not
attributable to changes in market conditions that give rise to market
risk. The credit spread has not changed and the changes in fair value of
the financial liabilities are attributable to the changes in other market
factor components.

Deferred income tax is calculated in full on temporary differences under the
liability method using a principal taxation rate of 17.5% (2006: 17.5%).

The movements in the deferred tax asset/(liability) accounts are as follows:

A AR A HAT
Group Bank
2007 2006 2007 2006
T#x THETT T#x THEIT
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
w—H—H At 1 January (115,885) (4,799) (115,885) (4,799)
TEIE 45 R R0HR (5T 16) Credited to income statement (Note 16) 920 11,072 189 11,072
TEME f SR (BT 42) Debited to equity (Note 42) (221,319) (122,158) (209,021) (122,158)
BEE 5, 2 7 Exchange difference 28 - - -
wrtr—A=+—H At 31 December (336,256) (115,885) (324,717) (115,885)
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The deferred income tax credited/(debited) to equity during the year is as

follows:
AR AGAT
Group Bank
2007 2006 2007 2006
F#x TUsIC Tl T
HKS$’000 HK$000 HK$’000 HK$000
TR A 2 AR (ot Fair value reserves in shareholders’ equity
—GRATYIZE (M5t 42) — Bank premises (Note 42) (13,922) (116) (1,624) (116)
— ML A A — Available-for-sale financial
(BfFsE 42) investments (Note 42) (207,397) (122,042) (207,397) (122,042)
(221,319) (122,158) (209,021) (122,158)

A AR SE R TR e B A (B I) — B 5 A B o A R 3K

The movements in deferred income tax assets and liabilities (prior to the

SYTT) Z =B offsetting of balances within the same taxation jurisdiction) during the year
are as follows:
W RE B IE G e Deferred income tax assets
A4 Group
AL WA Y A BERE AN i I BT
Collective impairment Investment Accelerated tax B
losses revaluation reserves depreciation Total
2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006
T THIT T THIT T#x Tk T#R THIT
HKS$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HKS$’000 HK$°000 HKS$’000 HK$°000
#—H—H > ##  AtlJanuary 15,233 11,618 - 16,798 - - 15,233 28,416
R % (Charged)/credited to
(HR) /R income statement (1,195) 3,615 - - 1,347 - 152 3,615
FERERTONE (SZ8R)  Credited/(debited) to equity - - 16,954 (16,798) - - 16,954 (16,798)
e 51, 24 Exchange difference - - - - 51 - 51 -
wr=ZHA=1+—H At 31 December 14,038 15,233 16,954 - 1,398 - 32,390 15,233
ARHAT Bank
AL WA e BT A
Collective impairment Investment R
losses revaluation reserves Total
2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006
Tt THTT T THTT T THTT
HKS$’000 HK$°000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HK$°000
W—H—H At 1 January 15,233 11,618 - 16,798 15,233 28,416
TR R (Charged)/credited to
(XHR) /FilR income statement (1,195) 3,615 - - (1,195) 3,615
TERE s ROAR Credited/(debited) to equity
(ZHR) - - 16,954 (16,798) 16,954 (16,798)
wWTr=H=1+—H At 31 December 14,038 15,233 16,954 - 30,992 15,233
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IEREFLTE BB Deferred income tax liabilities
A A Group
SRATH SR AN Gt B Al G I BT
Bank premises Investment Accelerated tax HE
revaluation reserve revaluation reserves depreciation Total
2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006
T THIT T#x THT T#x TT T THIT
HKS$’000 HK$000  HK$’000 HK$000  HKS$’000 HK$000  HK$’000 HK$000
—H—H At 1 January 415 299 105,244 - 25,459 32916 131,118 33215
FEiR R Charged/(credited) to
S GREE) income statement 616 = - = (1,384) (7,457) (768) (7,457)
TERE SR MR Debited to equity 13,922 116 224,351 105,244 - - 238273 105,360
M 50, 7 3 Exchange difference 23 = - - - = 23 =
BEZHA=+—H  At31 December 14,976 415 329,595 105244 24,075 25459 368,646 131,118
A HHT Bank
SRATH SR AN Gt B Al G I BT
Bank premises Investment Accelerated tax HE
revaluation reserve revaluation reserves depreciation Total
2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006
T THIT T#x T T#x TT T THIT
HKS$’000 HK$000  HK$’000 HK$000  HKS$’000 HK$000  HK$’000 HK$000
—H—H At 1 January 415 299 105244 - 25,459 32916 131,118 33215
FEiR R Charged/(credited) to
S GREE) income statement - = - = (1,384) (7,457) (1,384) (7,457)
TERE SR SR Debited to equity 1,624 116 224,351 105,244 - - 225975 105,360
WrtZA=1+—H At 31 December 2,039 415 329,595 105,244 24,075 25,459 355,709 131,118




7S B [ A 7 s 2 A 2 B TEURS 4R 506,466 15 TG (- F N
4F 15,552,325 {50 o A HERR U DA B 2 A 5% AR
B2 AT Z RAERBLR A o B %S5 18 T2 3
I 2 RN T > AN KT BE A R R s 1 AT 44
B 2SR R DA IE B WO e st b 45 s 1R e 2
PRGERI T E 7

ROFFLAET AT - AR T W
) 2 SR AR E MBI A R AR M 2 B
8 » A S 22 Ko e A A4 0
(CFEAUE ) -

A GRATT i) FL SRS A 2 BRI AR B A A A ST 45 B 4%
.

R EEAAERIIR SR
TR R ARG BBUTBIHEE LA A&

TEREA HRSH SO AT BLIA 2 R —BLESHEBH T - AR K
8 o LAUTF RIEAR S B A ARSI R 2 £ -
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The Group has tax losses arising in Hong Kong of HK$506,466 (2006:
HK$5,552,325) that are available indefinitely for offsetting against future
taxable profits of the companies in which the losses arose. Deferred tax assets
have not been recognised in respect of these losses as they have arisen in
subsidiaries that have been loss-making for some time and it is not considered
probable that taxable profits will be available against which the tax losses can
be utilised.

At 31 December 2007, there was no significant unrecognised deferred tax
liability (2006: Nil) for taxes that would be payable on the future earnings of
certain of the Group’s subsidiaries as the Group has no liability to additional
tax should such amounts be received.

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the payment of dividends
by the Bank to its shareholders.

The amounts shown in the balance sheet include the following:

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and
when the deferred income taxes relate to the same taxation authority. The
following amounts, determined after appropriate offsetting, are shown in the
consolidated balance sheet.

A ARG
Group Bank
2007 2006 2007 2006
Tt RN Tt T
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
R S o T Deferred income tax assets:
ik cii it 5 DERE-T1'8 to be recovered after more
than 12 months 32,390 15,233 30,992 15,233
=8 A Al E to be recovered within
12 months - - - -
32,390 15,233 30,992 15,233
TEAERLIHE(F - Deferred income tax liabilities:
R T AW H 1R R to be settled after more
than 12 months (358,000) (119,509) (345,063) (119,509)
AR to be settled within 12 months (10,646) (11,609) (10,646) (11,609)
(368,646) (131,118) (355,709) (131,118)

S TR B (T A Deferred income tax liabilities, net (336,256) (115,885) (324,717) (115,885)
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A Bl B A AT
Group and Bank
2007 2006
IS RS
TH#x Interest rate THIT Interest rate
HKS$’000 % HK$°000 %
BB RS Subordinated floating rate notes
— R - F——FLHH ~ with a final maturity on
F 2 July 2011 585,060 4.8500% 583,350 5.5719%
— B 4 - with a final maturity on
+TZH T HBEMH 12 December 2011 624,064 4.8463% 622,240 5.6200%
— B R4 - with a final maturity on
St ANEE:E G 26 March 2012 546,056 4.8463% 544,460 5.6200%
— BN - with a final maturity on
+=HA/\H I 8 December 2012
(AT =L AR (callable on 10 December
A - H L) 2007) 500,000 4.3507% 500,000 4.8040%
— AR T — 4R - with a final maturity on
A=+ /\H 2 28 April 2014
(A — R FJUAF (callable on 28 April 2009)
DS Bty VAN = - {E D) 1,170,120 5.5963% 1,166,700 6.3700%
— B Hh BN - with a final maturity on
ANHZA LA 2 29 June 2016
(A = ——4F (callable on 30 June 2011)
AH =1 HEE) 624,064 5.7025% 622,240 6.3600%
— KA (AR = F— T4 - perpetual (callable on
+= A+ HEE) 10 December 2012) 1,000,000 3.9507% 1,000,000 4.4040%
— KA (A —=4F — perpetual (callable on
-E A JLH ) 9 July 2013) 936,096 5.2025% 933,360 5.8600%
— KA (AR = F—7R4F - perpetual (callable on
ANHA=AAEE) 30 June 2016) 1,560,160 6.3025% 1,555,600 6.9600%
7,545,620 7,527,950
AR TS AR SRAT B AR E s 0 SR T > Ml phy e Subordinated debts were raised by the Bank for the development and
PN MOHAAT R RGRE o RS EARIR - ZERE expansion of business and have been fully subscribed by the ultimate holding
A BRI SRR T Z g4 - company and its branch. These notes have been qualified and included as the

Bank’s supplementary capital in accordance with the Capital Rules.
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AR A AT
Group Bank
2007 2006 2007 2006
T THE T TH#C TH T
HK$000 HK$°000 HK$000 HK$°000
JREAS LS, Interest payable 942,930 780,929 965,175 782,600
JREAS 3 4 AR A Salaries and welfare payable 83,234 95,835 83,234 83,525
ZEEIRF Settlement accounts 478,768 256,644 881,407 281,591
At Others 1,831,736 686,236 1,789,805 674,758
3,336,668 1,819,644 3,719,621 1,822,474
A [ B AR SRAT A R g B I A AT A 4 The Group and the Bank have not had any defaults of principal or interest or
FE S AME A (TN 4E) any other breaches with respect to their liabilities during the year (2006: Nil).

WlBRE BB

JBeA e H W Ordinary Preference
Number of Ordinary share share
shares shares premium premium
Tk T T Tt
thousands HKS$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
W FELE—H—H At 1 January 2007 1,121,259 2,242,518 5,323,893 16,126
MR ZRFANET A Allotment of new shares regarding
=t —HIEFERBABRE the scrip dividend scheme of
Z PAIBAR S P e s final dividend for the year ended
31 December 2006 18,368 36,736 287,281 -
MR E —FFLEANA Allotment of new shares regarding
=+ H AR RS the scrip dividend scheme of
Z PAIBAR S P e s interim dividend for the period
ended 30 June 2007 9,983 19,966 160,833 =
CAT R A Warrants exercised 76,342 152,684 1,374,142 -
FeAn 347 52 (B 5E 42) Share issue expenses (Note 42) - - (489) -
18 50 i (et 2 Transfer of preference share premium to
o9 P v (T 42) ordinary share premium (Note 42) = = 16,126 (16,126)
AOEEELEF TH=+—H At31December 2007 1,225,952 2,451,904 7,161,786 -
NZFERE-H—H K At 1 January 2006 and

CEENRNFET_A=1+—H 31 December 2006 1,121,259 2,242,518 5,323,893 16,126
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S E A R AR R 20 (R A (B ENAE 1 2008 %) o &
JRHME2H#5 TG (R FNAE - E(E2H ) - BTAE
BEAT A B B K o

Al I B AR OS2 32 (B (RN
2328 M%) » BEREEE 5 o0 (BN« AR
5I0) o N EFEELF+ A =+ — A MEEA R
fr Al Ik 2EHEE R (N4 - ME) o

ASGRAT BRAN — TEDUBACE FHE (TRHH ) R A1
AR (1) ABLE ORISR, 5 5(2) WO IR EE 19557 B 4 A
BB 5 8(3) OB 20 B i B AR A B LAy o A T
B SR B BRSSO R A4 5 e B 3 5,048 i T ©

i e

ER S R S EFLE A R H SR A M B
FAEFA U A48 5 — 0 5B B RERS (1 LU (38 47 4T
FRRCHERS > 1M 384T 126,625,283 1 sR A HERS o GRHLHE
BRA N AT B R T E+— H S H Al s
J8 20 b TT 2 RRMEAE DA 003 8 FBEME 5 8 M — S 1 L 2 ¥
T A

RN > 376,341,234 (5 SR CHERE AT (EAE - A4S 20
HETT 2 B A SR 76,341,234 I A H 1 {1 2 HE T B
REEE H > AERAT AT 50,284,049 143 R S AT (i 52 HE
7 o MR ANSRATHIIRF G AN » 255 SR B RERS 8 %
BT | BT 50,284,049 A5 I T (8 2 Hs TT I B A b
ey o

i J il

g am A

A NS AR R AR > TR —F B A =
o SIEAT AR i) RAT 08 2 RRIBHE o

PR RT IR — LA T + H BT Z BOREAE R
B B RAT 2 AU -

PRAN GRS R B R AR SRAT 2 PB4 ] o B LR 4RAT
ZIBAAHESR - T IR -

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited

The total number of the authorised ordinary shares is 2,000 million shares
(2006: 2,000 million shares) with a par value of HK$2 per share (2006: HK$2
per share). All issued shares are fully paid.

The total number of the convertible non-cumulative preference shares is 232
million shares (2006: 232 million shares) with a par value of HK$5 per share
(2006: HK$5 per share). There was no convertible non-cumulative preference
share in issue as at 31 December 2007 (2006: Nil).

The Bank adopted a scrip dividend scheme (the “Scheme”) allowing the
shareholders to have the options to receive (1) dividends in cash; or (2) an
allotment of new shares in lieu of cash; or (3) a combination of cash and new
shares. Certain shareholders have selected to receive new shares as dividends
amounted to HK$504.8 million.

Warrants

During the year, a bonus issue of warrants was made in the proportion of one
warrant for every nine shares held by members on the Register of Members on
15 October 2007, resulting in 126,625,283 warrants being issued. Each warrant
entitles the holder thereof to subscribe for one ordinary share of HK$2 per
share at a subscription price of HK$20 per share, from the date of issue to 6
November 2008.

During the year, 76,341,234 warrants were exercised for subscription of
76,341,234 shares of HK$2 each at a price of HK$20 per share. At the balance
sheet date, the Bank had 50,284,049 warrants outstanding. The exercise in full
of such warrants would, under the present capital structure of the Bank, result
in the issue of 50,284,049 additional shares of HK$2 each.

Share options

Share Option Scheme
During the year, no option has been granted and at 31 December 2007, there
was no option outstanding.

The Share Option Scheme was approved by the shareholders of the Bank at the
general meeting held on 10 May 2007.

The adoption of the Share Option Scheme is subject to the approval of the
shareholders of ICBC, the holding company of the Bank.
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AS Group
IR
B e Warink
HER  Convertible W &Y%
A non-cumulative Bank il
Ordinary preference premises  Investment B — et ]
share share  revaluation revaluation Exchange General Retained it
premium premium reserve reserve reserve reserve earnings Total
Ti#x Ti#x T Tix Ti#x T Tibx Ti#x
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000
REFZLE-—H At1 January 2007 5,323,893 16,126 38,142 495,344 - 235014 2,734,266 8,842,785
B sk 41) Issue of shares (Note 41) 1,822,256 - - - - - - 1,822,256
P (B RS (Wk41) Transfer of share premium (Note 41) 16,126 (16,126) - - - - - -
Refrgeti (Hfkan) Share issue expenses (Note 41) (489) - - - - - - (489)
i HE SRR EL Change in fair value of available-for-sale
RS financial investments - - - 965,978 - - - 965,978
HERLSE SRR Reserve realised on disposal of
sy 350 available-for-sale financial investments - - - (14,880) - - - (14,880)
FIRESK LR K h st Transfer from available-for-sale
SREEREEARER financial investments reserve
to the income statement on impairment - - - 234,024 - - - 234,024
HERTIE Disposal of bank premise - - (51) - - - 51 -
RirEERR Revaluation surplus on bank premises - - 22,666 - - - - 22,666
BE S Exchange differences - - - 1 69,129 k7)) 4817 74319
BEBHRERAZ Partial transfer of retained earnings
—fleGht (WHeka) to general reserve (Note a) - - - - - 88,496 (88,496) -
AR Profit for the year - - - - - - 1,608,788 1,608,788
IEACHURSH (f3k38) Change in deferred tax (Note 38) - - (13922) (207,397) - - - (221,319)
B ZEEAERLRE 2006 final dividend paid (Note 19) - - - - - - (515,779) (515,779)
(Kt 19)
ERZZRLERERE 2007 interim dividend paid (Note 19) - - - - - - (262,114) (262,114)
(Hfik19)
REFFLEFTA=t—H  At31December 2007 7,161,786 - 46,83 1,473,070 69,129 323,882 3481533 12,556,235
(a) AREEZ — Ml (a)  The general reserve of the Group comprised of:
— RS IR T AR A R 2 AR B G A - the transfer of retained earnings which is distributable to the
V3 shareholders of the Group; and
— B R 2k B R R A e - astatutory surplus reserve of a subsidiary represents 10% of the
T A BB BT H S 2 A% i ) 48 K 2 profit after tax appropriation as required by law and regulation in
10%) o JEA A F A b 8 2 &t sl s PRC. This reserve is used to offset accumulated losses or increase
BA o in capital.
(b) EH AL H A @k IR B A A% 8. 772,350,000 (b)  The directors proposed a final dividend of HK$772,350,000 after the
WG AR FEA RE R E R LAE year end which will be reflected as an appropriation of retained earnings
T HZEA— H R R R A B (K GE for the year ended 31 December 2007 (Note 19).
19) °
() MoEELHE+—_H=1+—H  ANEFMKHRE (c) As at 31 December 2007, the Group has earmarked a “Regulatory

Tan PI935 H 819,332,000 #5 O AR it | (2%
INAF ©378,728,000 #TT) o kB MM R A EAHE
T ERAT MO T w7 I 2 R B H T Rk %
T A 2 S ) A 1) T b 4 A B 4 B G A
BB B RIES -

Reserve” of HK$819,332,000 (2006: HK$378,728,000) from the retained
earnings. The regulatory reserve is maintained to satisfy the provisions
of the Hong Kong Banking Ordinance for prudential supervision
purpose. Movements in the reserve are made directly through retained
earnings and in consultation with the Hong Kong Monetary Authority.
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AL Group
AT 2t
st R
L Convertible il %
(8 non-cumulative Bank ff Rkl
Ordinary preference premises Investment ] REEA
share share revaluation revaluation General Retained &
premium premium reserve reserve reserve earnings Total
T Tl T T Tt T T
HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AEERE—A—H At 1 January 2006 533,893 16,126 2695 (799%) 234020 2,106,340 7,627,336
i HESRSEL Change in fair value of available-for-sale
NFEES financial investments - - - 702,898 - - 702,898
HERRSESRRE Reserve realised on disposal of
sy 3 available-for-sale financial investments - - - (5,516) - - (5,516)
HERfTE Disposal of bank premise - - (30) - - - (30)
RiEERR Revaluation surplus on bank premises = = 11,332 = = - 11,332
ERER Exchange differences - - 1 2 - P! %
aEMHREENE Partial transfer of retained earnings to
— it (FfE 42(a)) general reserve (Note 42(a)) - - - - 994 (994) -
KA Profit for the year - - - - - 1,245,592 1,245,592
IEACHURSE (3 38) Change in deferred tax (Note 38) = = (116) (122,04) = S (122,158)
EF-ZRHERIRE 2005 final dividend paid - - - - = (392,441) (392,441)
B =ZZAFERINRE 2006 interim dividend paid (Note 19) = = - - - (22425) (22425)
(HfzE19)

REFFAEFZ=1+—H  At31 December 2006 5,323,893 16,126 38,142 495,344 235,014 2,734,266 8,842,785
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AT Bank
W R
Bk et Rk
Wk Convertible oAbt B4
WM non-cumulative Bank Hifli i
Ordinary preference premises Investment B S = i REn
share share  revaluation  revaluation Exchange General Retained Hit
premium premium reserve reserve reserve reserve earnings Total
T T T T T T T T
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
AERLE-A—H At 1 January 2007 5,323,893 16,126 1,954 496,152 - 219,200 2,634,070 8,691,395
B (7 41) Tssue of shares (Note 41) 1,822,256 - - - - - - 1,822,256
Wi B (Wikar) Transfer of share premium (Note 41) 16,126 (16,126) - - - - - -
Rl (Mt 41) Share issue expenses (Note 41) (489) - - - - - - (489)
e R g Change in fair value of available-for-sale
ATHEES financial investments - - - 965,978 - - - 965,978
HERENESHRH Reserve realised on disposal of
ZERB R available-for-sale financial investments - - - (14,880) - - - (14,880)
P30 o f kg Transfer from available-for-sale
SRBERGEARER financial investments reserve to the
income statement on impairment - - - 234,024 - - - 234,024
HERITE Disposal of bank premise - - (51) - - - 51 -
REMEE( R Revaluation surplus on bank premises - - 9,332 - - - - 9,332
M5 A% Exchange differences - - - - 822 - (1) 821
AR Profit for the year - - - - - - 1,426,740 1,426,740
IEACHURSE (3 38) Change in deferred tax (Note 38) - - (1,624) (207,397) - - - (209,021)
ER-EEAEADRE 2006 final dividend paid (Note 19) - - - - - - (515,779) (515,779)
(Hfk19)
B ZZZLERRE 2007 interim dividend paid (Note 19) - - - - - - (262,114) (262,114)
(it 19)
REFFEEFZA=4—H  At31 December 2007 7,161,786 - 9,611 1473877 822 219,200 3282967 12,148,263
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ARERAT Bank
AR 25
Bt R
bl Convertible ikl i
#fE  non-cumulative Bank Bt
Ordinary preference premises Investment — et fRER A
share share revaluation revaluation General Retained Fib
premium premium reserve Teserve reserve earnings Total
T THL Ti T THL Ti T
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
A ZZZAF—H—H At1 January 2006 5,313,893 16,126 1411 (79,188) 219,200 1,826,641 7,308,083
i HERRREL Change in fair value of available-for-sale
AYEEH financial investments - - 702,898 - - 702,898
HERREESRREL Reserve realised on disposal of
EEF available-for-sale financial investments - - (5,516) - - (5,516)
HERTYE Disposal of bank premise - (30) - - - (30)
RiEERR Revaluation surplus on bank premises - 689 - - - 689
A& 1CBC Asia Wa Pei Limited Dividend income from - - = - 23105 231025
ZIRBUTA 1CBC Asia Wa Pei Limited
AR Profit for the year = = = - 1,193,097 1,193,097
IEAEBRR (HE38) Change in deferred tax (Note 3) = (116) (122,04) = = (122,158)
ENZZFREASRE 2005 final dividend paid - - - = (392,441) (392,441)
BRI ZZZAFEHIRE (3 19) 2006 interim dividend paid (Note 19) - - - - (224)52) (224)52)
REEAFEAZR=1—H At 31 December 2006 5,323,893 16,126 1,954 496,152 219,200 2,634,070 8,691,395
(a) JRERG Bl Uil Bl F B4 5 A JH H 2 A (a) Components of cash and cash equivalents in the consolidated cash flow
Hhay statement:

HitF e eRERN S - BaekBHEERIEN
BLHE T B b 5 AR R =R T R EI I 5 R o

For the purposes of the consolidated cash flow statement, cash and cash
equivalents comprises the following balances with original maturity of
three months or less:

A
Group
2007 2006
T#IT T
HK$’000 HK$’000
B4 A SRATIR] 2 K Cash and balances with banks and
A <5 Rl B 2 A5 A7 other financial institutions (Note 22) 1,598,983 1,180,089
(B3 22)
TEERAT B HoAth Placements with banks and
RS A7 other financial institutions 42,095,374 49,330,158
JHHS SRR (A5 SMRESE G 52 5%) Treasury bills
(including exchange fund bills) - 1,511,482
43,694,357 52,021,729
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(b) 4EEEEAMEZTE : (b)  Reconciliation of the consolidated balance sheet:
A SR
Group
2007 2006
T# T T
HK$’000 HK$°000
B4tz KA SRAT (] 2 S HoAtb 42 il Cash and balances with banks and other financial
W &4 (M 5E22) institutions (Note 22) 1,598,983 1,180,089
TESRAT S HAth 45 R A 2 A7 23K Placements with banks and other financial
(B 3k 22 1% 23) institutions (Note 22 and 23) 43,022,605 49,330,158
JEHS 2% (P 3k 29) Treasury bills (Note 29) 1,983,493 1,986,645
46,605,081 52,496,892
T SRR O = A R Less: amounts with an original maturity of beyond three months
— TEERAT Fe HoAth 2 Rl 2 7k - Placements with banks and other financial institutions (927,231) -
— JRS SR ~ Treasury bills (1,983,493) (475,163)
NGBl TR B M & Cash and cash equivalent in the consolidated cash flow
S HHE 43,694,357 52,021,729
MR s A )G G126 161B(4B) e 2 g » TN B Particulars of loans made to officers and disclosed pursuant to Section
Mefz 2 BEHAEE IR 161B(4B) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance are as follows:
R H =4 B2 RS E AR AN B R A BR
Balance outstanding at Maximum balance
31 December during the year
2007 2006 2007 2006
T THE T TH#T T T
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000
ARAEHRA G A B AR Aggregate amount outstanding in

respect of principal and interest 6,562 5,447 16,570 5,995
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(@ DUFREE R GEREE R AR A R A Included in the following balance sheet items are balances with
i the ultimate holding company:
A AT
Group Bank
2007 2006 2007 2006
F#x TUsIC T#L T
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HKS$’000
4G K AESRAT R 2B Cash and balances with banks and
HoAth &R 2 4517 other financial institutions 1,789,679 1,736,976 1,603,156 1,281,662
—F A RE 2 Placements with and advances
TESRAT B HoAth to banks and other financial
BRI institutions maturing
FEK B between one and twelve months 343,235 309,445 343,235 309,445
T~ GRAT B HoAth 4 Rl Loans and advances to customers,
W2 Bk banks and other financial institutions 20,045,203 = 20,045,203 =
HoAth % e Other assets 67,452 91,120 67,452 89,660
22,245,569 2,137,541 22,059,046 1,680,767
SRATIR] 3 B H Al 5 R A A Deposits from banks and
AR A R other financial institutions 11,678,919 10,993,263 8,192,159 10,993,263
[BRL ZRR S GiR Certificates of deposit issued 780,080 3,891,878 780,080 3,891,878
oA £ Other liabilities 147,282 194,050 142,435 194,050
DA S A AR 2 Subordinated debts measured at
R AEARIE (B 5E39) amortised cost (Note 39) 7,545,620 7,527,950 7,545,620 7,527,950
20,151,901 22,607,141 16,660,294 22,607,141
Ff 5 Note:

SRAT 7] 2 T H A < AR 22 A7 3K B A B (36— S5 L

Included in deposits from banks and other financial institutions is an amount
of HK$1,560,160,000 (2006: HK$388,900,000) representing the utilisation of a
standby credit facility of US$3,000,000,000 (2006: US$3,000,000,000) granted by
the ultimate holding company to the Bank for working capital purposes.

1,560,160,000 ¥ 76 (2 7S4F © 388,900,000 #570) Z 3K
TH o T I SN RN R T AR SRAT VR 8 18 4 iR 2 M
J A% £ 3,000,000,000 2 TC ( —F Z N 4E : 3,000,000,000
SI0) H BB 2 B o
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(@) DAT R ERE A GTRIE H b B A A ml B4 (a) Included in the following balance sheet items are balances with the
B (%) ultimate holding company: (continued)
A A 1M B AR B
Group and Bank
2007 2006
Tl T
HKS$’000 HK$’000
SNER A — A K Foreign exchange contracts — contractual amount 8,461,947 30,783,747
] Zedmi ) — 2 A 4 Interest rate swaps — notional principal 6,195,955 7,179,306
FIZ MM — G4 &8 Interest rate options — contractual amounts
— B A - options purchased 22,500 784,209
— A - options written 1,570,117 1,568,330
1,592,617 2,352,539
— AN B A 2 F AR Other commitments with maturity within one year
y Y
—IBEXMER - overdraft facility 2,770,283 2,660,076
(b) VAT AEREAMGRER J B & MHE A 7 2 45 (b) Included in the following balance sheet items are balances with fellow
% subsidiaries:
AR [ B AR BAT
Group and Bank
2007 2006
T#n TH T
HK$’000 HK$’000
B 4 B AR R4 T IR) S B Cash and balances with banks and
HoAth 4 A 2 G547 other financial institutions 78,008 -
HoAh e Other assets 3,878 2,276
81,886 2,276
SRATR] 2 T HoAth 45 Rl B AR A7 2K Deposits from banks and other 438,959 336,106
2 #E R financial institutions
B AR Deposits from customers 1,040,266 6,139,631
At £ Other liabilities 9,815 8,223
1,489,040 6,483,960
HNHE & #) — 5 HI e RH Foreign exchange contracts — contractual amount 201,795 =

F| i ] — 4 FeA & Interest rate swaps — notional principal 234,024 163,338
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() VUITFAEREAMKIER B — 4B R AN (c) Included in the following balance sheet items are related party
A BB KR 2 R 2 B 5 2 4585 - transaction balances with a shareholder with a significant influence over

the ultimate holding company:

2007 2006
T#T THTT
HK$000 HK$’000
e e S Available-for-sale financial investments 438,086 258,822
Hoph Other assets 5,103 2,687
443,189 261,509
EE A Deposits from customers 499,251 1,547,822
HoAth & fif Other liabilities 61 680
499,312 1,548,502
(d) PAFREREAMKIEE P EARTHEARZ (d) Included in the following balance sheet items are balances with
i subsidiaries of the Bank:
A A 1M B AR B
Group and Bank
2007 2006
Tl T
HKS$’000 HK$’000
TESRAT S HAth 4 Rl e 2 A7 2K Placements with banks and other financial institutions 1,251,768 1,014,450
HoAth B Other assets 645,489 83,929
1,897,257 1,098,379
SRAT 7] 26 T HoAth 2 Rl RS 17 K Deposits from banks and other financial institutions 57,772 1,805
AR Deposits from customers 3,795,648 3,464,935
HAb & & Other liabilities 483,731 49,914
4,337,151 3,516,654

FllZefifl] — A A Interest rate swaps — notional principal 3,120,320 -




(e) LARZ%¥rE B fFERIA H rp Bl A Rl 2 45185

B TR AT () AT R A A

(e) Included in the following balance sheet items are balances with

R LR
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associates:

AR SR B B AR B AT

Group and Bank
2007 2006
T T
HKS$’000 HK$’000
Hofth & Other assets 1,401 _
1,401 -
FE A Deposits from customers 51,127 120
HoAth £ % Other liabilities 18 _
51,145 120
F R — A S Interest rate swaps — notional principal 100,000 -

(a) BAREBRANSE

DA 5y 8] 32 20 B0 Bk B R BORIE Y 5 4

(a) Contingent liabilities and commitments

The following are the summaries of the contractual amounts of each of

S the significant classes of contingent liabilities and commitments:
2007 2006
BRI A5 SR B A FRIEE RN
Contractual Credit risk Contractual Credit risk
amount weighted amount amount weighted amount
TH#T T T T T T
A A Group HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000
HAEA B Direct credit substitutes 2,746,878 1,161,243 1,360,327 988,349
BLZE ) T 2 sk A AR Transaction-related contingencies 370,190 79,906 275,079 39,251
B 50 B 2 SR B Trade-related contingencies 3,456,524 588,696 3,026,229 510,431
HoAth & Other commitments
—JREN H DA 1 4R - With original maturity of less
sl T AR than 1 year or which are
unconditionally cancellable 67,906,657 223,738 32,424,706 -
—JEE B AE 1 4R R A B - With original maturity of
over one year 14,847,747 7,423,184 16,493,896 8,246,948
32 00 Forward assets purchased 270,000 270,000 = =
AT Forward deposits placed 7,811,705 1,562,341 119,892 23,978
97,409,701 11,309,108 53,700,129 9,808,957
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(a) BRAREME A ()

(a) Contingent liabilities and commitments (continued)

2007 2006
BRI A5 SR B A BRI R
Contractual Credit risk Contractual Credit risk
amount weighted amount amount Weighted amount
T T#0 THIT T
ARGAT Bank HK$’000 HK$’000 HKS$'000 HKS$000
NERESERS AT Direct credit substitutes 2,703,533 1,139,570 1,260,327 888,349
B2 50 B 2 3R B A Transaction-related contingencies 370,190 79,906 275,079 39,251
S8 b A T 2 AR B i Trade-related contingencies 3,456,524 588,696 3,026,229 510,431
HoAth 7R A Other commitments
— JEEH H DA 14 L - With original maturity of
CIEECSUET6E less than 1 year or which are

unconditionally cancellable 67,210,076 84,422 32,424,706 -

— R HAE 1 4R K U B - With original maturity of
over one year 14,473,568 7,236,095 16,417,374 8,208,687
7t ) E Forward assets purchased 270,000 270,000 - -
7 EHAE K Forward deposits placed 7,811,705 1,562,341 119,892 23,978
96,295,596 10,961,030 53,523,607 9,670,696

(b) BEAHEYE (b) Capital commitments

A =t B 2RI ER B R R
R E A RIS ER R T -

Capital commitments for property, plant and equipment outstanding as
at 31 December not provided for in the accounts were as follows:

AL ARG
Group Bank
2007 2006 2007 2006
TH#T THIT T#T THIT
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000
ELRT A MEAR BT 2 S Expenditure contracted
but not provided for 3,685 13,581 3,606 13,383
ELARME N R 7] 4 2 3 Hh Expenditure authorised
but not contracted for 24 - 24 -
3,709 13,581 3,630 13,383
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(c) REMAAYE (c) Operating lease commitments
N EBELES T H =+ — 0 AREE LARELT At 31 December 2007, the Group and the Bank had future aggregate
HR 5 AS AT 0 10 4648 FHL 4 iR R 21 B 5] 1) e AR L minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases as
BT follows:
A4 AGAT
Group Bank
2007 2006 2007 2006
TH# T T T# T T
HKS$’000 HK$°000 HK$000 HK$°000
Tt R Land and buildings
——4ELLA - Not later than one year 207,100 121,131 207,031 121,076
——4ERLE AR ~ Later than one year and
not later than five years 611,810 233,906 611,787 233,906
— HAERLE - More than five years 160,048 97,768 160,036 97,768
978,958 452,805 978,854 452,750
(d) REMLALZH (d) Operating lease arrangements
A5 AR B AR PR S A 4 T B He v e AR I A — F N The Group leases its investment properties (Note 32 to the accounts)
A BB E Y R E K EE32) - FH4 under operating lease arrangements, with leases negotiated for terms
fee R — MO B AR R S AT 4 & > WEFTH ranging from two to eight years. The terms of the leases generally also
JE SRR R Tl DU AR B At A require the tenants to pay security deposits and provide for periodic rent
adjustments according to the then prevailing market conditions.
RoEZLFE A =1+—H » REHEZET At 31 December 2007, the Group had total future minimum lease
1) 0 A R AR5 AN T R 114 5 A L A4 A AR 2 R i receivables under non-cancellable operating leases with its tenants
HORFH B B (IR S AT falling due as follows:
AL ARG
Group Bank
2007 2006 2007 2006
TH# THE T TH#T T T
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000
—AER Within one year 2,253 - 480 -
TR (EHEE EWAE) In the second to fifth years, inclusive 4,194 = 320 =
TR E After five years 549 - - -
6,996 - 800 -
FEIA - ASEE F AL A ] R AR B R s R T 4 (— During the year, the Group has no unrecognised contingent rentals

FEENFE K)o receivable (2006: Nil).
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TAARAETE > ARSI A SES R AR v BB A
(ELAR e A T2y B~ [R] ZR BfJo 2 B) BTE  B)) SE B

During the year, the Group entered into various transactions in the normal
course of business with related parties, including the ultimate holding
company, fellow subsidiaries and associates.

(a) A —FMEBHRAEPHEBER T ERZR S (a) Summary of transactions entered into during the ordinary

W2 course of business with related parties

S A PR IBEON W)~ () A s T S s R 2
B 2 5 BT 22 A B S AR RS N

The aggregated incomes and expenses arising from related party
transactions with the ultimate holding company, fellow subsidiaries and
associates are summarised as follows:

2007 2006
T T
HK$°000 HK$°000
FLEHA Interest income
— G (E3E () ~ Placement (Note (i)) 64,864 291,125
— MR (FREE (if)) — Interest rate swaps (Note (ii)) 405,116 454,678
— UK (WK (i) - Loans and advances (Note (ii)) 17,501 3,831
FE S Interest expense
—AE (EEE (iv)) - Deposits (Note (iv)) (458,562) (692,880)
— A (B 5E (i) — Interest rate swaps (Note (ii)) (508,007) (552,376)
— BB A (FHEE (v) — Certificates of deposit issued (Note (v)) (179,458) (200,423)
— DAEESS AR A B 2 1R (5 IE - Subordinated debts measured at amortised cost (Note (vi))

(B 3E (vi)) (424,241) (348,560)
RV 5 AR (B (vid)) Net option premium expense (Note (vii)) (781) (5)
EHEWA (EE (viii)) Management fee income (Note (viii)) 6,375 6,000
MRBE WA (FF5E (ix)) Service fee income (Note (ix)) - 300
WA (FF5E (x) K (xi) Premises income (Notes (x) & (xi)) 16,443 8,104
S (B3 (xii)) Commission income (Note (xii)) 7,039 =
{4 57 (BT (xii)) Commission expense (Note (xii)) (4,955) =
R R PR S 2 S (M 3E (xiv))  Data processing service fee expense (Note (xiv)) (13,079) (10,064)
Wt (Bt (xv) Premises expense (Note (xv)) (6,431) (3,966)
A B RS 22 52t (Bf 5 (xvi))  Mainland China loan service fee expense (Note (xvi)) (77) (219)
W g 2 A 2 Fee expense on sub-participation

2 FH B S (BT (xvid)) of loans (Note (xvii)) (10,858) (6,143)
i - Notes:
(i) I By A GRAT A7 TR e A2 1 A ) B J) 3 B S 2 (1) Interest income was received on inter-bank deposits placed with the

Fl 2 SRAT [R) S A7 AR BUAT i 355 1 2 i i e 2 A
B

() M AR ERAT A 5 58 ) 18 dr A S A R T
[F 2 B 2 AR B ST A 2 LS A B S i e
45 A8 Gy LA AT S T R B A I A W K
[Fi 2R BB 4 R AT S 2 Pl 4540

(i) o ASERAT WA A% e 2 ) B R A R 2 B
AAEIA o

(v)  BRASRAT ST RAHEIR AT~ [ RME AR
BB Al ZAF R RS -

(v) B AR SRAT B AT p A A BN D A MR
2 8 {H %5 100,000,000 3 I ( = & F N A
500,000,000 3 JT) Z T B TF 38 1M 17 Fo A& L2
G54

(if)

(iii)

(iv)

ultimate holding company and fellow subsidiaries at prevailing market
rates.

Interest income and expense were received from and paid to the ultimate
holding company and fellow subsidiaries on the interest rate swaps at
prevailing market rates. These transactions included interest rate swaps
entered on a back-to-back basis with the ultimate holding company and
fellow subsidiaries.

Interest income was received from loans and advances to fellow
subsidiaries and associates.

Interest expense was paid on the deposits taken from the ultimate holding
company, fellow subsidiaries and associates.

Interest expense was paid to the ultimate holding company for fixed rate
certificates of deposit issued by the Bank which were fully subscribed by the
ultimate holding company and its branches with a total nominal value of
US$100,000,000 (2006: US$500,000,000).



(a)

T B S T AR v LB 45 T R 2 AL B
MEEE (4)

Wt

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

(x)

(xi)

(xii)

(xii)

(xiv)

(xv)

(xvi)

()

IR S H T AR SRAT HEAT T o S48 1 2 W) R
T {E A 3£775,000,000 55 76 K 1,500,000,000 #5762
TRAE 7 5 SR S A T I AR PR A W] (FfFE39) o

SRR i 1 52t 95 D A SRAT LA U RE S 4 4%
BT TS5 AR S B AR A R 2 o

W TR LA = AR L2 G1EHH®R L
TEFAET A BTS2 A AE ek >
BT T AR SRAT AR (3t @ LTS - R AR AS
A%~ TS MBI B Ak £ 10 L A58 56 RS T ) v
B LR 8RAT 2 B AT ([T ) IR Z 28 -
R - FELENA ZFNHTLZ AAER
ko B IR A TIASSRAT B AR LT T - AT B
gg{g%%ﬁﬁﬁfﬂﬁ%m T i A2 B 2 ) ML

[k e 2 S o & WA R ) T
B — R4 H P H FT S 2 A SRS i ek
W5 2 W A T s AR SRAT A AT R R AR
=0 N H BEAATE B v A A R S 4R
P2 B~ AT B T35 A RS 1) 2047 i
S o JIAA B O AT (5 TR 367 4% -
TRFNENH — B AL -

HRPE B RPYAE = H = — H T L2

Ak > A0 AT A A B [ A 3 9 T

PR AT K I 28 M8 0 M T 1) AR SR AT ST AT #2652
HIH o

R ERNE S H =+ —H R R
VP9 H — H 43 5l 5T 52 2 W 43 3 B 1k > ICEA
Services Limited 5t FH & it H B 1 (7% 3 58 [
TRASRAT AR 25 48 2501-2 5 J 26 1 22 )@ 7] A 4R
AT SIS FRIE o

A WA T A 1) Joe A 2 A )~ TR AR I JB 8 )
BeXghi o AR EERAT MRS T AL o

A 46 32 ) 7 0 — [T g 2 2 w2 ) £ B S5 1

5t o

RIE - FE AT H B AT 2 R
W SET AR A U H RS 2 A T RS ek
R BENAENA AN HETSL 25 7
RS Wik » RS 2 52t 77 ik e 4 42 JB 2 ][] 4%
ﬁﬁ%gi%%ﬁ&mﬁﬁﬁ%%ﬁ%@ai
P2 KT o

Wi —EEFELA=HRT L2 aE g —
FEIAEZA M H §TS5 2 H AR ek Rt —
TE—AE+ A S+ HRT L2 R B
2630 TR AR SRAT A 204 T IR R 3 49 AR T
) 047 S AE 2 3KIE o IR WA B W 41745
REBSE > N FEANFENH — HRKIE o
BoFENAELA =+ BRI E i
Y23 B B A A S T AR SR AT TR BR AT AEL
s TR B R K Hh 9 % 1 4 SRR T 1) R R
i 2 W] S Ao 2 3 -

IR 5 e 2 b T SR B e IR T R AT 20T 7 A 4R
AT B8t Tn B R Py b TS

(xvi) 2 IS H 20 AT 2 SR I 63K SR -

B TR AT () AT R A A
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Summary of transactions entered into during the ordinary
course of business with related parties (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

(xi)

(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)

(xv)

(xvi)

(xvii)

Interest expense was paid to the ultimate holding company for
subordinated floating rate notes issued by the Bank which are subscribed
by the ultimate holding company and its branch with nominal amounts of
US$775,000,000 and HK$1,500,000,000 (Note 39).

Net option premium expense was paid to the ultimate holding company on
the various option contracts at prevailing market rates.

In accordance with the collaboration agreement dated 3 July 2001 and
the supplemental collaboration agreement dated 4 February 2005,
management fee income was received from the Hong Kong Branch of
ICBC (the “Branch”) for the provision of services such as accounting
and budgeting, internal audit, marketing and back office settlement
and clearing. In accordance with the Collaboration Agreement dated 28
September 2007, management fee income was received from the ultimate
holding company for the provision of management, administrative and
marketing services of its credit card business.

In accordance with an outsourcing agreement dated 18 December 2002,
and the supplemental outsourcing agreement dated 4 February 2005,
service fee income was received from the Branch for the provision of
management, administrative and marketing services in respect of credit
card business of the Branch launched in Hong Kong commencing from 18
December 2002. This transaction was expired from 1 April 2006 followed
the acquisition of the credit card business of the Branch.

In accordance with the licence agreement dated 31 December 2004,
premises expense was paid by the Branch to the Bank for using a portion of
floor area on the 28th floor, ICBC Tower, 3 Garden Road, Central, Hong
Kong.

In accordance with a licence agreements dated 31 December 2004 and
1 April 2005 respectively, premises expenses was paid by ICEA Services
Limited to the Bank for using Suites 2501-2 and the 26th floor, ICBC
Tower, 3 Garden Road, Central, Hong Kong.

Commission income was received from banking services provided to the
ultimate holding company, fellow subsidiaries and associates.

Commission expense was paid on insurance services rendered by an
associate.

In accordance with a service levels agreement dated 21 February 2002,
a supplemental services levels agreement dated 4 February 2005 and a
second supplemental services levels agreement dated 28 September 2006,
service fee expense was paid to the ultimate holding company for the
provision of data processing services to the Bank.

In accordance with a collaboration agreement dated 3 July 2001, a
supplemental collaboration agreement dated 4 February 2005 and a
licence agreement dated 27 December 2001, premises expense was paid
to the Branch for using a portion of floor area rented by the Branch. This
transaction was expired from 1 April 2006 followed the acquisition of the
credit card business of the Branch. In accordance with a tenancy agreement
dated 31 July 2006, premises expense was paid to a fellow subsidiary for
using a portion of the first floor of No.9 Queen’s Road Central, Hong Kong.

Service fee was paid to related ICBC branches for assisting the Bank in the
Mainland China loan business.

Fee was paid to the Branch on sub-participation of syndicated loans.

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited 215
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(c)

AR » AGRAT B AR E LN )~ B AR PE Y
RV ZAT (T5047 ) Jela] R WG A 75T 57 2 5%
EART GG o #%5% 385 I AT 1§ 2 B
SRAT 2 B W BB A 3L £ 405,138,954,000
0 (T F F N 4E 1 47,829,544,000 5 IC ) >
DL K A 81 4T DA B XA 2 B 17 i
BEWRAFTRZITZER W REHES
I %5112,357,231,0009 oG ( = F F N F
31,364,597,000% ) o & #l &2 5 ME A4S 2 H
10,858,000 %5 7C (- EEINAE @ 6,143,000 #57T) J7
A BRI o FZAESR T T B B K
ke MR (AN ) 5% ATt MR BT T I (E A%
FEME > B DR A A5 T A 57 SR B B PO B
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HEEF
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(b) Purchase and sale of certain assets from/to related parties

Sub-participation of loans

During the year, the Bank entered into various capital market
transactions with the ultimate holding company, the branches of the
ultimate holding company (“the Branches”) and fellow subsidiaries.
These transactions included sub-participation in loans of the Bank by
the Branch, the ultimate holding company and the Branches for a total
of HK$405,138,954,000 (2006: HK$47,829,544,000) and similar sub-
participation in loans of the Branches, the ultimate holding company
and the Branch by the Bank for a total of HK$112,357,231,000 (2006:
HK$31,364,597,000). Fee attributable to the above transactions
of HK$10,858,000 was paid in 2007 (2006: HK$6,143,000). These
transactions were priced based either on the terms of the underlying
loan agreements, if applicable, or prevailing market rates if such
comparable rates were available, or on terms that were no less
favourable than those available to other independent loan members.

Purchase and sale of debt securities

During the year, the Bank purchased debt securities of HK$6,433,000
(2006: HK$38,857,000) from the ultimate holding company and the
Branches. Debt securities with total carrying value of HK$277,532,000
(2006: HK$436,571,000) were sold by the Bank to the Branch and the
fellow subsidiaries. These transactions were entered into on normal
commercial terms with reference to prevailing market rates.

Undertaking from the ultimate holding company

To demonstrate its support to the Bank, a Letter of Comfort dated 3 July
2001 was issued by the ultimate holding company, pursuant to which it
will provide the Bank with such funding as may be required by the Bank
to ensure that it will maintain sufficient capital and liquidity levels.

Simultaneously on 3 July 2001, the ultimate holding company and
the Bank entered into a guarantee agreement pursuant to which
the ultimate holding company agreed to guarantee to the extent of
HK$9,000,000,000 the payment obligations of certain customers whose
“large exposures” were transferred to the Bank pursuant to a business
transfer agreement and to indemnify the Bank in respect of any losses
incurred if any obligation of such customers becomes unenforceable.
The amount of such on-balance sheet large exposures of the Bank
covered by this guarantee as at 31 December 2007 was HK$39,444,000
(2006: HK$140,315,000).
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(d) PATF A28 38 H v B i 45 1 8 W] i L (d) Included in the following income statement items are related
HREEN Z R BRER S ¢ party transactions with a shareholder with a significant
influence over the ultimate holding company:
2007 2006
TH#x THIT
HK$’000 HK$000
R e 8 & SR B A Interest income from available-for-sale financial investments 10,785 27,189
TEFRE Interest expense from deposits 55,924 8,268
(e) BB PEHIEHMZ RS (e) Transactions with other state-controlled entities
B e AR JBE A R A R RN ARAE I A T BT Following the listing of the ultimate holding company on the Stock
1% o AER AL foe S I o ) PR A BN 2 Y Exchange, in 2006, the Group follows the definitions of related parties
TE % > W GRRy T 5 52 B SR ) BT A RN adopted by the ultimate holding company and only the following state-
+ controlled entities are considered as related parties:
—  REBEGE (BB ) = The Ministry of Finance PRC (“MOF”)
- POCES R E A BREL AR ([TES]) - Central SAFE Investments Limited (“Huijin”)
— RS AR P B BUR S R A AR - Banks and financial institutions under the direction of the PRC
T HAhSRAT e PR o government in which Huijin has equity interests
— KRB IE R SN R R G - Related parties which the Group enters into transactions with in
EINAE G 2 BN L o R% 52T G A the Group’s ordinary course of business on normal commercial
O A BT - BTG & terms. These transactions include loans, deposits, investment
FEAMRINABRIEE © e85 5 INEIT securities, money market transactions and off-balance sheet
Sy AR B T 35 R AT exposures and they are executed at the relevant market rates at the

time of the transactions.
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(e) BLIAhBUZRPERI FA LR 5 (90 (e)

FERZEL G 2 EEG R  URFNZ EE
B S, S B S B T :

G)  FST - BRI KRR Bk

Transactions with other state-controlled entities (continued)
The significant outstanding balances of related party transactions at the
year end, and the related major incomes and/or expenses for the year are

as follows:

(i)  Loans and advances to customers, banks and other financial

institutions
2007 2006
HEWT A&
HK$’ million HK$’million
ARG R Outstanding balance at the end of the year 30 -
GRAIEE VNSV ON Interest income recognised during the year 49 10
4 (g ey
(i) REZEH (i) Investment securities
2007 2006
LR Yo AT
HK$’million HK$’ million
HERELBR Outstanding balance at the end of the year

—HEEE NG EREE - financial assets held for trading 61 43

AN BE B AR LG B il Gain on disposal of available-for-sale financial
e & investments recognised during the year - 1
AR H A S () A Other operating (expense)/income recognised during the year (5) 13

g g (g Uk i

(iii)  TEERTT R A 2 [ 2 77 R Bk (iii)  Placements with and advances to banks and other financial
institutions
2007 2006
HEEL HEHEIT
HK$’million HK$’ million
SERA R Outstanding balance at the end of the year 1,499 2,007
A AR A Interest income recognised during the year 56 58
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(e) Bl R yEHI B Z R 5 (4) (e) Transactions with other state-controlled entities (continued)
(iv)  HRIT R A A2 [ #2775k R 4% (iv)  Deposits from banks and other financial institutions
2007 2006
T AT H EE T
HK$’million HK$’ million
HFREBR Outstanding balance at the end of the year 1,926 -
AR A B A S Interest expense recognised during the year 59 99
) FEIFEEK (v)  Deposits from customers
2007 2006
HHET T &
HK$’million HK$ million
FERGER Outstanding balance at the end of the year 2,000 421
ASEEJEF B A Interest expense recognised during the year 32 6
i) HAth (vi) Others
2007 2006
T H T T T
HK$’million HK$ million
ARG R Outstanding balance at the end of the year - 931
AR I S A8 S Interest expense recognised during the year - 27
AR HAWE S Other income recognised during the year - 2
(vii) BE B E#ES M (vii) Off-balance sheet exposures
2007 2006
T AT T T
HK$’million HK$ million
G N Outstanding balance at the end of the year 435 41

(H FEITBAHME

FEATEHA M E AR R 17(a) 2 A
SRATEE N4 ST 17(b) 2 T 4% e A £

()

Key management personnel remuneration

Remuneration for key management personnel, including the Bank’s
director emoluments as disclosed in Note 17(a) and the emoluments of

24 > R the five highest paid individuals as disclosed in Note 17(b), is as follow:
A 1 B AR AT
Group and Bank
2007 2006
T#x T
HK$’000 HK$’000
i 5 A Employee benefits 22,713 26,811
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(5) REZMTHMAHZEKRRZY

TAACERIE Y » A5 I S A T P
By FHEAT 2 SRATR 5 AR AR > AE A
GBS, o B A+ B AR SRAT 2 £ BT
BUGH > H50HE A R P S K
R

SAARSE I RART 2 ERANB RHAREA L

(g) Material transactions with key management personnel

During the year, the Group entered into certain banking transactions
consisting of loans and advances, deposits and other financial related
transactions with related parties in the normal course of business.
The related parties include key management personnel of the Bank,
their close family members and companies controlled or significantly
influenced by them.

Material transactions conducted with key management personnel and

MERZZHWT related parties of the Group and the Bank are as follows:
2007 2006
TH#x THIT
HK$’000 HK$000
B Loans and advances 6,562 5,447
FEK Deposits 26,734 22,747
FLE A Interest income 362 220
FLE S Interest expense 1,216 809

A BRSPS 2 o B R SRAT A PR
AR JIARAT Z BN ] o

ATEELESH B H > AT BB

/N Bl Fortis Bank SA/NV w]z—#3 ik » MVES
L4 19.2 45 45 70 Y A $R 1T 2 100,913,330 11 B 13 K
11,212,592 ) B B AE RS © s TEUR B =& )\ 4F— A
TV H SRR AR B AN R AR R T 2 A
EIF R 471.21% o

Unb H Bk 2.2 At — 2 M RE > BB RS AR AR B2 TR R 4 5
W] R AE T A S MR > R A T H
HE TR LA SAEE 2 205 > W —FF L
AR U ER 2 T H B 25 R o

AR E R ZERNEZ A+ = H R E G R
gEi -

In the opinion of the directors, the ultimate holding company of the Bank is
Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Limited, which is incorporated in
the People’s Republic of China.

On 27 December 2007, the ultimate holding company of the Bank has
entered into an agreement on acquiring 100,913,330 ordinary shares and
11,212,592 warrants of the Bank from Fortis Bank SA/NV at a consideration of
approximately HK$1.92 billion in aggregate. The acquisition was completed
on 24 January 2008, and the ultimate holding company’s equity interest in the
Bank increased to approximately 71.21% thereafter.

As further explained in Note 2.2 to the accounts, due to the adoption of
the new and revised HKFRSs during the current year, certain comparative
amounts have been adjusted to conform with the current year’s presentation
and to show separately comparative amounts in respect of items disclosed for
the first time in 2007.

The accounts were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of
Directors on 13 March 2008.
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T EERHE S B BB 2 AR SRR AS A
M AL ER A o

The following information is disclosed as part of the accompanying information to
the accounts and does not form part of the audited accounts.

REATIR - FFLHET A= —HZEARLER T
iz PR v 4 A L) T 1 2 BRAT CEAS) BRI (T ¥
AHKLR ) FHEE o B AR RN T AR A e SR A T SE MR 191 25
98 A {1k IR JE T i 2 2 T e A W o i il o o A =
TAAFE— H— H AR » AERAT K G AN KR R T8 458 £7 A
[ (5 B FHOA01 ] 51 0aAE B a2 e i e
BRE ~ PRAN [ EEAS R A T S | R AR L A BR A
[V (7 7 LB ) wHoR0 s | oA T 3 ke - ARIR A
I > GHEEAR L2 556 HE0E T PR S BB it 2 47
BT > (LRGSR R £ 22 B 4 R EC Y (BD
PRBs s S N Z M AT o L > B2 RERZ
Wi ) 2 45 A B A AR TR o %A R AR
B WS 2 FIABEAEAT AT S 2 S i o R G B 4 /) L4
R B S A AT B A ]~ L8R AR B A B
o]~ LERAAIN G ER R A A ~ LERTEIMFEHA R A
A) > LERERNME A PRA R ~ LoRan g A R
/N7 ~ ICBC (Asia) Wa Pei Nominees Limited °

R EREAEF A= — BNER LT R FEE
B R 20 B OB ) AR AR SRAT S LB 2 )
IRVLIIKE SR G LRI o ARER B FEREARDE [ 3T 35 )&
BRAERF 70 R AR | Z 55 REATREEE H i a B
A RATHRBIM R = (TR =) -

S AL A B = 2 W VA S TSR A
B A AT TR AR5 A LA
EHEAT IR -

The capital ratios as at 31 December 2007 were computed in accordance with
the Banking (Capital) Rules (the “Capital Rules”) issued by the Hong Kong
Monetary Authority under Section 98A of the Hong Kong Banking Ordinance
for the implementation of the “Basel IT” with effect from 1 January 2007. In
view of the Capital Rules, the Bank has adopted the “standardised (credit
risk) approach” for the calculation of the risk-weighted assets for credit risk,
“basic indicator approach” for the calculation of the operational risk and
the “standardised (market risk) approach” for the calculation of market risk.
Under the Capital Rules, the basis of consolidation in calculating the capital
ratios follows that of the financial reporting with the exclusion of subsidiaries
which are “regulated financial entities” (e.g., insurance and securities
companies) as defined by the Capital Rules. Accordingly the investment costs
of these unconsolidated subsidiaries are deducted from the capital base. There
is no capital shortfall of these unconsolidated subsidiaries. Unconsolidated
subsidiaries include UB China Business Management Co. Ltd, ICBC (Asia)
Investment Holdings Limited, ICBC (Asia) Bullion Company Limited,
ICBC (Asia) Securities Limited, ICBC (Asia) Trustee Company Limited,
ICBC (Asia) Asset Management Company Limited and ICBC (Asia) Wa Pei
Nominees Limited.

The capital ratios as at 31 December 2006 were computed on the consolidated
basis which comprises the positions of the Bank and its subsidiaries as
required by the Hong Kong Monetary Authority for its regulatory purposes,
which takes into account market risks as at the balance sheet date in
accordance with the Guideline “Maintenance of Adequate Capital Against
Market Risks” and is in accordance with the Third Schedule to the Banking
Ordinance (the “Third Schedule”).

In view of the significant differences of the basis of consolidation and the
calculation of the capital base and risk-weighted assets between the Capital
Rules and the Third Schedule, the capital ratios are not comparable directly.

2007 2006
B EAR R Core capital ratio 7.3% 8.5%
EATEE R Capital adequacy ratio 13.0% 16.0%
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following items:

The components of the total capital base after deductions include the

2007 2006
T#x THETT
HK$’000 HK$°000
BEA Core capital:
SR E R A Paid-up ordinary share capital 2,451,904 2,242,518
J 073Vt 1 Share premium 7,161,786 5,340,019
it Reserves 1,476,433 1,286,434
LSBT Income statement 545,763 556,376
IR © PR Deduct: Goodwill (973,419) (951,787)
HASETE & Other intangible assets (66,882) -
REF ARG 50% 50% of total unconsolidated investments
K HAtAnERIE H and other deductions (459,898) -
10,135,687 8,473,560
A BB A Eligible supplementary capital:
b R M 2 A A (B IR R Fair value gains on the revaluation of land and buildings 5,378 1,368
P85 7 2 B M Fair value gains on the revaluation of available-for-sale
AR A TE S equities and debt securities 21,899 33,346
8 LATHE SRR RARRZ Unrealised fair value gains arising from equities and debt
w6 o M fEHEAR S BL AT (B 2 securities designated at fair value through profit or loss 37,330 -
LA R B YRR e 15 0 A Collective impairment allowances and regulatory reserve 1,032,136 615,919
KA EEIA Perpetual subordinated debts 3,496,256 3,488,960
DA S8 B AS AR 2 1% fE A8 H Subordinated debts measured at amortised cost 3,807,539 4,038,990
B REHBEHREEZ 50% Deduct: 50% of total unconsolidated investments
KA IE H and other deductions (459,898) =
7,940,640 8,178,583
AT 2 B A T S Total capital base before deductions 18,076,327 16,652,143
EREZNE T NS Deductions from total capital base - (610,686)
TPk 2 B A A AR Total capital base after deductions 18,076,327 16,041,457
JEBE IEE E Risk-weighted assets:
{5 B Credit risk 130,839,560 99,376,679
T 355 JE B Market risk 3,120,400 883,113
A R Operational risk 4,914,788 -
R TR e AR Total risk-weighted assets 138,874,748 100,259,792

ASA VAU <G AR T 4 TR ST VA < LA 1
B  > H A T A A B R R M DA A AR
FTA - HAFE U CHRATIR ) 26 U L

The average liquidity ratio for the year is the simple average of each calendar
month, which is computed on a consolidated basis as required by the Hong
Kong Monetary Authority for its regulatory purposes, and is computed in
accordance with the Fourth Schedule to the Hong Kong Banking Ordinance.

ARG
Group

2007 2006

ARAE R B 4 LR Average liquidity ratio for the year 43.9% 44.1%
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(a) Credit risk
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The Group uses the following external credit assessment
institutions (“ECAIs”) to calculate its capital adequacy
requirements under the standardised (credit risk) approach

prescribed in the Capital Rules:

- Moody’s Investors Service
- Standard & Poor’s Ratings Services and

- Fitch Ratings

The capital requirements on each class of exposures under the
standardised (credit risk) approach at the balance sheet date are

summarised as follows:

2007
T
HK$°000
L B Sovereign exposures 35,594
N ETEEE R Public sector entity exposures 26,003
Z 1R R RAT R B Multilateral development bank exposures -
SRAT AL Bank exposures 1,865,951
e oA i JEUBE Securities firm exposures 4,642
fioe iy Corporate exposures 6,286,855
A A BB R Collective investment scheme exposures -
BEHHE Cash items 10,982
R T2 2L Regulatory retail exposures 431,024
B R Residential mortgage loans 370,091
oA Iz FF A 2 JE Other exposures which are not past due 398,256
T R Past due exposures 12,552
A AR R RIE H 2 A S AR Total capital charge for on-balance sheet exposures 9,441,950
HEGEERER Direct credit substitutes 92,899
B 50 A B 2 Bk B M Transaction-related contingencies 6,392
B 5 A B 2 sUOR FL R Trade-related contingencies 47,096
7t 1A E Forward asset purchases 21,600
TR SR ey B o5 Partly paid-up shares and securities -
EREpu LN e Forward deposits placed 124,987
A AEARAT AR < AR Y Unconditionally cancellable commitments -
HoAh A Other commitments 611,754
[ER A A Exchange rate contracts 86,175
FIEEH Interest rate contracts 28,508
JRARE R A4 Equity contracts 70
HRIEAT A0 A P AR S i e PR OTC derivative transactions and credit derivative contracts
BT THAE G Rl S TRA# subject to valid bilateral netting agreements -
AR A FAFR >R T A 2 Other off-balance exposures which are not elsewhere specified -
Hofth ¥ B RSN BB
A MRINERE 2 EA S A Total capital charge for off-balance sheet exposures 1,019,481
15 BB 2 A 32 AR Total capital charge for credit risk 10,461,431

BEARTR T LA S I phy AR B w5 645 ) 22 Ja B o A
e Lk 89% wHFE - Sl AS S AR AR I ) B R B AR o

The capital requirement is made by multiplying the Group’s risk-
weighted amount derived from the relevant calculation approach by 8%.
It does not reflect the Group’s actual regulatory capital.
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Credit risk (continued)

(i) Where exposures have been rated by the above-mentioned
ECAIs, they are categorised under the following class of
exposures:

- Sovereign exposures

- Public sector entity exposures

- Multilateral development bank exposures
- Bank exposures

= Securities firm exposures

- Corporate exposures

- Collective investment scheme exposures

(iii) The process used to map the ECAI issuer ratings or the ECAIs
issue specific ratings in the Group’s banking book is consistent
with those prescribed in the Capital Rules.

Operational risk

The Hong Kong Monetary Authority has granted approval under
section 24(1)(a) of the Capital Rules for the Group to use the Basel
II Basic Indicator Approach to calculate its operational risk. The
Group thus applies this approach in managing operational risk, but
is simultaneously adopting the relevant supervising guidelines of the
HKMA. As at 31 December 2007, the capital charge for operational risk
amounted to HK$393,183,040. The Group targets to apply to HKMA by
the last quarter of 2008 for switching into the Standardised Approach to
calculate its operational risk.
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() TiBEE (c)  Market risk
B i 58 5 2ERS A T 2 T 35 S B s B A Market risk activities currently undertaken by trading businesses
RISy 2 [ 58 5 BRIE | I A8 R IE | o can basically be divided into “Trading Book” and “Non-Trading
Book”.
S IRIA Trading book:
G IR IME I B SR G B A H It consists of proprietary positions in financial instruments and
LR I, S T8 A S A BRI B A ) v 4 derivatives which are held for re-sale or which are taken on with
i 11 5 i <l T HL S AT A TR 2 R/ the trading intention of benefiting from actual and/or expected
e o FAAZZ 5 15 Y H IS BAH B A short-term price or interest movements. Proprietary trading
Ko activities are relatively not sizeable at this stage.
2L i B ZE T G A oh e R R R A The Group applies the “standardised approach” for its market
TG bR R R | - i =2 % risk in BASEL II Capital Rules. The trading book positions as
FEA A=t IR G RSB RS at 31 December 2007 and their capital consumptions are as
ZEASST S 249,632,000 5 TC o R T EE HK$249,632,000. The market risk capital requirement for trading
LHET A= —HARKSREZ 15 books as at 31 December 2007 was:
JEBR AR E IR -
T 455 G A S iy
o i g0 Risk type Market risk capital charges
(F¥5T)
(HK$’000)
23R JEL o — R B Interest rate exposure — specific risk 63
MR oy — — T 35 St Interest rate exposure — general market risk 91,330
JBeAs Ja g Equity exposures 6,016
A1 S8 Foreign exchange exposures 152,223
7 it JEUBE Commodity exposures =
At Total 249,632
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Market risk (continued)

The following histograms show the frequency distribution of
daily revenues related to market risk activities of the Group for
years ended 31 December 2007 and 2006.

+—HILARBE

For the year ended 31 December 2007

(c)

CAPITAL CHARGE FOR CREDIT, OPERATIONAL AND

MARKET RISKS (continued)
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43  THEEEE @) 4.3 Market risk (continued)
() TEGEEE (4 (c)  Market risk (continued)
I35 5 IR IA Non-trading Book
IE 22 5y W TEL AL 45 TR < % Bl 4 1 o It consists of ALM interest rate risk positions arising from
A= 22 ALM IS R B 8 DA B i 25 B funding and liquidity management as well as debt securities
B JE S N 2 B AMRIED) - HITE investment and balance sheet activities from non-treasury
BRHEAT Z MBS 6 B KB VR & S B & business. Debt securities activities undertaken by Treasury &
& i o Markets are largely for investment and liquidity management
purpose.
BN ARERATIA AT R S BB T A R RS o B During the year, the Bank only acts as an investor in all securitisation
TBUE R OHT - PR AT S R R Y R AR AR exposure. Ratings from Moody’s Investors Service, Standard & Poor’s
AR R A SRR o B R AR ERA T I Rr et 7 b R and Fitch Ratings are adopted in assessing securitisation exposures. Since
Y i A R IS 2 1O RR ] AR A B R T SR AR AT T the securitisation exposures held by the Bank are all rated by recognised
fili > AGRAT IR FARYE (RS0 ) SHALE ST INRESS BJa ECAI designated by the Capital Rules, the Bank uses the standardised
Wi o ASGRAT %5 D) s e A B RS o (securitisation) approach to calculate the weighted credit risk for the

exposures. The Bank closely monitors the risk arising from these exposures.

T FEIR A SRR = EZELEF =1 — The following table indicates the securitisation exposures as at 31 December
H 2007:
IR BE R
Exposures deducted from its
L Iy AR BOBEAR H e A
Outstanding Risk-weighted Capital Core  Supplementary
amounts amounts requirements capital capital
T Tl T#x T#x T
w2 AL 25 D 7 0 Securitisation exposures HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HKS$°000
CSsecei(d Traditional securitisations
S Instalment loan 101,895 20,379 1,630 - -
FE B oY Retail mall properties 98,046 19,609 1,569 - -
RSt Franchise 63,347 31,674 2,534 - -
oAt Others 78,546 - - 39,273 39,273
341,834 71,662 5,733 39,273 39,273
A ERELE+ T H =+ HARTEEE (352510 ) ik The capital requirement of securitisation exposure under standardised
FTA I R SR AL JEB AR B3R £ 5,723,926 HE UG © A F (securitisation) approach at 31 December 2007 was HK$5,732,926.
TR+ ZH = — BRI S E IR 2O K The deductible items from core and supplementary capital under asset

RFFAS 4 RT F1138 0B H £ 78,546,385 W5 T © securitisation at 31 December 2007 amounted to HK$78,546,385.
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AERAT L PR AN ER AT IR A T BRAT B s B N A
135 ST A TR 32 50 36 T 05 5 SRR 9 R B A B R
REEREFES A=+ H o AR AT AT [
WS EEMETAGH - R _FELE+ A
=R R AT RS RS BT A TR
TR0 . e RIS 5 A5 2% B 0y £ L g A B P JEL e
TR A5 FEOR I o

The Bank has adopted current exposure method (CEM) to determine the
exposure amount for inter-bank counterparty credit risk which arises from
OTC derivative transactions in banking and trading books. At 31 December

2007, there are no repo-style transactions nor credit derivative contracts in
the Bank. No recognised collateral including recognised credit derivative
contracts is held as credit protection for counterparty credit risk related
exposure at 31 December 2007.

T RINR R R R RO ) BT 07 (5 5 JEUBR A

The following table indicates the information of counterparty credit risk-

14 JEU B AR U A R DR related exposures under standardised approach:

AR TER AP 15 B gz

Gross total Credit Risk weighted

positive fair value equivalent amount

T#T T#T T#x

Z“RELAE 2007 HK$000 HK$000 HK$’000
BT HA Y OTC derivative transactions:

AT Bank 776,997 1,935,964 804,720

Hops Others 345,707 681,282 629,686

1,122,704 2,617,246 1,434,406

BB A S L BT AR RS 0 (5 A (H ORI 1

=
2 X

() EE R B R

AGRAT O A E A R BT A U A
JE\ B AR (L4 A S5 AT A T H 52 5 i AR 1 B
3 75 s SR A B 1 SR R 4 ) il R KR AR AR
Ze B A1 v 2 A P R e A A L B ) I
TR o ZRSRAT A IELET Al HICH 0 2 70 A 15 AR S
LR o AHERANR RS R ki F R R
B KRBT FUE o ASRATIREAE i
TRE AWM REAE A > M2 W E R AP AG K 0
P o A{ES I H AR E TR - IR AeELT 4
H SRl i s - D H —YOfT
Al TSR E HAE HHE A

MEEEARNFEM S - RA SRR ER
HE Tl SR HRA i S 5 IR T T A0 2 Tl £ B S B
WA It o A ST T R S £ 5L g ol 1 Iy A
BEAH HIHAE ()l B A o

There is no effect of bilateral netting agreement on the credit equivalent
amounts of the derivative transactions.

Process of managing and recognising credit risk mitigation

The Bank has established policies on managing and recognising credit
risk mitigation, which are approved by credit committee, for all types of
credit exposure under standardised approach including counterparty credit
risk related exposure which arises from OTC derivative transactions. The
Bank applies prudent assessments of eligibility and quality of collateral.
Acceptable credit risk mitigations are as defined by Credit Committee
and/or regulatory authorities. The Bank also adheres to safe custodian of
collateral, regular re-valuation and close monitoring. Marketable securities
are marked to market on a daily basis or, if daily revaluation/marked to
market is unavailable, a minimum of once a month, whilst properties are
revalued periodically.

For regulatory capital calculation, only recognised collaterals and
guarantee defined in the Capital Rules are considered as recognised
credit risk mitigations. The Bank applies the simple approach criteria as
stipulated in the Capital Rules in ascertaining credit risk mitigation.



() B RS AR BB Z AR (40 (@)

xnuT?&#uu@%/\ﬁ%b’*{% BefFa -
G ey (R ROTEEER SFAIE AR BOE o T
EARBE - AATABE - KSR o KR
P 52 7 75 R A KA 5 R A A B R O AR
HE BB AT A A BB E o JETRERD AR (R S B
W R YA 77 A AT R AR ~ AR
SRAT B AR R 0 A W BCHL P BT E AR 45 ]
T A- B LA E R SNERRT AR A R
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Process of managing and recognising credit risk mitigation
(continued)

Recognised collateral include eligible guarantee, cash deposit, gold,
shares, debt securities and collective investments in transferable
securities, commercial real estate, residential real estate, vehicles and
equipments. The exposure amount after mitigation is determined by
applying the standard supervisory haircut laid down by the Capital
Rules to the current collateral value. Recognised guarantor is any
sovereign entity, public sector entity, bank and regulated securities firm
with a lower risk weight than that of the borrower, or company that
are internally rated with a rating equivalent to external rating of A- or
better.

MoEEELEFT+H=+—H > BHFEANFEHE The main types of guarantor and their external ratings as at 31
B R H AR TR IN December 2007 are analysed as follows:

B ABUN B A Pt 2
Class of guarantors S & P’s equivalent Guaranteed amount
T#x
HK$’000
AT Bank AAA/AA- 21,531
A+/A- 2,526,378
T HER R Sovereign AAA/AA- 118,790
2,666,699

A [ {6 D A S B A i it (8 e AT
Bt A5 B R m bt - Hefs ERRok -
SHL R g Bl i it B 32 23 R K T SRAT 1A %
FHERES

There are limited credit and market risks concentrations within the
credit risk mitigants (recognised collateral and guarantees) used by
the Group, except for real estate which is extensively relied on for
risk mitigation in lending to non-bank corporate and non-corporate
customers.
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OB ES (b) Credit risk exposures
v M T S AR IR S ~ B 45 RS Sy B R Standard & Poor’s Ratings Services, Moody’s Investors Service and
A o 7 A [ 5 DA 4505 A T A 5 ) DR g AR D ek Fitch Ratings are the ECAISs that the Group uses in relation to each and
FH SN ER (5 B AR AR B o L LA 7R AR5 all classes of exposures below. The process it used to map the ECAI
S A% M e S EL AR AT S T A T SRR R R S BT A issuer ratings of the exposures booked in its banking book is a process
FEAR R 5 AN BRI 55 48 43 T AR S R P o as prescribed in Part 4 of the Capital Rules.
BB L RE BN
b E SR RTER  BRTHR
Exposures after recognised BRmES  RBWEAR  WRRRE  MERRSE
JRRSE R credit risk mitigation Risk weightedamounts ~ Totalrisk ~ Exposure  Exposure
Total tiber Aiee tiler Al weighted  coveredby  coveredby
TR IERR Class of exposures Exposures* Rated®  Unrated® Rated”  Unrated®  amounts collateral  guarantees
YA EEH On-balance sheet
i Sovereign 3145652 314565 112,881 444,930 - 444,930 - -
DEHEE Public sector entity 1467868 1467868 03U 6 35043 - -
SBURE Mulilateral development bank - - - - - - - -
i} i Bank 71,726,306 28959483 45283915 7381481 15942,904 23,324,385 - -
AT Securiies firm 116,051 - 116,051 - 58,026 58,026 - -
% } Corporate 86,202,352 11,376,255 69,952,096 8,649,532 69,936,154 78,585,686 2,345,118 2,560,766
AR Collective investment scheme - - - - - - - -
ResA Cashitems 219,397 - 3170619 - BB BB - -
THETEEN Regulatory retail 7,591,577 - TIBTR - 537800 5387800 376,085 31,760
fEAL S B Residential mortgage loans 12,025,731 - 11988229 - AR6138 4626138 37,501 -
At S 0 Other exposures whichare not pastdue 5,240,377 - 4978203 - 4978203 4978203 262174 -
Rkt Past due exposures 138928 - 138,928 - 156901 156,901 77,297 7465
YA HFEMEH Off-balance Sheet
RSN TR 5 Exposures other than
[FEMETAGALIIMY OTC derivative transactions or credit
KEARRSNERAL erivative contracts 19353369 66657 18687042 666415 10642693 11309108 1655811 66,708
SN TR, OTC derivative transactions 267246 45393 2163313 10640 1327986 1434406
(BT TR AH Credit derivative contracts - - - - - - - =
ARELIAR I Other off-balance sheet exposures not
HIBEE A RRINRRAS elsewhere specified - - - - = - - -
B B SR Sk 7 Exposures deducted from capital base 919,796 - - - - - - -

AR A B (B 1 A B A A 4
AR (I )

BLIEBAT SN AE AT AR B AT 4 R AT AR
VI JEL o 7 34 e EL A S A B AR
(B STz A 2 A7 4 T AL L A (L 2 AR
A AR U 9 I BRI 275 1 A A
RGeS em g e N S EUN
FE AR RSN RS BERT AR R AL 05 A PR A fe
HC At JRUBR AR 1 L )BT AT AR )

AR BRI A5 B AT AR B AT 4 R R R
IV TE A% )L B AR 3

Representing principal amount or credit equivalent amount, as
applicable, net of individual impairments

Including exposures with the ECAI issue specific rating and
exposures which have an inferred rating (i.e. exposures which
do not have an issue-specific rating but whose risk-weights are
determined under the Capital Rules by reference to an ECAI
issuer rating assigned to the obligor of the exposure or to an ECAI
issue rating of any other exposures of the obligor)

Representing exposures which do not have the ECAI issue
specific rating nor inferred rating
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(@) &P > 847 K H A4 Bl = SR (a) Loans and advances to customers, banks and other financial
institutions
BT~ SRAT S HAth 45 Rl B R 2 K — Fie e ) Advances to customers, banks and other financial institutions
i - by geographical area
7% 4 [ K85t B AT ol L g R IR 25 4% ik (B 5% i The Group’s gross advances to customers, banks and other financial
[ B 43 25 5~ SRAT K HAt 8 BB A 2 3 AR institutions by country or geographical area after taking into account
FHUNT - the risk transfers are as follows:
HF - GUT Kb
BB 2 Sk A wH=MA
Gross advances to VEREY ¢ WA K A ) ¥ A LA WAL Al
customers, banks Overdue advances Impaired Individual Collective
and other financial for over three loans and impairment impairment
institutions months advances allowance allowance
T T T T Tl
“RR L 2007 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
s Hong Kong 80,072,327 98,122 640,984 119,703 168,449
A b Mainland China 25,100,485 5,557 5,548 5,590 15,688
M Macau 796,440 70 70 - 1,366
Gy N Asia Pacific region

(NEFERE (excluding Hong Kong,

A3t S AR ) Mainland China and Macau) 5,461,426 - - - 10,353
Bl United Kingdom 1,188,098 - - - 1,527
Hof Others 8,808,952 - - - 12,886

121,427,728 103,749 646,602 125,293 210,269

&P 447 REA

SR BRI =18 A
Gross advances to DB AE B (EGIRCAER AR
customers, banks  Overdue advances Impaired Individual Collective
and other financial for over three loans and impairment impairment
institutions months advances allowance allowance
THTT T THT THTT THTT
TETANE 2006 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
s Hong Kong 64,910,957 195,540 513,501 113,457 186,678
A b Mainland China 2,118,439 - - - 20,770
M Macau 608,717 7,655 7,655 7,655 1,737
Gy N Asia Pacific Region (excluding Hong

(REFFE - Kong, Mainland

A R ) China and Macau) 2,718,003 = 377,233 80,000 6,765
e United Kingdom 883,871 - - - 2,554
HAl Others 4,505,709 - - - 13,021

75,745,696 203,195 898,389 201,112 231,525

R FR 2R EL T 7 R AR ) 3 T ) N A8 PR B

Risk transfers are only made if the claims are guaranteed by a party in a
country which is different from that of the counterparty or if the claims
are on an overseas branch of a bank whose head office is located in
another country.

FR Y1) HARRBALIA 75— B S WY SRAT O S 04T 4t 9
TEULT 77 B R R o
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(b) BEHEHER (b)

A G T e b I 3 T B8 PR o AR BN T I
AT O R B BLAZ 5 77 MR AR B K 2 55— T
P AEEAR < BEAZ B o A MBS 5T &R 10% DL L

Cross-border claims

The Group analyses cross-border claims by geographical area. In
determining this analysis, the Group has taken into account of the
transfers of risk with respect to claims guaranteed by a party in a country

ZH@A R AR different from that of the counterparty. Those areas that constitute 10%
or more of the aggregate cross-border claims are as follows:
BT R
Jefb A bRY
Banks and AERE
other financial ~ Public sector By A5t
institutions entities Others Total
H#HT HE®T T AL
HKS$’ million  HK$’ million HKS$’ million HKS$’ million
SRR 2007
Ly N Asia Pacific
(AR ) (excluding Hong Kong) 25,857 2,889 15,323 44,069
(¢l Europe 40,875 - 884 41,759
ZELNE 2006
R (AN ELHE 7 ) Asia Pacific (excluding Hong Kong) 12,843 894 8,094 21,831
Ak 2% R r S North and South America 2,444 434 6,495 9,373
o Europe 38,425 - 2,228 40,653




(c) PN HBIEERAT LB AR (c)

A1 3t I SRAT B AR T 4 SR AT T O B
MR A B A BEJR SR AT 36 (iR ) BRI 5t
Y T LS AR IS S I A 228 R (6) [ B0k~
AR S HER G T 2 IRER — MA(BS)2A | IR
BUEAT AT > GLAEASGRAT B g SRR I 4 B K
IMATIECHR B 1A B AR 3 o

B TR AT () AT R A A
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The analysis of non-bank Mainland exposure is based on the categories
of non-bank counterparties and the types of direct exposures defined
by the Hong Kong Monetary Authority under the Banking (Disclosure)
Rules with reference to the completion instructions in note 6 of the

“Returns of Quarterly Analysis of Loans and Advances and Provisions
- MA(BS)2A”, which includes the Mainland exposures extended by the
Bank and its overseas subsidiary and branch.

WARAMGR  WEARRD R4 3
B AR JR B R R WPl 4l
On-balance Off-balance TR H Individually
sheet sheet Total assessed
exposure exposure exposure allowances
T T#T T# T
HK$°000 HK$’000 HKS$’000 HK$°000
“RRLF 2007
A R Mainland entities 16,100,628 1,329,091 17,429,719 -
FURERZAZ B st T 1) Companies and individuals outside Mainland
PR3t LA [ A ] AR where the credit is granted for use in
Mainland 7,660,219 1,093,919 8,754,138 74,657
AGRAT R FURBR R B Other counterparties whose exposure is
A SR AT R R considered by the Bank to be non-bank
2 H At F oy Mainland exposure 2,039,396 629,079 2,668,475 5,558
25,800,243 3,052,089 28,852,332 80,215
ZEZENE 2006
P HL T Mainland entities 6,436,075 421,926 6,858,001 -
HBERZ (5 B0 R e 1 Companies and individuals outside Mainland
IR A S 8 2 ) B A1 where the credit is granted for use in
Mainland 6,753,983 - 6,753,983 45,203
ARSRAT AR A FL B R A Other counterparties whose exposure is
A s I SR ATl A O considered by the Bank to be non-bank
ZHAMETF I Mainland exposure 951,076 10,970 962,046 -
14,141,134 432,896 14,574,030 45,203




234 BT SRAT (SEU) AR Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited
ZEZALAFH W Annual Report 2007

B~ SRAT S At 4 B A 2 SRk ARAH — 3k Gross loans and advances to customers, banks and other financial
= institutions by industry sector
AL
Group
2007 2007 2006 2006
ok B
Gross loans Ak EE% Gross loans AL
and advances Biflivi e and advances R
T % of secured Fitoo % of secured
HK$’000 advances HK$'000 advances
TAAR A T 2 3R Loans for uses in Hong Kong
T¥ - HELER Industrial, commercial and financial
—WEER - Property development 6,932,715 29.30% 4,422,104 13.87%
—WEHRE - Property investment 17,544,326 65.74% 13,304,411 66.18%
— REH R R B - Financial concerns 5,044,113 2.60% 3,860,244 2.05%
— AR - Stockbrokers 115,996 98.87% 147,042 17.35%
—HERTEE - Wholesale and retail trade 3,730,013 54.47% 2,194,440 66.01%
—EATHE - Civil engineering works 380,307 31.23% 409,532 25.19%
— - Manufacturing 3,854,159 45.91% 3,055,617 42.88%
— 1 SRk f - Transport and transport equipment 7,865,445 59.99% 8,036,027 56.51%
=B R - Electricity, gas and telecommunications 2,091,023 2.94% 936,168 2.69%
— B A RERE - Hotels, boarding houses and catering 937,490 9.18% 1,121,759 22.08%
— s - Others 4,746,507 26.23% 4,796,105 32.05%
R AL Individuals
—WE [EEAHE] — Loans for the purchase of flats in Home
[FL BB BT B | R Ownership Scheme, Private Sector
[T EHE | B Participation Scheme and Tenants
Purchase Scheme 310,275 84.49% 155,421 71.42%
—BE A ERT - Loans for the purchase of other residential
properties 11,789,246 97.84% 10,736,652 99.55%
—fERRER - Credit card advances 100,844 0.00% 104,831 0.00%
— A - Others 1,501,626 96.02% 1,246,530 94.86%
BoME Trade finance 27,688,336 9.92% 6,838,910 52.37%

TEARELISMI 2 Bk Loans for uses outside Hong Kong 26,795,307 18.04% 14,179,903 18.26%

121,427,728 36.78% 75,745,696 48.81%
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B~ SRAT S At 4 B A 2 SRk ARAH — 3k Gross loans and advances to customers, banks and other financial
HHIE () institutions by industry sector (continued)
AT
Bank
2007 2007 2006 2006
ok B
Gross loans Ak EE% Gross loans AL
and advances Bl e and advances R
T % of secured Tt % of secured
HK$’000 advances HK$'000 advances
TAAR A T 2 B3R Loans for uses in Hong Kong
T¥ - HELER Industrial, commercial and financial
—WEER - Property development 6,932,715 29.30% 4,422,104 13.87%
—WEHRE - Property investment 17,544,326 65.74% 13,304,411 66.18%
— B RS RA B - Financial concerns 5,044,113 2.60% 3,860,244 2.05%
— AR - Stockbrokers 115,996 98.87% 147,042 17.35%
—HERTEE - Wholesale and retail trade 3,730,013 54.47% 2,180,527 66.43%
—bEATHE - Civil engineering works 380,307 31.23% 409,532 25.19%
— % - Manufacturing 3,854,159 45.91% 3,055,617 42.88%
— 1 SR A - Transport and transport equipment 7,865,445 59.99% 8,036,027 56.51%
=% R - Electricity, gas and telecommunications 2,091,023 2.94% 936,168 2.69%
— G~ A RERE - Hotels, boarding houses and catering 937,490 9.18% 1,121,759 22.08%
— s - Others 4,746,507 26.23% 4,756,105 32.32%
N Individuals
—WE [REAHE] ~ Loans for the purchase of flats in Home
[FA NS BT B | R Ownership Scheme, Private Sector
[THEEHE | B Participation Scheme and Tenants
Purchase Scheme 310,275 84.49% 155,421 71.42%
—BE A ERT - Loans for the purchase of other residential
properties 11,789,246 97.84% 10,736,652 99.55%
—fERRER - Credit card advances 100,844 0.00% 104,831 0.00%
— A - Others 1,501,626 96.02% 1,246,530 94.86%
BoME Trade finance 27,688,336 9.92% 6,838,910 52.37%

TEARELISMI 2 Bk Loans for uses outside Hong Kong 19,989,644 13.77% 13,225,781 14.08%

114,622,065 37.15% 74,737,661 48.50%
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B~ SRAT S At 4 B A 2 SRk ARAH — 3k Gross loans and advances to customers, banks and other financial
Wi (a0 institutions by industry sector (continued)

HF -~ SRAT B H At B 2 SRR 109% BRUA L RY
SEH N 0 18 50 D (L 0 ARl Bl (B HE AR AT

Individually impaired loans and individual impairment allowances in respect
of industry sectors that constitute 10% or more of the total advances to
customers, banks and other financial institutions are as follows:

AR
Group
2007 2006
T THETT
HK$°000 HK$°000
(a) PG (a) Property investment
1R Bk (L K Individually impaired loans 186,068 28,743
LR ERLE Individual impairment allowances 3,035 2,187
A A e Collective impairment allowances 36,460 38,398
AR i 2 57 B 2 T R e A New impairment allowances charged to income statement 21,509 25,828
A PSS B R Impaired loans and advances written off during the year 503 -
(b) HEEHAMME THTF (b) Loans for the purchase of other residential properties
R TIERS &N Individually impaired loans 111,715 119,453
A1 Pk (¥ A Individual impairment allowances 5,166 8,102
A A R R e Collective impairment allowances 24,508 30,940
B i 2 57 B 2 ek e New impairment allowances charged to income statement 8,239 9,247
A TA) S ok B Impaired loans and advances written off during the year 1,496 1,321
(c) BHmE (c) Trade finance
(ERIREAIERS ¢ N Individually impaired loans 70,209 109,694
A8 P ok L ¥ A Individual impairment allowances 31,636 49,140
A A Collective impairment allowances 29,830 19,490
JA R AR 2 S8 2 F (B New impairment allowances charged to income statement 51,643 48,426
A TA) B il L B Impaired loans and advances written off during the year 30,366 85,011
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B~ SRAT S At 4 B A 2 SRk ARAH — 3k Gross loans and advances to customers, banks and other financial
Wi (a0 institutions by industry sector (continued)
RGBT
Bank
2007 2006
T T
HK$°000 HK$°000
(a) PG (a) Property investment
1R Bk (L K Individually impaired loans 186,068 28,743
LR ERLE Individual impairment allowances 3,035 2,187
A A e Collective impairment allowances 36,460 38,398
JAE £ RS B BV New impairment allowances charged to income statement 21,509 25,828
A PSS B R Impaired loans and advances written off during the year 503 -
(b) HEE HAFEMT (b) Loans for the purchase of other residential properties
R TIERS &N Individually impaired loans 111,715 119,453
A1 Pk (¥ A Individual impairment allowances 5,166 8,102
A A R R e Collective impairment allowances 24,508 30,940
B i 2 57 B 2 ek e New impairment allowances charged to income statement 8,239 9,247
A TA) S ok B Impaired loans and advances written off during the year 1,496 1,321
(c) BHmE (c) Trade finance
(ERIREAIERS ¢ N Individually impaired loans 70,209 109,694
A8 P ok L ¥ A Individual impairment allowances 31,636 49,140
A A Collective impairment allowances 29,830 19,490
JA R AR 2 S8 2 F (B New impairment allowances charged to income statement 51,643 48,426

A TA) B il L B Impaired loans and advances written off during the year 30,366 82,036
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N RMEA A SR R A RAT 2 SRR T o SN AR
TRRR Y % BRI A A IR A AR 2 109% BX
VAR DA FR o SR 0 (e T A HiAt 5 O H 2
RPRESRAERF RSN o FHA BB T 2 S ]

R 2 B -

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited

Currency concentration — the table below summarises the net foreign
currency positions of the Group and the Bank. The net position in a foreign
currency is disclosed when the currency constitutes 10% or more of the total
net position of all foreign currencies. A sensitivity analysis calculates the effect
of a reasonable possible movement in a currency rate against Hong Kong
dollar, with all other variables in income statement and equity held constant.

JLfb g
eI HIH AR Other foreign Hst
US$ JPY RMB currencies Total
A%H Group Tt Tl T T#L T#L
it 2 2 S 2007 HK$°000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
AR Non-structural position:
BB GRE Spot assets 89,116,280 1,272,890 6,525,871 8,698,779 105,613,820
HEAR Spot liabilities (70,308,657) (177,033) (5,781,351) (6,701,047) (82,968,088)
EMEA Forward purchases 36,820,381 1,507,977 20,766,501 2,902,692 61,997,551
N Forward sales (55,872,158) (2,207,743) (20,650,376) (4,853,668) (83,583,945)
SRR Net option position 1,113,220 (931,660) - 20,746 202,306
ol k) 54 Net long/(short) position 869,066 (535,569) 860,645 67,502 1,261,644
HAth g
ESTH HE ARH Other foreign Mt
UsS$ JPY RMB currencies Total
AL Group Tt T T T Tk
ZEENE 2006 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
Faita R - Non-structural position:
REERE Spot assets 72,055,601 770,773 296,608 6,132,707 79,255,689
L&A K Spot liabilities (60,871,421) (344,128) (214,685) (4,951,150) (66,381,384)
EMEA Forward purchases 35,505,948 1,523,062 13,141,674 4,332,062 54,502,746
N Forward sales (45,486,539) (1,821,707) (13,022,646) (5,472,047) (65,802,939)
HRERR A Net option position 69,636 (31,481) = (39,501) (1,346)
A Net long position 1,273,225 96,519 200,951 2,071 1,572,766
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Jefb g
Foi HE AR Other foreign it
US$ JPY RMB currencies Total
AHUT Bank Tt Tl T#L T T
—RF L 2007 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
AR Non-structural position:
REERE Spot assets 89,072,749 1,272,878 456,783 8,635,346 99,437,756
BB AR Spot liabilities (70,255,387) (177,021) (406,473) (7,065,342) (77,904,223)
EHIA Forward purchases 36,820,381 1,507,977 20,766,501 2,902,692 61,997,551
N Forward sales (55,872,158) (2,207,743) (20,650,376) (4,853,668) (83,583,945)
HREA R A Net option position 1,113,220 (931,660) - 20,746 202,306
R/ Gk B8 Net long/(short) position 878,805 (535,569) 166,435 (360,226) 149,445
Hth
ESv HIE NG Other foreign Mgt
US$ JPY RMB currencies Total
AT Bank Tt Tkt Tk Tt T
ZERBNE 2006 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AR Non-structural position:
REERE Spot assets 71,364,070 770,762 283,230 6,069,693 78,487,755
BEAE Spot liabilities (60,807,431) (344,117) (223,384) (5,244,646) (66,619,578)
EHEA Forward purchases 35,505,948 1,523,062 13,141,674 4,332,062 54,502,746
N Forward sales (45,486,539) (1,821,707) (13,022,646) (5,472,047) (65,802,939)
IRER R A Net option position 69,636 (31,481) - (39,501) (1,346)
R/ k) FH Net long/(short) position 645,684 96,519 178,874 (354,439) 566,638
AN SR i 4 8] 52 5 o M e A SRR o SRE i A Foreign currency exposures include those arising from trading position. The
E SR XFEHE - net option position is calculated using the delta equivalent approach.
REEBERELFEREZNFLH=E+—H - WA There was no net structural position in a particular foreign currency that
HAOPE SE MR R A 10% B |2 B RRAL R 45 constitutes (in absolute terms) 10% or more of the net structural position in all

REVERRIR 8 (P A BT 5 - foreign currencies as at 31 December 2007 and 2006.
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MEEFNE—A+—H > AR R
B TR SRAT SR 2 A B R R SR A R SRR
TR SRATAR MRS T A IR AT

As at 11 January 2008, the types of Relevant Advances and the balance of the
relevant outstanding amounts due from, and all guarantees given on behalf of,
the ICBC Group were as follows:

THIT
HK$’000

A B £k 0N Type of the Relevant Advances
BT B TR ERAT 2 B 5 Bk CRAER) Trade Loan to ICBC outstanding 22,308,500
58 B TR ARAT 2 M5 S RS CRIEE) Confirmed ICBC Standby Letter of Credit outstanding 57,800
T B LR SRAT AR I 2 B T e i CR B Money Market to ICBC outstanding 3,870,100
i v B AT 4 P % 2 A Bk Total Relevant Advances to ICBC Group 26,236,400

A TEENFEIHA —H > A BER B e R
TRERATSE ) 2 A B R R R SR BRI T
PSRAT AR MR 2 B A IR AT

As at 1 April 2008, the types of Relevant Advances and the balance of the
relevant outstanding amounts due from, and all guarantees given on behalf of,
the ICBC Group were as follows:

T
HK$°000
A5 B £E 5N Type of the Relevant Advances

27 B TR ERAT 2 B 5 R CRAER ) Trade Loan to ICBC outstanding 24,927,400

A 5, B L SR AT 2 M RS e Confirmed ICBC Standby Letter of Credit/
PR CRIEE) Guarantee outstanding 784,300
$ T v B R SRAT A I T i CRAER) Money Market to ICBC Group outstanding 2,253,200
P R TP SR A I SR R R ) Syndication Loan to ICBC Group outstanding 390,000
1o v B AT A R e 2 A T R A Total Relevant Advances to ICBC Group 28,354,900

A B SR R R AL BT SRATIR SR 15 B 3 2R B B
FETE > MEE W TSR R BT o B TR SR AT
B [ BT SRAT IR SE SR A SR E o A B SRR B
SR BARE - A B R T I R — A A bR A 2 —
o MW —F REARTIS TE RAMEARE R R
/& (A ) &) o 7B LT Rz AR E
I A 415 ) R AR

T o B R SRAT A I 2 A B BT S AR SR P HL F
WHATRBRRE T > 1R BB AT T AT AR S 5
1 2 A B % 5 AR 2 IE % P SRR o

The interest rates charged for the Relevant Advances mostly are floating
interest rates based on the prevailing interbank offer rate, except for money
market placement whose interest rates are set by the ICBC Group and based
on the prevailing interbank bid rate. The Relevant Advances are repayable in
full at maturity, and the maturity date for the Relevant Advances generally
ranges from overnight to 1 year, or longer than 1 year on capital market
instruments and standby letter of credit/guarantee (if applicable). The
Relevant Advances to the ICBC Group are not secured by any collateral.

The Relevant Advances to the ICBC Group were made by the Group in the
ordinary course of the Group’s banking business, and on normal commercial
terms commensurate with customers of the Group having similar credit
ratings or financial strengths.
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NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Annual General Meeting of the Members of
Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited (the “Bank”) will be held at
33/F., ICBC Tower, 3 Garden Road, Central, Hong Kong on Thursday, 22 May 2008
at 10:00 a.m. for the following purposes:

1. Toreceive and consider the audited Statement of Accounts and the Reports of
the Directors and of the Auditors for the year ended 31 December 2007.

2. To declare a final dividend.
3. To re-elect Directors.

4. To approve the payment of Directors’ fees for the year ended 31 December
2007.

5. To re-appoint Ernst & Young as the Auditors of the Bank and to authorize the
Directors to fix their remuneration.

To consider and, if thought fit, pass with or without amendments the following
Ordinary Resolutions by way of special business:

6. “THAT

(a) subject to the following provisions of this Resolution, the exercise
by the Board of Directors of the Bank during the Relevant Period (as
defined below) of all the powers of the Bank to allot, issue and deal with
additional shares in the capital of the Bank, and to make or grant offers,
agreements or options (including bonds, notes, warrants, debentures
and other securities convertible into shares of the Bank) which would
or might require the exercise of such powers, be and is hereby generally
and unconditionally approved;

(b) the approval in paragraph (a) above shall authorize the Board of
Directors of the Bank during the Relevant Period to make or grant
offers, agreements or options (including bonds, notes, warrants,
debentures and other securities convertible into shares of the Bank)
which would or might require the exercise of such powers after the end
of the Relevant Period;

(c)  the aggregate nominal amount of shares in the capital of the Bank
allotted or agreed conditionally or unconditionally to be allotted or
dealt with (whether pursuant to an option or otherwise) by the Board of
Directors of the Bank pursuant to the approval in paragraph (a) above,
otherwise than pursuant to (i) a Rights Issue (as defined below); (ii) the
exercise of rights of subscription or conversion under the terms of any
warrants of the Bank or any securities which are convertible into shares
of the Bank; (iii) any scrip dividend or similar arrangement providing
for the allotment of shares in lieu of the whole or part of a dividend on
shares of the Bank pursuant to the Articles of Association of the Bank
from time to time; or (iv) any option scheme or similar arrangement
for the time being adopted for the grant or issue to employees of the
Bank, and/or any of its subsidiaries of shares or rights to acquire shares
of the Bank, shall not exceed 20% of the aggregate nominal amount
of the issued share capital of the Bank as at the date of passing of this
Resolution and the said approval shall be limited accordingly; and
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Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited

(d)

for the purpose of this Resolution:

“Relevant Period” means the period from the passing of this Resolution
until whichever is the earlier of:

(i)  the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting of the Bank;

(ii)  the expiration of the period within which the next Annual
General Meeting of the Bank is required by the Articles of
Association of the Bank or the Companies Ordinance to be held;
or

(iii) the revocation or variation of the authority given under this
Resolution by an ordinary resolution of the shareholders of the
Bank in general meeting.

“Rights Issue” means an offer of shares of the Bank open for a period
fixed by the Board of Directors of the Bank to holders of shares of the
Bank whose names appear on the register of members of the Bank on
a fixed record date in proportion to their then holdings of such shares
or class thereof (subject to such exclusions or other arrangements as
the Directors of the Bank may deem necessary or expedient in relation
to fractional entitlements or having regard to any restrictions or
obligations under the laws of, or the requirements of any recognized
regulatory body or any stock exchange in, any territory outside Hong
Kong applicable to the Bank).”

“THAT

()

(c)

subject to paragraph (b) below, the exercise by the Board of Directors of
the Bank during the Relevant Period (as defined below) of all the powers
of the Bank to repurchase shares in the capital of the Bank, subject to
and in accordance with all applicable laws and the requirements of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited as amended from time to time, be and is hereby
generally and unconditionally approved;

the aggregate nominal amount of shares in the capital of the Bank which
may be repurchased by the Bank pursuant to the approval in paragraph
(a) above shall not exceed 10% of the aggregate nominal amount of
the issued share capital of the Bank as at the date of passing of this
Resolution, and the said approval shall be limited accordingly; and

for the purpose of this Resolution:

“Relevant Period” means the period from the passing of this Resolution
until whichever is the earlier of:

(i)  the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting of the Bank;

(ii)  the expiration of the period within which the next Annual
General Meeting of the Bank is required by the Articles of
Association of the Bank or the Companies Ordinance to be held;
or

(iii) the revocation or variation of the authority given under this
Resolution by an ordinary resolution of the shareholders of the
Bank in general meeting.”
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8. “THAT, conditional upon the passing of the Ordinary Resolution Nos. 6 and 7
as set out in the notice convening this Meeting of which this Resolution forms
part (the “Notice”), the general mandate granted to the Directors of the Bank
and for the time being in force to exercise the powers of the Bank to allot, issue
and deal with additional shares pursuant to the Ordinary Resolution No. 6
set out in the Notice be and is hereby extended by the addition thereto of an
amount representing the aggregate nominal amount of shares in the capital of
the Bank repurchased by the Bank under the authority granted to the Board of
Directors of the Bank pursuant to the Ordinary Resolution No. 7 set out in the
Notice, provided that such amount of shares so repurchased shall not exceed
10% of the aggregate nominal amount of the issued share capital of the Bank
as at the date of the said Ordinary Resolution.”

By Order of the Board
Tsang Mei Kuen
Company Secretary

Hong Kong, 22 April 2008

Notes:

(a) A member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting is entitled to appoint one or a
maximum of two proxies to attend and, on a poll, to vote on his behalf. If more than one
proxy is so appointed, the appointment shall specify the number and class of shares in
respect of which each such proxy is so appointed. A proxy need not be a member of the
Bank.

(b)  To be valid, a form of proxy, together with the power of attorney or other authority (if
any) under which it is signed, or a notarially certified copy of such power of attorney,
must be lodged with the Bank’s Share Registrars, Tricor Tengis Limited, at 26/F., Tesbury
Centre, 28 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong, not less than 48 hours before the
time appointed for holding the meeting (or any adjournment thereof) and in default
the proxy shall not be treated as valid. Completion and return of a form of proxy will
not preclude members from attending in person and voting at the meeting or any
adjournment thereof should they so wish.

(c) The register of members and the register of warrant holders of the Bank will be closed
from Thursday, 15 May 2008 to Thursday, 22 May 2008, both days inclusive, during
which period no transfers of shares or warrants will be registered. In order to qualify for
the proposed final dividends, all transfer documents, accompanied by the relevant share
certificates or in the case of warrant holders, all subscription forms accompanied by the
relevant warrant certificates and exercise money must be lodged for registration with
the Bank’s Share Registrars, Tricor Tengis Limited, at 26/F., Tesbury Centre, 28 Queen’s
Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong before 4:00 p.m. on Wednesday, 14 May 2008.

(d) A circular containing details in respect of the Ordinary Resolutions Nos. 3, 6 and 7 will
be sent to the Bank’s shareholders and warrant holders.

(e)  Inconnection with the Ordinary Resolution Nos. 6 and 7 above, approval is being sought
from members, as a general mandate in compliance with the Companies Ordinance
and the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited, so that in the event it becomes desirable for the Bank to issue any new shares
or to repurchase any existing shares of the Bank, the Board of Directors of the Bank are
given the flexibility and discretion to allot and issue new shares up to 20% of the issued
share capital of the Bank, together with such number of shares as may be repurchased by
the Bank pursuant to the general mandate under the Ordinary Resolution No. 7, as more
particularly described in the Ordinary Resolution Nos. 6, 7 and 8.

As at the date of this report, the Board of Directors comprises Mr. Zhu Qi, Mr. Wong Yuen Fai
and Mr. Zhang Yi as executive directors, Dr. Jiang Jianqing, Ms. Wang Lili and Mr. Chen Aiping
as non-executive directors and Professor Wong Yue Chim, Richard, $.B.S.,J.P., Mr. Tsui Yiu Wa,
Alec and Mr. Yuen Kam Ho, George as independent non-executive directors.
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Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited

33/F., ICBC Tower

3 Garden Road, Central,

Hong Kong

Telephone: 2588 1188

Facsimile: 2805 1166

Telex: 73264 ICBCA HX

Post Box: GPO Box 872

SWIFT: UBHKHKHH

Website: http://www.icbcasia.com

2/F., Kai Tak Commercial Building,

317-319 Des Voeux Road Central, Sheung Wan,
Hong Kong

Telephone: 3471 8688

West Point Branch

242-244 Queen’s Road West, Sai Ying Pun,
Hong Kong

Telephone: 2559 8166

Sheung Wan Branch

Shop F, G/F., Kai Tak Commercial Building,
317-319 Des Voeux Road Central, Sheung Wan,
Hong Kong

Telephone: 2543 3866

Queen’s Road Central Branch
122-126 Queen’s Road Central, Central,
Hong Kong

Telephone: 2534 3333

Central Branch

1/F., 9 Queen’s Road Central,
Hong Kong

Telephone: 2840 5840

Caine Road Branch

G/F., Caine Building, 22 Caine Road,
Hong Kong

Telephone: 2526 6278

Wanchai Branch

117-123 Hennessy Road, Wanchai,
Hong Kong

Telephone: 2527 3711

Wanchai Road Branch

G/F., 103-103A Wan Chai Road,
Hong Kong

Telephone: 2259 7800

Hennessy Road Branch

Shop 2A, G/F. & Basement, Cameron Commercial Centre,

468 Hennessy Road, Causeway Bay,
Hong Kong
Telephone: 2834 6148
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Happy Valley Branch

23 King Kwong Street, Happy Valley,
Hong Kong

Telephone: 2575 5720

Causeway Bay Branch

Shop A, G/F., Jardine Center,

50 Jardine’s Bazaar, Causeway Bay,
Hong Kong

Telephone: 2504 5888

Electric Road Branch
113-115 Electric Road, Tin Hau,
Hong Kong

Telephone: 2570 0388

City Garden Branch

Shop Unit 23, G/F., Maximall, City Garden,
233 Electric Road, North Point,

Hong Kong

Telephone: 2887 3811

North Point Branch

G/F., 436-438 King’s Road, North Point,
Hong Kong

Telephone: 2503 2993

Quarry Bay Branch

G/F., 1036-1040 King’s Road, Quarry Bay,
Hong Kong

Telephone: 2563 8724

Shau Kei Wan Branch
195 Shau Kei Wan Road,
Hong Kong

Telephone: 2568 5730

Aberdeen Branch (To be opened in May 2008)
Shop 7A, G/F,, Site 1, Aberdeen Centre,

Hong Kong

Telephone: 2518 5000

Tsimshatsui East Branch

Shop B, G/F., Railway Plaza,

39 Chatham Road South, Tsimshatsui,
Kowloon

Telephone: 3510 1000

Tsim Sha Tsui Branch

Shop 6-7, G/F., Hankow Centre,
5-15 Hankow Road, Tsimshatsui,
Kowloon

Telephone: 2369 5329

Jordan Branch

Shop 1C & 1D, G/F., Austin Plaza,
83 Austin Road, Jordan,

Kowloon

Telephone: 2376 1822
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Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited

Yaumatei Branch

542 Nathan Road, Yaumatei,
Kowloon

Telephone: 2771 6060

Mongkok Branch

G/F., Belgian Bank Building,
721-725 Nathan Road, Mongkok,
Kowloon

Telephone: 2309 7700

Prince Edward Branch
777 Nathan Road, Mongkok,
Kowloon

Telephone: 2380 3008

Shamshuipo Branch

G/F., 290 Lai Chi Kok Road, Shamshuipo,
Kowloon

Telephone: 2725 5133

Lai Chi Kok Branch

Shop G06, G/F., Cheung Sha Wan Plaza,
833 Cheung Sha Wan Road, Lai Chi Kok,
Kowloon

Telephone: 2741 8787

Mei Foo Branch

Shop N95A, 1/F., Mount Sterling Mall,
Mei Foo Sun Chuen,

Kowloon

Telephone: 2266 4600

Oi Man Branch

Shop F18 & F19, Oi Man Commercial Complex,
Oi Man Estate, Homantin,

Kowloon

Telephone: 2713 9261

Hung Hom Branch

Shop 2A, G/F., Hung Hom Shopping Mall,
2-34E Tak Man Street, Hung Hom,
Kowloon

Telephone: 2627 7168

Mok Cheong Street Branch

12-14 Mok Cheong Street, Tokwawan,
Kowloon

Telephone: 2714 5151

San Po Kong Branch

Shop G10, Yue Xiu Plaza,

3-23 Ning Yuen Street, San Po Kong,
Kowloon

Telephone: 2325 5387

Hong Ning Road Branch

58 Hong Ning Road, Kwun Tong,
Kowloon

Telephone: 2797 2683

Kwun Tong Branch

G/F., Lemmi Centre,

50 Hoi Yuen Road, Kwun Tong,
Kowloon

Telephone: 2342 0103
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Tseung Kwan O Branch

Shop Nos. 2011-2012, Level 2, Metro City, Plaza II,
8 Yan King Road, Tseung Kwan O,

New Territories

Telephone: 3194 3382

Kwai Fong Branch

C63A-C66, 2F., Kwai Chung Plaza,
Kwai Fong,

New Territories

Telephone: 2485 8000

Kwai Chung Branch

Unit G02, Tower A, Regent Centre,
63 Wo Yi Hop Road, Kwai Chung,
New Territories

Telephone: 2420 9288

Tsuen Wan Castle Peak Road Branch
G/F., 423-427 Castle Peak Road, Tsuen Wan,
New Territories

Telephone: 2492 0167

Sha Tsui Road Branch

Shop 4, G/F., Chung On Building,
297-313 Sha Tsui Road, Tsuen Wan,
New Territories

Telephone: 2439 9278

Tuen Mun Branch

217 A-F Central Services Building,
Nan Fung Industrial City,

18 Tin Hau Road, Tuen Mun,
New Territories

Telephone: 2466 8161

Tai Hing Branch

Shop 21-23 Tai Hing Commercial Complex,
Tai Hing Estate, Tuen Mun,

New Territories

Telephone: 2462 2400

Yuen Long Branch

G/F., 197-199 Castle Peak Road, Yuen Long,
New Territories

Telephone: 2442 5005

Tai Wo Branch

Shop 216, 2/F., Tai Wo Shopping Centre,
Tai Wo Estate, Tai Po,

New Territories

Telephone: 2650 2986
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PSR ST

P.O. Box 1034

4/F, Harbour Place,

103 South Church Street
Grand Cayman KY1-1102
Cayman Islands
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ICBC (Asia) Wa Pei Nominees Limited
ICBC Asia Wa Pei Limited (/)
ICBCA (C.I.) Limited
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IEC Investments Limited

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited

Tai Po Branch

9 Kwong Fuk Road, Tai Po,
New Territories
Telephone: 2638 3199

Shatin Branch

Shop 22J, Level 3, Shatin Centre,
New Territories

Telephone: 2693 3330

Cayman Islands Branch
P.O. Box 1034

4/F, Harbour Place,

103 South Church Street
Grand Cayman KY1-1102
Cayman Islands

Chinese Mercantile Bank

ICBC (Asia) Asset Management Company Limited
ICBC (Asia) Bullion Company Limited
ICBC (Asia) Investment Holdings Limited
ICBC (Asia) Nominee Limited

ICBC (Asia) Securities Limited

ICBC (Asia) Trustee Company Limited
ICBC (Asia) Wa Pei Nominees Limited
ICBC Asia Wa Pei Limited (in liquidation)
ICBCA (C.I.) Limited

UB China Business Management Co. Ltd.

China Ping An Insurance (Hong Kong) Company Limited

IEC Investments Limited
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Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited
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33/F, ICBC Tower, 3 Garden Road, Central, Hong Kong
i Tel (852) 2588 1188

L Fax (852) 2805 1166

AU Website  http://www.icbcasia.com
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